goiseaininktl BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
COUI\%TY CHRISTI HASWELL « HOLLY JENNINGS » TOM RINGLEY + NICK SIDDLE + LONNIE WRIGHT
. WYOMINGH 1888

e

L.
2

Regular Board Meeting Agenda
Sheridan County Courthouse Addition
224 S. Main St, Second Floor Board Room, #220
Tuesday, December 17, 2024, 9:00 a.m.

Call to Order and Pledge.

Consent Agenda:

12/02/2024Staff Meeting Draft Minutes;

12/03/2024 Regular Meeting Draft Minutes;

12/09/2024 Staff Meeting Draft Minutes;

12/10/2024 Airport Meeting Draft Minutes;

12/10/2024 Special Meeting Draft Minutes;

Presented to the Board for acknowledgement — County Clerk Monthly Statement of

Fees for November 2024;

g. Presented to the Board for acknowledgement — Public Works Presented by Mark Reid,
County Planner, Monthly Statement of Fees for November 2024;

h. Presented to the Board for acknowledgement — Sheriff Monthly Statement of Fees for
November 2024;

i. Official Bond and Oath, Holly Jennings, County Commissioner, Sheridan County,
$10,000.00, 01/02/2025 — 01/02/2027,

j. Official Bond and Oath, Michael R Arzy, County Commissioner, Sheridan County,
$10,000.00, 01/02/2025 — 01/02/2029;

k. Ratify Travelers Increase Certificate for Nick Siddle, Commissioner, Sheridan County;

1. Ratify Travelers Increase Certificate for Christine Haswell, Commissioner, Sheridan
County.

m. Acknowledge receipt of the list of canceled warrants from the County Treasurer and
publish the list in the meeting minutes per W.S. §18-4-106.

n. Ratify Extended Trail Easement Agreement between Sheridan Heights Ranch, LLC and
the Sheridan County Board of County Commissioners;

o. Ratify Subordination of Mortgage from County of Sheridan to PennyMac Loan services;

p. Ratify Sheridan County License Agreement #2437LA with MDU for bored crossing
installation of single phase underground conductor, at County Road #80 a.k.a. Downer
Addition Rd, fee $165.00;

q. Ratify Sheridan County License Agreement #2438LA with MTC Engineering
LLC/Charter for overhead installation of new strand and fiber optic cable on County Road
91 a.k.a. Owl Creek Rd, fee $747.50;

Consider Agenda.

4. Announcements.

e e o

(8]

5. Public Comments on Matters not on the Agenda.
6. Consider Resolution 24-12-028 Statement of Investment Policy.

Board of County Commissioners
Meeting of Decemberl7, 2024
Page 1 of 2



e Consider discharge of uncollectable debts pursuant to W.S. §16-4-502.

8. Consider one (1) appointment to the Sheridan County Fair Association Board for one (1) 3-
year term, beginning January 6, 2025, through January 2, 2028.

9. Consider one (1) appointment to the Predator Management District of Sheridan County for a
3-year term as Sportsman beginning January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2028.

10. Consider one (1) appointment to the Sheridan County Weed and Pest Control District, County
Area 1 for a 4-year term beginning January 2, 2025 through January 1, 2029.

11. Consider one (1) appointment to the Sheridan County Weed and Pest Control District, County
Area 2 for a 4-year term beginning January 2, 2025 through January 1, 2029.

12. Consider one (1) appointment to the Sheridan County Weed and Pest Control District, County
Area 4 for a 4-year term beginning January 2, 2025 through January 1, 2029.

13. Consider one (1) appointment to the Sheridan County Weed and Pest Control District, County
Area 5 for a 4-year term beginning January 2, 2025 through January 1, 2029.

14.  Consider 24-EMPG-SHE-GCF24 Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of
Homeland Security and Sheridan County.

15. Consider Memorandum of Understanding — OneWyo 1 and II Opioid Settlement Fund
between Memorial Hospital of Sheridan County and Sheridan Co

16.  Consider Item V-24-006: Jones Lot Size Variance.

17. Consider FY2025 Congestion Air Quality Program Subrecipient Agreement between
Wyoming Department of Transportation and Sheridan County.

18. Consider award of a Contract for the Little Big Horn Canyon Fuels Mitigation Project to

in the amount of $

19.  Consider Amendment to Resolution 13-12-040 Red Grade Road Winter Travel
Management.

20.  Consider Resolution 24-12-027 Notice of Intent to Vacate a portion of Maple Ave, from 17
Street To 16 Street and 16 Street from Maple Ave to Birch Ave of Downers Addition to
Sheridan Wy.

21.  Consider 1% GPET contingency funding for artwork displays for the Brooks Street
Greenspace project

22. Executive Session pursuant to W.S. 16-4-405(a)(vii) to consider purchase of real estate.

ADJOURN

Board of County Commissioners
Meeting of December 17, 2024

Page 2 of 2



2a.

Sheridan County Board of County Commissioners Staff Meeting Minutes
County Courthouse, 224 S. Main Street, 2" Floor Board Room, #220
Monday, December 2, 2024, 9:00 a.m.

Commissioners Present: Christi Haswell, Holly Jennings, Tom Ringley, Nick Siddle (Chair),
Lonnie Wright.
County Clerk Present: Eda Schunk Thompson.
Elected Present:
Katie Araas, County Treasurer;
Levi Dominguez, County Sheriff.
Staff Present:
Clint Beaver, Deputy County Attorney;
Dan Coughlin, SAWSJPB Administrator;
Kenny Custis, Human Resources Manager;
Cameron Duff, Administrative Director;
Misti Dunkelberger, County Clerk Administrative Coordinator;
Robert Gill, Airport Manager,
Erik Gillett, Building/Grounds Superintendent;
Kimberly Hein, Chief Deputy County Clerk;
Kelly Iott, Administrative Coordinator;
Jesse Ludikhuize, Emergency Management Coordinator;
Ken Muller, County Engineer;
Deb Ottema, County Clerk Financial Coordinator;
Mark Reid, County Planner;
Kimber Solberg, Fairgrounds Director.

Call to Order: Commissioner Siddle called the session to order at 9:00 a.m.

Warrant Review: The County Clerk’s office presented November warrant reports. The Board
reviewed, asked questions, and looked at invoices.

Elected and Staff Reports and Topics Discussed:
Mark Reid, County Planner.
Consideration of the Bedingfield Easement Vacation will be on December 3, 2024,
Regular Board Meeting. County Planning just issued their 100'" Building Permit. Mr.
Reid will out the rest of the week.
Ken Muller, County Engineer.
Consideration for the Initiation of Process to establish a new county road and
Appointment of Viewer for a portion of Penrose Lane will be on the December 3, 2024,
Regular Board Meeting. The Monarch Bridge project is almost complete with seeding
and fencing left to do. Road and Bridge is fully staffed after hiring the District Operator
for the Clearmont area and is still in need of temporary snowplow drivers. Natural
Resources Conservation Service may be able to do the design portion to address the
Board of County Commissioners-Staff

Meeting of December 2, 2024
Page 1of 2




2a.

Kleenburn Recreation Area erosion that is happening by the Tongue River. Mr. Mueller
has an RFP ready to go if needed.

Jesse Ludikhuize, Emergency Management Coordinator.

The Hazard Mitigation Plan has been fully adopted by every jurisdiction and FEMA is
good until 2029. Mr. Ludikhuize has been selected to attend a class as an operations
section chief in Maryland in January which is fully paid for by the Federal Government
and needs the Boards approval to travel out of state.

Kimber Solberg, Fairgrounds Director.

The Fair Board met and decided to replace the Eaton Barn and to meet with the Historic
Preservation Committee to work on a plan. Ms. Solberg is working with Jesse
Ludikhuize, Emergency Management Coordinator, on the final pieces of the backup
generator. The Fair Board approved the purchase of the livestock holding pens. The
lights on Arena 2 are being evaluated. Hayden Heaphy, President of the WYO Rodeo
Board, met with the Fair Board about installing new bucking chutes and holding pens
behind Arena 1 in May or June of the coming year. The Fair Board approved this change
to the grounds.

Robert Gill, Airport Manager.

Consideration of the Award of Agreement for Airport Engineering Services between
Sheridan County and the Morrison-Maierle will be on the December 3, 2024, Regular
Board Meeting. On Saturday, December 7, 2024, will be the Third Annual Santa Fly In
and the public is invited to take pictures with Santa who will be arriving by helicopter.
Cameron Duff, Administrative Director.

The opening of the Little Horn Canyon fuels mitigation bids will be 2 pm on December
3, 2024. A Memorandum of Understanding for the OneWyo I and II Opioid Settlement
Funds between Sheridan Memorial Hospital and Sheridan County will be considered by
the Board at their December 17%, 2024, meeting. The Board asked questions about the
monies and where it could be spent. The Brooke Street project is not completed as
planned by the end of November. Mr. Duff is waiting to make sure the project is
completed before final payment is issued.

Board Updates:
Mr. Wright and Chairman Siddle will be out of the office Thursday, Friday, and Monday.

Chairman Siddle discussed the upcoming Board appointments for the Sheridan County
Fair Association Board, the Predator Management District of Sheridan County, and the
Sheridan County Weed and Pest Control Districts. Clerk Thompson asked about the
qualifications for the Sheridan County Weed and Pest Control Districts.

Adjourn: Chairman Siddle adjourned the meeting at 9:22 a.m.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Sheridan County, Wyoming Attest:

Nick Siddle, Chairman Eda Schunk Thompson, County Clerk

Board of County Commissioners-Staff
Meeting of December 2, 2024
Page 2 of 2



2b.

Sheridan County Board of County Commissioners, Regular Meeting Minutes
County Courthouse, 224 S. Main Street, 2™ Floor Board Room, #220
Tuesday, December 3, 2024, 9:00 a.m.

Commissioners Present: Christi Haswell, Holly Jennings, Tom Ringley, Nick Siddle (Chair),
Lonnie Wright.
County Clerk Present: Eda Schunk Thompson.
Elected Present:
Katie Araas, County Treasurer.
Staff Present:
Clint Beaver, Deputy County Attorney;
Cameron Duff, Administrative Director;
Misti Dunkelberger, County Clerk Administrative Coordinator;
Robert Gill, Airport Manager; /
Andrea Hauber, Planning Assistant;
Kimberly Hein, Chief Deputy County Clerk;
Kelly Iott, Administrative Coordinator;
Jesse Ludikhuize, Emergency Management Coordinator;
Ken Muller, County Engineer;
Deb Ottema, County Clerk Financial Coordinator;
Kimber Solberg, Fairgrounds Director.

Call to Order: Chairman Siddle called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.
Pledge of Allegiance.

Consider Consent Agenda.
Following are the consent items:
a. 11/18//2024 Staff Meeting Draft Minutes;
11/19/2024 Regular Meeting Draft Minutes;
11/25/2024 Staff Meeting Draft Minutes;
General County Warrants, November;
General Airport Warrants, November;
Presented to the Board for acknowledgement — Clerk of District Court
Monthly Statement of Fees for October 2024;
g. Presented to the Board for acknowledgement — County Planner Monthly
Statement of Fees for October 2024;
h. Presented to the Board for acknowledgement — Public Health Monthly
Statement of Fees for October 2024,
i, Presented to the Board for acknowledgement - Sheriff Monthly Statement of
Fees for October 2024;
j. Presented to the Board for acknowledgement — County Clerk Monthly
Statement of Fees for October 2024;
k. Presented to the Board for acknowledgement - Elections Monthly Statement
of Fees for October 2024
Board of County Commissioners-Regular

Meeting of December 3, 2024
Page 10of9

"o oo



2b.

I. Presented to the Board for acknowledgement — County Treasurer Monthly
Statement of Fees for October 2024;
m. Presented to the Board for acknowledgement — Airport Monthly Statement of

Fees for October 2024;

November 30, 2024
INTERIM/MID-MONTH WARRANTS PAID
VENDOR

AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE INS CO
CENTURYLINK

CIT-CO FEDERAL CREDIT UNION
COLUMN SOFTWARE, PBC

DELTA DENTAL

ELECTION JUDGES

ELECTION SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE INC
EMPOWERED TRUST COMPANY LLC
EYEMED

HEADSET PLUS.COM

JOHNSON CONTROLS INC.

LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE
MONTANA DAKOTA UTILITIES

NCPERS GROUP LIFE INS

OFFICE SHOP INC

PACK & MAIL

PITNEY BOWES INC***

RANGE

SHERIDAN AREA WATER SUPPLY
SHERIDAN CIRCUIT COURT

SHERIDAN CNTY TREAS HEALTH INS
SHERIDAN CNTY TREAS PAYROLL TAX
SHERIDAN COUNTY FLEX ACCOUNT
SHERIDAN LAWN & LANDSCAPING LLC
WYDOT

WYOMING OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
WYOMING RETIREMENT SYSTEM
WYOMING WORKERS COMPENSATION
TOTAL MID-MONTH INTERIM WARRANTS PAID
GENERAL COUNTY WARRANTS
VENDOR

2ND CHANCE LLC

307 AUTO GLASS

Board of County Commissioners-Regular
Meeting of December 3, 2024
Page 2 of 9

AMOUNT
$2,744.33
$344.25
$1,200.00
$367.89
$10,336.15
$47,860.37
$2,495.95
$3,875.00
$1,780.65
$3,809.28
$3,755.19
$1,310.13
$300.27
$400.00
$218.17
$233.18
$91.29
$293.88
$330.28
$711.92
$203,893.00
$165,288.33
$1,425.66
$195.00
$10.00
$78.00
$139,440.18
$9,898.88
$602,687.23

AMOUNT
$1,800.00
$350.00

DESCRIPTION

DECEMBER PREMIUM

TELEPHONE SVS WIC/E911

MONTHLY PAYROLL TRANSFERS

INV.TO BID - CIRCUIT COURT/AD FOR BIDS
DECEMBER PREMIUM

NOVEMBER ELECTION JUDGE PAYROLL
BALLOT/TONER/TEST DECK/CARDS

WYO DEFERRED COMPENSATION
DECEMBER PREMUIM

E911 SVS REPLCMNT BTRY/WIRELESS ADPTR

REPAIR CIRCUIT COURT AHV PROBLEMS
NOVEMBER PREMIUM

GAS/ELECTRIC 1604 N MAIN ST
PRUDENTIAL LIFE

CO CLERK COPIER INK

POSTAGE

RED INK CTG 1 BOX

PHONE/INTERNET SVS CORONER

SAWS 48 SHORT RD

GARNISHMENT

HEALTH INS/FLEX PLAN FEE

941

FLEX PLAN

LAWN MOWING

NEW LICENSE PLATE SAR TRAILER
FINGERPRINT CARD FOR DISTRICT COURT
NOVEMBER CONTRIBUTION
NOVEMBER PREMIUM

DESCRIPTION
LEASE PMNT - STORAGE DEC 2024
WINDSHEILD - UNIT 14



A PLUS PLUMBERS & APPLICANCE REPAIR LLC
ADVANCED CORRECTIONAL HEALTHCARE INC
ALPHAGRAPHICS

ALPINE CLIMATE CONTROL INC.

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

ANN PERKINS

APEX COMMUNICATIONS

BARGREEN ELLINGSON

BOTTEN, RENE

CAPITAL ONE

CHAPMAN VALDEZ & LANSING

CITY OF SHERIDAN

COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGIES INC.

COMMUNITY SERVICES NETWORK OF WYOMING

COMPASS CENTER FOR FAMILIES
COMTRONIX

COUNTY TRASH, LLC

CROWLEY FLECK PLLP

DIAMOND DRUGS INC

ECKERDT CONSULTING LLC
ENDERS,CORI

FASTENAL

FLEMING DERMATOPATHOLOGY, INC
FLOYD'S TRUCK CENTER-GILLETTE
FREMONT MOTOR SHERIDAN FORD
GRAINGER INC

HEALY LAW FIRM

HILSABECK, DANIEL

HOLLAND, JEFF

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES
KASSIE CLAESSEN

KERR, SANDI

KILLY'S SMOKEHOUSE DELI
KINNAIRD LAW OFFICE P.C.
KUGLER, PAULA

LAYA, GARY T.

LEGAL AID OF WYOMING, INC.

LES SCHWAB

LONABAUGH AND RIGGS

MAC'S MOVING ACQUISITION INC.
MASTERCARD

Board of County Commissioners-Regular
Meeting of December 3, 2024
Page 3 of 9

$170.00
$32,034.35
$99.53
$180.00
$1,751.51
$404.66
$26,905.95
$84.47
$91.15
$191.56
$204.00
$358.75
$4,250.70
$2,219.00
$8,962.56
$367.20
$98.00
$360.00
$7,717.01
$175.42
$86.89
$529.84
$69.09
$1,118.13
$3,471.57
$45.42
$125.00
$85.00
$120.00
$33.48
$391.00
$40.00
$2,486.44
$100.00
$30.00
$147.92
$300.00
$1,408.80
$187.50
$2,937.50
$9,323.99

2b.

BACKFLOW TESTS

ONSITE MED/MNTL HLTH SVS
PHOTO PRINTS/FILE SETUP/LAYOUT
MAINT DUCTLESS INDOOR & OUTDOOR UNI
FILE FOLDERS/FILE POCKETS/TONER
TRAVEL CASPER/CIT TAT MTNG
REPAIR SVS FEES/ REPEATER-ELK FIRE
GLOVES/SCOUR PAD

JIMMY JOHNS - JUROR MEALS
MEDICAL/OFFICE SUPPLIES

LEGAL SVS

TRUCK 0371 (R&B) CR 139

DESKTOP MOBILE MIC/PWR SUP
REIMBURSEMENT FOR JOT FORMS
CSBG PMNT FY2024 SEPTEMBER 24
TROUBLESHOOTING PHONE LINE/BATTERIES
DUMPSTER- FULL MONTH

LEGAL SVS

CURRENT MEDS DISPENSED

CLASS MEALS/ CIT TRAIN THE TRAINER
REIMBURSEMENT

EXHAUST FLUID/SCALE

MEDICAL SVS 10/26/24
DEF/CONTROL SHIFTER

DIAG DAMAGE TO ACTIVE SHUDDER/TIRES
IMPCT SKT STEEL/HALOGEN

LEGAL SVS

SURVIVAL ARMOR - 3 YDS MATERIAL
REISSUE OF WARRANT 125723

PLUG FUSE/SIGNPOST
REIMBURSEMENT

SEW PATCHES

EMPLOYEE HOLIDAY LUNCH

LEGAL SVS

EMPLOYEE NAME BOARD

GEN MAINT/CLEANING KLEENBURN
LEGAL SVS

TIRES/ BALANCE/DISPOSAL FEE
LEGAL SVS
PACKING/LOADING/TRANSP

NOV EXPENSES



MCKESSON MEDICAL SURGICAL
MEDICO-MART INC

MEINECKE & SITZ, LLC

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

MIDWEST CARD AND ID SOLUTIONS LLC
MIKE'S AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR

MIKES ELECTRIC INC

MONTGOMERY TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS LLC

MOUNTAIN VIEW VETERINARY
NAPA AUTO PARTS

NDAA INSURANCE SERVICES
NORCO

NORMONT EQUIPMENT COMPANY
ONE HEALTH

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC
OSTBERG LAW

PAVEMENT MARKINGS

PDS

PORTER MUIRHEAD CORNIA & HOWARD

POWDER RIVER HEATING & AIR COND. INC.

POWDER RIVER POWER SHERIDAN
RAPID FIRE PROTECTION INC
RDO EQUIPMENT CO

REIMERS, MELISSA E

ROBBINS DERMATOLOGY PC
ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER
SAGEBRUSH LAW FIRM, LLC
SALT LAKE WHOLESALE SPORTS
SHERIDAN ACE HARDWARE
SHERIDAN CNTY AIRPORT
SHERIDAN CNTY FAIR ASSN
SHERIDAN CNTY FULMER PUBLIC LIBRARY
SHERIDAN COMMERCIAL CO
SHERIDAN FIRE EQUIPMENT
SHERIDAN HONDA

SHERIDAN MOTORS

SHERIDAN PRESS INC.
SHERIDAN SEED CO INC
SHERWIN WILLIAMS

SIMON CONTRACTORS
SKAGGS COMPANIES INC

Board of County Commissioners-Regular
Meeting of December 3, 2024
Page 4 of 9

$1,136.16
$416.17
$523.81
$25,000.00
$2,460.00
$3,200.57
$282.16
$5,585.00
$1,211.55
$647.54
$4,097.00
$581.09
$357.00
$35.00
$53.85
$681.00
$342.00
$669.30
$65,000.00
$343.84
$315.45
$1,580.00
$273.89
$83.53
$420.00
$1,363.69
$590.05
$1,707.90
$122.49
$40,527.29
$53,333.33
$124,000.00
$683.31
$311.00
$408.12
$18.16
$250.00
$51.99
$10.97
$44,226.61
$67.00

2b.

TEST STRIP/SYRINGE/INSULIN
BOOSTRIX DTAP

LEGAL SVS

HOSPITAL FUNDING NOVEMBER 24
SALAMANDER LIVE RENEWAL

RPLC BREAK PADS/ROTORS/BATTERIES
RPLC BREAKER FOR RTU-6

LABOR SVS TRIP/AUDIO TERM BOARD REV
MEDICATION/SURGICAL PROCEDURE
FILTERS/ICE BLADE/BATTERY
LAWYERS PROF LIABILITY COVERAGE
BATH TISSUE/TOWEL/TERRA RENEW
FILTER ELEMENT UNIT 49

DENTAL SVS

AIR FILTER/RATCHET

.LEGAL SVS

PLOW/SHOVEL SNOW DOUBLE EAGLE
MICROSOFT OFFICE 365 MNTHLY SVS
ANNUAL AUDIT 2024

SVS CALLRTU 14

HOSE FITTINGS UNIT 1-02
SPRINKLER/BACKFLOW INSP.
LAMP/TAIL LAMP UNIT 1-02
REIMBURSEMENT

MEDICAL SVS

CSBG - ELECTRIC SVS/UTILITY PMNT
LEGAL SVS

BEAN BAG CARTRIDGES/OC VAPOR GRNDE
JAW PLIERS/BOLT EYE W/NUTS
AIRPORT FUNDING NOV 2024

FAIR BOARD FUNDING NOV 2024
LIBRARY FUNDING NOVEMBER 24
FASTENER/DECJK BRUSH/ANTIFREEZE
HOOD SYSTEM MAINT

OIL CHANGES

PAINT

PUBLICATION

COLLAR

CS POLY KNIT

ASPHALT REMOVAL/REPLACE
UNIFORM PANTS



SPARK INNOVATIONS

STAPLES

STERICYCLE INC

SUGARLAND WALK IN CLINIC
SUMMIT FOOD SERVICES LLC
SURVIVAL ARMOR

SWINYER, EMILY

TERRY, SUSAN D

THE COUNTRY BOUNTY

THE FOOT CARE CENTER LLC

THE MASTER'S TOUCH LLC

THE TINT SHOP

TIRE - RAMA CORPORATE OFFICE
TOP OFFICE PRODUCTS INC.
TOTAL COMFORT

TRUE NORTH STEEL

TW ENTERPRISES INC

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC.
UNIVERSITY OF WYO

US BANCORP

VOLUNTEERS OF AMERICA
WAREING MOTORS SHERIDAN INC
WATER PRODUCTS & SOLUTIONS, INC
WATT, HEATHER C

WINSUPPLY OF SHERIDAN

WY DEPT. OF HEALTH

WYOMING MACHINERY COMPANY
WYOMING PUBLIC HEALTH LAB
YONKEE & TONER, LLP

TOTAL GENERAL COUNTY WARRANTS
AIRPORT WARRANTS

VENDOR

ACE RADIATOR

BIGHORN SECURITY

BLOEDORN LUMBER

CITY OF SHERIDAN

CLOCKWORK ACCOUNTING

CAN SURETY

COMTRONIX

COUNTY TRASH LLC

DYT SOLUTIONS LLC

Board of County Commissioners-Regular
Meeting of December 3, 2024
Page 5 0of 9

$1,393.00
$198.20
$179.69
$330.00
$25,598.42
$297.96
$43.88
$3.15
$135.00
$305.00
$511.74
$120.00
$937.87
$605.25
$2,824.50
$8,782.00
$877.08
$433.78
$181.41
$107,960.63
$3,299.28
$187.40
$238.75
$132.00
$26.43
$47,690.78
$1,639.71
$1,299.00
$217.50
$701,230.62

AMOUNT
$109.75
$45.00
$168.60
$868.10
$4,000.00
$350.00
$1,315.98
$400.00
$5,225.57

2b.

DAMPER MOTORS/DAMPER ACTUATORS
BROTHER DRUM UNIT/RIBBON
STERI-SAFE OSHA/PATH CHEMO SUBSC.
PRE-EMPLY PNL/DRUG SCREEN

FOOD SVS DETENTION

RAID VEST/ID-FLAP/NAME TAB
REIMBURSEMENT

REIMBURSEMENT

FLU CLINIC DISPLAY AD

MEDICAL SVS DETENTION

MAILING SVS FOR DMV PCS/POSTCARD
FNT DOORS TINTED SUV

OIL CHANGES/TIRES

CHAIR MATS/BADGES/NOTARY STGAMP
SERVICE TO HEATERS

CATTLE GUARDS

ANNUAL GENERATOR SVS/MAINT
IDOC/ITAX WEB HOSTING

CHARTER REBILL OCT24

ANNUAL LEASE PMNT MOTOR GRADER
CSBG FY 2024 JUNE/SEPT PAYMENT

OIL CHANGE

WATER/DISPENSER

CARETAKER SVS STORY PARK NOV 24
CLOS REPAIR KIT

1ST QTR JULY THRU SEPT 24

PARTS

LAB TESTING

JV-2023-16 LEGAL SVS

DESCRIPTION

RADIATOR REPAIR

KEYS

SIDING SEAL STRIPS
UTILITIES

FY24 AUDIT

ROBERT GILL BOND

FIRE MONITORING, RELAY
DUMPSTER- FULL MONTH
MARKETING GRANT



FARMERS CO-OP OIL CO. INC
GRAINGER INC

HOME DEPOT

IDEAL MFG, INC.

K.A.R.E EMS SOLUTIONS LLC
LEE METAL WORKS
MASTERCARD 2

MDU

MORRISON-MAIERLE
MORRISON-MAIERLE 14
NORCO INC

PEAK PEST SOLUTIONS LLC
PTOLEMY DATA SYSTEMS
RANGE

SERVALL UNIFORM & LINEN SUPPLY
SHERIDAN AUTO PARTS SOLUTIONS LLC
THE SHERIDAN PRESS

TIRE RAMA

ULINE

VERIZON

WALMART

TOTAL AIRPORT WARRANTS

Motion on Consent Agenda.

$4,203.97
$294.31
$1,751.24
$576.21
$900.00
$135.00
$893.35
$4,247.08
$4,000.00
$21,814.50
$758.38
$102.08
$133.30
$503.38
$94.42
$716.93
$171.23
$873.59
$25.50
$150.73
$180.32
$55,008.52

2b.

DIESEL/GREASE

JANITORIAL SERVICES
LIGHTS/SHELVING/REFLECTIVE MARKERS
SLOW DOWN SWITCH/VALVE
EMR COURSE

MAINTENANCE
FILTERS/TRAINING MEALS
UTILITIES

LEGAL SERVICES

REALIGN TAXIWAY A

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

MONTHLY SERVICE

IT SUPPORT

PHONE/INTERNET

SHOP TOWELS

WIPER BLADES/ BRAKE CLEANER/FILTERS
PUBLICATION

TIRES GMC/RTV

CABLE TIE GUN

ARFF PHONE/TABLETS
WATER/HEATER/OFFICE SUPPLIES

Motion by Commissioner Wright to approve the consent agenda and authorize the

Chairman to sign documents as required.

Vote Motion Passed.

Consider Agenda.

Motion by Commissioner Haswell to approve the agenda as published.

Vote Motion Passed.

Announcements.

Chairman Siddle recognized Wesley Smiley, Building Official, Sheridan County Public
Works for 10 years of service, Jonathan Gorzalka, District Operator, Sheridan County Road
and Bridge for 5 years of service and Michael Smith, Administrative Support, Sheridan

County Sheriff’s Office for 15 years of service

Public Comments on Matters not on the Agenda.

None.

Board of County Commissioners-Regular
Meeting of December 3, 2024
Page 6 of 9



2b.

Consider Resolution 24-12-025, 2025 Sheridan County Holiday Courthouse Closure
Schedule.

Cameron Duff, Administrative Director.

The only changes to the Sheridan County Holiday Courthouse Closure Schedule is
updating the days of the week for 2025,

Motion by Commissioner J ennings to approve and authorize the Chairman to sign
Resolution 24-12-025 Sheridan County Holiday Courthouse Closure Schedule for 2025 as
presented.

Vote Motion Passed.

Consider Agreement between the City of Sheridan and Sheridan County granting the City
temporary access to Courthouse property for a waterline replacement project.

Cameron Duff, Administrative Director.

City of Sheridan would like to sign an agreement to work on the waterline from Main Street
to Whitney. The City seeks permission to place temporary fencing for accessing utilities
on County property if necessary. Additionally, parking along Whitney will change from a
60-degree angle to a 40 -degree angle.

Motion by Commissioner Haswell to approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the
agreement between City of Sheridan and Sheridan County granting the City temporary
access to Courthouse property for a waterline replacement project.

Vote Motion Passed.

Consider Agreement between the City of Sheridan and Sheridan County granting the City
temporary access to Public Health property for a waterline replacement project.

Cameron Duff. Administrative Director.

The water project will modify the two angled handicapped parking spots in front of the
public health building to a pull-in spot, aimed at preventing backing-up on Main Street.
The change is the only adjustment affecting the public health facility.

Motion by Commissioner Ringley to approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the
agreement between City of Sheridan and Sheridan County granting the City temporary
access to Public Health property for a waterline replacement project.

Vote Motion Passed.

Consider Resolution 24-12-024 Initiation of Process to Establish a New County Road and
Appointment of Viewer for the portion of Penrose Lane as described in Exhibit A,

Ken Muller, County Engineer.

The longstanding legal issues surrounding Penrose Lane, which serves as the main

access to the Penrose Trailhead, a public area. The lane has seen development from private
property and has been maintained by the county for years. The resolution proposed initiates
the process to potentially designate it as a county road.

Motion by Commissioner Wright to approve and authorize the Chairman to sign Resolution
24-12-024 Initiation of Process to Establish a New County Road and Appointment of
Viewer for the portion of Penrose Lane as described in Exhibit A.

Board of County Commissioners-Regular

Meeting of
Page 7 of 9

December 3, 2024



2b.

Vote Motion Passed.

Consider Item EV-24-002: Bedingfield Easement Vacation

Andrea Hauber, Planning Assistant.

Jeffrey and Dana Bedingfield have requested to vacate a ten-foot utility easement to
facilitate building on their property line, with no objections from service providers. On
November 19, 2024, the Sheridan County Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously
voted 5-0 to recommend approval of their application.

Motion by Commissioner Jennings to approve Item EV-24-002: Bedingfield Easement
Vacation as recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Vote Motion Passed.

Consider award of a Contract for the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall backup generator project.

Jesse Ludikhuize, Emergency Management Coordinator.

The Wyoming Office of Homeland Security awarded a grant for the generator project,
and after soliciting bids, three proposals were received. The lowest bid came from Apex
Mechanical for $67,625.00, which was higher than the grant amount by $5,000.00.
Motion by Commissioner Haswell to award a contract for the F airgrounds Exhibit Hall
backup generator project to Apex Mechanical, Inc. in the amount of $67,625.00 and
authorize the Chairman to sign any contract documents.

Vote Motion Passed.

Consider Resolution 24-12-026 Approval for Part-Time Circuit Court Magistrate.

Cameron Duff, Administrative Director.

The resolution presented formalizes the appointment of part-time magistrates Zachary
Leininger and Christina Chemi, as outlined in Judge Bunting’s letter from the Circuit
Court. Their qualifications align with the courts requirements, and state authorization has
been granted for these appointments. There will be no financial burden on the county, as
funding will be provided by the state.

Motion by Commissioner Ringley to approve Resolution 24-12-026 Approval for Part-
Time Circuit Court Magistrate.

Vote Motion Passed.

Consider Award of Agreement for Airport Engineering Services between Sheridan County
and Morrison-Maierle

Robert Gill, Airport Manager.

This award agreement for engineering and architectural services at the Sheridan County
Airport follows FAA regulations requiring federal funding recipients to engage a
qualified consulting firm for oversight of engineering duties. After issuing a Request for
Qualifications (RFQ) to 31 firms and advertising the opportunity, the airport received
only one proposal from Morrison-Maierle. An evaluation committee, consisting of Nick
Siddle, Ken Muller, Mark Reid and Robert Gill, reviewed the submission based on FAA

Board of County Commissioners-Regular

Meeting of
Page 8 of 9

December 3, 2024



2b.

guidelines emphasizing performance and qualifications. Morrison-Maierle meets all
necessary standards for the airport needs.

Motion by Commissioner Wright to approve and authorize the Chairman to sign documents
as required for the Award of Agreement for Airport Engineering Services between
Sheridan County and Morrison-Maietle.

Vote Motion Passed.

Consider Amendment # 1 to Lease Agreement between the Sheridan County Sportsmen’s
Association and Sheridan County.
Terry Weitzel. Parks & Recreation Board Chairman.
Chairman Siddle recommended tabling the matter pending further information and
discussion with the association.
Motion by Commissioner Jennings to table Amendment # 1 to Lease Agreement between
the Sheridan County Sportsmen’s Association and Sheridan County.
Vote Motion Passed.

Adjourn: Chairman Siddle adjourned the meeting at 9:26 a.m.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Sheridan County, Wyoming Attest:

Nick Siddle, Chairman Eda Schunk Thompson, County Clerk

Board of County Commissioners-Regular
Meeting of December 3, 2024
Page 9 of 9



Sheridan County Board of County Commissioners Staff Meeting Minutes
County Courthouse, 224 S. Main Street, 2™ Floor Board Room, #220
Monday, December 9, 2024, 9:00 a.m.

Commissioners Present: Christi Haswell (Chair Pro Tem), Holly J ennings, Tom Ringley.
Commissioners Not Present: Nick Siddle Lonnie Wright.
Chief Deputy County Clerk Present: Kimberly Hein.
Elected Present:
Katie Araas, County Treasurer;
Levi Dominguez, County Sheriff,
Staff Present:
Clint Beaver, Deputy County Attorney;
Kenny Custis, Human Resources Manager;
Cameron Duff, Administrative Director;
Misti Dunkelberger, County Clerk Administrative Coordinator;
Robert Gill, Airport Manager;
Kelly Iott, Administrative Coordinator;
Jesse Ludikhuize, Emergency Management Coordinator;
Ken Muller, County Engineer:
Deb Ottema, County Clerk Financial Coordinator;
Kimber Solberg, F airgrounds Director;
Chris Thomas, Sheridan County Fire Warden.

Call to Order: Chair Pro Tem Haswell called the session to order at 9:00 a.m.
Elected and Staff Reports and Topics Discussed:

Ken Muller, County Engineer.

2c.

Mr. Muller provided updates regarding a contractor incident where a ten-inch waterline

was accidentally hit on Upper Road, necessitating repairs that damaged a new paved
section, which will remain a gravel patch until it can be properly resurfaced next year.

Red Grade Road Public Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, December 10", 2024, in

Room 210 from 5:30 to 7:30. Road and Bridge crews are trimming trees this week, while
a new employee undergoes motor grader training. Viewer report for a vacation petition

on 14" Street is completed.
Jesse Ludikhuize. Emergency Management Coordinator.

A grant for $44,552 from the Wyoming office of Homeland Security has been awarded
for emergency management performance, which covers half of Mr. Ludikhuize’s salary
and benefits and noted that while this grant has been consistently received over the years,

federal funding levels have not increased.
Cameron Duff. Administrative Director.

Board of County Commissioners-Staff
Meeting of December 9, 2024
Page 1 of 2



2c.

Mr. Duff mentioned that the MOU for the opioid settlement will be discussed at the
meeting on December 17, 2024, the Brooke Street project, heated concrete will be tested
on Thursday, and if successful, the project will soon be handed over to the county.

Board Updates:

Commissioner Jennings has been working on a proposal, regarding the potential delay of
closing Red Grade Road, engaging with Deputy County Attorney, Clint Beaver and
Sheriff Dominguez to explore various safety concerns and implications of both the
December 15" and April 1% dates,

Commissioner Haswell will be out Tuesday, and several County Commissioners will be
out of the office this week for the Wyoming County Commissioners Association
(WCCA) meeting in Buffalo.

Consider award of a Contract for the Little Big Born Canyon Fuels Mitigation Project.
Commissioner Haswell proposed to table the consideration of the contract for Bighom
Canyon Fuels Mitigation project until the December 17, 2024, meeting to give Deputy
County Attomey, Clint Beaver time to review the contract.

Motion by Commissioner J ennings to table a contract for the Little Big Horn Canyon
Fuels Mitigation project until December 17,2024, meeting.
Vote Motion Passed.

Adjourn: Chair Pro Tem Haswel] adjourned the meeting at 9:13 a.m.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Sheridan County, Wyoming Attest:

Christi Haswell, Chair Pro Tem Eda Schunk Thompson, County Clerk

Board of County Commissioners-Staff
Meeting of December 9, 2024
Page 2 of 2



2d.

Sheridan County Board of County Commissioners, Airport Meeting Minutes
Airport Managers Office, 908 West Brundage Lane
Tuesday, December 10, 2024, 8:30 a.m.

Commissioners Present: Holly Jennings, Tom Ringley, Nick Siddle (Chair), Lonnie Wright.
Commissioners Not Present: Christi Haswell.
Chief Deputy County Clerk Present: Kimberly Hein.
Staff Present:
Bonnie Formisano, Airport Office Manager;
Cameron Duff, Administrative Director;
Misti Dunkelberger, County Clerk Administrative Coordinator;
Robert Gill, Airport Manager.

Call to Order: Chairman Nick Siddle called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.

Staff Report:
Robert Gill, Airport Manager.
Passenger numbers have grown significantly in recent years, reaching nearly 30,000
enplanements or close to 58,000 total passengers ( enplane and deplane) for 2024
compared to 16,000 total passengers (enplane and deplane) pre-SkyWest in 2019. This
had led to parking and capacity issues, especially around peak travel times.

measures and badging systems.
SkyWest has proposed adding an additional daily flight, but the high costs associated
with this would be difficult for the local community to absorb, especially if state funding

support is reduced.
An economic impact study is planned to better understand the airports role and economic

contributions to the region.
Other updates include progress on the airports taxiway relining project, interest in leasing
available lots in the Business Park.

Adjourn: Chairman Siddle adjourned the meeting at 9:14 a.m.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Sheridan County, Wyoming Attest:

Nick Siddle, Chairman Eda Schunk Thompson, County Clerk

Board of County Commissioner-Airport Meeting
Minutes of December 10, 2024
Page1of1



2e.

Sheridan County Board of County Commissioners, Special Meeting Minutes
County Courthouse, 224 . Main Street, 2" Floor Board Room, #220
Thursday, December 10, 2024, 11:00 a.m.

Commissioners Present: Holly Jennings, Tom Ringley, Nick Siddle (Chair), Lonnie Wright.
Commissioners Not Present: Christi Haswell.
Chief Deputy Clerk Present: Kimberly Hein.
Elected Present:
None.
Staff Present:
Misti Dunkelberger, County Clerk Administrative Coordinator.

Call to Order: Chairman Siddle called the meeﬁng to order at 11:00 a.m.
Pledge of Allegiance.

Interviews of Candidates for Appointment to the Sheridan County Fair Association Board.
Candidates in Attendance: Susan Terry and Harry Pollak.

Interviews of Candidates for Appointment to the Sheridan County Weed and Pest Control

District.
Candidates in Attendance: Daniel W. Reinke and Nathan Kane interviewed by telephone.

Chairman Siddle explained the purpose of today’s meeting is to interview candidates for the
appointment to the Sheridan County Fair Association Board and Sheridan County Weed and Pest.
After the interviews, the board discusses whether to g0 into executive session to consider the
appointments, but ultimately decided to make the decision in the public meeting.

Adjourn: Chairman Siddle adjourned the meeting at 11:45 a.m.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Sheridan County, Wyoming Attest:

Nick Siddle, Chairman Eda Schunk Thompson, County Clerk

Board of County Commissioners-Special
Meeting of December 10, 2024
Page1of1



Step #2 — County Clerk

SHERIDAN

COUNTY Sheridan County
WYOMING d,
W.S. §18-3-814
MONTHLY STATEMENT
Statement  of the collections by &K)R SCHUNK T THompson as

) y Name of Elected or pcmted County Official
C_ngq ( LERK for the County of Sheri
tie
State of Wyoming for the month ending AEJHE moe 3D 20 AY , filed with the County

Clerk for presentation to the Board of County Commissioners.

See attached documents.

I hereby certify that the above is true and correct statement of the monies collected by me and that the

same has been paid to the County Treasurer.
This 14{1' day of De Q,Lynbg,( , 2024
gd,&, (ehund) kf'fba

Sheridan County Elected or Appomted Cd’unty Official

County Clerk Form — Revised 4.4.2024



heo IV
40 Aep w N SIYyY uo S1300)ssILLI0Yy

Auna) Jo paeog 9 Aq padpamouspde pue pPajuasay

i

—

J
PR,

W 30 o

-t

BRI0ISY 9D Awnog uspuays
a3nd

MH3ITD ALNNOD HLIM a3mnd
HA3TD AINNOD IHL Ag Q31437dwod 39 01

ﬂwON ) h\\.R.w7.
#0 Yuow ayj 1oy

%410 Auno) pauioddy Jo padayz 4o suseN

Nasd WoH) MWNOIRC womw

S3luow jo uoida)07
40 13043y



SHERIDAN COUNTY
224 S MAIN - SUITE B3
SHERIDAN, WY 82801

MISC RECEIPTS

Trans Date: 12/05/2024

MISC

SHEIDAN CO CLERKS
CO CLERK'S FEES

Receipt Type:
Received Of:
On Account Of:

Line4 PT Account

1 R 1000.000.44003.0100 000
2R 1000.000.44003.0100.000
3R 1000.000.42001.0100.000
4 R 1000.000.44002.0100.000
5 R 1000.000.44002.0100.000
6 R 1000.000.44001.0100.000
7R 1000.000.44000.0100.000
8 R 1000.000.42000.0100.000
9 R 1000.000.40100.0100.000
10 R 1000.000.42003.0100.000
11 R 1000.000.44000,0100.000
12 R 1000.000.44000.0100.000
13 R 1000.000.44000.0100.000
14 R 1000.000.44003,0100.000
1S E 1000.210.50770.0100.000
16 R 1000.000.42003.0100.000
17 R 1000.000.44003.0100.000

Payment Type Doc#

Receipti:
Clerk ID:
Receipt Total:

Description

COUNTY CLERR RECORDING F

PLATS (RECORDING FEES)

MARRIAGE LICENSE

FINANCING (FILING FEES)

STATEMENTS (FILING FEES)

TITLES

CITY VIN INSPECTION FEE

LIQUOR LICENSE & MALT BE

GENERAL CO CHECKING ACCO

COPIES & MAIL

ALL OTHER INSPECTIONS

SO VIN INSPECTIONS

OUT OF STATE INSPECTIONS

IDOC FEES

FIXED & MISC CHARGES
BANK CHARGES

PUBLIC RECORDS FEES

ARCASEARCH

Description

CO CLERK'S FEES

28989
kschaefer
34,893.83

20.
14,430.
300.
90.
165.
188.
131.
1,420.
10.
876.
10.00-

.00

.20

34,893.83



Receipt Totals

By Date: 11/1/2024 12:00 AM - 11/30/2024 11:59 PM; Departments: All; Accrual-based detail.

Sheridan County

Wednesday, December 4, 2024 12:57 PM

Summary:

Receipt Item Totals
Document:
Non Document;
Subtotal:
Payment on Account Totals
Applied:
Refunded:
Unposted:
Net Posted:
Payments & Refunds
Cash:
Check:
Debit/Credit:
e€RECORDING:
Total:
Revenue Account Activity ]
1000.000.44003.0100.000 RECORDING FEES (REAL)
Hooo.go.ﬂoow.soo.ooo PLATS (RECORDING FEES)
1000.000.42001.0100.000 MARRIAGE LICENSES
1000.000.44002.0100.000 FINANCING (FILING FEES)
Hooo.ooo.foon.goo.ooo STATEMENTS (FILING FEES)
1000.000.44001.0100.000 TITLES
Hooo.ooo.fooo.goo.oco ALL OTHER INSPECTIONS
1000.000.44000.0100.000 CITY POLICE INSPECTION
1000.000.42000.0100.000 LIQUOR LICENSES
1000.000.44000.0100.000 SO INSPECTION
1000.000.42003.0100.000 COPIES
~ooo.ooo.£ooo.o~8.ooo OUT OF STATE INSPECTIONS
Soo.ooo.anoow.ouoo.ooo PUBLIC RECORDS FEES
Totals:

X Document Pro

Paid
$33,520.00
$188.00
$33,708.00

$0.00
$0.00
$500.00

$500.00

$5,201.00
$20,560.00
$4,036.00
$4,411.00
$34,208.00

$11,024.00
$425.00
$360.00
$5,300.00
$20.00
$14,430.00
$131.00
$300.00
$90.00
$1,420.00
$188.00
$10.00
$10.00
$33,708.00

n:mwm.ma

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

" Debited

$24.00
$0.00

$24.00

$24.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$24.00

Total

$33,544.00
$188.00

$33,732.00

$11,048.00
$425.00
$360.00
$5,300.00
$20.00
$14,430.00
$131.00
$300.00
$90.00
$1,420.00
$188.00
$10.00
$10.00
$33,732.00

Page 1 of 1



Nov-24 Deb Oltema

Docupro Last Deposit Credit Rood vacate Road
Date uaﬂ_um e - Fit Fedteral Bank Balance e e eom e CrodCards  Cads  ERecording mﬂﬁ&”ﬂn Depost & Vacale Informational Ony
Business Funded — Refunds Debits
PREV MONTH CHECK ! e
TO TREAS. k
! $10.00 $485.00 $321.00 Naomi short cc
WEEKEND 2 $0.00 30.00 Worded Saturday 112 24
WEEKEND 3 $0.00 $0.00 .
4 $10.00 $185.00 $123.00 Nommilong o
L $0.00 $393.00 $12.00 CATH OF ViewER . Faratta Asphal RV,
] $251.00 $205.00 $500 00 Frongom Rancn Roog ‘Yacation
2 $25.00 $130.00 $159.00 ek snant - pelum fer 10.31.24
8 $265.00 $69.00
WEEKEND 9 $0.00 $0.00
WEEKEND 0 $0.00 $0.00
HOLIDAY n $0.00 $0.00
2 $336.00 $138.00
3 $231.00 $213.00
14 $195.00 $492.00
15 $205.00 $396.00
WEEKEND 13 $0.00 $0.00
WEEKEND " $0.00 $0.00
8 $195.00 $423.00
2 $274.00 $141.00
ol $1500 $200.00 $246.00 $12.00 voud lille - Kepl monies/OATH OF VIEWER . Freedom Ranch R.v
2 $340.00 434500
2 $279.00 $177.00
WEEKEND 73 $0.00 $0.00
WEEKEND A $0.00 $0.00
5 $185.00 $165.00
24 $150.00 $240.00
[ $150.00 $165.00
HOLIDAY b $0.00 $0.00
HOLIDAY = $0.00 $0.00
WEEKEND/LAST DAY 0 $0.00 $0.00
OF MONTH

TOTALS 0l 83190800 $23.937.50 [NNSHIGEEO 52500 33500 EENAORE00T T T s0ing $4.411.00 S0 0 RS $24.00

Prepared By: Deb Ottema

Reviewed By:

R%? 2y =2y
£

sina \2a-a

Black Font=Formuig Blue wm:.nxmfmn ininto



Step #2 — County Clerk

SHERIDAN .
COUNTY Sheridan County

WYOMING *

W.S. 18-3-814
MONTHLY STATEMENT
Statement of the collections by as
ame of Elected or Appointed County Officia
Couws V\N\C (™ for the County of Sheridan,
itte
State of Wyoming for the month ending _\\onemnirey ,20 &\, filed with the
County Clerk for presentation to the Board of County Commissioners.
See attached documents.
I hereby certify that the above is true and correct statement of the monies collected by me and that the

same has been paid to the County Treasurer.

This@:ri\_dayof EM\@N Py ,ZO&l

County Clerk Form — Revised 4.4.2024



REPORT OF
Collection of Monies

Mok Reid

Name of Elected or Appointed County Official
AS

S P

tle

For the month of

Novewbor | 20 @L

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE COUNTY CLERK
FILED WITH COUNTY CLERK

Presented and acknowledged by the Board of County

Commissioners on this % “ day of




Trans Date:

Receipt Type:
Received Of:

on Account Of:

Line#

1R
2 R
3R

payment Type Doc#

CURRENCY
CHECK

PT Account

1000 000.42104.0100.000
1000.000.42105.0100.000
1000.600.44551.0100.000

SHERIDAN COUNTY
224 S MAIN - SUITE B3
SHERIDAN, WY 82801
MISC RECEIPTS

11/27/2024 Receipt#:
Clerk 1D:
MISC Receipt Total:

SHERIDAN CO PUBLIC WORKS
PUBLIC WORKS FEES

Description

PLANNING BUILDING PERMIT

PLANNING SEPTIC PERMITS
PLANNING MISCELLANEOUS

Description

PUBLIC WORKS FEES

8-CHECKS PUBLIC WORKS FEES

28978
kschaefer

11,393.17

Amount
10,018.17
1,250.00
125.00

Amount
250.00
11,143.17



PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT RECORD OF RECEIPTS TO THE SHERIDAN COUNTY TREASURER
DATE: [ 11/26/2024]
Cash Amount Receipt # Name $ AMOUNT
CASH $250.00/ |755140 Cavi Engineering Septic Building  Zoning Misc cup ROW
ENGINEERING UTILITY LICENSE (ROW,) 1000.000.42100.0100.000 $0.00 250.00 4,983.36 25.00
PLANNING - REZONE 1000.000.42101.0100.000 $0.00 250.00 5,034.81 100.00
PLANNING CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS (CUP) | 1000.000.42102.0100.000 $0.00 250.00
PLANNING ZONING PERMITS 1000.000.42103.0100.000 $0.00 250.00
ENG. BUILDING PERMITS 1000.000.42104.0100.000| $10,018.17 250.00
ENG SEPTIC PERMITS 1000.000.42105.0100.000]  $1.250.00
PLANNING SUBDIVISION PERMITS 1000.000.42108.0100.000) $0.00
PLANNING VARIANCE 1000.000.42109.0100.000 $0.00
PLANNING QUARRY PERMITS 1000.000.42110.0100,000 $0.00
CHECKS: $25.00| [755133 21150 WWC Enginearing PLANNING ALLEY & ROAD VACATIONS 1000.080 42111.0100.000 $0.00
§250.00| [755134 1873 Charlie & Kathy Powers FIiNAL FLAT SUBDIVISION PERMITS 1000.000.42112.0100.000)| $0.00]
$4.983.38| (755135 1100 Schuster Construction LLC PLANNING MISCELLANEQUS 1000.000.44551.0100.000 u_g_
$250.00/ [755138 1083 Cowboy Stale Excavalion LLG REIMBURSEMENT FROM SAWS JPB 1000.000.48001.0100.000 §0.00
$100.00| [755137 311058 Blalr Hotels, Inc
$5.034.81| (755138 011987 First Northern Bank/Travls & Lindsey Willlamson [ToTAL | | $11.303.17]
$250.00] [755130 1018 Jason Butts
| $250.00| [755141 6848 Norwood Construction. Inc
Totals  1,250.00 10,018.17 000 12500 0.00
Checks $11.143.17]
Cash $250.00
TOTAL m:aew.:_




SHERIDAN COUNTY
224 S MAIN - SUITE
SHERIDAN, WY 82801

MISC RECEIPTS

\
11/25/2024

Trans Date:
MISC

SHERIDAN CO PUBLIC WORKS
PUBLIC WORKS CC CHARGE

Receipt Type:
Received Of:
On Account Of:

Line# PT Account Description

1000.000.42103,0100.000
1000.000.42105.0100.000

1R
2 R

Payment Type Doc# Description

CREDIT 3-CHARGES

B3

ReceiptH:
Clerk ID:
Receipt Total:

PLANNING ZONING PERMITS
PLANNING SEPTIC PERMITS

PUBLIC WORKS CC CHARGES

28968
kschaefer
650.00

Amount



xmnm_..ﬁ.n.. Transaction Activity
SHERIDAN CO PUBLIC WORKS POS/(228038)
Tuesday.November 5, 2024

Received {Mountain) __":ﬂ Name _,rmm" z.ma.m i , Auth Code _ z_m?.on Tmmma _ ..v‘_..‘imim__ Service mmm_ >3o:=nw ._nocw
11/05/24 13:09 MOUNTAIN M BUILDERS 866190 VISA 3292 $150.00 $3.83 $153.83
ﬁ Method Quantity Principal,  Service mmm_ Amount|
VISA 1 $150.00 53.83 $153.83

| ToTALl 1 $150.00 | 5383  $153.83 |



Received TrapsagtionActivity
SHERIDAN CO PUBLIC WORKSPOS (228038)
Wednesday November-13, 2024

m.xmm.m?ma %_.ml.::nm:.; _mm@ Name wﬂrmuﬁi_,_ma.,m Auth nonm “ _ z__mnm_oa..._ Last4 * Principal| HMWE_nm mmm_. >30:3__._nn00m "
11/13/24 11:43 JORDAN COOK 029261 VISA 7028 $250.00 $6.38 $256.38
Method| Quantity Principal  Service Fee| Amount
VISA 1 $250.00 %638 $256.38
Tovalf 1] s$25000 $638 | $256.38



Received Transaction Activity
SHERIDAN CO PUBLIC WORKS POS (278038)
Friday November 15, 2024

“,mmnm?mn'Agw:umw_mw.u—mi» Name ..__..mmn Name m_bcﬁ noam.; Method _,mmE:-f _ , Principal| wm?w.”w._,"wm,_[, Mtyao::.ﬁ_tmnoom J
11/15/24 09:19 MICKE SMALLWOOD 085887 MAST 5589 $250.00 $6.38 $256.38
Method| Quantity! Principal  Service Fee| l.,x Amount
MAST 1 $250.00  $6.38 $256.38

TOTAL 1 $250.00 $638 |  $256.38



Merchani 1D # 228038

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT RECORD OF RECEIPTS TO THE SHER

DAN COUNTY TREASURER

DATE [ 11/15/2024]
$ AMOUNT
CREDIT/IDEBIT: Nama Date Authodized Amount Auth. Coda Septic Building  Zaning Misc cup ROW
Mountain M Builders 1152024 $150.00|866190 ENGINEERING UTILITY LICENSE (ROW.) 1000.000.42100.0100.000 $0.00 250.00 150.00
Cook, Jordan 1iMazo24 $250.00{029261 PLANNING - REZONE 1000.000.42101.0100,000 $0.00 250.00
Smallwood, Micke 111672024 $250.00{085882 PLANNING CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS (CUP) | 1000.000.42102.0100.000 $0.00)
PLANNING ZONING PERMITS 1000.000,42103 0100.000 $150.00
ENG. BUILDING PERMITS 1000.000.42104.0100.000 $0.00
_ |ENG SEPTIC PERMITS 1000.000.42105.0100.000 $500.00
PLANNING SUBDIVISION PERMITS 1000.000.42108.01 oo.coo_ $0.00
PLANNING VARIANCE 1000.000.42109.0100.000 $0.00
PLANNING QUARRY PERMITS 1000.000.42110.0100.000, $0.00
PLANNING ALLEY & ROAD VACATIONS 1000.080.42111.0100.000/ $0.00
FINAL PLAT SUBDIVISION PERMITS 1000.000.42112.0100.000 $0.00
PLANNING MISCELLANEOUS 1000.000.44551.0100.000
[roraL [ seso.00]
Total DebiUCredit T ! $650.00
Tatals 500.00 0.00 150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00




SHERIDAN COUNTY
224 s MAIN - SUITE B3
EHERIDAN. WY B2gg;

MIsc RECEIPTS

Trans Date. 11/19/2024
Receipt Type: MIsc

Received Of; SHERIDAN CO PumLT
PUBLIC WORKS FEZES

c
On Account Of:

Liney§ pr Account

1000.000.42103.0100.000
1000.000.42104.0100.000
1000 000.42105.0100.000

1R
2R
3 R
4R 1000A000.44551.0100.000

Payment Type Doci

CURRENCY

Receiptd: 28906
Clerk 1p, kschaeler

Receipt Total. 18,881, 71
WORKS

Description Amount
PLANNING ZONING PERMITS 450.00
PLANNING BUILDING PERMIT 17,387.46
PLANNING SEPTIC PERMITS 750.90
PLANNING MISCELLANEOUS 294,25
Description Amount
18,881,721

PUBLIC WORkS FEES



DATE:

CASH:

CHECKS:

[i7i52024]

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT RECORD OF RECEIPTS TO THE SHERIDAN COUNTY TREASURER

Cash Amount  Receipt # Name $ AMOUNT
5250 00] [755118 [Cavi Engingering Septic  Building Zoning  Mise cup ROW
$025| (755120 Cuslomer ENGINEERING UTILITY LICENSE (RO W) 1000.000.42100.0100.000 250.00 646659  150.00 0.25
$150.00] (755132 Jorden Cook PLANNING - REZONE 1000.000.42101.0100.000 25000 80121 15000 16800
PLANNING CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS (GUP) 1000.000.42102.0100.000 25000 1,712.61 15000 7300
1 PLANNING ZONING PERMITS 1000.000.42103.0100.000] _$450.00 7,289.79 21.00
E. BUILDING PERMITS 1000.000.42104.0100.000] $17,387 45 1,117.26 32.00
] ENG SEPTIC PERMITS 1000,000.42105.0100.000] _ $750.00
PLANNING SUBDIVISION PERMITS 1000.000 42108.0100.000
PLANNING VARIANGE 1000.000.42108.0100.000
. PLANNING QUARRY PERMITS 1000.000.42110.0100,000
$250.00] [755117 002888 [Precision Excavalion PLANNING ALLEY & ROAD VAGATIONS 1000.080 42111.0160,000
$6.465 58] [755119 37678 Van Ewing Construction, inc FINAL PLAT SUBDIVISION PERMITS 1000.000.42112.0100.000
$150.00] (755121 2266 5-G Consiruction LLG PLANNING MISCELLANEOUS 1000.000.44551.0100.000] _ $294.25
$801.21] [755122 1047 Renee Chemarin / Carl Wilsan | |REMBURSEMENT FROM SAWS JPB 1000.000.48001.0100.000]
$168.00] [755123 008409 Sheridan County Title
$73.00| |755124 1200 Northern Wyoming Surveys (TOTAL [ s1a8s171]
$21.00| (755125 10028 Wilcox Absiract & Tile
$3200| (755126 | [fa12 FDL Consulting LLC
$1.712.61 (755127 205330 Littie Hom State Bank / Michelie Ostiar
§7.280.79| [755128 5132 Hetman & Carmela Ter Haar
$250.00] 755120 | [1012 WLM Excavation Totals 75000 17,387.46  450.00 29495 0.00 0.00
$1.117.28 755130 22797 Ch Exteriors, Inc
$150.00| |755131 3323 Ervin & Jemima Miller
SE—




Step #2 — County Clerk

ST ERIPAN

COUNTY Sheridan County

W.S. 18-3-814

MONTHLY STATEMENT
Statement of the collections by __ Willi evi Domingue as
Name of El or Appointed County Officia
Sheriff for the County of Sheridan,

Title
State of Wyoming for the month ending November 2024, filed with the County Clerk for

presentation to the Board of County Commissioners.

See attached documents.

I hereby certify that the above is true and correct statement of the monies collected by me and that the

same has been paid to the County Treasurer.

This 3rd _dayof _Deeember 2034

-

t ﬁ 1
Sheridan County Elected or Appointed County Official

County Clerk Form — Revised 4.4.2024

2k



\\§ i

jo Aep

Mv 0 m_ﬁ uo Emco._mm_EEou

Ajunoy jo pieog auy3 Aq Padpajmouse pue pauasaly

MY31D ALNNOD HLIM Q314
Y31 ALNNOD 3HL Ag Q3.131dW0D 39 oL

A

30 Y3uow ayj .oy

S

IZS

Sy
1e1914J0 A1uao) pajuioddy o payde
L] [}

13 4O awey

S9luow jo uo1ydajoy
40 1¥0d3y



SHERIFF'S OFFICE RECEIPTS

Nov-24
JAIL CONTRACT - CITY (1000.000.44402.0200.000) $ -
DAYTON CONTRACT (1 000.000.44404.0200.000) $ -
CIVIL PROCESS (1000.000.44403.0200.000) $ 1,350.00
WORK RELEASE (1 000.000.44400.0200.000) $ -
VOA WORK RELEASE (1000.000.4441 0.0200.000) $ -
FINGERPRINTS /ID / CFP (1000.000.44405‘0200.000) $ 210.00
INMATE PHONE (1000.000.44408.0200.000) $ 4,658.97
MISC. RECEIPTS (1 000.000.44406.0200.000) $ 46,099.43
COMMISSARY (1 000.000.47006.0200.000) $ =
FOREST SERVICE 1 000.000.44407.0200.000) $ -
MEDICAL CO-PAYS (1000.000.4441 3.0200.000) $ 279.62
INMATE INDIGENT (1 000.000.44406.0200.000) $ -
WEEKEND PAY TO STAY {1000.000.44415.0200,000) $ -
PROPERTY DAMAGE (1 000.000.44406.0200.000) $ -
INMATE NOTARY (1 000.000.44406.0200.000) $ -
INMATE MISCELLANEOUS $ 772.80

CHECK TOTAL: $ 53,370.82

INCLUDED IN MISC. RECIEPTS

Property Room
Restitution
Forclosure Sales
Collection Professional Inc. $ 66.70
Case Request/Record Info % 40.50
Livestock Law Enforcement Mou $ 162.50
Sheriff K9 Program (1000 637.50350.0200.428)
Reimbursement WLEA Instructor (1 000.050.50233.0200.000)
24/7 Program (1000.051,50300.0200‘24?)
CHC - 50% Cap Rebate
Housing Inmate Courtsey Hold
SRO Contract (1000.000.4441 8.0200.190) $ 44 429.73
New Trucks 1% (1000.301 50844.0200.000)
Sheriff Community Grant (1000.637 .48803.0200.433) $ 1,400.00
Bom in a Barn Security
Night Vision Grant (1000.050.50842.0200.000)

TOTAL MISC RECEIPTS: $ 46,099.45

DIRECT DEPOSITS TO TREASURER

DUI GRANT - NOT INCLUDED IN REVENUE

HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT - NOT INCLUDED IN REVENUE
DCI WAGE REIMBURSE GRANT - NOT INCLUDED IN REVENUE
TOTAL FOR DIRECT DEPOSITS - ALL GRANTS NOT REVENUE
SPLIT SENTENCE (1 000.000.44400.0200.000)
SHERIFF MISC FEES (1000.000.44406.0200.000)
BULLETPROOF VEST GRANT REVENUE (1000‘48803.0200.923)

Total Revenue



24/7 Program

Nov-24

603.00
436.00

408.00
378.00

LR

Total $ 1,825.00 24/7
s &
[ Total Treasurer: 1,825.00 | [ $ - |

[ Total Deposit: § 1,825.00




SHERIDAN COUNTY
224 S MAIN - SUITE B3
SHERIDAN, WY 82801
MISC RECEIPTS

Trans Date: 11/21/2024 Receipt#:
Clerk ID:
Receipt Type: MISC Receipt Total:
Received Of: STATE OF WYOMING
n Account Of: 24/7 PROGRAM REVENUE
,1ned PT Account Description
1 R 1000.000.44417.0200.000 24/7 PROGRAM REVENUE
Payment Type Doc# Description

CHECK 4646097 24/7 PROGRAM REVENUE

28941
kgchaefer
1,729.50

Amount

1,729.50

Amount

1,729.50



SHERIDAN COUNTY

224 S MAIN - SUITE B3
SHERIDAN, WY 82801
MISC RECEIPTS

Trans Date: 11/14/2024

MISC

STATE OF WYOMING
SHERIFF'S FEES

Receipt Type:
Received Of:

n Account Of:

ine# PT Account

1 R 1000.000.44400.0200.000

Payment Type Doc#

Receipt#: 28896
Clerk ID: kschaefer
Receipt Total: 38,599.42
Description Amount
SPLIT SENTENCING/WORK RE 38,599.42
Description Amount
38,599.42

SHERIFF'S FEES



SHERIDAN COUNTY
224 S MAIN - SUITE B3
SHERIDAN, WY 82801
MISC RECEIPTS

Trans Date: 11/12/2024 Receipt#: 28893

Clerk ID: kschaefer

Receipt Type: MISC Receipt Total: 400.00
Received Of: STATE OF WYOMING
mn Account Of: SOCIAL SECURITY PMT FOR INMATE
.lne# PT Account Description Amount
1 R 1000.000.44406.0200.000 SHERIFF MISCELLANEOUS FE 400.00
Payment Type Doc# Description Amount
OTHER ACH DEP SOCIAL SECURITY PMT FOR INMATE 400.00



Travelers Casualty and Slirety Company of America

TRAVELERS? ‘ Hartford, CT 06183 02- I‘ '

' PUBLIC OFFICIAL BOND - BOND NO. 108176100

FOR DEFINITE TERM Z g_‘pgg Ai?mm
/2 — [2_2!!00unfymumsy
Date of

We, Holly Jennings

224 South Main Street, SHERIDAN, WY 82801 , as Principal, and

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America , @ corporation .Of.. CT____, as Surety are held
and firmly bound unto state of Wyoming y in the
penal sum of Ten Thousand ‘ DoTFar§(_ I " $10,000.00 )

lawful money of the United States of America, for the payment of which Wall arid truly fo be made, said
principal binds himself/herself, his/her heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, and said Surety
binds itself, its successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

SEALED and dated this 09 day of December s 2024

WHEREAS, the said prinbipal has been v elected or appointed to the office of

Commissioner ; for a definite term beginning
January 02, 2025 and ending January 02,2027 and is required to furnish a bond for

the faithful performance of the duties of the said office or position.

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that the above named Surety shall not be liable hereunder for any loss of
any public fund resulting from the insolvency of any bank or banks in which said funds are deposited:
and, if this provision shall be held void, this entire bond shall be void.

AND PROVIDED FURTHER, that the Surety may cancel bond at any time during the said term by
giving to the obligee a written notice of its desire so to cancel and at the expiration of thirty (30) days
from the receipt of such notice by the obligee the surety shall be completely released as to all liability
thereafter accruing. If this provision shall be held void, this entire bond shall be void.

Holly Jennings

WITNESS:

(Seal)

e (Principal)

| BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Travelers,Gasualty and Surety Company of America
[ ft = Vs T D
7 7 7 . 7
4 D3t _ By: |n jﬂw L4 _
Denise M Sherwin Attorney-in-Fact

§-2232-1 (04-24)



g = - Travelers Casualty and Slirety Company of America
¢

AT,
TRAVEL ERS J Hartford, CT 06183 2.

PUBLIC OFFICIAL BOND - BOND NO. 108174588
FOR DEFINITE TERM [/ APPROVEDASTOEORM 1

jz_szy County Attornay
btz of

We, Michael R. Arzy
224 South Main Street. SHERIDAN. WY 82801

, as Principal, and

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America , @ corporation of CT ,-as Surety.are held
and firmly bound unto State of Wyoming in the
penal sum of Ten Thousand Dollars ( $10,000.00 )

lawful money of the United States of America, for the payment of which well and truly to be made, said
principal binds himself/herself, his/her heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, and said Surety
binds itself, its successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

SEALED and dated this __ g9 day of December . 2024

WHEREAS, the said principal has been v elected or appointed to the office of:

Commissioner for a definite term beginning

January 02, 2025 and ending January 02, 2029 and is required to furnish a bond for
the faithful performance of the duties of the said office or position.

NOW, THEREFORE THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that if the above bounden
Principal shall (except as hereinafter provided) faithfully perform the duties of his/her said office or
position during the said term, and shall pay over to the persons authorized by law to receive the same
all moneys that may come into his/her hands during the said term without fraud or delay, and at the
expiration of said term, or in case of his/her resignation or removal from office, shall turn over to
his/her successor all records and property which have come into his/her hands, then this obligation to

be null and void: otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that the above named Surety shall not be liable hereunder for any loss of
any public fund resulting from the insolvency of any bank or banks in which said funds are deposited:

and, if this provision shall be held void, this entire bond shall be void.

AND PROVIDED FURTHER, that the Surety may cancel bond at any time during the said term by
giving to the obligee a written notice of its desire so to cancel and at the expiration of thirty (30) days
from the receipt of such notice by the obligee the surety shall be completely released as to all liability
thereafter accruing. If this provision shall be held void, this entire bond shall be void.

Michael R. Arzy

WITNESS:
(Seal)

(Principal)

TraveleQﬁCasualtv and Surety Company of America

By: M\)ﬂ/r W ﬁ// 1,P téz‘/tw .~

Denise M Sherwin

Attorney-in-Fact

§-2232-1 (04-24)



PN
TRAVELERS |

INCREASE CERTIFICATE

Bond No. 107743555

Principal: Nick Siddle License No.
Amount of Bond: $5,000.00

224 S Main Street, Sutie B-1 .
Hereby increased to: $10,000.00

SHERIDAN, WY 82801

Obligee: State of Wyoming
224 South Main, Suite B-1
SHERIDAN, WY 82801

As of January 02, 2025 , the amount of the above described bond is increased from the sum of

$5,000.00 to the sum of $10,000.00 _, but the liability of the Surety for any acts or defaults

occurring before the effective date hereof shall in no event exceed the total sum of ,  $5,000.00 , and the

aggregate liability of the Surety for any acts or defaults, whenever committed, shall in no event exceed the tota] sum
of __ $10,000.00 ;¢ being the intent hereof to preclude cumulative liability. This certificate, when signed by the

Principal shall become a part of the said bond.

Signed, sealed and dated December 05, 2024

Trafgelers Casualty and Surety Company of America

By ?k_\ Z@M%H ﬁ/ J )/U{M'Li
Attorney-in-Fact

I hereby consent to the above increase.

Witness my hand and seal this /’ é day of Q 55/774// ‘ , Zazj_/

Nick Siddle

Principal

INSTRUCTIONS TO AGENTS - IMPORTANT

Do not deliver this certificate to the Obligee until it has been dated and signed by the Principal. One signed copy
must be returned to the Surety.

rws vy | ) ORRSTOR—

> /272 Z.!;/ nty Atiorney

S




m——

S
TRAVELERS ]

INCREASE CERTIFICATE
Bond No. 107737572
Principal: Christine Haswell License No.
- $5,000.00
Sheridan County, Wyoming Amont of Bond: §
Hereby increased to: $10,000.00
SHERIDAN, WY 82801
Obligee: State of Wyoming
200 W 24th St
CHEYENNE, WY 82002
As of January 02, 2025 , the amount of the above described bond is increased from the sum of

$5,000.00 to the sum of $10,000.00 , but the liability of the Surety for any acts or defaults

occurring before the effective date hereof shall in no event exceed the total sum of ., $5,000.00 , and the

aggregate liability of the Surety for any acts or defaults, whenever committed, shall in no event exceed the total sum

of  $10,000.00 it being the intent hereof to preclude cumulative liability. This certificate, when signed by the

Principal shall become a part of the said bond.

Signed, sealed and dated December 05, 2024

Traﬁlers Casualty and Surety Company of America

By LUIM ﬁ/ \Q}MLLUM

Denise M Sherwin
Attorney-in-Fact

I hereby consent to the above increase.

Witness my hand and seal this day of 3

Christine Haswell

Principal

INSTRUCTIONS TO AGENTS - IMPORTANT

Do not deliver this certificate to the Obligee until it has been dated and signed by the Principal. One signed copy
must be returned to the Surety.

F-304-F (11-67)




2 m.

CERTIFICATE OF WARRANT CAN CELLATION

Come Now, Katie Araas, the duly elected Treasurer of Sheridan County, Wyoming, and
hereby certifies, pursuant to W.S. §18-4-106, the following county warrants, outstanding and
unpaid for more than 12 months on the first Monday of December 2024, have been cancelled.
Any person holding a warrant as indicated below may present the same to the Sheridan County
Board of County Commissioners on or before the first Monday of December 2029, for issuance
of a new warrant in the same amount due on the original warrant.

Warrant Date Payee Amount
130970 1/11/2023  BEIL, JOSHUA $45.66
131875 5/31/2023 HAAR, DEBRA $627.88
131845 5/31/2023 BORECZKY, AUSTIN $52.97
132351 7/31/2023  VEHICLE SAFETY SUPPLY $493.29
132477 8/22/2023 WALKER, ROXANNE O'NEAL $39.38
132471 8/22/2023 RABY, CHESALAI NICOLE $30.00
132441 8/22/2023 BARRIN GTON, JEFFREY M $30.00
132857 9/30/2023  SULZ, CHRISTOPHER $11.90
132921 10/6/2023 ~ WALMART VISION - STORE 1778 $334.00
132906 10/6/2023 DR DODD $120.00
133261 11/28/2023 SUTHERLAND, KAMERON $30.00
133259 11/28/2023 SCHWERR, FREDERICK $39.38
133251 11/28/2023 NORTON, KILLIAN $30.00
133248 11/28/2023 NEGRON, LANDON $30.00
133244 11/28/2023 MEECE, JUSTIN $30.00
133230 11/28/2023 GREEN, MELANIE $30.00
133214 11/28/2023 COVER, JENNIFER $30.00

133393 11/30/2023 SHERIDAN FUNERAL HOME $1,350.00



NEW WARRANT APPLICATION AND AFFIDAVIT

The undersigned hereby applies for issuance of a new warrant. Pursuant to W.S. § 18-4-106, the
following described warrant being outstanding and unpaid for more than 12 months on the first
Monday of December 2024.

Warrant Number:

Date Issued:

Payee:

Payee Address:

Type of Warrant: Accounts Payable Payroll

Amount;

Applicant, , does hereby request a new warrant be
issued in the same amount due on the original warrant as noted above, Applicant also avows the
original warrant as being:

Lost Stolen Destroyed

Applicant further acknowledges cancellation of the ori ginal warrant and agrees to immediately
deliver the above-described warrant to the Sheridan County Treasurer’s Office if it should ever
come into the affiant’s possession.

Dated this day of , 20

Applicant

This instrument was acknowledged before me by , on the
day of 20

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature of Notarial Officer
Title: Notary Public
My Commission expires: :




I

/9 PAGE: 1 OF 4
FEES: $21.00 sM EASEMENT
EDA SCHUNK THOMPSON, SHERIDAN COUNTY CLERK

EXTENDED TRAIL EASEMENT AGREEMENT

This Extended Trail Easement Agreement is made to extend that Trail Easement Agreement recorded as
Document No. 2020-762907 on October 15, 2020, on the same terms and conditions, and is hereby made by
Sheridan Heights Ranch, LLC (“Owner”) whose address is 1470 Sugarland Drive, Suite 1, Sheridan, WY 82801
and the Sheridan County Board of County Commissioners (“Holder”) whose address is 224 South Main Street,
Suite B1, Sheridan, WY 82801

The Parties agree as follows:

1. Grant of Easement. Owner grants Holder a perpetual trail easement on the terms and conditions set out
in this Agreement over and across the property situate in Sheridan County, Wyoming (“Easement Area”)
and more fully described in Exhibit “A”, which is an extension of the Trail Easement Agreement recorded
as Document No. 2020-762907.

2. Use of Easement. Holder may use the Easement Area only for the following purposes:

a.

Holder may use the Easement Area only for the construction, operation, installation, maintenance,
repair and replacement of (i) a public trail not to exceed 20 feet in width and (ii) signs to mark the
trail,

The Easement Area may be used by the general public only for walking, hiking, jogging,
bicycling, cross country skiing, bird watching, dog walking, and horseback riding.

3. Restrictions on Use. Use of the Easement Area by Holder or the general public with the consent of
Holder shall be subject to the following restrictions:

a.

FRmoe e o

No motor vehicles of any kind shall be permitted on the Easement Area except the fo llowing: (i)
power-driven mobility devises for use by persons who have mobility impairments, (ii) vehicles
authorized by the Holder required for periodic patrol, inspection, and necessary construction,
maintenance and repair of the trail, and (iii) emergency vehicles in case of emergency.

Dogs are required to be on-leash when livestock or wildlife are present.

No trash or debris shall be deposited or left on the Easement Area.

No firearms or fireworks shall be discharged.

No person on the Easement Area may be in possession of alcohol or any illegal substance,

No paving material such as asphalt or concrete shall be placed on the Easement Area.

No charge shall be made for use of the trail.

No fences, gates, bridges, culverts or improvements, except the trail itself and signage, will be
installed or constructed on the Easement Area without the prior written consent of Owner, and, if
any such improvements are constructed on the property, they will be kept in good order and repair
by Holder.

4. Holder’s Obligations. Holder shall have the following obligations:

a.

b.

Holder shall keep the Easement Area and the trail clean and in good order and repair and free of
trash and garbage subject to budgeted resources.

Holder will promptly restore and reclaim to its original condition all areas within the Easement
Area disturbed by construction or maintenance of the trail which are not occupied by the trail.

To the maximum extent permitted by law, Holder will indemni fy, defend, and hold harmless
Owner and Owner’s members, managers, agents and employees from any and all claims arising
out of the use of the Easement Area and trail by any person except claims by Owner’s members,
managers, agents and employees.

At the points the trail enters Owner’s land, Holder will place signs on the trail advising the public
of the restrictions on the use of the trail and the Easement Area.



5.

10.

11.

O

:00 PM PAGE: 2 OF 4
FEES: $21.00 sM EASEMENT
EDA SCHUNK THOMPSON, SHERIDAN COUNTY CLERK

Owner’s Reserved Rights. Owner reserves the following rights:

a.  Owner reserves the right to make any use of the Easement Area which does not materially and
substantially interfere with the use of the Easement Area as a trail for the general public. These
reserved rights include, without limitation, the right to pasture cattle in and adjacent to the
Easement area, and neither Owner nor Owner’s lessee shall have any liability for damage done by
livestock to the trail or improvements constructed by Holder on the Easement Area.

b.  Owner may at its expense relocate the easement area and trai] at any time upon giving at lease 30
days prior written notice to Holder; provided, however, Owner will not close the existing trail for
relocation purposes until the relocated trail is ready for use. If Owner exercises its right to
relocate the easement area and trail, Owner will provide a survey of the relocated easement, The
parties will then execute and record with the County Clerk of Sheridan County, Wyoming an
amendment to this agreement that amends the description of the lands subject to this easement to
conform to the description of the relocated easement.

¢. Owner may close the Easement Area and trail to public access during calving season for a
maximum of sixty (60) days each year.

Acceptance of Easement Area. Holder accepts the Easement Area “AS IS, WHERE IS.” This easement
is granted by Owner and accepted by Holder without any warranties from Owner.

Assignment. Holder may not assign, transfer or convey this easement without the prior written consent
of Owner, which consent Owner may grant or withhold in Owner’s sole discretion.

Termination of Easement. [f Holder fails to comply with Holder’s obligations under Section 4, of this
Agreement, then Owner will give Holder written notice of default under this Agreement. If the default is

Sheridan County, Wyoming a release of this €asement and, unless otherwise directed by Owner, restore
and reclaim the propert ¥ to the condition it was in prior to the grant of this easement.

Notices. Any notices under this Agreement must be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly
given upon (a) receipt if delivered personally or by messenger, private courier or telecopier or (b) as of
the third business day after mailing by United States certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the
party at the address set out in this Agreement.

Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only by a document in writing signed by both parties.

Entire Agreement. This document contains the entire Agreement of the parties relating to the subject
matter of this Agreement.

Dated this %/ ‘Zd'day of D& A B 22,2024

Sheridan Heights Ranch, LLC




ey

2024-796141 12/9/2024 12:0
FEES: $21.00 SM EASEMENT
EDA SCHUNK THOMPSON, SHERIDAN COUNTY CLERK

Manager

Sheridan County Board of County Commissioners

By: /(/,74‘:4{'/ :Mé/

Chairman

Attested

¢ County Clerk

STATE OF WYOMING
COUNTY OF SHERIDAN

This instrument was acknowledged before me this 2 . day of Dﬂ(‘ P\rn(:wl/’ , 2024 by
Donald B. Roberts, Manager of Sheridan Heights Ranch ? Witness my hand and official seal.
\

i M %ﬁ/[/l ~—

Notary Pubfic
My commission expires: Afw}; vt ZF 20 2¢) . N B, KOVAMA BREEN
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF WYOMING
COMMISSION ID: 120343
STATE OF WYOMING MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 08/03/2029

COUNTY OF SHERIDAN

This instrument was acknowledged before me this LPH day of .Imﬂw , 2024 by

Nic¥, Sead\-e . chairman of the Sheridan County Board of County
Commissioners. Witness my hand and official seal. /ﬁ 2
fd’ —
Notéry Public

KELLY 107TT
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF WYOMING
COMMISSION ID: 167370
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 0R/0R/2028

My commission expires: %} q j;l%

HAWP\FORMS\WILCOX\2024\2024-078-TRAIL EASEMENT AGREEMENT.docx



LEGAL DESCRIPTION
EXHIBIT "A"

December 4, 2024
Record Owner: Sheridan Heights Ranch, LLC

Re: Extension of a 20.0' Trail Easements to the Sheridan County Board of County Commissioners,
and or any of their respective successors and assigns.

Extension of Easement 4A (Kendrick Restroom Trail)
Easement 4A is shown on Record of Survey, Recorded in Plat Book “A”, Page “603”.

A trail easement twenty (20) feet wide, being ten (10) feet, each side of the following described
centerline situated in the NW%SEY% of Section 30, Township 56 North, Range 84 West, 6th P.M.,
Sheridan County, Wyoming; said centerline being more particularly described as follows:

Commiencing at the south quarter comer of said Section 30 (Monumented with a 2" Aluminum
Cap per PLS 580); thence N16°22'16"E, 2587.25 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING of said
easement, said point lying on the north line of a tract of land described in Book 31 of Deeds, Page 182;
thence $59°07'43"E, 66.07 feet along said centerline to the POINT OF TERMINUS of said easement,
said point lying on the south line of Tract No. E, being a tract of land described in Document Number
2024-795977, and being S83°10'23"W, 1870.85 feet from the east quarter corner of said Section 30
(Monumented with a 3%" Aluminum Cap per PLS 2615). Lengthening or shortening the sidelines of
said easement to intersect said boundary lines.

Said trail easement contains 1,321 square feet of land, more or less.
Bearings are Based on the Wyoming Coordinate System, NAD 1983, East Central Zone.

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT
I, Thomas D. Tucker, do hereby state that this legal description was prepared from notes taken during
an actual field survey performed by me or under my direct supervision.

Modification in any way of the above or foregoing legal description terminates liability of surveyor.

000000 OO0 1 A

2024-796141 12/9/2024 12:00 PM PAGE: 4 OF 4
FEES: $21.00 SM EASEMENT
EDA SCHUNK THOMPSON, SHERIDAN COUNTY CLERK

NO. 2024-796141 EASEMENT

EDA SCHUNK THOMPSON, SHERIDAN

C , co
PRESTFELDT SURVEYING 2340 WETLANDSUD'\FJ{TY CLERK
SHERIDAN WY 82801

HAWP\LD\T56N\202412024-078-TRAIL-EXTENSION.rtf



fr——
=

3
| g (mes i
!y R T R LT S T i
: d Eimgkll  Babbey Lh o )
{1 sl ¢ dpR g ), :
3 gl iy ey e )y 8
ég abuilie o aliek s o [ ool
%) EE h!’!!ﬂ[ QE EE Ei !E"Hﬁ! E! EE ‘ .i E H] .
Ji pimbly apheity S0l oy b
I G By Hap 4 ) |
o b |l SR gkas 9
L858 !“_‘;“ag!\:“us 5% ie
giee e R E b i'mii:! i o !!l;glgig |i§ .
§§§§;Ei L a%ﬁ*:us"sisuﬁﬁ fi B T Egg i)
it e:ig!ailﬁﬁiﬁ‘ M
gl | omm opwe ¢
orasees i Wi BhEE b
TN j| Bt b iy o & il 4
Ji il | ARl ¢ gl
B i ‘i!s HIEERTE L T A W alelelellalalal
* | it 0 Bl ¢ i
A0 b i d b R (IR
byl B o Y RN REEG
@a;iig Pel {0 UG e Rl TR
gl A sk e SRR
E §g§§ §§§E iﬂ‘,xi §. 3 igg;,;;a E. 5!&33§E§!;E§: I5RBEEEag|
! " 1R B R TR RN
3
g e I s B ¢ PO
;L; ;\;gg/yﬁf‘s:}
RS e e S
| i
Y
;

o~

Mt s

-7/

g
v
14
=)
Q
(&)
| S
g e ) Se 4
5§5 ST ; /<
5]
M
(4]
. | i
: i
voos p \I
) i
f
— E
%)
[ m-'*‘-»..__‘mmﬁ 1 ia
?
| ~_ B




0.

SUBORDINATION OF MORTGAGE

FROM: County of Sheridan, with its primary office address at 224 South Main Street, Suite B1, Sheridan,
Wyoming 82801 (hereinafter called “Mortgagee”)

TO: PennyMac Loan Services, 3043 Townsgate Road, Suite 200, Westlake Village, CA 91361 (hereinafter
called “Lender”)

WHEREAS, Mortgagee is the holder of a valid mortgage granted to Jake Vigil (hereinafter called
“Owner”} covering certain real property owned by Owner and located at 1181 Fleming Blvd., Sheridan,
Wyoming 82801, more fully described as Lot 9, Block 1 of the Woodland Park Subdivision, Sheridan,
Wyoming as recorded May 28, 2008 in Book W of Plats at Page 61 hereto and incorporated herein
{hereinafter called “Property”); and

WHEREAS, Owner has executed, or is about to execute a mortgage {hereinafter referred to as “Lender’s
Security Instrument”) and not to exceed the sum of $315,000.00 dated 12/13/2024 in favor of Lender,
payable with interest and upon the term and conditions described therein, which Lender’s Security
Instrument is to be recorded concurrently herewith; and

WHEREAS, the MORTGAGEE has agreed to subordinate the PRIOR MORTGAGE to LENDER’S MORTGAGE:

1. Subordination of Lien: The MORTGAGEE hereby subordinates the MORTGAGE and its lien
position in an on the PROPERTY to the LENDER'S Mortgage and the lien thereof, as if the
LENDER’S Mortgage has been recorded first in time to the MORTGAGE and so that all public
records will reflect LENDER'S Mortgage superior in lien to the MORTGAGE.

2. This subordination shall be binding upon and insure to the benefit of the respective heirs,
successors and assigns of MORTGAGEE and LENDER.

WITNESS this j/ day of Jecepfor— 2024,

BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS,
Sheridan County, Wyoming

{ MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 08/08/2028

STATE OF WYOMING
COMMISSION ID: 167370

ATTEST:

County Clerk irman

STATE OF WYOMING )

)
County of Sheridan )
4
This Instrument was acknowledged before me on the L‘J h day of i )_e,c_gmbb{* 2024 by
Ntk Sacle. as Chairman or the Board of County Commissioners for
i ty, Wyoming. —
Sheridan County, Wyoming P _ .
- A i

3 c ‘. "- // )___‘__»/'Z__,__/n/;]‘{,/_
: KELLY 10T e s
1 NOTARY PUBLIC Nogahy Public
>
3
'




No QUL

SHERIDAN COUNTY LICENSE AGREEMENT
Submit to: Public Works Department, 224 S. Main Street, Suite 428, Sheridan, WY 82801; (307) 674-2920

License requested for County Road___ W 16th Street  _NGVOMQ MN\ Q& Q-KED

Township/Range/Section T56N R84W SEC22 NW 1/4

Mile Post
GPS Coordinates  Lat: 44.818972 Long: -106.971584

Bore Crossing with Single Phase Underground Conductor

Type of instaliation proposed
SKETCH (or attach separately)

See Attached "Exhibit A"

INSPECTION FEE SCHEDULE
Select the type of installation you will be making

O Open Trench Installation/Repair, perpendicular to roadway centerline: $600.% plus $6.00 per foot
Compaction test under roadway required.

Open Trench Instaliation/Repair, parallel to roadway centerline: $600.20 plus $2.40 per foot
Compaction test under roadway required

Plowed type installation: $600.% plus $0.25 per foot.
Overhead install with poles or structures in County ROW: $600.00 plus $0.25 per foot
Overhead install without poles or structures in County ROW: $150.%9 plus $0.25 per foot

Bored crossing: $150.9 pius $0.25 per foot of installation/repair.

a

B O0DA0O

Additional inspection fees may apply.
§_ 150.00 Fee for type of installation

+$  15.00 ($_.025 perfootx 60 feet)
$__165.00 Total Fee

Exceptions
a. Service for utilities for individual residences may be exempt from charges, however, an application with a

waiver request (including name & address of the individual) must be filed with the Public works department.
b. For joint trench installation, only one fee will be charged. Al utilities using the joint trench shall be listed on the

application.
c. Forrepair work, the fee may be charged only when work disturbs roadway surface.
If an exception is desired, applicant shall submit a request in writing to the public works department. The
department shall make a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners, who shall take action to
accept, reject, or modify the proposed exception.

AGREEMENT
I, the undersigned applicant, request a Sheridan County License Agreement to construct the afore-

mentioned installation at the above location, subject to the terms of Sheridan County Master License Agreement
No.M;O&entered with Sheridan County.

Company__Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. Rep. Name Christopher Lawler Title Electric Superintendent

Address 2324 Dry Ranch Road City/State/zip__Sheridan, Wyoming 82891
Phone  307-751-4608 Email christopher.lawler@mdu.com

Reviewed and approved by Sheridan County Public Works Department:

Counlﬁepresentaﬁve §ignature Date

Sheridan County License Agreement; revised 6/2019 Page 1 0f2



NN ] LA

APPROVAL

By signing below, the parties agree to the terms of this agreement, and that this License Agreement is
subject to the terms of the Sheridan County Master License Agreement No. = O which is hereby
incorporated by reference. Any person signing below certifies he or she has been properly authorized to enter
into this Agreement by his or her respective party. ~ A

Sy g

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. BY: | I ML\J /-? /,;/;;,/él
GRANTEE (Company Name) “Authorized 'hepresenlali\.re Signature

Christopher Lawler Electric Superintendent DATE: /02 = é”’Z{)Z{(

Printed Representative Name & Title /

STATE OF WYOMING )
) ss.

COUNTY OF SHERIDAN )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on _/‘;\) - ‘L/ “Q L‘{ by

Ch cisYepher N, Lauler T

Name of Parsan
official seal
DANI SORENSON =7 -
NOTARY PUBLIC =
STATE OF WYOMING - STaarOfi
COMMISSIS 10, 165910 SignatieonNatar ‘C?’
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 08/19/2027 My Commission Exgires: o8/ ¢ 9D 2
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Attest:
Sheridan County, Wyoming
By:
Chairman County Clerk

Sheridan County License Agreement; revised 6/2019 Page 2 of 2



Enter ROW at:
Long 106°58'17" W
Lat 44°49'08"N E

FAV S SIAUL

8 L L T ———

4| BORE County Road
i Installed at 48" Deep
in 2" HDPE Pipe

Wi

Ja._

L]

Exit ROW at:
Long 106°58' 17" W

Install 19 Primary a ' Lat 44°49'07"N
approx 125ft totat :
A B

LOCATION: T56N R8AW SEC. 22 NW/NW 12/3/2024 COULTAS
ADDRESS: 1121 W 16th St, Sheridan WY
NOTES:

tarting at the existing power pole

The project consists of installing an underground single-phase primary electric line s
located at 1121 W 16th St and boring under the Road at a minimum depth of 48” and approximately 60ft in length.

The electric conductors will be installed in 2” HDPE bore pipe and will crossithe road from north to southeast.

EXHIBIT "A" <67 MONTANA-DAKOTA

UTILITIES CO.

A Division of MDU Resources Group, Inc.




& MONTANA-DAKOTA

~ UTILITIES CO

A Subsidiary of MDU Resources Group, Inc
In the Community to Serve®

2324 Dry Ranch Road
Sheridan, WY 82801

December 3, 2024

Sheridan County Public Works
224 S Main St

Suite B8

Sheridan, Wyoming 82801

Ken Muller
County Engineer

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. is requesting approval of a Sheridan County License Agreement to
install underground electric primary conductors crossing W 16" Street. The purpose of this
application is to install a buried electric line to serve new residences located in the 1100 Block of
W 15" Street in Sheridan WY. The project consists of installing an underground single-phase
primary electric line starting at the existing power pole located at 1121 W 16 St and boring
under the Road at a minimum depth of 48 and approximately 60ft in length. The electric
conductors will be installed in 2” HDPE bore pipe and will cross the road from north to

southeast,

Enclosed with this cover letter, is the exhibit of the parcel of land and primary conductors to be
installed, and the Sheridan County License Agreement. Please review the submitted agreement
and execute upon your approval. If you have any questions, please contact me at 307-421-3639,

Sincerely,

Matt Coultas
Field Operations Coordinator ~

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co.
2324 Dry Ranch Road
Sheridan, Wyoming 82801

(307)-421-3639
matthew.coultas@mdu.com




28
NO.AYAB LA

SHERIDAN COUNTY LICENSE AGREEMENT
Submit to: Public Works Department, 224 S. Main Street, Suite 428, Sheridan, WY 82801; (307) 674-2920

License requested for County Road_41 Ow! Creek Rd

Mile Post Township/Range/Section TP 55N / RNG B5W/ SEC 2 # Sz, 3
GPS Coordinates LAT 44.769731 LONG -107.073960

. . INSTALL APPROK a6y OF NEW STRAND AND F1IBER OPTIC CABLE ATTACHING TO 13 EXISTING
Type of installation Proposed_POLES ALONG Tt CREER RD

SKETCH (or attach separately)

Please ses attached Planset & TCPs for this project SH02E_5297127_009_P @ 41 Owl Cresk Rd

INSPECTION FEE SCHEDULE

Select the type of installation you will be making

O Open Trench Installation/Repair, perpendicular to roadway centerline: $600.9 plus $6.00 per foot
Compaction test under roadway required,

0

Open Trench Installation/Repair, parallel to roadway centerline: $600.% plus $2.40 per foot
Compaction test under roadway required.

Plowed type installation: $600,00 plus $0.25 per foot,

Overhead install with poles or structures in County ROW: $600.% plus $0.25 per foot
Overhead install without poles or structures in County ROW: $150.% plus $0.25 per foot
Bored crossing: $150.% pus $0.25 per foot of installation/repair,

Osoag

Additional inspection fees may apply.
$150.00  Fee for type of installation

+$597.50  ($.25__ perfootx 23%0 feet)
$.14250 __ Total Fee

Exceptions
a. Service for utilities for individual residences may be exempt from charges, however, an application with a

waiver request (including name & address of the individual) must be filed with the Public works department.
b. For joint trench installation, only one fee will be charged. Al utilities using the joint irench shall be listed on the

application,
c.  For repair work, the fee may be charged only when work disturbs roadway surface.
If an exception fs desired, applicant shall submit a request in writing to the public works department. The
department shall make a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners, who shall take action to
accept, reject, or modify the proposed exception,

AGREEMENT
I, the undersigned applicant, request a Sheridan County License Agreement to construct the afore-

mentioned instaliation at the above location, subject to the terms of Sheridan County Master License Agreement
No. = entered with Sheridan County.

Company_MTC Engineenng LLC/NAOC  Rep. Name Taryn Gasparini Tite Permit Specialist
Address City/State/Zip
Phone_720-427-2039 Email taryn.gasparini@mte-lic.com

Reviewed and approved by Sheridan County Public Works Department;

/12-3-24
County Representativé Signature Date

Sheridan County License Agreement; revised 6/2019 Page 1 of 2



NO. QYA LA

APPROVAL
By signing below, the parties agree lo the terms of Ihis agreement, and that this License Agreement is
subject to the terms of the Sheridan County Master License Agreement No. MAA -5 whichis hereby

incorporated by reference, Any person signing below ceriifies he or she has been properly authorized to enter
into this Agreement by his or her respeclive party.

MICEngineering LLC gy, 7@y Faaparine
GRANTEE (Company Name) Klthorized Representative Signature

Taryn Gasparini DATE; 11/21/24
Printed Representative Name & Title

STATE OF WYOMING )

) ss.
COUNTY OF SHERIDAN )

The foregoing instrument was  acknowledged before me on _ULZJ/ l.':i by
Gain
j’ﬂt%n_@ggwmz —

ad_ KIMBERLY BROWN

WITNESS my hand and official seal,

LOMMISSION® 727037

(seal) COMM EXP 10-03-2026 Signature of No
My Commission Expires: _D__w
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Attest:

Sheridan County, Wyoming

By:

Chairman County Clerk

Sheridan County License Agreement; revised 6/2019 Page 2 of 2



W ETANON. CIMR

ATSSATCS SB1686  FLMOT/TIC 70055

Mo e Sw EFT
DATE 12009/2024 PAGE 1ol 2

PERMIT:  Cily of Shevidan
CUSTOMER: MTC Engueering i
CONTACT: Taryn Gaspani 720 427.2038 | e | A
LOCATION: 755 sig Goose R st |
PROJECTWO: | o s WORK HOURS BAL o 5P
SHOZE 5297127 008 ] e e e |
|'--er-’ EETTSAE)
DESIGNED BY DONNA SANDALL WA TCS ES2 000356 [t
Nomsv eMs, FiRe
‘ 73 GRS A ABUANES

T
I ¢ ix g wnd apucing it cmtarm B e Gty oF Baanadar, WO, and
18 igna e 00 3O 00w S apiiiad

ol Gy, Caaty, 41 SVDOT evmamtrs 4 tn 1 bamss m aiamst o wach o repwred.
5

e TI% o o
o i 3 b o e e BT LD




W VANON GO

CUSTOMER: MTC Engineering

CONTACT: Taryn Gasparini 720 427.2039

LOCATION: 755 gig Goose R
PROJECT/WO:

’ PERMIT:  Cily of Sheridan
I SHO2E 5297127 009

DESIGNED BY DONNA SANDALL WA TCS ES2 000356
ATSSATCS 561686 FL MOT/TTC 70055
Qo vt Smdod
DATE:12/09/2024 PAGE 2 of 2

WOTIFY M, FiNE
AND P

T2 HOURS N ADVANCE

HHUHU
iludiletefeds

HH OB UHEE

i
iz

HOUgUBHUWEUE

wtri
1. Al wigpn and Rzaring st catiarm tn e

(O af Shasiclan, WYDOT, and the MUTCD
LAF roseeis Aod

g dl
sty oy Cosasty, we WYDO! sutharitis £1.5 17 hours in sdvmsce of work f required.

rpacks of D) walte Wi
TTC pams ans dresiwn ikl £e e
it ekt bty '] MUTCD 6A.01{10)




SHERIDAN COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY
RESOLUTION 24-12-028

1.0 POLICY

This Statement of Investment Policy is adopted pursuant to the requirements of W.S, 9-4-
831(h). The financial accounting procedures of Sheridan County are divided among the Board,
the County Clerk and the Country Treasurer. The County Clerk, or his/her designee, is
designated as the county budget officer, and the County Treasurer is in charge of the county
treasury, Warrants for payment from the treasury must be authorized by the Board of County
Commissioners

[t is the poliey of the county to invest public funds in a manner which will provide a reasonable
rate of investment return while assuring the maximum security of principal, meeting the daily
cash flow demands of the county and conforming to all federal, state and local laws and
regulations governing the investment of public funds.

2.0 SCOPE

This investment policy applies to all financial assets of Sheridan County and the County Airport.
These funds are accounted for in county’s annual abstract and include:

2.1 Funds
2.1.1 County General Funds
2.12 Special Revenue Funds
2.1.3 Capital Project Funds
2.1.4 Trust and Agency Funds
2.1.5 Enterprise Funds — Airport
2.1.6 Any new fund created by the Board unless specifically exempted.

3.0 PRUDENCE

{nvestments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing,

which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own
affairs, not for speculation but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as
well as the probable income to be derived.

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent person”
standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment
officers acting in accordance with procedures and the investment policy and exercising due
diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or
market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and
appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

4,0 OBJECTIVES

The primary objectives, in priority order, of the county investment policy
shall be:

4.1 Safety. Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks 1o ensure preservation of
principal in the overall portfolio.

4.2 Liquidity. The investments will remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating
requirements that might be reasonably anticipated.

Page 1 of 4



4.3 Return on Investment. The investment pools and funds shall be managed with the
objective of attaining the maximum rate of return given the constraints of the
aforementioned safety and liquidity objectives.

5.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

Authority to manage the county’s investment program is derived from the

Wyoming State Statutes. Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby
delegated to the Sheridan County Treasurer. No person may engage in an investment transaction
except as provided under the terms of this policy and procedures.

6.0 ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Elected officials, officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from
personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or
which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions. Such persons and
investment officials shall disclose to the Board any material financial interests in financial
institutions that conduct business within this county, and they shall further disclose any large
personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the county’s
investment portfolio.

7.0 AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUIONS

The County Treasurer will maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to be depositories
for county funds. No public deposit shall be made in an unqualified public depository as
established by state laws.

7.1 Once a bank has been designated as an official depository, it is up to the discretion of
the County Treasure as to the funds deposited in said banks. All monies deposited in
official depositories are subject to conditions outlined in W.S. 9-4-809 and W.S. 9-4-
811.

All financial institutions who desire to become quailed bidders for investment transactions must
supply the county with a certified copy of a Board of Directors Resolution. Such resolution shall
be in the format outlined in W.S. 9-4-806 and must be delivered to the Treasurer no later than 30
(thirty) days following the institutions” acceptance as an official depository.

In addition, a list will be maintained of approved security broker/dealers. These may include
“primary” dealers or regional dealers who qualify under the Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 15C-31 (uniform net capital rule). No investment shall be made with a
dealer/broker unless they have signed a statement pursuant to W.S. 9-4-831(h) certifying that the
broker has read this policy and agrees to abide by it and applicable state law with respect to
advice given and transactions undertake on behalf of the county.

8.0 AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS

The County Treasurer is authorized and limited to invest in those types of securities as allowed
by W.S. 9-4-831. If the county uses a SEC - registered investment adviser, the county is allowed
to invest in those investments authorized by the State of Wyoming State Loan and Investment
Board.

Permitted Investment Instruments — Including but not limited to the following:

Investment Type Maximum Maximum Maximum % per | Minimum
Maturity Asset Class issuer: Rating
WYOSTAR 1 NA Max Permitted Max Permilted by N/A
by State Stale Treasurer
Treasurer
WYOSTARTT NA Max Permitted by | Max Permilted by N/A
State Treasurer Stale Treasurer
WYOSCLASS & Wyoming NA 100% NA N/A
Government Investment Fund
Money Market Funds WAL - b (han 00 100% NA AAA
days. No more than
10% ownership of

Page 2 of 4



fund, 397 day max

maturily.
U.8, Treasury Bonds 5 years 100% 100% N/A
Agency or GSE S5 years 100% 50% N/A
Commercial Paper 270 days 100% 5% A-1,P-1,0r
equivalent

Megotiable Cerilicates of 5 years 100% FDIC Insurance N/A
Deposit Limit
Certificates of Deposit 5 years 100% 100% - All funds N/A

over FDIC

insurance must be

collateralized
Bankers Acceplances 180 days 20% NA NA
Morigage-Backed Securities 5 year weighted 20% 5% AAA

Avernge Life
The following investments are allowed through a SEC | advisor that agrees to act In writing

8
in a fiduciory capacity, or a bunk exempt from re gistration.
Medium-Term (Corporate) Duratlon no greater 25% 5% A - or better
than 0.5 yrs of
oS! Bloomberg Barclays

U. S. Aggregate bond
imbes

Mutual Funds or ETFs Permitted Securities | 25% A - or better
of those allowed in
this policy, Duration
no greater than 0.5 yrs
of Bloomberg
Barclays U. S.

A i bund index
*#*]f the rating of the issuer is reduced below Lhe rating requirements mentioned above, the investment advisor must,
as soon as possible, musl report the reduction in the rating to the governing body of the local government*

-

9.0 COLLATERALIZATION

Collateralization will be required on two types of investments: certificates of deposit and
repurchase (and reverse) agreements. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of
security for all funds, the collateralization level will be (102%) of market value of principal and
accrued interest.

Sheridan County chooses to limit collateral to institution pledged securities.

10.0 SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY

10.1 Delivery vs. Payment. All Trades of marketable securities will be executed by
delivery vs. payment (DVP) to ensure that securities are deposited in an eligible
financial institution prior to the release of funds.

10.2 Custody. Securities will be held by a third-party custodian selected by the county
and evidenced by custodial reports. Securities will be registered in the name of the
Sheridan County.

11.0 DIVERSIFICATION

Sheridan County will diversify its investments by security type and institution. With the
exception of U.S. Treasury securitics, certificates of deposits, and authorized pools, no more than
50% of the county's total investment portfolio will be invested in a single security type.

Sheridan County will generally attempt to utilize at least two financial institutions as
depositories.

12.0 MAXIMUM MATURITIES

T'o the extent possible, Sheridan County will attempt to match its investments with anticipated
cash flow requirements. Unless matched toa specific cash flow, the county will not directly
invest in securitics maturing more than five (5) years from the date of purchase. However, the
county may collateralize time deposits and repurchase agreements using longer-dated
investments not to exceed five (5) years to maturity. Reserve funds may be invested in seeurities
exceeding five (5) years if the maturity of such investments is made to coincide as nearly as
practicable with the expected use of the funds.

Page 3 of 4



13.0 INTERNAL CONTROL

The County Treasurer shall establish a process of annual independent review of the
investment function by an external auditor. This review will provide internal control by assuring
compliance with policies and procedures,

14.0 MARKET YIELD

Sheridan County’s investment portfolio will be designed to obtain a market average rate of return
during budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the county’s investment risk and cash
flow needs,

15.0 INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION

The Investment Policy shall be adopted by resolution of the Board. The policy shall be reviewed
on an annual basis. Any modifications made thereto must be approved by the Board.

This policy was first adopted July 2, 1996, with revisions adopted December 18, 2007, and
February 18, 2020. This revision shall become effective December 17, 2024, as filed with the
County Clerk.

ADOPTED this 17" day of December 2024,

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Sheridan County, Wyoming Attest:

. - . -__—'______—————__
Nick Siddle, Chair Eda Schunk Thompson, County Clerk

Acknowledged:

Katie Araas, County Treasurer

Page 4 of 4



Wiz soi 32:7.008 SHERIDAN COUNTY TREASURER
(s i g @ KATIE ARAAS

L WYOMING W, £s1.1888

MEMORANDUM
To: Board of County Commissioners
From: Sheridan County Treasurer
Date: December 17, 2024
Subject: W.S. §39-13-110 and W.S. §16-4-502 \\j‘

Per W.S. §39-13-110(a) All personal property taxes not collected within ten (10) years from the
time the taxes were levied shall be cancelled and are thereafter uncollectible.

Delinquent notices were sent to all the taxpayers as information was available and numerous
attempts to contact the owners have been unsuccessful. These businesses or individuals are either
out of business/dissolved, are not contactable or have been deleted from the Assessor’s CAMA

system.

Per W.S. §16-4-502(b) Any debt due and owing to a governmental entity, which is determined to
be uncollectible, shall be certified to the governing body of the entity by the chief administrative
officer of the entity to which the debt is due.

Per W.S. §16-4-502(c) The governing body to which uncollectible debts are certified shall
review the debts and verify to the satisfaction of the governing body that the debtor has no
financial means or assets from which the debt may be satisfied. If the governing body determines
a debt is uncollectible, it shall direct that the debt be discharged and extinguished as an account
receivable or asset of the governmental entity for which the governing body acts.

Pursuant to W.S. §39-13-110 and W.S. §16-4-502, I, Katic Araas, Sheridan County Treasurer, do
hereby certify to the Board of County Commissioners that the following debts as of November
30, 2024, owed to Sheridan County are uncollectable.

I have certified the debts are uncollectable and now respectfully request the board approve
discharge of uncollectable debts.

224 SOUTH MAIN STREET — SUITE B3 — SHERIDAN, WYOMING 82801
Phone: 307.674.2520 — Fax: 307.674.2529



oyI8T'96y $ T6'TP8'9TE § SSEEE'BLT § ov'e9L's8 § 60'925'68 S

10878 AM ‘NVAI¥IHS ‘LS AGINNIA 0E8T  2Z'0L S vEvY $ BE'ST $ STOT/OT/S  69°TT $ v10Z/0T/1T  69°CT 5 D71 'H23L 3L ATTIM dd 502 :82€00000 ¥10Z

Sv8Z8 AM 'ONYYAM ‘EP XOB Od  TT'E0T $ v8S9 $ L(TLE $ ST0Z/0T/S €981 $ ¥10Z/0T/TT  ¥9'8T H INNY HOTNLNYM dd 002 155000400 102

T0£08 ‘0D 'H3ATIN08 ‘QY LNONOO1 0929 L9'EBT $ PII8T $ €501 $ ST02/01/s  9T1S $ PI0Z/OT/TT  LTTS S 271 'ONISVITIA dd S0 3ETT00000 YT0Z

10878 AM ‘NVYAI¥3HS ‘VISIA3INOW OE9  BB'1S $ ETEE § sL8l $ 5T0Z/OT/S  LE6 $ YI0Z/OT/TT  8E6 $ NYIN 321 3HL dd 602 106700400 ¥102

PETO8 0D ‘NINYUVd ‘O8TP XOB Od  90°62¢'Z6 § TSTZ0'6s  $ PSLOYEE  $ STOZ/OL/S LLUE0L'9T § YIOZ/OL/TT  LL'EOL'9T $ ) ONLLYYIJO (YSN) ADHINT LVD WYOLS dd 00€ 396200000 $10Z

PET08 0D MINYYJ ‘98TY XOB Od  b1'T20'T  § 90759 $ BO'69E $ ST02/0T/s  vS'vET $ vI0Z/OT/IT  tS'¥8T $ ) ONILYH3dO (¥SN) ADHINI 1V3 WHOLS dd S0Z 70£200000 Y10Z

70708 03 ‘43ANIQ ‘OTEZ ALINS ‘LS HLT SZTIT 90'6SE'(T  § O96EOTTL  § OT'SBL's  § ST0Z/01/S SSTYT'E  $ PIOZ/OT/IT  SSZYT'E $ ) ONILY¥3dO (¥SN) ADYINI LVD WHOLS dd 00Z 3TZE00000 ¥10Z

YETO8 O MDYV '9BTY XO8 Od  6EGEE'EST § SYZLLTOT § pe99ST6  § SIOT/OL/S  LyEBLSh § v10Z/0T/T1 LVEBL'SY $ ) ONILYYIO (SN} ADYINI L¥D INHOLS dd 002 504700000 ¥10Z

10878 AM ‘NVAI¥IHS ‘IS NIVW N ET  Ov'8T $ ST § 599 $ S10Z/0T/S  TEE $ $I0Z/OT/IT €€ $ J11'SNOISYID0 113348 dd 502 7ZTE00000 Y107

8T/28 AM ‘ILLITTID ‘TTS 31$ QY AVMINVI M T0Z  TE'6YT $ 0T6ST $ 1106 $ ST0Z/0T/S  SOSY $ t10Z/0T/TT  90'SY S 118V ‘LAIWHOS dd 702 ;¥EE00000 $10T

VBT AM ‘A¥OLS 'SE9X08 Od  0E'6Y $ 8plE $ 8L $ st0zfor/s 168 $ ¥10Z/0T/1T 168 H DIvYD ‘SHIANYS dd 90T 5E£000400 Y102

2€878 AM 'YINNVE ‘bT AVMHDIH SN OLTT  GB'LSE $ 15'82Z S PE6LT $ ST0Z/OT/S  L9'V9 $ $107/0T/TT  £9'%9 $ DNI‘ILIYINOD '8 NOLLONYLSNOD WY dd §0Z 799100000 ¥10Z

v60VS LN ‘AQNYS ‘00T 315 S 00BL I 8TZT ET'SSTET  § OTHOv's  § €606Lv  $ SI0Z/0T/S  9v'See’s  § p10Z/0L/1T LY'S6E'T $ NOLLY¥O1dX3 NOITTVQIN dd 0OE 796200000 ¥10Z

9E66L XL ‘0SVd 13 °Hd TTIH INIW SO8T 9805 $ 8yze $ 8E8T $ §10Z/0T/s 616 $ vI0Z/OT/IT 616 5 140ddNS TYDINHDIL 1405 XIDVIA dd TT1305200000 Y102

T08Z8 AM 'NVQI¥IHS ‘IAY NYOH I8 Z0ST  68'ELT $ 0TIl $ s879 $ S10z/0T/s  TYIE $ pIOZ/OT/TIT  EVIE s NOILINYUISNOD '8 ONIDNIA N 8 ) dd 50Z 1£8200000 Y10Z

10878 AM ‘NYGIEIHS ‘A4 30QIN 1SY3 £ 08PTT'SO & ZL6/5'Ty ¢ BOSES'EC  § ST0T/0T/S  vS/9LTT § PLOZ/OT/IT  vSL9LTD S J715¥9 SNIV1d HOIH dd 00E 362E00000 YT0Z

TOT6S LIN ‘'SONITTIE ‘Y STIHANId TOLY  €9'€92'€ $ ST'H80'Z  § 99'6LT'T  § ST0C/0T/S  ¥B'68S $ pIOZ/OT/IT  ¥8'68S S S3514¥4¥3LN3 IWNLNS dd SOZ 764200000 H10Z

S£8Z8 AM 'LINOWHVITD ‘E6T X0B Od  BOPIE $ 957002 $ TSEUT $ §10Z/01/S  9L°9S $ vI0Z/OT/TT  94°9§ S M AYYIL ‘AN dd 0OE ;26200400 Y102

/bObE LN 'SLHDIIH QOOMNOLLOD ‘00b# HILNID ¥Hvd NOINM S 5969 00'E8I'ST  § pS'pT00T  § 9v'89s’'s  § STOZ/0T/S  ET'vEsT § YI0Z/OT/IT  ETVER'T $ 271 3A0YD LN3g dd 707 :96200000 10Z

10828 AM ‘NVQI¥IHS ‘VIVHYSEY 606 8509 S 79'8€ $ 981C $ s10z/0T/S €601 $ pI0Z/OT/IT  E6°0T s NHOMNOYI 35001 HIAVIE dd 10T :pRZ00000 PTOT

20708 O3 ‘YIANIQ '0TbZ LS IS HLLT G721 07 899'87  § LE'90E'8T  § E9T9E0T  § STOZ/OL/S  T608T'S  § +102/0T/IT  76'08T'S $ D71 ‘ADYINT LvDuv3d dd 00E '0ZE00000 ¥10Z

9£8Z8 AM ‘NOLAYGQ ‘66 XOH Od 1€ 015 $ veTzE $ L8 $ ST0Z/OT/S  LV'LBL $ v10Z/0T/T1 E s ANVAINOD T1LLYD MYTD ¥Y38 dd €0T :8ET00000 ¥10Z

10828 AM ‘NYQINIHS ‘A 33069  YL'ET $ 9or'sT $ 858 $ STOZ/Ol/S  6Tv $ ¥10Z/0T/1T  6C% S S3I90TONHIIL JAILYNYILIY dd 812 )15200000 H10Z

10878 AM ‘NVQIYTHS ‘1S H193 209 TETLT $ t0'0TT $ 8279 $ s10z/01/S  YTTE $ pIOZ/OT/IT  VITE $ NI 'ONIO0D 8 ONILYIH NYII¥IAY TV dd 502 156200000 ¥10Z

10828 AM ‘NVQIY3HS ‘AAT8 NOLONITYY 828 TL9ET $ OE'L8 S 1revy $ §I0Z/0T/S  OL'VT $ pTOZ/OT/TT  TL'VT S MYUYIN ‘¥31¥393Y dd S0Z /TT00d0D 10T

T08Z8 AM ‘NVQI¥3HS ‘A8 NOLONINYY 828 ¥S'vHT $ 6V'S6 S SO'BY $ ST0z/OT/S TSP $ ¥TOZ/OT/TT  ES'HT S MUY ‘YALYIDIY dd SOZ 7$1100400 £T0Z

70208 07 ‘YIANIC ‘60 15 1S WY 0SST  BVLPZ'E  § ZS'EL0T  $ 99'ELTT  § STOZ/OT/S €8BS § PIOZ/OT/IT  €8'98S § INI “ONIWOAM SEN 151 dd 00E JZ0E00000 +10Z
SSRIPPY angieIn: JULITd ngieioy raleganp JEHPUSHS JIRHISI auiepyiaumo idAxe; PSP oN@Aed ieFAxe)

'9|qe123|[03un B.ie pZ-0E-TT 40 58 pamo s1qsp Suimoj|o) ay3 1BY) SIBUOIsSIWIWO) Aunod jo pieog
ay3 03 AjI1a3 AgJay Op “Isinseal | Ajunod uepliays ‘seesy ey ‘| ‘Z05-4-916 'S'M GNY OTT-E1-6£§ 'S"M 01 juensind

SYYYVY JILYY ¥3YNSYIUL ALNNOD NVAIYIHS ALINOOD

NVAIHAHS



7o 1 3%eg

10828 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘TS #3AV NI3440D TO6S 61°89 S SO'SP S vl'E $ s102/0T/S  LS'TT S ¥107/0T/1T LS'TT S QIAYQ "43HISI4 HW 817 78r¢100000 ETOT

10828 AM ‘NVQAISIHS ‘TS #3AV N33440D T06S TESTT $ (y08 S V8LE $ S107/0T/S T6'8T $ $T0Z/0T/1T T6'8T $ QdIAVQ “4IHISIH HW 8TZ Z8¥ZT00000 7107

10828 AM ‘NVQAIYIHS ‘TS #3AY N33440D 1065 8678TT $ 008 $ 86SE $ S107/0T/S  66'LT S ¥102/0T/1T 66'LT S alAva "¥3IHIsH HIA 877 ZBYTTO0000 T10T

10828 AM ‘NYQIYIHS ‘TS #3AV N33440D T06S  ¥LTTT $ €898 $ T6PE $ s107/0T/S ST S ¥T02/0T/TT 9t'LT S QIAVA "4IHISI4 HW 817 7857100000 010

10878 AM ‘NYAIYIHS ‘TE LO1 LS HITT M OST 98'TY6 $ €9°0v9 § €r10e ¢ ST0Z/OT/S  T9'0ST S $10Z/0T/T1 79°0ST $ 3 ILNOW ‘aNVY¥Na HW $0Z TY6TE00000 TTOT

SE878 AM 'LNOWYYITI ‘E9T XOB Od  88'¥ST S 0686 $ 865 $ ST0Z/0T/S 66°LT $ $10Z/0T/1T 66'L2 S AVEY B SITHVHD ‘HANYD HWN 10¢ OESSZO0000 $10Z

GE8Z8 AM 'LNOWYY3I1D ‘€9T X08 Od TTTYT $ S6'€6 $ 98y $ ST0Z/01/S  €T'tC $ ¥10Z/0T/TT €Tt $ AVHYT B STTHVHD 'HINYD HN T0E DESSZ00000 E10Z

GE8Z8 AM "LNOWHYI) 'E9T XO8 Od TE¥9T S 9LTTT $ SS'TS $ stoz/oT/s LTI S vT0Z/0T/TT 8792 S AVHY] 78 SITHVHD ‘HLNYD HIN TOE DESSTO0000 ZT0T

SEGZ8 AM ‘LNOINYYITD ‘€9T X08 Od 87691 $ OE'STT $ 86'6Y $ ST0T/0T/S  667%C S $T0Z/0T/TT 66'%T S AVHYT 8 SITHVHI HLNYD HIN TOE OESSTOOD0D T10Z

6£878 AM 'LNOWYVYID ‘E9T XOB Od  ¢£'56T S T6°0TC $ 08'v8 $ ST0Z/0T/S  oOv'TY S ¥102/0T/1T ov'zy S AVHY] B STIHVHD ‘HLAYD HWN TOE 0ESSZ00000 0102

SE878 AM 'LNOWYYITD ‘E9T XO08 Od €6'TTE S L89TT $ 90's8 $ §10Z/0T/S E€S'TY S ¥10Z/0T/T1 €S°TY S AVHYT 8 STTHVHD "HLNY¥D HIN 10€ DESSZODO0D 600T

G£978 AM ‘LNOWYYI1D ‘€91 XO8 Od  68°00€ $ §9°TTe S 0T8L $ sT0z/OT/S OT'6t S $10Z/0T/TT OT'6€ S AVHY] 78 S3THVHD ‘HLNYD HW 00F OESSZ00000 800Z

GERTE AM ‘LNOWYYITD ‘€9T XO8 Od  EV'HLE $ 9¥'18T S L6'T6 $ stoz/ot/s 8voy S $T0Z/0T/TT 6V'9Y S AVHYT 8 STTHYHD HLNYD HN DOE OESSTO0000 £00Z

GEBZ8 AM 'LNOWYY31D ‘74T X08 Od £7'88 $ PE'9S S 68'TE $ SI0T/0T/S  ¥6'ST $ $10Z/0T/1T S6'ST $ VSIYIL B INAYM D 'HLNED HW TOE ZS6TT00000 10T

SEBT8 AM 'LNOWYVYI1D ‘2LT X08 Od  T0°L8 S BYLS § €9°6C $ 610Z/01/§  9L'VT [ p10Z/0T/TT LL YT S VSIHIL 2 INAVM D “HLNYD HW TOE 2561100000 £70Z

GEBT8 AM 'LNOWYYITD 'TLT XOB Od  66°88 S €509 $ 9¥'8C $ ST0Z/0T/S  ETYT S ¥10Z/0T/1T €TYT $ YS3¥3L %8 INAVM D HLAYD HIN 10§ ZS61T00000 ZT0Z

GESZ8 AM INOWYVITD ‘ZLT XO8 Od 05’16 § €8°€9 S 19lT $ ST0Z/0T/S €8€T S $10Z/0T/1T ¥8ET S V534318 INAVYM D HLNYD HW T0E ZSETT00D00O TT0Z

SE878 AM 'LNOWYYI1D ‘24T X08 Od 15788 $ ET'E9 $ BE'ST $ S102/0T/S 6971 $ $10Z/0T/TT 69T S Y5IHIL B INAYM D 'HLNYD HIN 10€ 2561100000 OT0Z

GEBTZ8 AM ‘LNOWYVYI1D 'TLT X08 Od ¥0'68 TR ) 1474 $ STOZ/OT/S  #T°TT S $10Z/0T/TT ¢T°TT $ WSIWIL B INAVM D 'HLNED HN T0E 7561100000 600

GEBTZ8 AM ‘LNOWYY31D ‘2LT XO8 Od T 6ET $ 8T'E0T $ YT9E $ 5T0Z/0T/S  TT'8T S ¥10Z/0T/TT TI'8T s YSAYIAL B INAVM D HLMNWD HIN DOE ZS6T100000 800Z

GEBTZY AM 'LNOWYVID ‘TLT X08 Od SS°6ET $ 06'V0T $ S9vE $ s10Z/0T/S  CELT $ $10Z/0T/T1 €€4L1 $ ¥S3H3L 8 INAVM I ‘HLNYD HW 00E ZS6TT00000 £00OZ

10878 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘LS INOLSAVIO T/T 508 0€°98 $ TTSS $ BITE $ ST0Z/0T/S 65°ST S ¥T0Z/0T/TT 09°ST s 3NVT NYVID HIN 602 TSL1T00000 v10Z

10878 AM ‘NVQAINIHS ‘LS INOLSAV1D 7/T S08 S0'S8 S 6195 S 9887 $ S10Z/0T/S  E€v'vT $ $10Z/0T/TT €V'VT S INYT WYY HIN 602 TSLTT00000 €107

T08Z8 AM ‘NVAIHIHS ‘LS INOLSAV1ID 2/1 508 66'88 S ES09 S oy’ $ ST0Z/0T/S €TVT S ¥10Z/0T/TT €741 s ANYT NYYTD HW 607 TSLTT00000 ZT0T

10878 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘LS INO1SAY1D /T S08 81°06 s 1679 § lTLe $ STOZ/0T/S  €9°EL $ $¥T0Z/0T/TT ¥9°€T $ ANYT WYY HIN 607 TSZTT00000 TTOT

10878 AM ‘NVAIIHS ‘LS INOLSAVID Z/T 508 STTTT $ 9008 S 6TCE $ S107/0T/5s 6091 $ ¥102/0T/1T 0T°9T S INVT NHVID HIN 602 TSLTT00000 0102

T08Z8 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘LS INOLSAVID ¢/T 508 T6°CCT $ op'e8 § 7g'€e $ ST0T/0T/S  9L'9T $ $T0Z/0T/TT 9L°9T S INVI WYY HN 60T TSLTT00000 6007

10828 AM ‘NVQI¥IHS ‘1S INOLSAVID Z/T S08 OS'TET S TEL6 S BI'VE $ s107/0T/S  60°LT S ¥102/0T/1T 60°LT s INVI NV HIN 607 TSLTT00000 BOOT

Y878 AM ‘AYOIS ‘845 XOB Od 18°68 $ GELS S 9p'TE $ ST0Z/OT/S €791 S $102/0T/1T €T°9T $ T AGNYS 8 T WM ‘d131INYD HW 807 6152100000 vT0T

Y878 AM ‘AYOLS ‘845 X08 Od 20'68 $ 1885 $ 170t s §T0Z/0T/S  OT'ST N $T0Z/0T/1T TT'ST [ T AQNYS B 1 INM ‘Q131INYD HIN 80T 6152100000 ETOT

8T8 AM ‘AHOLS ‘8/5 X08 Od  TE'SS $ E9ULE S 69°LT $ st10z/OT/S ¥8'8 S $T0Z/0T/TT 588 $ TAGNYS 8 F WM ‘d131INYD HW 907 6TSZT00000 TT0T

T08Z8 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘T# 1d VIOAY 6LET 90°TS S VUEE $ 7881 $ sT0Z/OT/S TVE S $10Z/0T/1T Tt'6 $ YSSINVA 8 NIAIY ‘IOVNNIE HN BT ¥9L1T00000 ¥TOT

TITES AM "HIAOUD ‘IAY HONAVLOVOZ T6'VT $ 156 S 6E'S $ §107/0T/S 69T [ $102/0T/1T 0LC S (113ssva) NNV 331 '¥31xve HWN 727 6041100000 ¥T0T

T08Z8 AM ‘NVAINIHS ‘TTHI X0 Od 8S'EET $ 0€'68 S 8T8y $ S10Z/0T/S  PI'vT S ¥10Z/0T/1T pT'¥T S 3 SIMAHd ‘Z3Vdv HWN 8TZ TYI¥Z00000 Y107

T08Z8 AM ‘NVQINIHS ‘TI¥9 XO8 Od  L8'TET S TTL8 YA 47 $ ST0Z/0T/S  LE'TT $ $¥10Z/0T/T1 8€'2T $ 3 SIT1AHd ‘Z3VdY HWN 8T TTYT00000 €102

T08Z8 AM 'NVQAIYIHS ‘TT¥9 XO8 Od ¥9'LET S 79'€6 $ Ty $ S102/0T/S 10°CT S ¥10Z/0T/TT 1022 S 3 SITIAHd ‘Z3VdV HW 81T ZYTYTO0000 10T

TO8Z8 AM ‘NYQIYIHS ‘8T 2dS 3 IAV HIY 0CTTT 08'2LT S 0TPLI $ 0986 $ ST0Z/0T/S OE'6Y $ $T0Z/0T/TT OE'6Y S AHLY 8 S3NVI ‘NOSINYQY HW SOT 9EZZTO0000 ¥10Z

TO8Z8 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘8T OdS 3 IAV HLY 6TTT €L°T8T S BL'9BL S S6'S6 S STOZ/OT/S  L6'LY S YI0Z/OT/IT 86°LY S AHLYY '8 SINVT ‘'NOSWVQY HIA 507 9EZZTO0000 ET0T

10878 AM ‘NVQIYIHS ‘8T OdS 3 IAV HLY 8TTT vB'8BT S 9%'96T $ 8ET6 $ S10Z/0T/S 61°9Y $ ¥102/0T/1T 6T°9F s AHLY 8 STWVT ‘NOSWVaVY HN 50Z 9EZTTO0000 ZT0Z

10878 AM ‘NVQIYIHS ‘8T 2dS I IAY HIP LTTT 69°0T€ $ w9l $ S6€6 $ ST0T/0T/S  L6'9Y 1y rIozZ/oT/TT 86'9% S AHLYX 8 STAYT ‘'NOSINVAY HW S0 9EZZT00000 TTOZ

T08Z8 AM ‘NVQAIYIHS ‘8T IdS I IAY HLY 9TTT 8B'TEE S TL9ET $ LTS $ s10Z/01/S  8S'LY S yI0Z/0T/IT 65°LY S AHLY) '8 STAVT ‘NOSINVAY HWN 507 9EZZI00000 0107
ssaippe angleiod jujuag Higleos giepanp  jIRHpuUCIas ajepanp e JwenJoumo adAjxel IASIP  ONJIIED IEIAKEL

218 pZ-0E-TT JO Se pamo 51G3p SuImo||0) 33 1By} SIBUCISSILIWOY AJUNOD JO pIROg 3Y) 0] Aji3Iad
AgJay op ‘Jainseal] Ajuno) uepuays ‘seesy aney ‘| ‘205--9T§ 'SM ANV OTT-ET-6€6 'S'M 01 juensing

; kAT RN OAM s
A LNOOD
NVAIHHHS

SYVYY 3ILVX H3UNSYIHL ALNNOD NVAIYIHS




9E£878 AM ‘NOLAVA ‘€9 XO8 Od
9€878 AM ‘NOLAVA ‘€9E XO8 Od
9€878 AM ‘NOLAVA '€9E XO8 Od
9£878 AM ‘NOLAVA '€9E XO8 Od
9€878 AM ‘NOLAVA '€9€ X049 Od

9£878 AM 'NOLAVA ‘66 XO8 Od

6£878 AM 'Y3LSIHINVY ‘TSZ XO8 Od
6E8Z8 AM 'YILSIHINVY ‘TST XO8 Od
65878 AM 'H3LSIHINYY ‘TST X08 Od

T08¢8 AM ‘N¥QI¥IHS 'Qd ¥Yvd ANVIAOOM v

GERZ8 AM ‘LNOINYVY3ITD ‘€9T XO8 Od
SE8Z8 AM ‘LNOWYYI1D ‘€9T X08 Od
SE8Z8 AM ‘LNOWYYITD ‘€9T X08 Od
GE878 AM 'LNOWYY3ITI ‘9T XO8 Od
GE878 AM 'LNOWYVYITI ‘€91 XO8 Od
GE8Z8 AM ‘LNOWYVITI ‘€9T XO8 Od
GE8TS AM ‘LNOINY¥YIN) ‘€9T XO8 Od

TO8T8 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘ST 1dV 1S WvAY SEOT
T08Z8 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘ST LdV 1S WYAV SEO0T
TO8Z8 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘ST 1dV 1S IWVAV SEOT

10878 AM ‘NYAIYIHS IAY HUVINO 0T0T

10878 AM ‘NVAIYIHS '9ST LOT a4 ONVIGAIN TTST
TO8Z8 AM 'NVQIYIHS ‘95T 107 a8 ANVIQAW TTST
10878 AM ‘NVQAIYIHS ‘95T LO1 QY ONVIQAN TTST
T0878 AM 'NVQAIYIHS ‘9GT 10T QY ONVIGAN TTST
10878 AM ‘NVQAIYIHS ‘95T 107 a4 ANVIQAW TTST
70878 AM ‘NVAIHIHS ‘95T 107 QY ANVIQAW TTST
T08Z8 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘95T LO1 Y ANVIQAN TIST
TOSZS AM ‘NVQAIYIHS '9ST 107 G ANVIQAN TTST
T08Z8 AM ‘NVQI¥IHS ‘95T LO1 0¥ ANVIQAW TTST
TOBTS AM ‘NYAIYIHS ‘95T 101 a4 ANVIQAW TTST
TO8T8 AM ‘NVQI¥3IHS ‘95T LOT a¥ GNVITAW TTST
TOBZ8 AM ‘NVQIYIHS ‘95T 107 a4 ANVITAN TTIST

TO8Z8 AM ‘NYAIYIHS ‘05# IAY NIIJJ0D TO6S

10878 AM ‘NVAIY3IHS ‘LS HLL 3 6SE
T08Z8 AM 'NVAIYIHS ‘1S HLZ 3 65¢
TOBZE AM ‘NVAIYIHS 1S H1L I 65€
10878 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘1S HLL 3 6SE

10878 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘9€# Q¥ ANVIQAWN TTST 'YQ YIAV3IE 8T
T08Z8 AM 'NVAIYIHS ‘9E# Q¥ ANVTIAAW TTST ‘40 ¥3AV3E 8T

10878 AM ‘NVAIYIHS ‘ST XO8 Od
10878 AM 'NVAIYIHS ‘TS #3AV NI3440D T06S

8T Y06'ST
9’116
91’546
ST'9%0'T
L9'8E9'T
75°'8/9'T

¥9°991T

90'seT
60'vTT
9e'6ll

80'6C

7988
£v'i8
1716
vL16
vL°€6
18°v6
88°STT

18°88
LBL8
EV'16

ST'1S

20°15¢
oL'L6T
07'88S
£9°9%9
T1'50L
87'BE8
¥5'7L8
59'506
19'7Y6
L0696
18'TH0'T
96°€80°T
LT°69
98°€0T
0v°20T

STYIT
PULET

10°20L
£0'TS9

86’81
00°69

$
$
$
$
$
$

RV NRT, SET RV SRV S R T

0N N

W NN WD B

RV SRV SRV AT,

n

$

8/'GTE'ST
80'C09
87°€99
08'6¢L
9£°89T°T
18°02¢°T

¥9°E6

98'6L
86'18
66'L8

L5781

6595
9L°LS
079
00’9
98'99
189
94°G8

TL'95
S0°8S
61°79

99'CE

67091
£9°967
80°00F
sy
16'70S
69'609
vLSY9
847089
91°0¢L
1T8vL
16918
99°668

(A% 4

7E'99
S9°49
UL
£9'96

LY'1SY
LSTY

Tl
S0 vy

$
$
$
$
$
S

R AT SRV ARV, SRV RV AR

wr

VAN W VRN WD U N

wr

VW

$

05'8LS'L
8T'60¢
88'TTE
SE'9TE
16697
TL LSy

00'eS

0T'sty
ey
LE'TY

1501

€0'ce
£9°6T
LT'6C
vLLe
88'9¢
LL'ST
woe

01°C2¢
86T
L4414

6781

€406

€0°T0T
71881
55°66T
07’70t
65'8¢¢
0897t
J2:8 144
|80 744
98°'0¢T
0€°87¢
0€°'87T

00'st

veLE
SLYvE
v5'9t
LYY

¥5'8S¢
TE'SET
989
v6'¥e

VN BN N

S

“v v

w vV N wr

ur W

B Y Y Y Y Y Y R R R A

v

VU

$
$

$
$

S10Z/01/S
§10¢/0T/S
S102/01/S
s102/01/8
s1oz/01/s

§10Z/0T/5

ST0Z/0T/S
s10Z/01/S
ST0Z/0T/S

§10Z/01/5

s10Z/0T/S
S10Z/01/S
s102/01/5
S10Z/01/S
s102/01/S
s10Z/01/S
S10Z/01/S

S107/0T/S
s102/01/5
sT0T/0T/S

5102/01/S

S10Z/01/S
stoz/ot/s
ST0Z/01/S
ST0Z/01/S
s10Z/01/S
stoz/ot/s
ST0Z/0T/S
s10z/01/S
S10Z/01/S
ST0Z/0T/S
s10z/0T/S
S102/01/S

s107/01/S

§10Z/01/S
§102/01/S
st0z/0T/S
§102/01/S

ST0Z/01/S
ST0Z/01/S

ST0Z/01/S
5102/0T/S

zJjozafed

90'68L'E
79 vt
$6'SST
£1°8ST
S6'PET
$8'8¢C

05'9¢

092t
S0 T2
89'0C

STS

T0°ST
E8'VT
83T
LBET
el
88'CT
90'sT

5091
T6°0T
w9t

vT'e

9t'SYy
1505
90176
LLL6
0T'10T
6T YIT
OV'ETT
EVTIT
STCIT
EVOTT
STYIT
STYIT

05zt

L4°81
LT
LTt
€4°0T

LLLen
S9°LTT
(343

JA XAS

RV Y SRV AR Y Y v

NN A N

n

R Y Y Y RV ARV ARV R TR R

v+

RV SRRV ST

¥10Z/0T/T1
¥10Z/0T/TT
¥10Z/0T/1T
$102/0T/1T
v10T/0T/11

¥102/0T/11

$102/01/11T
$10Z/0T/1T
»T0Z/0T/TT

$10Z/0T/1T

y102/0T/TT
$102/0T/11
¥102/0T/11
$10Z/0T/T1
¥102/0T/TT
¥102/0T/TT
¥102/0T/T1

¥10Z/0T/TT
$10Z/0T/1T
$10Z/0T/T1T

$102/0T/1T

$10Z/0T/1T
¥10Z/0T/T1
$10Z/0T/1T
¥10Z/0T/TT
$10Z/0T/TT
¥102/0T/1TT
$10Z/0T/1T
¥107/0T/11
$T0Z/0T/TT
¥10Z/0T/T1T
$10Z/0T/TT
$10Z/0T/TT

$10Z/0T/TT

¥102/0T/TT
$10Z/0T/TT
¥10Z/0T/T1
¥102/01/11

¥102/01/TT
¥10Z/0T/11

$102/0T/11
+10Z/01/11

Yy E8LE
V9 vsT
$6'651
81°8ST
96'VET
98 8¢T

08°9¢

09'¢c
90'7¢
69°0¢

9C’s

20'9T
BT
65'V1
L8'ET
L2431
68T
90'eT

S0°9T
16'v1T
911

ST'6

LE'SY
75'08
90'v6
8L°L6
0T'10T
OE'vTIT
OV'ETlT
et
9Tzt
EPOTT
ST'YIT
STYIT

0s 7T

LL'8T
8€'LT
LT'st
Lot

L
99°LTT
EV'E
wia

WA W

R SV ARV R A % £%3

n NN DUV D wn N

v

wr U

¥ 3INVHAILS B ¥ ¥IINIS ‘¥INDIN
v IINVHJILS '8 ¥ Y3DN3I4S 43NN
v IINVHAALS 8 ¥ ¥3IINIdS ‘HINIIN
v JINVHAILS 8 H YIDINIdS YN
¥ JINVHJILS 8 ¥ H3IN3IdS ‘YDDIN

23LSNYL 8 AYYIT ZLIAYS

13IN 13VHIIA ‘YN
73IN 1IVHIUN UDINIY
T3IN 13VHIIN ‘YIANTY

g AJVHL ™8 4 1101713 ‘JIHOY

HJ3SOr NINI3N "H3ONId
Hd3SOT NIAT3% H3aNId
Hd3SOr NIAT3N "H3aNId
HA3SOr NIAI3N HAANId
HdIS0M NIATIN "H30NId
HA3SOM NINTIN "Y3ANId
HAISOI NIATIA H3IONId

3711 'VINO
3 V11 'VDINO
311 'ORINO

IAVITIIM D183 ‘NOLYOW

N33713 ADVYL 8 31¥L NHOT ‘N3N
N331F ADYYL 8 3LVL NHOS ‘N3
N331(3 ADVYL '8 31¥L NHOT ‘NN
N33113 ADVYL '8 3LVL NHOT ‘N3N
N33113 ADVHL '8 3LYL NHOT ‘NN
N33 ADVYL 8 31VL NHOS ‘Nan
N33713 ADVYL 8 3LVL NHOM ‘NaN
N3313 ADVYL '8 3LVL NHO( ‘N3N
N33NI ADVYL 8 3LYL NHOT ‘NN
N33113 ADVHL 8 3LYL NHOT ‘NI
N33113 ADVYL B ILYL NHOM ‘N3N
N331(3 ADVHL 8 3LVL NHOT ‘NIl

7 AOYL ‘NOSNHOT

V1031 ‘AT1BNOYL B LY3E0Y TIVH
V10317 ‘AFI8NOYL 8 LH3F0Y TIVH
V1037 ‘A318INOYL '3 LY3IBOY ‘TIVH
V1031 ‘ATTENOYL "3 1430 “TIVH

W 3113HDIN ‘dVHISHOD
W INIHIIN ‘dVHLSTID

4IHJOLSIYHI ‘IDU03FD
QiAYQ "4FHISH

HN
HN
HIN
HIN
HA

HWN

HA
HN
HIA

HIA

HIN
HIA
HIA
HA
HA
HWN
HN

HIN
HN
HN

HIA

HN

HW
HN
HA
HN

HW
HW

HIN
HA

TOT 200£700000 €10
TOT T00ETO0000 T10C
TOT 700£T00000 TT10T
TOT ZO0OEZ00000 0102
TOT 200€700000 600¢

20T 9027100000 10T

80T 8¥3TT00000 ¥10T
80T 891100000 £TOT
80T 8¥9TT00000 T10¢

60¢ S0STT00000 ¥10C

10€ 6251100000 ¥102
TOE 6251100000 ETOT
TOE 6ZSTT00000 TT0T
TOE 6Z5TTO0000 TTOZ
T0E 6751100000 0102
TOE 6ZSTI00000 6002
00E 6ZST100000 8OOZ

S0 95Y¢T00000 ¥10¢
507 95%¢100000 £T0T
S0C 9S¥ZT00000 T10T

27¢ 8TETTI00000 ¥10¢

S0Z 1675700000 ¥10¢
SO 1625700000 €10T
S0¢ 1625700000 ZT0C
S0 1675700000 1T0T
S0¢ 1625200000 0T0C
SOT 1625700000 600
S0Z 1625700000 800C
S0T T625700000 L00T
S0¢ 1625700000 900¢
S0T 1625200000 S00T
S0 16500000 00T
S0Z 1625200000 €00T

8TZ TT9ZT00000 $T0Z

TOE €TT8T00000 Y10T
TOE €£7Z8700000 €10C
TOE €278Z00000 10T
TOt €278200000 TT0T

50T )TT6ZO0N00 ¥10Z
50T STTEE00000 ¥102

TOE ¢6££T00000 v1I0T
BTZ Z8¥ITO0000 YTOT



)4

GRANT AWARD AGREEMENT BETWEEN
WYOMING OFFICE OF HOMELAND SECURITY
AND
SHERIDAN COUNTY

Subrecipient Grant Award Agreement for U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS)
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), Grant Programs Directorate,
Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) Grant Fiscal Year 2024

Subrecipient: Sheridan County

UEL H2JQJKZUG5ES

Federal Award Amount:  $44,552.00

Local Match Amount: $44,552.00

Period of Performance: October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2025

ALN: 97.042
DHS Grant Code: EMD-2024-EP-05008
Federal Award Date: September 24, 2024
Project ID: 24-EMPG-SHE-GCF24
1. Parties. The parties to this Grant Award Agreement (Agreement) are Wyoming Office of

Homeland Security (Agency), whose address is: 5500 Bishop Blvd., Cheyennc, WY
82002, and Sheridan County (Subrecipient), whose address is: 224 S Main St Ste B-1,
Sheridan, WY 82801.

2. Purpose of Agreement. The purposc of this Agreement is to provide federal funds to
assist state, local, territorial, and tribal governments in preparing for all hazards. The FY
2024 EMPG Program will provide federal funds to assist state, local, territorial, and tribal
emergency management agencies to obtain the resources required to support the
implementation of the National Preparedness System and the National Preparedness Goal
of a secure and resilient Nation. U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS) encourages
EMPG recipients and subrecipients to prioritize grant funding toward investments that
address capability targets and gaps identified through the annual Threat and Hazard
Identification and Risk Assessment (THIRA) and Stakeholder Preparedness Review (SPR)
process. Recipients and subrecipients should use grant funds to increase capability for high-
priority core capabilities with low capability levcls, validate capability levels, and maintain
or sustain current capabilities.

Project expenditures must align with the approved scope of work described in Attachment
A, Project Description, which is attached to and incorporated into this Agreement by this
reference. This award is not for the purposes of Research & Development (R&D) as
defined in 2 CFR 200.87.

3. Funding_ Authority. The funds the Agency will distribute to Subrecipient under this
Agreement are drawn from grant funds distributed to the State of Wyoming by the Fiscal
Year 2024 U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management
Agency Grant Program Dircctorate, and Emergency Management Performance Grant

Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
and Sheridan County
Page 1 of 14



Program. The program is authorized by Section 662 of the Post-Katrina Emergency
Management Reform Act of 2006 (PKEMRA), as amended, (Pub. L. No. 109-295) (6
U.S.C. § 762); the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, as
amended (Pub. L. No. 93-288) (42 U.S.C. § 5121, et seq.); the Earthquakc Hazards
Reduction Act of 1977, as amended (Pub. L. No. 95-124) (42 U.S.C. § 7701, et seq.); and
the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968, as amended (Pub. L. No. 90-448) (42 U.S.C. §
4001, et seq.).

Term of Agreement. This Agreement is effective when all parties have executed it
(Effective Date). The Period of Performance of the Agreement is from October 1, 2023
through September 30, 2025. All services shall be completed during the Period of
Performance.

This Agreement may be extended by agreement of both parties in writing and subject to
the required approvals. There is no right or expectation of extension and any extension
will be determined at the discretion of the Agency.

Payment.

A. The Agency agrees to pay the Subrecipient for the services described in Attachment
A, Project Description, which is attached to and incorporated into this Agreement
by this reference. Total payment under this Agreement shall not cxceed forty-four
thousand, five hundred fifty-two dollars and no cents ($44,552.00). Payment shall
be made when services are completed, and within forty-five (45) days after
submission of invoice pursuant to Wyo. Stat. § 16-6-602. Subrecipient shall submit
invoices in sufficient detail to cnsure that payments may be made in conformance
with this Agreement. Subrecipients shall submit all invoices within forty-five (45)
days aftcr the term of this Agreement.

B. No payment shall be made for work performed outside the Period of Performance
of this Agreement. Should the Subrecipient fail to perform in a manner consistent
with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, payment under this
Agreement may be withheld until such time as the Subrecipient performs its duties
and responsibilities to the satisfaction of Agency.

C. Travel. The payment of travel expenses shall be allowed as set forth below.
Subrecipient is expected to procure the most cost efficient travel arrangements.

(D) Air Travel. The Agency agrees to reimburse the Subrecipient’s approved
air travel expenses related to the performance of this Agreement. Air travel
shall be reimbursed based on actual costs, supported by a copy of the
original receipt with the invoice. Subrecipient must select the lowest airfare
(fares available in the market at the time of booking, preferably well in
advance of trip to attain the lowest possible airfare). Subrecipients shall
book economy class fares for all domestic travel. First class bookings are
not reimbursable.

Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
and Sheridan County
Page 2 of 14



(ii) Personal Vehicle. The Agency agrees to reimburse the Subrecipient’s
approved use of personal vehicle. Mileage shall be reimbursed at the current
State rate per mile based on standard map mileage. Fuel will not be
reimbursed.

(iii)  Car Rental. The Agency agrees to reimburse the Subrecipient’s approved
car rental expenses related to the performance of this Agreement. Car rental
expenses shall be reimbursed at actual costs, supported by a copy of the
original receipt with the invoice. Subrecipient must select the lowest rental
rates for an appropriate vehicle.

Lodging. The Agency agrees to reimburse Subrecipicnt’s approved lodging
expenses related to the performance of this Agreement. Lodging expenses shall be
reimbursed at actual costs, supported by a copy of the original receipt with the
invoice. Thc Subrecipient shall only invoice the Agency for the basic room rate,
taxcs, and lodging fees. The Agency is not responsible for incidental or
miscellaneous expenses charged to the room. Incidental and miscellaneous
expenses for which the Agency shall not be responsible include charges such as
alcohol, internet, telephone charges, mini-bar, and movies.

Meals. The Agency agrees to reimburse Subrecipient’s approved meal expenses
related to the performance of this Agreement. Unless otherwise agreed upon, the
Subrecipient shall be reimbursed for meals in accordance with the current U.S.
General Services Administration rate per day. This reimbursement amount includes
all meal, beverage, and refreshment expenses incurred during the day. Requests for
reimbursement shall state the amount allowable for meals and list the actual number
of travel days on the invoice.

Responsibilities of Subrecipient. The Subrecipient agrees to:

A.

B.

Complete the project described in Attachment A, Project Description.

Comply with terms and conditions as described in Attachment B, Agreement
Articles, which is attached to and incorporated into this Agreement by this
reference.

Comply with the 2024 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)
Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) and the Preparedness Grants Manual to
implement this Agreement, and agrees that all use of funds under this Agreement
will be in accordance with the EMPG NOFO and Preparedness Grants Manual.

THIRA/SPR. Complete/actively participate in a whole community Threat and
Hazard Risk Assessment (THIRA) or Stakeholder Preparedness Report (SPR)
update, or both, annually by the deadline, established by the Agency, of each year
during the entire term of this Agreement.

NIMS. Maintain adoption and implementation of the National Incident

Management System (NIMS). Subrecipient must use standardized resource

management concepts for resource typing, credentialing, and an inventory to
Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security

and Sheridan County
Page 3 of 14



facilitate the effective identification, dispatch, deployment, tracking, and recovery
of resources. Subrecipient shall update or modify its operational plans, and training
and exercise activities, as necessary, to achieve conformance with the National
Response Framework and NIMS implementation guidelines.

Point of Contact. Keep the Agency up-to-date as to the name of the person acting
as the primary contact person for this Agreement using the Point of Contact
Information Form provided by the Agency, which is incorporated into this
Agreement by this reference, including any change of contact person, address,
email, or telephone information. Subrecipient’s primary contact shall cooperate
with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or information or data collect
requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any information required for
the assessment or evaluation of any activities within this Agreement.

Procurement. Subrecipient must use its own documented procurement procedurcs
that reflect applicable state, local, territorial, and tribal laws and regulations,
provided that the procurements conform to applicable federal law and the standards
identified in 2 C.F.R. Part 200. All procurement activity must be conducted in
accordance with Federal Procurement Standards 2 C.F.R. Part 200.317-200.327.

Equipment.

@) Subrecipient may not use the funding provided under this Agreement to
purchase equipment not specifically authorized in the Authorized
Equipment List (AEL), which is incorporated into this Agreement by this
reference, unless the proposed acquisition is reviewed by the Agency and
approved by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security in writing prior to
purchase.

(ii) Subrecipient shall ensure all equipment purchased with funds provided
under this Agreement is maintained and available for response to terrorist
incidents. Subrecipient agrees that, when practicable, any equipment or
supplies purchased with grant funding shall be prominently marked as
follows: “Purchased with funds provided by the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security and administered by the Wyoming Office of Homeland
Security.”

(iii)  Subrecipient shall maintain property records for all equipment purchased
with EMPG funds in accordance with 2 CFR 200.313(1) to include: a
description of the property, a serial number or other identification number,
the source of funding for the property (including the FAIN), who holds the
title, the acquisition date, and cost of the property, percentage of federal
participation in the projcct costs for the federal award under which the
property was acquired, the location, use and condition of the property, and
any ultimate disposition data including the date of disposal and salc price of
the property. Subrecipient shall provide Agency with updated property
records during the close-out of this Agreement.

Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
and Sheridan County
Page 4 of 14



Training.

(i) Training conducted using EMPG funds should address a performance gap
identified through an Integrated Preparedness Plan, THIRA/SPR process,
or other assessment and contribute to building a capability that will be
evaluated through a formal exercise. Exercises conducted with this
Agreement should be managed and conducted consistent with Homeland
Security Exercise and Evaluation Program (HSEEP).

(ii) Subrecipient shall ensure that all EMPG funded personnel (full- and part-
time) shall complete the following training requirements and provide
Agency with proof of completion:

(a) IS-100 (any version), 1S-200 (any version), [S-700 (any version),
and IS-800 (any version); AND

(b) Professional Development Series (PDS) or the Emergency
Management Professionals Program (EMPP) Basic Academy.
These requirements can be found at: https:/training.fema.gov as
well as the EMPG Appendix of the FEMA Preparedness Grants
Manual.

(iiiy Per DHS/FEMA GPD Information Bulletin No. 432, July 19, 2018,
Subrecipient is no longer required to request approval from FEMA for
personnel to attend non-FEMA (raining as long as the training is
coordinated with and approved by the State Administrative Agency (SAA)
State Training Point of Contact, and falls within the FEMA mission scope
and the jurisdiction’s Emergency Operations Plan. All other requirements
listed in this section still apply.

Exercises. Subrecipient shall participate in and/or conduct a minimum of three (3)
exercises, including at least one (1) full-scale exercise, during a one (1) year period
beginning October 1, 2024 and ending September 30, 2025. Subrecipient agrees to
submit an After Action Report (AAR) to the Agency following each cxcrcise.
Exercises conducted with this Agreement should be managed and conducted
consistent with HSEEP.

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Subrecipient agrees to complete an
Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) aligning with the requirements and guidelincs
of the Comprehensive Preparedness Guide (CPG) 101 Version 2.0. EOP should be
updated no less than once every two (2) years. Subrecipient agrees to provide the
Agency with a current or updated copy of the EOP no later than September 1, 2025.

Reporting. Subrecipient agrees to submit quarterly progress reports on forms

provided by the Agency for the entirety of the performance period regardless of

expenditure(s). Quarterly reports will be due the 20™ of the month following the

end of each quarter (April 20, July 20, October 20 and January 20). Failure to

submit quarterly reports may jeopardizc future funding. Agency may waive
Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security

and Sheridan County
Page 5 of 14



M.

reporting requirements at the Agency’s discretion.
Closeout.

(i) Subrecipient must maintain and retain the following: backup documentation
such as bids and quotes, cost/price analyses on filc for review, other
documents required by federal regulations applicable at the time funds are
granted. Subrecipient shall keep detailed records of all transactions
involving this Agreement including but not limited to: specifications,
solicitations, competitive quotes or proposals, basis for selection decisions,
purchase orders, contracts, invoices, and cancelled checks. Failure to fully
document all purchases may result in Agency questioning and subsequently
disallowing Subrecipient’s expenditures. Subrecipient must maintain its
records for three (3) years after the close of the underlying federal award.

7. Responsibilitics of Agency. The Agency agrees to:

A.

B.

Pay Subrecipient in accordance with Section 5 above.

Be available to provide necessary and feasible technical advice as requested by
Subrecipient.

Notify Subrecipient of information and updates received from FEMA or other
federal agencies, which may affect or otherwise restrict the availability of funds
awarded to Subrecipient herein.

Special Provisions.

A.

Assumption of Risk. The Subrecipient shall assume the risk of any loss of state
or federal funding, either administrative or program dollars, due to the
Subrecipient’s failure to comply with state or federal requirements. The Agency
shall notify the Subrecipient of any state or federal determination of
noncompliance.

Environmental Policy Acts. Subrecipient agrees all activities under this
Agreement will comply with the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the National
Environmental Policy Act, and other related provisions of federal environmental
protection laws, rules or regulations.

Human Trafficking. As required by 22 U.S.C. § 7104(g) and 2 CFR Part 175,
this Agreement may be terminated without penalty if a privatc entity that receives
funds under this Agreement:

(i) Engages in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time
that the award is in effect;

(ii) Procures a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is
in effect; or

Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
and Sheridan County
Page 6 of 14



(iii)  Uses forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the
award.

Kickbacks. Subrecipient certifies and warrants that no gratuities, kickbacks, or
contingency fees werc paid in connection with this Agreement, nor were any fces,
commissions, gifts, or other considerations made contingent upon the award of this
Agreement. If Subrecipient breaches or violates this warranty, Agency may, at its
discretion, terminate this Agreement without liability to Agency, or deduct from
the agreed upon price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of any
commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingency fee.

Limitations on Lobbying Activities. By signing this Agreement, Subrecipient
certifies and agrees that, in accordance with P.L. 101-121, payments made from a
federal grant shall not be utilized by Subrecipient or its sub-subrecipients in
connection with lobbying mcmber(s) of Congress, or any federal agency in
connection with the award of a federal grant, Agreement, cooperative agreement,

ot loan.

Monitoring Activities. Agency shall have the right to monitor all activities related
to this Agreement that are performed by Subrecipient or its Subrecipients. This
shall include, but not be limited to, the right to make site inspections at any time
and with reasonable notice; to bring experts and consultants on site to examinc or
evaluate completed work or work in progress; to examine the books, ledgers,
documents, papers, and records pertinent to this Agreement; and to observe
personnel in every phase of performance of Agreement related work.

Nondiscrimination. The Subrecipient shall comply with the Civil Rights Act of
1964, the Wyoming Fair Employment Practices Act (Wyo. Stat. § 27-9-105, et
seq.), the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 U.S.C. § 12101, et seq., and
the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and any properly promulgated rules and
regulations thereto and shall not discriminate against any individual on the grounds
of age, sex, color, race, religion, national origin, or disability in connection with the
performance under this Agreement.

No Finder’s Fees. No finder’s fee, employment agency fee, or other such fee
related to the procurement of this Agreement, shall be paid by either party.

Publicity. Any publicity given to the projects, programs, or services provided
herein, including, but not limited to, notices, information, pamphlets, press releases,
research, reports, signs, and similar public notices in whatever form, prepared by
or for the Subrecipient and related to the services and work to be performed under
this Agreement, shall identify the Agency as the sponsoring agency and shall not
be released without prior written approval of Agency.

Suspension and Debarment. By signing this Agreement, Subrecipient certifies
that neither it nor its principals/agents are presently debarred, suspended, proposed
for debarment, declared incligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this

Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
and Sheridan County
Page 7 of 14



transaction or from receiving federal financial or nonfinancial assistance, nor are
any of the participants involved in the execution of this Agrecment suspended,
debarred, or voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency in
accotdance with Executive Order 12549 (Debarment and Suspension), or 2 CFR
Part 180, or are on the debarred, or otherwise ineligible, vendors lists maintained
by the federal government. Further, Subrecipient agrees to notify Agency by
certified mail should it or any of its principals/agents become ineligible for
payment, debarred, suspended, or voluntarily excluded from receiving federal
funds during the term of this Agreement.

Administration of Federal Funds. Subrecipient agrees its use of the funds
awarded herein is subject to the Uniform Administrative Requirements of 2 CFR
Part 200, et seq.; any additional requirements set forth by the federal funding
agency; all applicable regulations published in the Code of Federal Regulations;
and other program guidance as provided to it by Agency.

Copyright License and Patent Rights. Subrecipient acknowledges that federal
grantor, the State of Wyoming, and Agency reserve a royalty-free, nonexclusive,
unlimited, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to
authorize others to use, for federal and state government purposes: (1) the copyright
in any work developed under this Agreement; and (2) any rights of copyright to
which Subrecipient purchases ownership using funds awarded under this
Agreement. Subrecipient must consult with Agency regarding any patent rights
that arise from, or are purchased with, funds awarded under this Agreement.

Federal Audit Requirements. Subrecipient agrees that if it expends an aggregate
amount in excess of the amount set forth in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F in federal
awards during its fiscal year, it must undergo an organization-wide financial and
compliance single audit. Subrecipient agrees to comply with the audit requircments
of the U.S. General Accounting Office Government Auditing Standards and Audit
Requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F. If findings are made which cover any
part of this Agreement, Subrecipient shall provide one (1) copy of the audit report
to Agency and require the release of the audit report by its auditor be held until
adjusting entries are disclosed and made to Agency’s records.

Non-Supplanting Certification. Subrecipient hereby affirms that federal grant
funds shall be used to supplement cxisting funds, and shall not replace (supplant)
funds that have been appropriatced for the same purpose. Subrecipient should be
able to document that any reduction in non-federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of federal funds under this Agreement.

Program Income. Subrecipient shall not deposit grant funds in an interest bearing
account without prior approval of Agency. Any income attributable to the grant
funds distributed under this Agreement must be used to increase the scope of the
program or returned to Agency.

Applicability of Appendix II to 2 CFR Part 200. This Agreement has been

funded, in whole or in part, with an Award of Federal funds and is bound by the

federal contract provisions required by the Uniform Guidance Appendix II of 2
Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security

and Sheridan County
Page 8 of 14



CFR Part 200 (the Federal Contract Provisions), incorporated herein by this
reference. In the event of a conflict between the Special Provisions section of this
Agreement, or any attachments or exhibits incorporated herein, and the Federal
Contract Provisions, the Federal Contract Provisions shall control. Failure to
comply with the Federal Contract Provisions shall constitute an event of default
under this Agreement. If such a default remains uncured five (5) calendar days
following the termination of a thirty (30) day prior written notice period, the
Agency may terminate this Agreement. This remedy will be in addition to any other
remedy available to the Statc of Wyoming and the Agency under this Agreement,
at law, or in equity.

General Provisions.

A.

Amendments. Any changes, modifications, revisions, or amendments to this
Agreement which are mutually agreed upon by the parties to this Agreement shall
be incorporated by written instrument, executed by all parties to this Agreement.

Applicable Law, Rules of Construction, and Venue. The construction,
interpretation, and enforcement of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of
the State of Wyoming, without regard to conflicts of law principles. The terms
“hereof,” “hereunder,” “herein,” and words of similar import, are intended to refer
to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision or part. The Courts
of the State of Wyoming shall have jurisdiction over this Agreement and the parties.
The venue shall be the First Judicial District, Laramie County, Wyoming.

Assignment Prohibited and Agreement Shall Not be Used as Collateral.
Neither party shall assign or otherwise transfer any of the rights or delegate any of
the duties set out in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other
party. The Subrecipient shall not use this Agreement, or any portion thereof, for
collateral for any financial obligation without the prior written permission of the
Agency.

Audit and Access to Records. The Agency and its representatives shall have
access to any books, documents, papers, electronic data, and records of the
Subrecipient which are pertinent to this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall
immediately, upon receiving written instruction from the Agency, provide to any
independent auditor or accountant all books, documents, papers, electronic data,
and records of the Subrecipient which are pertinent to this Agreement. The
Subrecipient shall cooperate fully with any such independent auditor or accountant
during the entire course of any audit authorized by the Agency.

Availability of Funds. Each payment obligation of the Agency is conditioned
upon the availability of government funds which are appropriated or allocated for
the payment of this obligation and which may be limited for any reason including,
but not limited to, congressional, legislative, gubernatorial, or administrative
action. If funds arc not allocated and available for continued performance of the
Agreement, the Agreement may be terminated by the Agency at the end of the
period for which the funds are available. The Agency shall notify the Subrecipient
at the earliest possible time of the services which will or may be affected by a
Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security

and Sheridan County
Page 9 of 14



shortage of funds. No penalty shall accrue to the Agency in the cvent this provision
is exercised, and the Agency shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments
due or for any damages as a result of termination under this section.

Award of Related Agreements. Thc Agency may award supplemental or
successor Agreements for work rclated to this Agreement or may award
Agreements to other Subrecipients for work related to this Agreement. The
Subrccipicnt shall cooperate fully with other Subrecipients and the Agency in all
such cases.

Compliance with Laws. The Subrecipient shall keep informed of and comply with
all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, and all federal grant
requirements and executive orders in the performance of this Agreement.

Confidentiality of Information. Except when disclosure is required by the
Wyoming Public Records Act or court order, all documents, data compilations,
reports, computer programs, photographs, data, and other work provided to or
produced by the Subrecipient in the performance of this Agreement shall be kept
confidential by the Subrecipient unless written permission is granted by the Agency
for its release. If and when Subrecipient receives a request for information subject
to this Agreement, Subrecipient shall notify Agency within ten (10) days of such
request and shall not release such information to a third party unless directed to do
so by Agency.

Entirety of Agreement. This Agreement, consisting of fourteen (14) pages;
Attachment A, Project Description, consisting of one (1) page; and Attachment B,
Agreement Articles, consisting of ten (10) pages; and the Federal Contract
Provisions, represent the entire and integrated Agreement between the parties and
supersede all prior negotiations, rcpresentations, and agreements, whether written
or oral. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the language of this
Agrcement and the language of any attachment or document incorporated by
reference, the language of this Agreement shall control.

Ethies. Subrecipient shall keep informed of and comply with the Wyoming Ethics
and Disclosure Act (Wyo. Stat. § 9-13-101, et seq.) and any and all ethical standards
governing Subrecipient’s profession.

Extensions. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or deemed to create an
expectation that this Agreement will be extended beyond the term described herein.
Any extension of this Agreement shall be initiatcd by the Agency and shall be
accomplished through a written amendment between the parties entered into before
the expiration of the original Agreement or any valid amendment thereto, and shall
be cffective only after it is reduced to writing and executed by all parties to the
Agreement.

Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for failure to perform under this

Agreement if such failure to perform arises out of causes beyond the control and

without the fault or negligence of the nonperforming party. Such causes may

include, but are not limited to, acts of God or the public enemy, fires, floods,
Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security

and Sheridan County
Page 10 of 14



epidemics, quarantine restrictions, freight embargoes, and unusually severe
weather. This provision shall become effective only if the party failing to perform
immediately notifies the other party of the extent and nature of the problem, limits
delay in performance to that required by the event, and takes all reasonable steps to

minimize delays.

Indemnification. Each party to this Agreement shall assume the risk of any
liability arising from its own conduct. Neither party agrees to insure, defend, or
indemnify the other.

Independent Contractor. The Subrecipient shall function as an independent
contractor for the purposes of this Agreement and shall not be considered an
employee of the State of Wyoming for any purpose. Consistent with the express
terms of this Agreement, the Subrecipient shall be free from control or direction
over the details of the performance of services under this Agreement. The
Subrecipient shall assume sole responsibility for any debts or liabilities that may be
incurred by the Subrecipient in fulfilling the terms of this Agreement and shall be
solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state, and local taxes which may
accrue because of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted
as authorizing the Subrecipient or its agents or employees to act as an agent or
representative for or on behalf of the State of Wyoming or the Agency or to incur
any obligation of any kind on behalf of the State of Wyoming or the Agency. The
Subrecipient agrees that no health or hospitalization bencfits, workers’
compensation, unemployment insurancc, or similar benefits available to State of
Wyoming employees will inure to the benefit of the Subrecipient or the
Subrecipient’s agents or employces as a result of this Agreement.

Notices. All notices arising out of, or from, the provisions of this Agreement shall
be in writing either by regular mail or dclivery in person at the addresses provided
under this Agrcement.

Contact for the Agency:
Ashley Paulsrud
Grants/Finance Scction Chief
5500 Bishop Boulevard
Cheyenne, Wyoming 82009
307-777-4907
Ashley.paulsrud{@wyo.gov

With a copy to:

Lynn Budd (Awarding Official)

Director, Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
5500 Bishop Boulevard

Cheyenne, Wyoming 82009

307-777-8511

Lynn.budd@wyo.gov

Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
and Sheridan County
Page 11 of 14



Ownership and Return of Documents and Information. Agency is the official
custodian and owns all documents, data compilations, reports, computcr programs,
photographs, data, and other work provided to or produced by the Subrccipient in
the performance of this Agreement. Upon termination of services, for any reason,
Subrecipient agrees to return all such original and derivative information and
documents to the Agency in a useable format. In the case of electronic
transmission, such transmission shall be secured. The return of information by any
other means shall be by a parcel scrvice that utilizes tracking numbers.

Patent or Copyright Protection. The Subrecipient recognizes that certain
proprictary matters or techniques may be subject to patent, trademark, copyright,
licensc, or other similar restrictions, and warrants that no work performed by the
Subrecipient or its sub-subrecipients will violate any such restriction. The
Subrecipient shall defend and indemnify the Agency for any infringement or
alleged infringement of such patent, trademark, copyright, license, or other
restrictions.

Prior Approval. This Agreement shall not be binding upon either party and the
Wyoming State Auditor shall not draw warrants for payment, until this Agrecment
has been fully executed, approved as to form by the Office of the Attomey General,
filed with and approved by A&I Procurement, and approved by the Govemnor of the
State of Wyoming, or his designee, if required by Wyo. Stat. § 9-2-3204(b)(iv).

Severability. Should any portion of this Agreement be judicially determined to be
illegal or unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement shall continue in full force
and effect, and the parties may renegotiate the terms affected by the severance.

Sovereign Immunity and Limitations. Pursuant to Wyo. Stat. § 1-39-104(a), the
State of Wyoming and Agency expressly reserve sovereign immunity by entering
into this Agreement and the Subrecipient expressly reserves govermmental
immunity. Each of them specifically retains all immunities and defenses available
to them as sovereigns or governmental entities pursuant to Wyo. Stat. § 1-39-101,
et seq., and all other applicable law. The parties acknowledge that the State of
Wyoming has sovereign immunity and only the Wyoming Legislature has the
power to waive sovereign immunity. Designations of venue, choice of law,
enforcement actions, and similar provisions shall not be construed as a waiver of
sovereign immunity. The parties agree that any ambiguity in this Agreement shall
not be strictly construed, either against or for either party, except that any ambiguity
as to immunity shall be construed in favor of immunity.

Taxes. The Subrecipient shall pay all taxes and other such amounts required by
tederal, state, and local law, including, but not limited to, federal and social security
taxes, workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, and sales taxcs.

Termination of Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated, without cause,
by the Agency upon thirty (30) days written notice. This Agreement may be
terminated by the Agency immediately for cause if the Subrecipient fails to perform
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
and Sheridan County
Page 12 of 14



W.  Third-Party Beneficiary Rights. The parties do not intend to create in any other
individual or entity the status of third-party beneficiary, and this Agreement shall
not be construed so as to create such status. The rights, duties, and obligations
contained in this Agreement shall operate only betwcen the parties to this
Agreement and shall inure solely to the benefit of the partics to this Agreement.
The provisions of this Agreement are intended only to assist the parties in
determining and performing their obligations under this Agreement.

X. Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in all provisions of this Agreement.

Y. Titles Not Controlling. Titles of sections and subsections are for reference only
and shall not be used to construc the language in this Agreement.

Z. Waiver. The waiver of any breach of any term or condition in this Agreement shall
not be deemed a waiver of any prior or subsequent breach. Failure to object to a
breach shall not constitute a waiver.

AA. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. Each counterpart,
when executed and delivered, shall be deemed an original and all counterparts
together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. Delivery by the Subrecipient
of an originally signed counterpart of this Agreement by facsimile or PDF shall be
followed up immediately by delivery of the originally signed counterpart to the
Agency.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE WAS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
and Sheridan County
Page 13 of 14



10. Signatures. The parties to this Agreement, either personally or through their duly
authorized representatives, have executed this Agreement on the dates set out below, and
certify that they have read, understood, and agreed to the terms and conditions of this

Agreement.

The Effective Date of this Agreement is the date of the signature last affixed to this page.

AGENCY:
Wyoming Office of Homeland Security

Lynn Budd, Director Date
SUBRECIPIENT:

Sheridan County

_Subrecipient Bésignee Signature Date

Printed Name and Title of Designee

SUBRECIPIENT ATTORNEY: APPROVAL AS TO FORM

Attorney Date

ATTORNEY GENERAL’S OFFICE: APPROVAL AS TO FORM

o te Z . ﬁéuouff; - 21Y$EE [ /-8 2/

(odi A. Darrough, Senior Absistant Attorney General Date

Grant Award Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
and Sheridan County
Page 14 of 14



ATTACHMENT A: Project Description

Subrecipient: Sheridan County
Project ID: 24-EMPG-SHE-GCF24
Award Amount: $44,552.00

The following submitted project(s) have been approved for the Federal Fiscal Year 2024 U.S.
Department of Homeland Security. Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG). Only
expenditures within the scope of the below projects will be reimbursed by the Wyoming Office
of Homeland Security. Any changes to the scope of work must be approved through the
Wyoming Office of Homeland Security prior to implementation.

REMINDER: Fuel, oil and routine maintenance charges are NOT covered under this grant.

Description Amount

Eligible Expenses as follows: $44,552.00

e Allowable Emergency Management payroll expenses and
travel/training expenses including but not limited to semi-
annual WOHS meetings.

For questions regarding individual project allowability, the scope of an approved project, or the
2024 EMPG, please contact:

Darryl Erickson, Grant Program Manager
Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
307-777-4917

Ashley Paulsrud

Grants/Finance Section Chief
Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
307-777-4907

Attachment A to the Grant Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
and Sheridan County
Page 1



ATTACHMENT B: Agreement Articles

Emergency Management Performance Grant

GRANTEE: Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
PROGRAM: Emergency Management Performance Grant
AGREEMENT NUMBER: EMD-2024-EP-05008

Article |

Article 2
Article 3
Article 4
Article 5
Article 6
Article 7
Article 8
Article 9
Article 10
Article 11
Article 12
Article 13
Article 14
Article 15

Article 16
Article 17
Article 18
Article 19
Article 20
Article 21
Article 22
Article 23
Article 24
Article 25
Article 26
Article 27
Article 28
Article 29
Article 30
Article 31
Article 32
Article 33
Article 34

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Assurances, Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, Representations, and
Certifications
General Acknowledgements and Assurances
Acknowledgement of Federal Funding from DHS
Activities Conducted Abroad
Age Discrimination Act of 1975
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information
Civil Rights Act of 1964 — Title V
Civil Rights Act of 1968
Copyright
Debarment and Suspension
Drug-Free Workplace Regulations
Duplicative Costs
Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in Education Act) — Title IX
E.O. 14074 — Advancing Effective, Accountable Policing and Criminal Justice
Practices to Enhance Public Trust and Public Safety
Energy Policy and Conservation Act
False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies
Federal Debt Status
Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging while Driving
Fly America Act of 1974
Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990
John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act of Fiscal Year 2019
Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title V1)
Lobbying Prohibitions
National Environmental Policy Act
Nondiscrimination in Matters Pertaining to Faith-Based Organizations
Non-Supplanting Requirement
Notice of Funding Opportunity Requirements
Patents and Intellectual Property Rights
Procurement of Recovered Materials
Rehabilitation Act of 1973
Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient [ntegrity and Performance
Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation
Required Use of American Iron, Steel, Manufactured Products, and Construction

Attachment B to the Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security and

Sheridan County
Page 1 of 10



Materials
Article 35 SAFECOM
Article 36 Terrorist Financing
Article 37 Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA)
Article 38  Universal Identifier and System of Award Management
Article 39 USA PATRIOT Act of 2001
Article 40 Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags
Article 41 Whistleblower Protection Act
Article 42 Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) Review
Article 43 Applicability of DHS Standard Terms and Conditions to Tribes
Article 44 Acceptance of Post Award Changes
Article 45 Disposition of Equipment Acquired Under the Federal Award
Article 46 Prior Approval for Modification of Approved Budget
Article 47 Indirect Cost Rate

Article 1  Assurances, Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, Representations, and
Certifications

Recipients must complete either the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Standard Form 424B
Assurances — Non- Construction Programs, or OMB Standard Form 424D Assurances — Construction
Programs, as applicable. Certain assurances in these documents may not be applicable to your program and
the DHS financial assistance office (DHS FAQ) may require applicants to certify additional assurances.
Applicants are required to fill out the assurances as instructed by the federal awarding agency.

Article2  General Acknowledgements and Assurances

Recipients are required to follow the applicable provisions of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards in effect as of the federal award date and located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200 and
adopted by DHS at 2 C.F.R. § 3002.10. All recipients and subrecipients must acknowledge and agree to provide DHS
access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities. and staff pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.337. |. Recipients must
cooperate with any DHS compliance reviews or compliance investigations. I1. Recipients must give DHS access to
examine and copy records, accounts, and other documents and sources of information related to the federal financial
assistance award and permit access to facilities and personnel. II1. Recipients must submit timely, complete, and accurate
reports to the appropriate DHS officials and maintain appropriate backup documentation to support the reports. IV.
Recipients must comply with all other special reporting, data collection, and evaluation requirements required by law,
federal regulation, Notice of Funding Opportunity, federal award specific terms and conditions, and/or federal awarding
agency program guidance. V. Recipients must complete the DHS Civil Rights Evaluation Tool within thirty (30) days of
receiving the Notice of Award for the first award under which this term applies. Recipients of multiple federal awards from
DHS should only submit one completed tool for their organization. not per federal award. After the initial submission.
recipients are required to complete the tool once every two (2) years ifthey have an active federal award. notevery time a
federal award is made. Recipients must submit the completed tool, including supporting materials, to
CivilRightsEvaluation@hq.dhs.gov. This tool clarifies the civil rights obligations and related reporting requirements
contained in these DHS Standard Terms and Conditions. Subrecipients are not required to complete and submit this tool to
DHS. The evaluation tool can be found at https://www.dhs.gov/publication/dhs- civil- rights-evaluation-tool. DHS Civil
Rights Evaluation Tool | Homeland Security. The DHS Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties will consider. in its
discretion, granting an extension to the 30-day deadline if the recipient identifies steps and a timeline for completing the tool.
Recipients must request extensions by emailing the request to C ivilRightsEvaluation@hq.dhs.gov prior to expiration of the
30-day deadline.

Attachment B to the Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security and
Sheridan County
Page 2 of 10



Article3 Acknowledgement of Federal Funding from DHS

Recipients must acknowledge their use of federal award funding when issuing statements, press releases, requests for
proposal, bid invitations, and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with federal award
funds.

Articled  Activities Conducted Abroad

Recipients must coordinate with appropriate government authorities when performing project activities outside the United
States obtain all appropriate licenses, permits, or approvals.

Article5S  Age Discrimination Act of 1975

Recipients must comply with the requirements of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Pub. L. No. 94-135 (codified as
amended at 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in any program or activity receiving
federal financial assistance.

Article 6 Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

Recipients must comply with the requirements of Titles [, 11, and [T of the Americans with Disabilities Act, Pub. L. No. 101-
336 (1990) (codified as amended at 42 U.S.C.§§ 12101- 12213), which prohibits tecipients from discriminating on the basis of
disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation,
and certain testing entities.

Article 7 Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information

Recipients who collect personally identifiable information (PII) as part of carrying out the scope of work under a federal
award are required to have a publicly available privacy policy that describes standards on the usage and maintenance of the
Pl they collect. DHS defines PII as any information that permits the identity of an individual to be directly or indirectly
inferred, including any information that is linked or linkable to that individual. Recipients may also find the DHS Privacy
Impact Assessments: Privacy Guidance and Privacy Template as useful resources respectively.

Article 8  Civil Rights Act of 1964 — Title VI

Recipients must comply with the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Pub. L. No. 88-352 (codified as
amended at 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), which provides that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race,
color, or national origin. be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under
any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. DHS implementing regulations for the Act are found at 6 C.F.R.
Part 21. Recipients of an award from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) must also comply with FEMA’s
implementing regulations at 44 C.F.R. Part 7.

Article9  Civil Rights Act of 1968

Recipients must comply with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, Pub. L. No. 90-284 (codified as amended
at 42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.) which prohibits recipients from discriminating in the sale, rental, financing, and
advertising of dwellings, or in the provision of services in connection. therewith, on the basis of race, color,
national origin, religion, disability, familial status, and sex, as implemented by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development at 24C.F.R. Part 100. The prohibition on disability discrimination includes
the requirement that new multifamily housing with four or more dwelling units— i.e., the public and common use
areas and individual apartment units (all units in buildings with elevators and ground-floor units in buildings

Attachment B to the Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security and
Sheridan County
Page 3 of 10



without elevators)—be designed and constructed with certain accessible features. (See 24 C.F.R. Part 100,
Subpart D.)

Article 10 Copyright

Recipients must affix the applicable copyright notices of 17 U.5.C. §§ 401 or 402 to any work first produced
under federal awards and also include an acknowledgement that the work was produced under a federal award
(including the federal award number and federal awarding agency). As detailed in 2 C.F.R. § 200.315.a
federal awarding agency reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive. and irrevocable right to reproduce. publish. or
otherwise use the work for federal purposes and to authorize others to do so.

Article 11 Debarment and Suspension

Recipients must comply with the non-procurement debarment and suspension regulations implementing
Executive Orders (E.0.) 12549 and 12689 set forth at 2C.F.R. Part 180 as implemented by DHS at 2 C.F.R. Part
3000. These regulations prohibit recipients from entering into covered transactions (such as subawards and
contracts) with certain parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for
participation in federal assistance programs or activities.

Article 12 Drug-Free Workplace Regulations

Recipients must comply with drug-free workplace requirements in Subpart B (or Subpart C, if the recipient is
an individual) of 2 C.F.R. Part 3001, which adopts the Government- wide implementation (2 C.F.R. Part 182)
of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. §§ 8101-8106).

Article 13 Duplicative Costs

Recipients are prohibited from charging any cost to this federal award that will be included as a cost or used
to meet cost sharing or matching requirements of any other federal award in either the current or a prior
budget period. (See 2 C.F.R. § 200.403(f)). However, recipients may shift costs that are allowable under two
or more federal awards where otherwise permitted by federal statutes, regulations. or the federal financial
assistance award terms and conditions.

Article 14 Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in Education Act) - Title IX

Recipients must comply with the requirements of Title X of the Education Amendments of 1972, Pub. L. No.
92-318 (codified as amended at 20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.), which provide that no person in the United States will,
on the basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to
discrimination under any educational program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. DHS
implementing regulations are codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 17.Recipients of an award from the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) must also comply with FEMA’s implementing regulations at 44 C.F.R. Part 19.

Article 15 E.O. 14074 — Advancing Effective, Accountable Policing and Criminal Justice
Practices to Enhance Public Trust and Public Safety

Recipient State, Tribal, local, or territorial law enforcement agencies must com ply with the requirements of
section 12(c) of E.O. 14074, Recipient State, Tribal, local, or territorial law enforcement agencies are also
encouraged to adopt and enforce policies consistent with E.O. 14074 to support safe and effective policing.

Article 16 Energy Policy and Conservation Act

Attachment B to the Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security and
Sheridan County
Page 4 of 10



Recipients must comply with the requirements of the Energy Policy and Conservation Act, Pub. L. No, 94-
163 (1975) (codified as amended at 42 U.S.C. § 6201 et seq.), which contain policies relating to energy efficiency
that are defined in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with this Act.

Article 17 False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies

Recipients must comply with the requirements of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C.§§ 3729- 3733, which prohibit
the submission of false or fraudulent claims for payment to the Federal Government. (See 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801-
3812, which details the administrative remedies for false claims and statements made.)

Article 18  Federal Debt Status

All recipients are required to be non-delinquent in their repayment of any federal debt. Examples of relevant debt
include delinquent payroll and other taxes. audit disallowances, and benefit overpayments. (See OMB Circular
A-129)

Article 19 Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging while Driving

Recipients are encouraged to adopt and enforce policies that ban text messaging while driving recipient-owned,
recipient-rented, or privately owned vehicles when on official govemment business or when performing any
work for or on behalf of the Federal Government. Recipients are also encouraged to conduct the initiatives of
the type described in Section 3(a) of E.O. 13513,

Article 20 Fly America Act of 1974

Recipients must comply with Preference for U.S. Flag Air Carriers (a list of certified air carriers can be found at:
Certificated Air Carriers List | US Department of Transportation,
https://www.transportation.gov/policy/aviation-policy/certificated- air-carriers-list)for international air
transportation of people and property to the extent that such service is available, in accordance with the
International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974, 49 U.S.C. § 40118, and the
interpretative guidelines issued by the Comptroller General of the United States in the March 31, 1981,
amendment to Comptroller General Decision B-138942.

Article 21 Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990

Recipients must ensure that all conference, meeting, convention, or training space funded entirely or in part by
federal award funds complies with the fire prevention and control guidelines of Section 6 of the Hotel and
Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990, 15 U.S.C. § 2225a.

Article 22 John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act of Fiscal Year 2019

Recipients, subrecipients. and their contractors and subcontractors are subject to the prohibitions described in
section 889 of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019, Pub. L. No. 115-
232 (2018) and 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.216, 200.327,200.471, and Appendix II to 2 C.F.R. Part 200. The statute — as
it applies to DHS recipients, subrecipients, and their contractors and subcontractors — prohibits obligating or
expending federal award funds on certain telecommunications and video surveillance products and
contracting with certain entities for national security reasons.

Article 23 Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VI)

Attachment B to the Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security and
Sheridan County
Page 5 of 10



Recipients must comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.) prohibition
against discrimination on the basis of national origin. which requires that recipients of federal financial
assistance take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to persons with limited English proficiency
(LEP) to their programs and services. For additional assistance and information regarding language access
obligations, please refer to the DHS Recipient Guidance: https://www.dhs.gov/guidance-published-help-
department-supported- organizations-provide-meaningfu l-access-people-limited and additional resources on
http://www .lep.gov.

Article 24 Lobbying Prohibitions

Recipients must comply with 31 U.S.C. § 1352and 6 C.F.R. Part 9, which provide that none of the funds
provided under a federal award may be expended by the recipient to pay any person to influence, or attempt to
influence an officer or employee of any agency. a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress. or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any federal action related to a federal award or contract,
including any extension, continuation, renewal. amendment. or modification. Per 6 C.F.R. Part 9, recipients
must file a lobbying certification form as described in Appendix A to 6 C.F.R. Part 9 or available on
Grants.gov as the Grants.gov Lobbying Form and file a lobbying disclosure form as described in Appendix B
to 6 C.F.R. Part 9 or available on Grants.gov as the Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL).

Article 25 National Environmental Policy Act

Recipients must comply with the requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, Pub. L. No. 91-
190 (1970) (codified as amended at 42 U.S.C. § 4321 et seq.) (NEPA) and the Council on Environmental
Quality (CEQ) Regulations for Implementing the Procedural Provisions of NEPA. which require recipients to
use all practicable means within their authority, and consistent with other essential considerations of national
policy, to create and maintain conditions under which people and nature can exist in productive harmony and
fulfill the social, economic. and other needs of present and future generations of Americans.

Article 26 Nondiscrimination in Matters Pertaining to Faith-Based Organizations

Itis DHS policy to ensure the equal treatment of faith-based organizations in social service programs
administered or supported by DHS or its component agencies, enabling those organizations to participate in
providing important social services to beneficiaries. Recipients must comply with the equal treatment policies
and requirements contained in 6 C.F.R. Part 19 and other applicable statues. regulations, and guidance
governing the participations of faith- based organizations in individual DHS programs.

Article27 Non-Supplanting Requirement

Recipients of federal awards under programs that prohibit supplanting by law must ensure that federal funds
supplement but do not supplant non-federal funds that. in the absence of such federal funds. would otherwise

have been made available for the same purpose.

Article 28 Notice of Funding Opportunity Requirements

All the instructions, guidance, limitations, scope of work, and other conditions set forth in the Notice of
Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for this federal award are incorporated by reference. All recipients must
comply with any such requirements set forth in the NOFO. Ifa condition of the NOFO is inconsistent with
these terms and conditions and any such terms of the Award, the condition in the NOFO shall be invalid to the
extent of the inconsistency. The remainder of that condition and all other conditions set forth in the NOFO shall

Attachment B to the Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security and
Sheridan County
Page 6 of 10



remain in effect.
Article 29 Patents and Intellectual Property Rights

Recipients are subject to the Bayh-Dole Act, 35 U.S.C. § 200 et seq. and applicable regulations governing
inventions and patents, including the regulations issued by the Department of Commerce at 37 C.F.R. Part 401
(Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms under Government
Awards, Contracts, and Cooperative Agreements) and the standard patent rights clause set forth at 37 C.F.R. §
401.14,

Article 30 Procurement of Recovered Materials

States, political subdivisions of states, and their contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid
Waste Disposal Act, Pub. L. No. 89-272 (1965) (codified as amended by the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act at 42 U.S.C. § 6962) and 2 C.F.R. § 200.323. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring
only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. Part 247 that
contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level
of competition.

Article 31 Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Recipients must comply with the requirements of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Pub. L. No. 93-
112 (codified as amended at 29 U.S.C. § 794), which provides that no otherwise qualified handicapped
individuals in the United States will, solely by reason of the handicap. be excluded from participation in, be denied
the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial
assistance.

Article 32 Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance

If the total value of any currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and procurement contracts from all
federal awarding agencies exceeds $10,000,000 for any period of time during the period of performance of the
federal award. then the recipient must comply with the requirements set forth in the government-wide Award
Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix
XII, the full text of which is incorporated by reference.

Article 33 Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation

For federal awards that equal or exceed $30,000, recipients are required to comply with the requirements set forth
in the government-wide award term on Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation set forth at 2
C.F.R. Part 170, Appendix A, the full text of which is incorporated by reference.

Article 34  Required Use of American Iron, Steel, Manufactured Products, and Construction
Materials

Recipients of an award of Federal financial assistance from a program for infrastructure are hereby notified
that none of the funds provided under this award may be used for a project for infrastructure unless: (1) all
iron and steel used in the project are produced in the United States—this means all manufacturing processes.
from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings. occurred in the United States; (2) all
manufactured products used in the project are produced in the United States—this means the manufactured
product was manufactured in the United States; and the cost of the components of the manufactured product

Attachment B to the Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security and
Sheridan County
Page 7 of 10



that are mined, produced, or manufactured in the United States is greater than 55 percent of the total cost of
all components of the manufactured product, unless another standard for determining the minimum amount
of domestic content of the manufactured product has been established under applicable law or regulation; and
(3) all construction materials are manufactured in the United States—this means that all manufacturing
processes for the construction material occurred in the United States. The Buy America preference only
applies to articles. materials, and supplies that are consumed in, incorporated into, or affixed to an
infrastructure project. As such, it does not apply to tools, equipment, and supplies, such as temporary
scaffolding, brought to the construction site and removed at or before the completion of the infrastructure
project. Nor does a Buy America preference apply to equipment and furnishings, such as movable chairs,
desks, and portable computer equipment, that are used at or within the finished infrastructure project but are
not an integral part of the structure or permanently affixed to the infrastructure project. Waivers When
necessary, recipients may apply for, and the agency may grant, a waiver from these requirements. The agency
should notify the recipient for information on the process for requesting a waiver from these requirements.
(a) When the Federal agency has determined that one of the following exceptions applies, the awarding
official may waive the application of the domestic content procurement preference in any case in which the
agency determines that: (1) applying the domestic content procurement preference would be inconsistent
with the public interest; (2) the types of iron. steel, manufactured products. or construction materials are not
produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities or of a satisfactory quality:
or(3) the inclusion of iron, steel, manufactured products. or construction materials produced in the United
States will increase the cost of the overall project by more than 25 percent. A request (o waive the application
of the domestic content procurement preference must be in writing. The agency will provide instructions on
the format, contents. and supporting materials required for any waiver request. Waiver requests are subject to
public comment periods of no less than 15 days and must be reviewed by the Made in America Office. There
may be instances where an award qualifies. in whole or in part, for an existing waiver described at “Buy
America” Preference in FEMA Financial Assistance Programs for Infrastructure [FEMA.gov. Definitions The
definitions applicable to this term are set forth at 2C.F.R. § 184.3. the full text of which is incorporated by

reference.
Article 35 SAFECOM

Recipients receiving federal financial assistance awards made under programs that provide emergency
communication equipment and its related activities must comply with the SAFECOM Guidance for Emergency
Communication Grants, including provisions on technical standards that ensure and enhance interoperable
communications. The SAFECOM Guidance is updated annually and can be found at Funding and

Sustainment | CISA.
Article 36 Terrorist Financing

Recipients must comply with E.O. 13224 and applicable statutory prohibitions on transactions with, and the
provisions of resources and support to, individuals and arganizations associated with terrorism. Recipients are
legally responsible for ensuring compliance with the E.O. and laws.

Article 37 Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA)

Recipients must comply with the requirements of the government-wide financial assistance award term which
implements Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000. Pub. L. No. 106-386, § 106 (codified as amended at 22
U.S.C. § 7104). The award term is located at 2 C.F.R. § 175.15, the full text of which is incorporated by reference.

Article 38 Universal Identifier and System of Award Management

Attachment B to the Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security and
Sheridan County
Page 8 of 10



Recipients are required to comply with the requirements set forth in the government-wide financial assistance award
term regarding the System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements located at 2 C.F.R.
Part 25, Appendix A, the full text of which is incorporated reference.

Article 39 USA PATRIOT Act of 2001

Recipients must comply with requirements of Section 817 of the Uniting and Strengthening America by
Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (USA PATRIOT Act).
which amends 18 U.S.C. §§ 175-175c.

Article 40 Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags

Recipients must obtain written permission from DHS prior to using the DHS seals, logos, crests, or reproductions
of flags. or likenesses of DHS agency officials. This includes use of DHS component (e.g., FEMA, CISA, etc.)
seals, logos, crests, or reproductions of flags, or likenesses of component officials.

Article 41 Whistleblower Protection Act

Recipients must comply with the statutory requirements for whistleblower protections at 10 U.S.C § 470141
US.C. §4712.

Article 42 Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) Review

DHS/FEMA funded activities that may require an Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP)
review are subject to the FEMA EHP review process. This review does not address all federal, state, and local
requirements. Acceptance of federal funding requires the recipient to comply with all federal, state and local
laws. DHS/FEMA is required to consider the potential impacts to natural and cultural resources of all projects
funded by DHS/FEMA grant funds, through its EHP review process, as mandated by: the National
Environmental Policy Act; National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended; National Flood Insurance
Program regulations; and any other applicable laws and executive orders. General guidance for FEMA’s EHP
process is available on the DHS/FEMA Website at: https://www.fema.gov/grants/euidance-
tools/environmental-historic. Specific applicant guidance on how to submit information for EHP review
depends on the individual grant program and applicants should contact their grant Program Officer to be put
into contact with EHP staff responsible for assisting their specific grant program. The EHP review process must
be completed before funds are released to carry out the proposed project; otherwise, DHS/FEMA may not be
able to fund the project due to noncompliance with EHP laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies. If
ground disturbing activities occur during construction, applicant will monitor ground disturbance, and if any
potential archaeological resources are discovered the applicant will immediately cease work in that area and
notify the pass-through entity. if applicable, and DHS/FEMA.

Article 43 Applicability of DHS Standard Terms and Conditions to Tribes

The DHS Standard Terms and Conditions are a restatement of general requirements imposed upon recipients and
flow down to sub-recipients as a matter of law, regulation, or executive order. If the requirement does not apply
to Indian tribes or there is a federal law or regulation exempting its application to Indian tribes, then the
acceptance by Tribes of, or acquiescence to, DHS Standard Terms and Conditions does not change or alter its
inapplicability to an Indian tribe. The execution of grant documents is not intended to change, alter, amend, or
impose additional liability or responsibility upon the Tribe where it does not already exist.

Article 44 Acceptance of Post Award Changes

Attachment B to the Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security and
Sheridan County
Page 9 of 10



In the event FEMA determines that an error in the award package has been made, orifan administrative change
must be made to the award package, recipients will be notified of the change in writing, Once the notification
has been made, any subsequent requests for funds will indicate recipient acceptance of the changes to the award.
Please call FEMA Grant Management Operations at (866) 927-5646 or via e-mail to: ASK-GMD@fema.dhs.gov

if you have any questions.
Article 45 Disposition of Equipment Acquired Under the Federal Award

For purposes of original or replacement equipment acquired under this award by a non-state recipient or non-state
sub-recipients, when that equipment is no longer needed for the original project or program or for other
activities currently or previously supported by a federal awarding agency, you must request instructions from
FEMA to make proper disposition of the equipment pursuant to 2 C.F.R. section 200.313. State recipients and
state sub-recipients must follow the disposition requirements in accordance with state laws and procedures.

Article 46 Prior Approval for Modification of Approved Budget

Before making any change to the FEMA approved budget for this award, you must request prior written approval
from FEMA where required by 2 C.F.R. section 200.308. For purposes of non-construction projects, FEMA is
utilizing its discretion to impose an additional restriction under 2 C.F.R. section 200.308(f) regarding the
transfer of funds among direct cost categories, programs, functions, or activities. Therefore, for awards with
an approved budget where the federal share is greater than the simplified acquisition threshold (currently
$250.000), you may not transfer funds among direct cost categories, programs. functions, or activities without
prior written approval from FEMA where the cumulative amount of such transfers exceeds or is expected to
exceed ten percent (10%) of the total budget FEMA last approved. For purposes of awards that support both
construction and non- construction work, FEMA is utilizing its discretion under 2 C.F.R. section 200.308(h)(5)
to require the recipient to obtain prior written approval from FEMA before making any fund or budget
transfers between the two types of work. You must report any deviations from your FEMA approved budget
in the first Federal Financial Report (SF-425) you submit following any budget deviation, regardless of whether

the budget deviation requires prior written approval.

Article 47 Indirect Cost Rate

2 C.F.R. section 200.211(b)(15) requires the terms of the award to include the indirect cost rate for the federal
award. If applicable, the indirect cost rate for this award is stated in the budget documents or other materials
approved by FEMA and included in the award file.

Attachment B to the Agreement between Wyoming Office of Homeland Security and
Sheridan County
Page 10 of 10



2024 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)
POINT OF CONTACT INFORMATION FORM

Jurisdiction: Sheridan County
Grant Project ID: 24-EMPG-SHE-GCF24
Mailing Address: 224 S. Main St STE B-1
City, ST ZIP Sheridan, WY 82801

Grant Administrator

Jesse Ludikhuize

Title:

Sheridan County Emergency Management Coordinator

Phone Number:

307-675-2569

Email:

iludikhuize@sheridancountywy.gov

Authorized Point of Contact

Jesse Ludikhuize

Title:

Sheridan County Emergency Management Coordinator

Phone Number:

307-675-2569

Email: jludikhuize@sheridancountywy.gov
Signature Date
Printed Name Title

This form must be signed by the same signing authority required by the 2023 EMPG Grant Award Agreement

Please complete and return along with signed Grant Award Agreement to:

Darryl Erickson, Grant Manager
Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
5500 Bishop Boulevard, Cheyenne, WY 82002
darryl.ericksonl @wyo.gov




)

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
OneWyo I and II Opioid Settlement Funds

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (the "MOU") is made and entered into
as of this day of , 2024 (the “Effective Date”) by and between
Memorial Hospital of Sheridan County, d/b/a Sheridan Memorial Hospital ("SMH"), and
Sheridan County, Wyoming ("COUNTY"), whose address is 45 W. 12 Street, Sheridan, WY

82801.

WHEREAS, State of Wyoming is a recipient of opioid settlement funds (“Settlement
Funds”) through certain settlement agreements with funds being divided amongst cities and
counties throughout the state;

WHEREAS, the distribution of settlement funds is subject to the OneWyo I and II Opioid
Settlement Memorandum of Agreements (“Settlement MOAs”); and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has identified that SMH has the ability to utilize Settlement
Funds in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Settlement MOAs.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Term. This MOU shall commence upon the Effective Date and shall be perpetual until
terminated per the conditions set forth herein.

2. Duties and Responsibilities of SMH.

A. SMH shall utilize Settlement Funds allocated by the COUNTY in accordance
with the terms and conditions set forth in the Settlement MOAs.

B. SMH shall provide the information and documentation necessary for the
COUNTY to meet and satisfy all reporting requirements and audits for the State
of Wyoming, federal regulatory bodies and Settlement Fund administrators.

3. Duties and Responsibilities of COUNTY. COUNTY shall provide and coordinate with
SMH to ensure that SHM is fully informed as to allowable and appropriate uses of Settlement
Funds.

6. COUNTY Liability/Indemnity.

A. SMH and COUNTY each agree to indemnify and hold the other party and its
affiliates, directors, officers, managers, employees and agents (the "Indemnified
Party") harmless from and against any and all obligations, liabilities, damages,

Page 1 of 4



penalties, losses, costs, charges and expenses (including reasonable accountants’
and attorneys' fees) which may be imposed on or incurred by the Indemnified
Party relating to (1) the performance or breach of the indemnifying party's
responsibilities, obligations, warranties and representations under this MOU
during or after the term of this MOU;; or (2) any other act or omission of the
indemnifying party or its officers, employees, or agents. This provision will
survive the expiration or earlier termination of this MOU. This indemnification
only applies to the extent the actions or omissions at issue are not covered by
insurance.

B. In the case of any joint or concurring liability or obligation of the parties giving
rise to liabilities, damages, losses, obligations, costs or expenses by either or both
parties, each party shall have full rights of contribution against the other party.

s Relationship of Parties. COUNTY and SMH agree and acknowledge that the parties
shall be independent contractors, and that regardless of the conduct of the parties, unless
expressly agreed to in writing, neither party shall at any time become, or be deemed, an
employee of the other. Neither party is, nor shall be considered as, the agent or employee of the
other party for any purpose whatsoever. Further, neither party will represent to others that it is,
or hold itself out to others as, any form of agent of the other. Neither party has the authority to
enter into contracts or assume any obligations for the other party or to make any warranties or
representations on behalf of the other party, except as specifically provided herein. Nothing in
this MOU shall be construed to establish a relationship of co-partners or joint venturers between
the two parties. Each party agrees to be responsible for the acts of its own agents, servants or
employees, and the payment of their employee benefits and compensation, including
employment taxes, workers' compensation, and other similar taxes and requirements associated
with employment.

8. Legal Compliance.

A. The parties intend to comply with the provisions of 42 U.S.C. 1395nn and 42
U.S.C. 1396b ("Stark II") and 42 U.S.C. 1320a-7b(b) (the "Fraud and Abuse
Statute"), as such provisions may be amended from time to time. This MOU shall
be construed in a manner consistent with such statutes and regulations. The
compensation paid to SMH hereunder is fair market value for the Services
rendered and is consistent with the value of similar services.

B. Both parties shall comply with all of the provisions of the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA™).

9, Miscellaneous

A. In the event that litigation is brought to enforce the terms of this MOU, or because
of any act which may arise out of either party's performance hereunder, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to all costs incurred in connection with such

Page 2 of 4



action, including reasonable attorneys' fees.

This MOU represents the final and binding expression of intent of the parties, and
represents the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter
of the MOU. No waiver, alteration, or modification of this MOU shall be
effective unless made in writing and signed by both parties.

If any provision of this MOU is found to be unenforceable, the remaining portions
shall be given full force and effect of law.

SMH shall not assign or transfer this MOU without the express, written consent of
COUNTY.

The terms and conditions of this MOU shall supersede any terms and conditions
which may appear on written material of COUNTY, including, but not limited to
the order form or purchase order.

This MOU may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts, and by facsimile
exchange of signature pages, each of which shall constitute an original, but all of
which together shall constitute one and the same MOU.

Any notice, demand, or communication required or permitted to be given by any
provision of this MOU shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given or served
for all purposes if delivered personally to the party or to an executive officer of
the party to whom the same is directed or, if sent by registered or certified mail,
postage and charges prepaid, addressed to the address which is set forth in this
MOU, or to such other addresses and to the attention of such other person(s) or
officer(s) as either party may designate by written notice. Except as otherwise
provided herein, any such notice shall be deemed to be given three (3) business
days after the date on which the same was deposited in a regularly maintained
receptacle for the deposit of United States mail, addressed and sent as aforesaid.

If to SMH: Sheridan Memorial Hospital
1401 West 5th
Sheridan, WY 82801
Attn: CEO

If to COUNTY: Sheridan County Board of County Commissioners
224 S. Main Street
Sheridan, WY 82801
Attn: Chair

The waiver by a party of a breach of any provision of this MOU by the other party
shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the
same or any other provision hereof by that party.

Page 3 of 4



L Any provisions of this MOU creating obligations extending beyond the term of
this MOU will survive the expiration or termination of this MOU, regardless of
the reason for such termination.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this MOU on the day and year first
above written.

Sheridan Memorial Hospital: Sheridan County:
By: By:
Title: Title:

Page 4 of 4



/ -
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING * PLANNING » ROAD & BRIDGE * BUILDING OFFICIAL
224 South Main Street — Sheridan, Wyoming 82801 - Fhone: 307-675-2420

. SHERIDAN |
. COUNTY

WYOMING ¥ &7 1888

STAFF REPORT
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

FILE NO. V-24-006: Jones Lot Size Variance
APPLICANT: David Jones

MTG. DATE: December 17, 2024

PROPOSAL:

David Jones has applied for a variance from the minimum lot area zoning standards that would
permit reduction of an approximately 0.63-acre parcel to 0.61 acres in the (RR) Rural Residential
District. The subject parcel is described as Lots 5 & 6, Block 2, Dowling’s Subdivision (1921) and 1s
addressed 15 Pine Dale Avenue situated in the northwest portion of Story. Should the application be
approved, 1,063 square feet would be conveyed to the approximately 0.54-acre patcel lying
immediately to the west to accommodate a boundary line adjustment theteby increasing its area to

0.57 acres.
SUBJECT ZONING STANDARDS:

v’ Section 7. 2. Providing that no lot area shall be reduced or diminished except in conformity

with the regulations established for the district in which located.

v' Section 9 B. (2) Establishing the minimum lot area per dwelling unit at 5 acres in the GPA'
RR-Rural Residential District.

APPLICATION BACKGROUND:

e The applicant wishes to retain ownership of a 0.61-acre atea and convey a 1,003 square feet
area to Steven & Deborah Warejcka’s 0.54-acre parcel (Lots 7 & 8) at 19 Pine Dale Avenue

(Fig 1.)

e The apparent objective of the proposed variance is to rectify an encroachment issue

associated with Warejcka’s water well situated on Jones property (Fig 2.)

e The subject lots were created prior to county adoption of zoning rules in 1985.

! Groundwater Protection Area
BOCC Report
Meceting Date: December 17, 2024

1 V-24-006: Jones Lot Size Variance



e No net new buildable parcels would be created as consequence of the vatiance not by the

proposed boundary line adjustment.
e No new construction is currently proposed.

DEVELOPMENT CONTEXT:

The general vicinity is characterized as a principally low-density residential area. There are an
estimated 58 residences within Ve-mile of the subject parcel. Domestic water is obtained via
individual wells. Sewage disposal in the vicinity is provided by private on-site systems. Adjacent Pine
Dale Lane is a publicly dedicated, privately maintained road in good condition (Fig 3). Fire
protection is provided through the Story Fire District. The closest non-applicant structure is
reportedly 6.1 feet from the subject parcel (Warejcka). The proposed new boundary would rectify

the noted well encroachment issue.

woozo'saW : T e -?.‘
£y | !
= |
9 E
0 5
9 i
1 . :
i 0 ? 1 |
g @(\}\& |
8 gARN @\‘
3
EQ |
6 )
1
10 @1 "
13
?
B e
=38 90\
@‘%
W8
A
: - R0 ‘i
M i
i ﬂ 8 '\-\‘\ h_""-—--_.L_‘___
0
b ~
\ 1 1 e
! 4 40 | D S
; ﬂﬁﬁ i . ® P TTes e
l'ig 1 Proposcd boundary linc adjustment
BOCC Report 2 V-24-006: Joncs Lot Size Variance

Mecting Date: December 17, 2024



11g 3 Pine Dale Ave looking west (subjeet parcels on nght)

> Report V-24-006: Jones Lot Sze Varance

g Date: December 17, 2024




PLANNING & REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

e This site is identified as “Rural Residential” on the Future Land Use Plan. (§ heridan County
Comprebensive Plan, 2020)

e Principally permitted uses of the RR-Rural Residential zoning district include primarily
single-family dwellings and agricultural uses.

e Section 9 B. (2) of the Zoning Rules establishes the minimum Jot area per dwelling unit at 5
acres.

e Minimum building setback (yard) requirements in the RR-Rural Residential disttict, are 25’
on the front, 20’ on the rear, and 5’ on the sides. If apptoved, the vatriance would not appear
to compromise these requirements.

e While adjacent to a cutoff meander (ditch?) of North Piney Creek, no regulatory floodplains

exist on this site.
ANALYSIS:
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The county’s Future Land Use Plan suggests agricultural and low-density residential uses for this
area. The proposed reconfiguration of the subject parcels would not increase the area’s overall
development density as a result of the proposed variance. The character of the “neighborhood”

would therefore appear unaffected by the proposed reduction in lot area.

e Relevant Land Use goals and policies:

Goal 1.7: The county will respect individual property rights, balanced with
community health, safety, and welfare.

1.7 a: Balance property rights with community objectives.
DIVISION OF LAND REQUIREMENTS

In the event this application is approved, reconfiguration of the applicant’s parcels could proceed
per provisions for “Boundary Line Adjustments” contained in the Rules and Regulations Governing
Division of Land in Sheridan County, Wyoming. No subdivision permit would be required.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND HARDSHIP

Section 29 of the Zoning Rules provides that variances, “...may be granted when special conditions
and 2 literal enforcement of the regulation results in unnecessary hardship.” Special conditions are
typically interpreted to mean unique or abnormal physical qualities associated with the land that in
some manner limits its typical use. If, in the opinion of the commission the applicant’s cited special

BOCC Report 4 V'-24-006: Jones Lot Size Variance
Meeting Date: December 17, 2024



conditions (i.e., .. .to better service his (Warejcka) well.. ) produce an unnecessary hardship, then
justification for the vatiance may exist. It is staff’s position that the proposed boundaty line
adjustment would appear to bettet suit such needs and practical use of the land, and further, would

not alter the character of the neighborhood.

STAFF CONCLUSION

A. Staff believes that special conditions associated with this parcel do exist that are uniquely

associated with this property.

B. Adjustment of the boundary as proposed would not appeat to result in other violations of the

zoning standards.
C. Should this application be approved, the following condition is recommended:

That proper documentation is provided to the county as per the Rules and Regulations
Governing Division of Land in Sheridan Connty, Wyoming for the proposed boundary line

adjustment.

PLANNING AND ZONING RECOMMENDATION:

On November 19, 2024, the Sheridan County Planning and Zoning Commission voted 5-0 to
recommend Approval of Item V-24-006: Jones Lot Size Varance that would permit the reduction
of an approximately 0.63-acre parcel to 0.61 acres in the (RR) Rural Residential District, with the
following conditions:

1. That proper documentation is provided to the county as per the Rules and Regulations
Governing Division of Land in Sheridan County, Wyoming for the proposed boundaty line

adjustment.
2. The well log statement of completion be sent to the Board of County Commissioners’ if one

exists. (Satisfied)

BOCC Report 5 V-24-006: Jones Lot Size Variance
Meeting Date: December 17, 2024



FORM T W 5 STATE OF WYOMING

[N .

el ——— OFFICE OF THE STATE ENGINEER

:)]\l"ll?l‘:\-"i-llil\'lfl%llllll:-?l N HERSCHLER BUILDING A\ NDY () 9 1994
& bVl ST CHEY ENNE. WYOMING 82002

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO APPROPRIATE GCROUND WATER _
236280

FOR OFFICE h"‘é %NL\O Temporacy Filing No. LW,
PERMIT NO. LW Y030 NOTE: Do not felid this form. Use typewriler
WA TER DIVISION NO. =Z HISTRICT /- or print neatly with black ink.
HeD ) St ALL ITEMS MUST BE COMPLETED

BEFORLE APPLICATION T3 ACCEI"TABLLE.

LWL DISTRICT yoan (O

NAME AND NUMBER OF WELL /é/f oS /

T

/:]:cu?nr-m: ,Z,/, P -] I:’lmno:__éij_f_znz_q?

19 p. e dal e

50:1‘ & 7‘2’._ :EZ'_'QEL'A:_.._-.S'_{J_Z_______. e Zip:_X__Z_S_ 9.

I Name of applivant(s)

a0 Auldress of .'lpp]irnnl(s) —

4 Name & address of agent (o receive vorrespondence and natices TAME

b1 e 1o whieh the water will be applied: Domestic: [p/1 Steck Watering [} Irrigation || Municipal [ ]

Industrial || Miscellaneone [ ] (Deseribe completely and accurately)

G0 Dewsation of the welli (NOTE Quarter-quarter (d0-acre suhdivision) MUST be N
hown, ENAMPLE: SEANR of See 12 Township T North, Runge 68 West.)
Sherdan . Coumy, DEF 4 Al l& vy of See
B3 N R B3 W of the bl I M. (o WRM.). Weoming. 10 located

i ;-Lulml subidisision, alsoe peovide | T — . Block 2 __olihe

IR 3 Pr o W SO T — Suibdivising (or Add n) of M—Cﬂ— e -NWUY =a=]=me NEY --

tn Mark the woell Toeatan on Ui seviion grid 10 the night. LOCATION SHOWN IN ! X :
TAS MU ST AGHER WITHGRID. I the praposed well is for ierigation use, sketrh w 7 E

ann lahiel all reganon ditches anil canals, stream. resorvoirs and other wells. Indicate

e powt ol use r Linds 1o b weeygated frum other suurces. '
____'.?__.Q___ﬂ.__f\:(tl. - SWYy - -SEW

g MAXIMUM - guantily ot water 1o be developed and Leneficially
wverdi /4 gallons per minute, NOTE: L[ for domeshe or stock use,
this application will be processed Tor a maximum of 25 gallons per minute
SPRINGS:  Only springs [lowing 25 gallons per minute or less. where the proposed S
s 1s domestic or stockwatenng, will be considered as ground water appropriations. Seale: 2" = 1 mile
After approval of this applicunon, some type of artificial diversion must be con-

= Faumatesd depth of the well is

Abave diagram represrnta one fuil
wection. Loente well wecurately in
small square representing 40 aoc.

arructed to guality for a waler right,
0 1 use 1= not irrigatiun, mark the point(s) or arca(s) ol use in the tabulation belaw.
10 far irrigation s
0 De=eribe MANIMUM aereage o he icrigated in each 40 arre subdivision in the tabulation below.
oo |} Lamd will L irrigater] Teom this will only.
e U ) Land dsarrigated from existing water tight(s) with waler [rom thisy
relitts) ooder REMARKS,

vell to he ndditivaal supply. Deseribe extsling wate

T

[ |
i Wt s | Ser

NE A NW SW 4 SEia R
TOTALS

ra Tew dswor] s | NE 8w sw | s L NES M| S|SB | RS NS | sk

5383w | 7 5 v _
[az' Z‘?z’ g/f" s

/lé .7'23../ ﬂ445 P

T e A I s

111 forirmg-tion use, duscribe method of irrigatinn, i.e. center pivot sprinklel, flood, ete

SEE REVERSE SIDE
Permit Na. U W, 9 595 O-_ Book No. 73__8_J"agc‘ No _’—5 1



12, The well is 10 be eonstructed on lands owned by .__.éw‘us__éL‘—_h;

(The granting of a permit does not constitute the granting of right of way. [l any easement or right ol way is neceszary in nonnre-
tion with this application, it should be understood that the responsibility is the applicant’s. A copy ol the agreement should acvom.
pany this application. il the Jand is privately awned and the owner 1s not o co-applicant.) ’

!
13, The water is 1o be used on lamds owned by /Dn--‘ Qun PR
(If landawner is not the applicant, a copy of the agreement relaling 1o usage ol appropriated water on the land should be submitied
to this office. If the landowner is ineludwl as a vo-applicant on the application, this procedure need not Le followud.)

REMARKS: .

Under penalties of perjury, [ declare that Thave examined this application and 1o the best of my knowledge and belief it is 1rue, cor-
rect and complete, )

v,
i A )4/% /3 NTo) 1992

."‘igi'?u\t_\)&' of Applicant or Authorized Agent Date

THE LEGALLY REQUIRED FILING FEE MUST ACCOMPANY THIS APPLICATION

DOMESTIC AND/ZOR STOCK WATERING USES SHEGD doTan
(Domestic vse is definel as a single-family dwelling and the watering ol lawns and
gardens not exceeding one (1) acru)
[RRIGATION, MUNICIPAL, INDUSTRIAT, MISCELLANEOUS $25.00
MONITOR (For waler level measurements or chemical quality sampling NOFTE
I WELL WILL SERVE MULTIPLE USES. SUBMIT OXLY ONE (THY HIGHERY FILING FEE.

THIS SECTION IS NOT TO RE FILLED IN BY APPLICANT

THE STATE OF WYOMING )

) s8.
STATE ENGINEER'S OFFICLE ) 150h June
This instrument was received and filed for record on the = day ol _ AL HL
LI 9:30 welnek_Ae M. - =

19

Permit No, 11W__ 9 5950

. fo, .‘milf. o
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that 1 have examined the formeaing-application and do b ,"'31‘. T ime subject to the (nllowing

limittions and conditions:

This application is approved subject 1o the eandition that the proposed use shall not interfere with any existing nights to grounid
water from the same source of supply and is subject 1o regulation and correlution with surface water rights. il the ground and surfiee
waters are interconnected. The use of water herrunder iv subject ta the further provisions of Chapler 169, Session Laws of Wyoming.
1957, and any subsequent amendments thereto

Granting of n permit dous not guarantee the right to have the water level or artesian pressure in the well maintained at any sperific
level, Thie well shanld be constrneted to a ilepth adequate 1o allow [or the maximum devilopment and beneficial use of ground waier in
the souree ol supply.

I the well is a flowing artesian well, it shall be so constructed and equipped that the flaw may be shut of [ when notin nse, withont
vse of water into surlace formalions or at the surface.

Appraval of this upplication may be considered as authorization 1o proreed with construction of the proposed well.

.
Constroetion of well will begin vithin one (1) year from date of approval. A Statement of Completion will be [iled within thiry
(30) days ol completion of construction. including pump installation.

Completion of ronstruction aud mﬂﬁyliun of the beneficial use of water for the purposes specified in [tem <ol this application
will be made by December 31, 19 i

The amount of appropristion shall be limited to the quantity to which permitee is entitled as determined at 1ime ol proof of
application of water 10 benelirial ||.~;e.£/- —
T —/ .
Witness my hand this___= vl s 4’4/4” l(}_E/ 2
7 — /,

State Engineer

i

September 12, 1994 - Notice of Commencement on JLmr:*./ 02, 1994 received.

September 12, 1994- Statement of Completion on September 02, 1994 received.
Beneficial use assumed as of date of campletion.

ke

SHorh o



M,

SHERIDAN COUNTY, WYOMING

VARIANCE APPLICATION
$475.00 NON-REFUNDABLE FEE

A variance is a county-approved relaxation of requirements specified in the Rules and Regulations Governing
Zoning (such as minimum lot area or yard requirements.) Applicants are expected to articulate and demonstrate
the unique, pre-existing circumstance(s) that prevent compliance with the standard county-enforced regulation.
Such circumstances may include, but are not limited to, exceptional topographic conditions, narrowness of a lot,

natural/man-made hazards, or unusual shape of site.

In order to be scheduled for consideration by the Planning & Zoning Commission, the following items must be submitted at
least 40 days prior to scheduled monthly meetings:

1) Completed opplication form w/$475.00 non-refundable fee

2) A list of all preperty owners and their mailing addresses within one-half (1/2) mile if applicant's site is within
an A-Agricultural District, or within five hundred (500) feet if in-any other zoning district. List cannot be
over 30 days old. (Upon request, Sheridan County can prepare this list for a $25 fee))

3) Stamped (not metered), pre-addresszd business-sized envelope for each property owner on the above list
using Sheridan County Public Works as the return address,

4) Scaled site plan showing the physical property conditions that owners ar
plan should show property lines, existing/proposed structures, roads, streams, floodplains, steep slopes, wells,

e requesting a variance from. The

easements, septic systems, etc.
5) Proof of Ownership - Recorded Deed, etc. (If a Company/ Trust/LLC, include documentation ofauthorized
responsible party.)
6) The following items must be addressed by the applicant:
. What special conditions exist on your property?
« What specific zoning requirements do you want varied?
. Isyour proposed use ofherwise permitted in this zoning district?
. TIf this regulation were enforced, what hardship would result
. How is this variance nof centrary to the public welfare?

Contact information for all property owners must be provided. All property owners of record must sign application.

David I. Jones
. PO BOX 326

Qwner's name(s):
Owner's Mailing Addres

Zip 82842

City Story State WY

Phone number:

480-390-6105 Cell phona

Subject Property:
Legal Description (Quarter, Quarter, Section, Township, Range, or Subdivision Name and Lot)
DOWLING'S SUBDIVISION BLOCK 2 LOTS5&6

Property address: 15 PINE DALE AVE

Zoning District: RR Size of parcel/lot 0.63 acres

INE DALE AVE

Access Roads (public road): P

SHERIDAN COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
224 South Main Street, 4" Floor Addition * Sheridan, Wyoming 82801 » Phone: 307-675-2420
Variance Application January 2019
Page: |



—_________—___—-_————————'———“

There is a well on 15 Pine Dale Ave that is owned by

What special conditions exist on your property?
19 Pine Dale Ave and the owner of 19 Pine Dale Ave wish to have more than a walking

easement in order to better service his well

The acreage restrictions for Rural Residential

What specific zoning requirement do you want varied?

Is your proposed use otherwise permitted in this zoning district? YesX No__
Steve Warejcka may not be able

If this regulation were enforced, what hardship would result?

to service his well at a later date if it should develop problems.

The well is already existing,

How is this variance not contrary to the public welfare?

all that this variance is trying to do is change the boundary to incorporate the well

into Steve Warejcka land and allow him access with maintenance vehicles to the

wellhead. We are not adding or subtracting from the current number of lots in the area.

3 Please attach any additional supporting information €

In submitting this application, you are consenting to allow Sheridan County Public Works staff access to your
property for review and inspection purposes relative to this application.

Nathan Sturtevant Z////"-/

Person completing application (print name) Person completing application (signature)
Owner's
Signature: Print name. Date.
ol L Dores
Owner's J i»@\ m-c ) &
g = Gamefeﬂ—Peaeeﬁk' o ~ o
Signature: ﬁ;ﬁ%:, - - Print name Date_ O ~Ff -2

To submit application please schedule a meeting with the Sheridan County Public Works Department

SHERIDAN COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
224 South Main Street, 4" Floor Addition * Sheridan, Wyoming 82801 » Phone: 307-675-2420
Variance Application January 2019

Page: 2




SHERIDAN COUNTY, WYOMING

VARIANCE APPLICATION
$475.00 NON-REFUNDABLE FEE

A variance is a county-approved relaxation of requirements specified in the Rules and Regulations Governing
Zoning (such as minimum lot area or yard requirements.) Applicants are expected to articulate and demonstrate
the unique, pre-existing circumstance(s) that prevent compliance with the standard county-enforced regulation.
Such circumstances may include, but are nof limited to, exceptional topographic conditions, narrowness of a lot,

natural/man-made hazards, or unusual shape of site.

Tn order to be scheduled for consideration by the Planning & Zoning Commission, the following items must be submitted at
least 40 days prior to scheduled monthly meetings:

1) Completed application form w/$475.00 non-refundable fee

2) A list of all property owners and their mailing addresses within one-half (1/2) mile if applicant's site is within
an A-Agricultural District, or within five hundred (500) feet if in any other zoning district, List cannot be
over 30 days old. (Upon request, Sheridan County can prepare this list for-a $25 fee.)

3) Stamped (not metered), pre-addressed business-sized envelope for each property owrer on the above list
using Sheridan County Public Works as the return address.

4) Scaled site plan showing the physical property conditions that owners are requesting a variance from. The
plan should show property lines, ex:sting;‘proposad structures, roads, streams, floodplains, steep slopes, wells,
easements, septic systems, etc.

5) Proof of Ownership - Recorded Deed, etc. (If ¢ Company/Trust/LLC, include documentation ofauthorized
responsible party.)

) The following items must be addressed by the applicant:

« What special conditions exist on your property?

. What specific zoning requirements do you want varied?

« Is your proposed use otherwise permitted in this zoning district?

. If this regulation were enforced, what hardship would resuft
How is this variance not contrary to the public welfare?

Contact information for all property owners must be provided. All property owners of record must sign application.

PEACOCK, MARK CAMERON & PATRICIA ANN JONES, (Jones heir apparent)
PO BOX 326

Owner's name(s):
Owner's Mailing Address:

City Sty State WY zip 82842

Phone number: Cell phone.

Subject Praperty:
Legal Description (Quarter, Quarter, Section, Township, Range, or Subdivision Name and Lot) :
DOWLING'S SUBDIVISION BLOCK 2LOTS 5&6

Property address: 15 PINE DALE AVE

Zoning District: RR Size of parcel/lot 0.63 acres

B —

Access Roads (public road): PINE DALE AVE

SHERIDAN COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
224 South Main Street, 4™ Floor Addition * Sheridan, Wyoming 82801 » Phone: 307-675-2420
Variance Application January 2019
Page: |



What special conditions exist on your property? | NEr€ is a well on 15 Pine Dale Ave that is owned by

19 Pine Dale Ave and the owner of 19 Pine Dale Ave wish to have more than a walking

easement in order to better service his wel!

What specific zoning requirement do you want varied? The acreage restrictions for Rural Residential

Is your proposed use otherwise permitted in this zoning district? YesX No

If this regulation were enforced, what hardship would result? Steve WareJcka may not be able

to service his well at a later date if it should develop problems.

How is this variance not contrary to the public welfare? The well is already existing,

all that this variance is trying to do is change the boundary to incorporate the well

into Steve Warejcka land and allow him access with maintenance vehicles to the

wellhead. We are not adding or subtracting from the current number of lots in the area.

> Please attach any additional supporting information €

In submitting this application, you are consenting to allow Sheridan County Public Works staff access to your
property for review and inspection purposes relative to this application.

Nathan Sturtevant

Person completing application (print name) Person completing application (signature)

Owner's : i * 3/ > ; 4
Signature: L Z— W Print rameMark Cameron Peacock DaTe‘ g} Q') L)
o, (5 en (6l 32074
Signature: Print name_Patrica Ann Jones  pet

Jones heir-apparent

To submit application please schedule a meeting with the Sheridan County Public Works Department

SHERIDAN COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
224 South Main Street, 4% Floor Addition » Sheridan, Wyoming 82801 = Phone: 307-675-2420
Variance Application January 2019
Page: 2




WORCT e Wromd L

rar yi pndey
ot 0 UF v ¥ 5% o
horseoe sy 20828 A# AB0LS
34V TIV0 Md 61 { i
e e QUSIAOTH 5 IINVEVA ¥ HOMK O3 VIV U
i Tk
3NN 10V .°| ..........
NN Mo

ONTROAM ‘ALNNOD NYIYIES
‘NOLLIGOY SONTIHOG ‘¢ X20Td ‘g AdAL § S10T A0 AJAYNS .

135 ONIION/ONNOS SNIHION ‘@R YINOTYD

(&)
G e oo
= SoidNod 2/1-1 aNnad
FHONVIE VA i £ i S 8
®

5SIL STPId 43S cvD NONMINTY ONNOS

—_— -
.\q STt NHONSDING) ¥ AOWIRYY ,2/1=1 QNAOS e et 4 et
PIE $ NHONNHNA VD RONITTYY .2/1-2 annad -
Pl — v

LNEANLSOArav “aNaoTT SO S

yod A4A4NS 40 Y0034 6 zwari s T Gt 06t o0

T T e il ;
ey 0r = ot . ‘
(434 ARsHOS 5°0) e

s - " o . ES

FIVOS dvA
Dwass Juv TR0
INOZ TYHIME ER¥D HLES LvAROCT IV
I NG OV Ny SIel
.08 =7 ‘&TVOS

SRS ML 0N

dVIW NOILVOOT

e
- ErOLDON §
-0 00T

'S E00°'TF

i
el




) SHERIDA N | Proposed V-24-006:

Jones Lot Size Variance

S WYOMING W, 7 1888

.,

~

|
__
|

§
|
I
!

Legend

h ————————  WYOMING STATE HIGHWAY

COUNTY ROAD

Proposed V-24-006: Jones Lot Size <w1m:omw

~-— PUBLIC ROAD

1 vy | i
.rr.rﬂ._.u Frontier D

PRIVATE ROAD

COUNTY ROAD ROW

e A e

MajorRiversStreams

MajorRiversStreams

Flood Hazard
Areas

FLD_ZONE, ZONE_SUBTY

A,

Groundwater Prolection Area

“Loucks 5
—

Zoning

Zoning

Commercial 2

Rural Residenlial

her Dr. L

| Fise

described as Lots 5 & 6, Block 2, Dowling's Subdivision. The request would permit the reduction of an
approximately 0.63-acre parcel to 0.61 acres. This parcel is located in the (RR) Rural Residential District.
The variance would allow for the applicant to proceed with a Boundary Line Adjustment. The parcel has
a physical address of 15 Pine Dale Avenue, and the parcel is accessed off of Pine Dale Avenue.

Made By: Sheridan County Public Works Department 11-19-24

This is a reques! from David Jones for a variance from the minimum lot area zoning standards for a parcel

2,500 3,750 5,000
Feet

This map is for general reference only.
Data layers that appear on this map may
or may not be accurate, current, or
otherwise reliable. THIS MAP IS NOT
TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION.



FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2025
CONGESTION MITIGATION AIR QUALITY PROGRAM
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE
WYOMING DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, LOCAL GOVERNMENT
COORDINATION OFFICE

SHERIDAN COUNTY

Federal Award Information - Required by 2 CFR § 200.332

Subrecipient Name: Sheridan County

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN):

To be provided via agreement update letter

Period of Performance Start and End Date:
Term Start Date through December 31, 2027

Federal Funds Obligated: $225,697.00

Total Federal Award: $282,121.00

Awarding Federal Agency: Federal Highway
Administration

Pass-through Agency: Wyoming Department of
Transportation (WYDOT)

Subrecipient Contact: Ken Muller
Phone: (307) 674-2920
Email: kmuller@sheridancountywy.gov

Assistance Listing No.: 20.205

Research and Development: No
Project Name: FY25 Dust Suppression

Agreement No.: CM25409

Subrecipient Unique Entity Identifier (UED):
H2JQJKZUG65ES

Federal Award Date: To be provided via
agreement update letter

Budget Period Start and End Date: Term Start
Date through September 30, 2027

Total Federal Award to Subrecipient:
$225,697.00

Federal Highway Administration: Wyoming
Division Office

Telephone: (307) 772-2101

Email: HDAWY @dot.gov

WYDOT Program Mgr.: Samuel Brackett
Telephone: (307) 777-4179
Email: samuel brackett@wyo.gov

WYDOT Contact for Confirmation of Funds:
Telephone: (307) 777-4434
Email: dotrevenue@wyo.gov

Assistance Listing Title: Highway Planning and
Construction

Indirect Cost Rate (ICAP): N/A
Subrecipient County: Sheridan County

Project No.: CM25409

17.

1. Parties. The parties to this Subrecipient Agreement (Agreement) are the Wyoming
Department of Transportation, Local Government Coordination Office (WYDOT), whose
address is: 5300 Bishop Boulevard, Cheyenne, Wyoming 82009, and Sheridan County
(Subrecipient), whose address is: 224 South Main Street, Sheridan, Wyoming 82801.

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY?25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan
County
Page 1 of 18



2% Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the respective relationships and
responsibilities of the Subrecipient and WYDOT in the administration of the subaward of
Federal financial assistance from WYDOT to the Subrecipient for the Wyoming
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Program (Project).

3. Term of Agreement. This Agreement is effective when all parties have executed it
(Effective Date). The term of this Agreement is from January 1, 2025, or the Effective
Date, whichever is later (Term Start Date), through December 31, 2027. The Budget Period
is from the Term Start Date through September 30, 2027. The Period of Performance is
from the Term Start Date through December 31, 2027, and shall allow ninety (90) days for
Project closeout beyond completion of the Responsibilities of the Project. No work shall
commence prior to receipt of a Notice to Proceed.

4. Project Funding.

A. The Project has a total estimated cost of two hundred eighty-two thousand, one
hundred twenty-one dollars ($282,121.00) (including local cost share). Federal
funding for this Project shall not exceed two hundred twenty-five thousand, six
hundred ninety-seven dollars ($225,697.00). In accordance with WYDOT’s
policies, a program cost share requirement of eighty percent (80%) Federal share
and twenty percent (20%) local share of the Project costs shall apply. Project costs
exceeding the total estimated Project costs shall be borne by the Subrecipient.

Project administration costs incurred on activities related directly to any
professional services to include Architectural/Engineering (A/E) contracts entered
into for this individual award are eligible for reimbursement under this program at
an eighty percent/twenty percent (80%/20%) cost share ratio and must remain
within the total Project cost.

B. Congestion Mitigation Air Quality is funded on a reimbursement basis. No funds
shall be paid by WYDOT prior to being paid first by the Subrecipient. All requests
for payment must be submitted to WYDOT’s Local Government Coordination
(LGC) Office on the Local Public Agency (LPA) Cost Reimbursement Form that
will be supplied to the Subrecipient. Reimbursement requests must include all
applicable supporting documentation including copies of invoices to be reimbursed
and proof of payment by the Subrecipient. The Cost Principles found in 2 CFR 200
Subpart E apply to this award.

Costs incurred prior to the Notice to Proceed and after the Budget Period will not
be eligible for reimbursement. The Notice to Proceed shall be issued by WYDOT
once the Agreement has been executed by both parties, an Authorization for
Expenditure (AFE) is issued by WYDOT, all environmental work has been

completed, and any additional requirements of the Federal Highway Administration
(FHWA) have been completed.

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan
County
Page 2 of 18



C. WYDOT will accept reimbursement requests on a monthly basis. Requests must be
submitted at least once every three (3) months in order for the Project to remain
active. Failure to submit reimbursement requests may be considered Project
Abandonment and result in the loss of Federal funding. If no financial activity
occurs in a given quarter, the Subrecipient shall notify WYDOT’s LGC Office in
writing of the status and schedule of the Project. WYDOT will make payment to
the Subrecipient within forty-five (45) days of receipt of a complete and approved
reimbursement request. The final reimbursement request must be accompanied by
the Project’s Final Acceptance Certificate. -

D. This Agreement is required to comply with the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA) of 2006. As the prime recipient of these funds,
WYDOT will report the required information to the Federal Funding
Accountability and Transparency Act Subaward Reporting System (FSRS). The
FFATA requires any person or entity receiving contract or grant funds directly from
the Federal government to report certain information regarding those funds through
a centralized website, www.fsrs.gov. The law requires the Subrecipient to provide
its UEI number to WYDOT. This requirement means the Subrecipient must register
with www.sam.gov to be assigned a UEI number. Instructions for this process can
be found at www.sam.gov. Additional information regarding this Act may be found

at www.fsrs.gov.

E. Cost Share. The Subrecipient may elect to use land, either wholly owned or
donated, to satisfy all or part of its cost share obligation for the Project. To qualify,
the land must become part of the Project. .

@) Ifthe land is to be donated to the Subrecipient by a third party, the donation
must:
(a) Take place after execution of this Agreement;
(b) Be from a private donor; and
(©) Be for exclusive use of the Project described in Attachment A,
Project Description, which is attached to and incorporated into this
Agreement by this reference.

(ii) The land value used to offset the cost share may not exceed the twenty
percent (20%) cost share requirement, regardless of the appraised value of
the land. The donation of land must be supported by a formal land appraisal
completed by a professional land appraiser certified by the Wyoming State
Appraiser Board. A copy of the executed deed with the land description
must be included with the appraisal.

(iii)  Public Interest Finding. The Subrecipient must make a finding in the public
interest in order to use Force Account Work (materials and/or labor) as all
or a portion of its local cost share. Requests for Force Account Work shall
be evaluated in accordance with 23 CFR 635 Subpart B. Prior to the use of
Force Account Work, the Subrecipient must complete a public interest

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan

County
Page 3 of 18




finding (PIF) on WYDOT Form LGC-PIF, which will be provided to the
Subrecipient. WYDOT Form LGC-PIF must be submitted by the
Subrecipient for approval by WYDOT’s LGC Office. PIFs cannot exceed
fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00).

5. Responsibilities of the Subrecipient. The Subrecipient shall:

A. Project Scope. The Subrecipient shall undertake and complete the Project as
described in Attachment A, Project Description, Attachment B, Proposed
Roadways & Map, and Attachment D, Project Modification Letter, which are
attached to and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference. The
Subrecipient shall commence and complete the Project in a professional,
economical, and efficient manner.

In the event of unusual or unexpected Project delay, the Subrecipient may submit a
request to WYDOT for an extension of time to complete the Project. The request
shall be in writing to WYDOT’s LGC Office. Failure of the Subrecipient to perform
its duties within the time frame herein agreed to may be considered Project
abandonment.

B. Complete all administrative requirements, including employing at least one (1)
LPA Certified staff member.

C. Project Administration. Project administration must be performed by a public
employee to be in responsible charge. The Subrecipient shall appoint a public
employee as the project administrator who is accountable for the Project. The
project administrator shall have a current certification from WYDOT under the
WYDOT LPA Certification Program. Any costs incurred as a result of the work
completed by the project administrator, or supplies and other related costs, shall be
included as overhead to the Subrecipient and are not reimbursable under this award,
unless the Subrecipient has a WYDOT approved Indirect Cost rate. Project
administration costs incurred on activities related directly to any professional
services are reimbursable in accordance with Section 4 above.

D. Design Review and Approval and Consultant Selection.

@) All Project designs to include engineering, architectural and landscape
architectural plans, specifications, and required Federal provisions
(Contract Documents) shall be prepared under the supervision of a qualified
professional engineer or architect licensed to perform such work in the State
of Wyoming.

(i)  The consultant selection process must be based on qualifications, using
WYDOT’s help, if needed. The selection process shall comply with the
Brooks Act, 40 U.S.C. 1101 et seq., with guidance included in WYDOT
Operating Policy 40-1.
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan

County
Page 4 of 18



(iii) An appropriate level of environmental, historical, and/or review and
mitigation statement in accordance with the Transportation Act § 4(f) shall
be submitted to WYDOT’s LGC Office. A Categorical Exclusion issued by
the FHWA, if applicable, is required prior to the Subrecipient’s construction
contract award. Projects completed within existing right-of-way may be
eligible for inclusion in the Programmatic Categorical Exclusion issued by
WYDOT Environmental Services.

(ivy WYDOT’s LGC Office must authorize and receive a copy of such plans
and Project Contract Documents prior to the Subrecipient proceeding with
construction bidding, contracting, or other construction authorization under
this Agreement. Contract procedures shall be compliant with 23 CFR 635
Subpart A.

E. Project Contracting and Construction. Project work shall be performed by
individuals, partnerships, corporations, or other business entities who are duly
qualified to do business in the State of Wyoming and who have secured all licenses
and permits required by applicable state laws, county regulations, and city
ordinances. Upon notification of WYDOT approval of the Project design
documents, issuance of a Categorical Exclusion (if applicable), and a written Notice
to Proceed, the Subrecipient may proceed with open, public competitive bidding
for Project construction. Such Project bidding shall follow accepted municipal and
county bidding procedures, including public advertising and be compliant with 23
CFR 635 Subpart A. Since federal funds are involved in the Project, no in-State
preference will apply for materials, contracts or subcontracts. Bid analysis shall be
performed to ensure balanced unit bidding. Once this analysis is completed, the
Subrecipient shall make a recommendation to WYDOT of low responsible and
responsive bidder for WYDOT concurrence prior to contract award. WYDOT
reserves the right to review all contract bids prior to contract award. Extra work and
claims must be within the scope of contract.

F. Submit Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) and bid documents to
WYDOT’s Local Government Coordination (LGC) Office for review and
concurrence prior to Project advertisement.

G. Submit bid tabulations to WYDOT’s LGC Oftfice for review and concurrence prior
to awarding the Project.

H. Monitor Project progress and submit reimbursement requests to WYDOT in
accordance with Section 4 above.

L Project and Final Inspections. Project inspections shall be conducted by the

Subrecipient or authorized representatives. WYDOT representatives may inspect

the Project at their discretion. The Subrecipient shall notify WYDOT of final

inspection and a WYDOT representative may accompany the Subrecipient’s

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan

County
Page 5 of 18



representative on the final inspection. Prior to the final payment (normally the final
ten percent [10%)]), the Subrecipient shall notify WYDOT that the Project has been
completed in substantial conformance with the plans and specifications, including
compliance with Wyo. Stat. § 16-6-1 16. The Subrecipient shall complete the
WYDOT Final Acceptance Certificate, which shall accompany the final
reimbursement payment request.

Project Maintenance. Upon completion of the Project, the Subrecipient shall
maintain, at its sole expense, all features constructed under this Agreement.
Maintenance shall include all repairs necessary to keep the improvements in their
functional construction condition. The Subrecipient shall be responsible for the cost
of removal and replacement of any or all encroachments within WYDOT’s right-
of-way if the right-of-way is needed for highway purposes, including any highway
re-construction or maintenance activity that impacts the encroachment in
accordance with Subrecipient’s encroachment permit.

Records Retention. The Subrecipient shall keep records and audit reports on file
for three (3) years after the Project is complete.

Right-of-Way and Utilities. The Subrecipient is responsible for right-of-way and
utility clearance. Prior to Project bidding, the Subrecipient must submit a completed
Right-of-Way and Utility Certificate to WYDOT’s LGC Office, if applicable,
indicating clearance of right-of-way and utilities for the Project. All acquisition of
private property and relocation of displaced individuals and businesses shall be in
accordance with Wyo. Stat. § 1-26-501, ef seq., the Wyoming Eminent Domain
Act; the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act
of 1970, P.L. 91-646; and the regulations of 49 CFR Part 24.

6. Responsibilities of WYDOT. WYDOT will:

A.

B.

Reimburse the Subrecipient in accordance with Section 4 above.
Assist the Subrecipient with the consultant selection process.

Review the Subrecipient’s PS&E and bid documents for compliance prior to
advertisement.

Review bid tabulations prior to the Subrecipient awarding the Project.

Provide ongoing support through construction, including possible site inspections
and reimbursement processing.

Ensure Project completion and acceptance, and process final reimbursement.

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan

County
Page 6 of 18



7. Special Provisions.

A. Assumption of Risk. The Subrecipient shall assume the risk of any loss of state or
federal funding, either administrative or program dollars, due to the Subrecipient’s
failure to comply with state or federal requirements. WYDOT shall notify the
Subrecipient of any state or federal determination of noncompliance.

B. Conflict of Interest. Per 2 CFR 200.112, the Subrecipient must disclose in writing
any potential conflict of interest to WYDOT including financial or other personal
interests.

C. Environmental Policy Acts. The Subrecipient agrees all activities under this
Agreement will comply with the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the National
Environmental Policy Act, and other related provisions of federal environmental
protection laws, rules or regulations.

D. Federal and State Required Contract Provisions. The Subrecipient shall
determine which of the following provisions are applicable and shall ensure
compliance with all applicable provisions:

(i) Environmental Documentation. Contract Documents shall include the
appropriate level of environmental review and analysis in accordance with
23 CFR 771, to include mitigation assessment where required.

(ii) National Historic Preservation Act (106 process). Projects involving
historic or archaeological sites, the Contract Documents shall include the
appropriate review and mitigation assessment.

(iiij) Design Exceptions. Contract Documents must note any design exceptions;
no exceptions are available for compliance with the American with
Disabilities Act (ADA).

(ivy  Buy America Provisions. Requires the use of American steel, iron products,
manufactured products, and construction materials associated with this
Project, when specified in accordance with the Infrastructure Investment
and Jobs Act (IJA), Pub. L. No. 117-58, § 11513 and § 70011, et seq.

W) Disadvantage Business Enterprises (DBE). DBE efforts shall be included in
the Project file, using the Form “E-91-DBE” to document the bid
solicitation and to assure that the action taken is in compliance with this
request. Written proof of compliance must be available when requested.

(vi)  Required Federal Contract Provisions. Provisions in Attachment C, Form

FHWA-1273, which is attached to and incorporated into this Agreement by

this reference, shall apply to all work performed under this Agreement,

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan

County
Page 7 of 18




including work performed by subcontract. All Contract Documents shall
include Form FHWA-1273 provisions. The Form FHWA-1273 provisions
are required to be physically incorporated into each subcontract and
subsequent lower-tier subcontracts and shall not be incorporated by
reference. The prime contractor is responsible for compliance with the Form
FHWA-1273 requirements by all subcontractors and lower-tier
subcontractors. Failure to comply with the required contract provisions may
be considered as grounds for contract termination. Furthermore, failure to
incorporate the Form FHWA-1273 into all subcontracts or failure to comply
with the requirements of Section IV, Payment of Predetermined Minimum
Wage and Section V, Statements and Payrolls, may be considered as
grounds for debarment under 29 CFR 5.12.

(vii)  Contractor and subcontractor Certification for Suspension and Debarment.
Requires contractor and subcontractor to certify that they are not suspended,
debarred, or ineligible from entering into contracts with any federal entity,
state agency, or local body.

(viii) Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). Signing and
pavement striping of public roads must meet MUTCD criteria. Projects that
intersect with public roadways must be appropriately signed during the
construction stage. Permanent safety signing should be identified on a
separate plan sheet in the Contract Documents.

(ix) Labor Rates. Contract Documents must include provisions for the
compliance with Davis-Bacon as outlined in the Form FHWA-1273.

x) Equipment/Materials/Labor Cost Determination. Unless supported by
appropriate cost effectiveness determination, the use of public-owned
equipment, material, or labor will not be allowed. To be eligible, such costs
must comply with effective hourly schedules and be supported by a Public
Interest Finding.

(xi) Domestic Preferences for Procurement. Requires a preference for the
purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in
the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel,
cement, and other manufactured products) in accordance to 2 CFR 200.322.

(xii) Prohibition on certain telecommunications _and _video surveillance
equipment or services .Prohibits procuring, obtaining, extending, renewing,
or entering into contracts for equipment or services from manufacturers
listed in 2 CFR 200.216.

(xiii) Never Contract with the Enemy. F ederal awarding agencies and recipients
are subject to the regulations implementing Never Contract with the Enemy
in 2 CFR part 183. The regulations in 2 CFR part 183 affect covered

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan

County
Page 8 of 18




contracts, grants, and cooperative agreements that are expected to exceed
fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) within the Period of Performance, are
performed outside the United States and its territories, and are in support of
a contingency operation in which members of the Armed Forces are actively
engaged in hostilities in accordance to 2 CFR 200.215.

(xiv) Wyoming Preference for Labor. The Subrecipient shall comply with the
Wyoming Preference Act of 1971 (Wyo. Stat. § 16-6-201, et seq.).

E. Human Trafficking. As required by 22 U.S.C. § 7104(g) and 2 CFR Part 175, this
Agreement may be terminated without penalty if a private entity that receives funds
under this Agreement:

(i) Engages in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time
that the award is in effect;

(i)  Procures a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is
in effect; or

(iii)  Uses forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the
award.

F. Kickbacks. Subrecipient certifies and warrants that no gratuities, kickbacks, or
contingency fees were paid in connection with this Agreement, nor were any fees,
commissions, gifts, or other considerations made contingent upon the award of this
Agreement. If Subrecipient breaches or violates this warranty, WYDOT may, at its
discretion, terminate this Agreement without liability to WYDOT, or deduct from
the agreed upon price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of any
commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingency fee.

The Subrecipient shall comply with the Copeland Anti-Kickback Act (18 U.S.C. §
874) as supplemented in the Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3).
This Act provides that the Subrecipient is prohibited from inducing, by any means,
any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public works to
give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled.

The Subrecipient and subcontractors may also be required to submit an additional
certification statement and disclosure form acceptable to W YDOT before
commencement of the work.

G. Limitations on Lobbying Activities. By signing this Agreement, Subrecipient
certifies and agrees that, in accordance with P.L. 101-121, payments made from a
federal grant shall not be utilized by Subrecipient or its subcontractors in
connection with lobbying member(s) of Congress, or any federal agency in
connection with the award of a federal grant, contract, cooperative agreement, or
loan. Subrecipient and subcontractors may also be required to submit an additional

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan

County
Page 9 of 18



certification statement and disclosure form acceptable to the WYDOT before
commencement of the work.

H. Mandatory Disclosures. Per 2 CFR 200.113, the Subrecipient must disclose, in a
timely manner, in writing to WYDOT all violations of Federal criminal law
involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting this award.
Failure to make required disclosures can result in remedies for noncompliance
including suspension or debarment.

L. Monitoring Activities. WYDOT shall have the right to monitor all activities
related to this Agreement that are performed by Subrecipient or its subcontractors.
This shall include, but not be limited to, the right to make site inspections at any
time and with reasonable notice; to bring experts and consultants on site to examine
or evaluate completed work or work in progress; to examine the books, ledgers,
documents, papers, and records pertinent to this Agreement; and to observe
personnel in every phase of performance of Agreement related work.

J. Nondiscrimination. The Subrecipient shall comply with the Civil Rights Act of
1964, the Wyoming Fair Employment Practices Act (Wyo. Stat. § 27-9-105, et
seq.), the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 U.S.C. § 12101, et seq., and
the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and any properly promulgated rules and
regulations thereto and shall not discriminate against any individual on the grounds
of age, sex, color, race, religion, national origin, or disability in connection with the
performance under this Agreement.

Federal law requires the Subrecipient to include all relevant special provisions of
this Agreement in every subcontract awarded over ten thousand dollars
($10,000.00) so that such provisions are binding on each subcontractor.

K. No Finder’s Fees. No finder’s fee, employment agency fee, or other such fee
related to the procurement of this Agreement, shall be paid by either party.

L. Prohibited Interest. No member, officer, or employee of the Subrecipient during
their tenure or one (1) year thereafter shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in
this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.

M. Project Abandonment. Should the Subrecipient abandon the Project at any time
prior to completion, or if the Project is not let to construction within two (2) years
of the completion of the design due to the delay or actions by the Subrecipient, the
Subrecipient shall reimburse WYDOT for the entire cost, including any Federal aid
portion of the work completed at the time of abandonment.

N. Publicity. Any publicity given to the projects, programs, Or services provided
herein, including, but not limited to, notices, information, pamphlets, press releases,
research, reports, signs, and similar public notices in whatever form, prepared by
or for the Subrecipient and related to the services and work to be performed under

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, F Y25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan

County
Page 10 of 18



this Agreement, shall identify WYDOT as the sponsoring agency and shall not be
released without prior written approval of WYDOT.

0. Restrictions, Prohibitions, Controls and Labor Provisions.

(i) Equal Employment Opportunity. In connection with carrying out the
Project, the Subrecipient shall not discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment because of race, color, age, creed, sex, national
origin, or disability. The Subrecipient shall take affirmative action to ensure
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during
employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, age, national origin,
or disability. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment
advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.

(ii) DBE Requirements.

(a) Policy. It is the policy of WYDOT that DBEs, defined as minority
business enterprises and women-owned business enterprises, shall
have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of
contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds under this
Agreement.

(b)  DBE Obligation. The Subrecipient agrees to ensure that DBEs as
defined in 49 CFR Part 26 have the maximum opportunity to
participate in the performance of contracts and subcontracts
financed in whole or in part with Federal funds provided under this
Agreement. In this regard, the Subrecipient shall take all necessary
and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure
that DBEs have the maximum opportunity to compete for and
perform contracts. The Subrecipient and their contractors shall not
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the
award and performance of WYDOT assisted Contracts.

(iii)  Title VI Civil Rights Act of 1964. The Subrecipient shall comply and shall
assure the compliance by contractors and subcontractors under this Project
with all the requirements imposed by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (49 U.S.C. 2000d), the Regulations of the United States Department
of Transportation (DOT) issued there under, 49 CFR Part 21, and the
Assurance by the Subrecipient pursuant thereto.

(iv) Compliance with Elderly and Disabled Regulations. The Subrecipient shall
comply with applicable regulations regarding transportation for Elderly and
Disabled persons set forth in 49 CFR Part 27 and the ADA.

P. Suspension and Debarment. By signing this Agreement, Subrecipient certifies

that neither it nor its principals/agents are presently debarred, suspended, proposed

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY?25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan

County
Page 11 of 18



for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction or from receiving federal financial or nonfinancial assistance, nor are
any of the participants involved in the execution of this Agreement suspended,
debarred, or voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency in
accordance with Executive Order 12549 (Debarment and Suspension), or 2 CFR
Part 180, or are on the debarred, or otherwise ineligible, vendors lists maintained
by the federal government. Further, Subrecipient agrees to notify WYDOT by
certified mail should it or any of its principals/agents become ineligible for
payment, debarred, suspended, or voluntarily excluded from receiving federal
funds during the term of this Agreement.

Q. Administration of Federal Funds. Subrecipient agrees its use of the funds
awarded herein is subject to the Uniform Administrative Requirements of 2 CFR
Part 200, et seq.; any additional requirements set forth by the federal funding
agency; all applicable regulations published in the Code of Federal Regulations;
and other program guidance as provided to it by WYDOT.

R. Copyright License and Patent Rights. Subrecipient acknowledges that federal
grantor, the State of Wyoming, and WYDOT reserve a royalty-free, nonexclusive,
unlimited, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to
authorize others to use, for federal and state government purposes: (1) the copyright
in any work developed under this Agreement; and (2) any rights of copyright to
which Subrecipient purchases ownership using funds awarded under this
Agreement. Subrecipient must consult with WYDOT regarding any patent rights
that arise from, or are purchased with, funds awarded under this Agreement.

S. Federal Audit Requirements. Subrecipient agrees that if it expends an aggregate
amount in excess of the amount set forth in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F in federal
awards during its fiscal year, it must undergo an organization-wide financial and
compliance single audit. Subrecipient agrees to comply with the audit requirements
of the U.S. General Accounting Office Government Auditing Standards and Audit
Requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F. If findings are made which cover any
part of this Agreement, Subrecipient shall provide one (1) copy of the audit report
to WYDOT and require the release of the audit report by its auditor be held until
adjusting entries are disclosed and made to WYDOT’s records.

T. Non-Supplanting Certification. Subrecipient hereby affirms that federal grant
funds shall be used to supplement existing funds, and shall not replace (supplant)
funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Subrecipient should be
able to document that any reduction in non-federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of federal funds under this Agreement.

U. Program Income. Subrecipient shall not deposit grant funds in an interest bearing
account without prior approval of WYDOT. Any income attributable to the grant
funds distributed under this Agreement must be used to increase the scope of the
program or returned to WYDOT.

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM2 5409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan

County
Page 12 of 18



V. Applicability of Appendix II to 2 CFR Part 200. This Agreement has been
funded, in whole or in part, with an Award of Federal funds and is bound by the
federal contract provisions required by the Uniform Guidance Appendix II of 2
CFR Part 200 (the Federal Contract Provisions), incorporated herein by this
reference. In the event of a conflict between the Special Provisions section of this
Agreement, or any attachments or exhibits incorporated herein, and the Federal
Contract Provisions, the Federal Contract Provisions shall control. Failure to
comply with the Federal Contract Provisions shall constitute an event of default
under this Agreement. If such a default remains uncured five (5) calendar days
following the termination of a thirty (30) day prior written notice period, WYDOT
may terminate this Agreement. This remedy will be in addition to any other remedy
available to the State of Wyoming and WYDOT under this Agreement, at law, or

in equity.
8. General Provisions.
A. Amendments. Any changes, modifications, revisions, or amendments to this

Agreement which are mutually agreed upon by the parties to this Agreement shall
be incorporated by written instrument, executed by all parties to this Agreement.

B. Applicable Law, Rules of Construction, and Venue. The construction,
interpretation, and enforcement of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of
the State of Wyoming, without regard to conflicts of law principles. The terms
“hereof,” “hereunder,” “herein,” and words of similar import, are intended to refer
to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision or part. The Courts
of the State of Wyoming shall have jurisdiction over this Agreement and the parties.
The venue shall be the First Judicial District, Laramie County, Wyoming.

C. Assignment Prohibited and Agreement Shall Not be Used as Collateral.
Neither party shall assign or otherwise transfer any of the rights or delegate any of
the duties set out in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other
party. The Subrecipient shall not use this Agreement, or any portion thereof, for
collateral for any financial obligation without the prior written permission of the
WYDOT.

D. Audit and Access to Records. The WYDOT and its representatives shall have
access to any books, documents, papers, electronic data, and records of the
Subrecipient which are pertinent to this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall
immediately, upon receiving written instruction from the WYDOT, provide to any
independent auditor or accountant all books, documents, papers, electronic data,
and records of the Subrecipient which are pertinent to this Agreement. The
Subrecipient shall cooperate fully with any such independent auditor or accountant
during the entire course of any audit authorized by the WYDOT.

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan
County
Page 13 of 18



E. Availability of Funds. Each payment obligation of the WYDOT is conditioned
upon the availability of government funds which are appropriated or allocated for
the payment of this obligation and which may be limited for any reason including,
but not limited to, congressional, legislative, gubernatorial, or administrative
action. If funds are not allocated and available for continued performance of the
Agreement, the Agreement may be terminated by the WYDOT at the end of the
period for which the funds are available. The WYDOT shall notify the Subrecipient
at the earliest possible time of the services which will or may be affected by a
shortage of funds. No penalty shall accrue to the WYDOT in the event this
provision is exercised, and the WYDOT shall not be obligated or liable for any
future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under this section.

F. Award of Related Agreements. The WYDOT may award supplemental or
successor contracts for work related to this Agreement or may award contracts to
other subrecipients for work related to this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall
cooperate fully with other subrecipients and the WYDOT in all such cases.

G. Compliance with Laws. The Subrecipient shall keep informed of and comply with
all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, and all federal grant
requirements and executive orders in the performance of this Agreement.

H. Confidentiality of Information. Except when disclosure is required by the
Wyoming Public Records Act or court order, all documents, data compilations,
reports, computer programs, photographs, data, and other work provided to or
produced by the Subrecipient in the performance of this Contract shall be kept
confidential by the Subrecipient unless written permission is granted by WYDOT
for its release. If and when Subrecipient receives a request for information subject
to this Agreement, Subrecipient shall notify WYDOT within ten (10) days of such
request and shall not release such information to a third party unless directed to do
so by WYDOT.

I. Entirety of Agreement. This Agreement, consisting of eighteen (18) pages;
Attachment A, Project Description, consisting of three (3) pages; Attachment B,
Proposed Roadways & Maps, consisting of six (6) pages; Attachment C, Form
FHWA-1273, consisting of fourteen (14) pages; Attachment D, Project
Modification Letter, consisting of two (2) pages; and the Federal Contract
Provisions, represent the entire and integrated Agreement between the parties and
shall supersede all prior negotiations, representations, and agreements, whether
written or oral. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the language of
this Agreement and the language of any attachment or document incorporated by
reference, the language of this Agreement shall control.

J. Ethics. The Subrecipient shall keep informed of and comply with the Wyoming
Ethics and Disclosure Act (Wyo. Stat. § 9-13-101, et seq.) and any and all ethical
standards governing the Subrecipient’s profession.

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan
County
Page 14 of 18



K. Extensions. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or deemed to create an
expectation that this Agreement will be extended beyond the term described herein.
Any extension of this Agreement shall be initiated by the WYDOT and shall be
accomplished through a written amendment between the parties entered into before
the expiration of the original Agreement or any valid amendment thereto, and shall
be effective only after it is reduced to writing and executed by all parties to the
Agreement.

L. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for failure to perform under this
Agreement if such failure to perform arises out of causes beyond the control and
without the fault or negligence of the nonperforming party. Such causes may
include, but are not limited to, acts of God or the public enemy, fires, floods,
epidemics, quarantine restrictions, freight embargoes, and unusually severe
weather. This provision shall become effective only if the party failing to perform
immediately notifies the other party of the extent and nature of the problem, limits
delay in performance to that required by the event, and takes all reasonable steps to
minimize delays.

M. Indemnification. Each party to this Agreement shall assume the risk of any liability
arising from its own conduct. Neither party agrees to insure, defend, or indemnify
the other.

N. Independent Contractor. The Subrecipient shall function as an independent
contractor for the purposes of this Agreement and shall not be considered an
employee of the State of Wyoming for any purpose. Consistent with the express
terms of this Agreement, the Subrecipient shall be free from control or direction
over the details of the performance of services under this Agreement. The
Subrecipient shall assume sole responsibility for any debts or liabilities that may be
incurred by the Subrecipient in fulfilling the terms of this Agreement and shall be
solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state, and local taxes which may
accrue because of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted
as authorizing the Subrecipient or its agents or employees to act as an agent or
representative for or on behalf of the State of Wyoming or the WYDOT or to incur
any obligation of any kind on behalf of the State of Wyoming or the WYDOT. The
Subrecipient agrees that no health or hospitalization benefits, workers’
compensation, unemployment insurance, or similar benefits available to State of
Wyoming employees will inure to the benefit of the Subrecipient or the
Subrecipient’s agents or employees as a result of this Agreement.

0. Notices. All notices arising out of, or from, the provisions of this Agreement shall
be in writing either by regular mail or delivery in person at the addresses provided
under this Agreement.

P. Ownership and Return of Documents and Information. The WYDOT is the
official custodian and owns all documents, data compilations, reports, computer
programs, photographs, data, and other work provided to or produced by the

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan
County
Page 15 of 18



Subrecipient in the performance of this Agreement. Upon termination of services,
for any reason, the Subrecipient agrees to return all such original and derivative
information and documents to the WYDOT in a useable format. In the case of
electronic transmission, such transmission shall be secured. The return of
information by any other means shall be by a parcel service that utilizes tracking
numbers.

Q. Patent or Copyright Protection. The Subrecipient recognizes that certain
proprietary matters or techniques may be subject to patent, trademark, copyright,
license, or other similar restrictions, and warrants that no work performed by the
Subrecipient or its subcontractors will violate any such restriction. The
Subrecipient shall defend and indemnify WYDOT for any violation or alleged
violation of such patent, trademark, copyright, license, or other restrictions.

R. Prior Approval. This Agreement shall not be binding upon either party, no
services shall be performed, and the Wyoming State Auditor shall not draw
warrants for payment, until this Agreement has been fully executed, approved as to
form by the Office of the Attorney General, filed with and approved by A&I
Procurement, and approved by the Governor of the State of Wyoming, or his
designee, if required by Wyo. Stat. § 9-2-3204(b)(1v).

S. Severability. Should any portion of this Agreement be judicially determined to be
illegal or unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement shall continue in full force
and effect, and the parties may renegotiate the terms affected by the severance.

T. Sovereign Immunity and Limitations. Pursuant to Wyo. Stat. § 1-39-104(a), the
State of Wyoming and the WYDOT expressly reserve sovereign immunity by
entering into this Agreement and the Subrecipient expressly reserves governmental
immunity. Each of them specifically retains all immunities and defenses available
to them as sovereigns or governmental entities pursuant to Wyo. Stat. § 1-39-101,
et seq., and all other applicable law. The parties acknowledge that the State of
Wyoming has sovereign immunity and only the Wyoming Legislature has the
power to waive sovereign immunity. Designations of venue, choice of law,
enforcement actions, and similar provisions shall not be construed as a waiver of
sovereign immunity. The parties agree that any ambiguity in this Agreement shall
not be strictly construed, either against or for either party, except that any ambiguity
as to immunity shall be construed in favor of immunity.

U. Taxes. The Subrecipient shall pay all taxes and other such amounts required by
federal, state, and local law, including, but not limited to, federal and social security
taxes, workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, and sales taxes.

V. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated, without cause,
by the WYDOT upon thirty (30) days written notice. This Agreement may be
terminated by the WYDOT immediately for cause if the Subrecipient fails to
perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan
County
Page 16 of 18



BB.

Third-Party Beneficiary Rights. The parties do not intend to create in any other
individual or entity the status of third-party beneficiary, and this Agreement shall
not be construed so as to create such status. The rights, duties, and obligations
contained in this Agreement shall operate only between the parties to this
Agreement and shall inure solely to the benefit of the parties to this Agreement.
The provisions of this Agreement are intended only to assist the parties in
determining and performing their obligations under this Agreement.

Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in all provisions of this Agreement.

Titles Not Controlling. Titles of sections and subsections are for reference only
and shall not be used to construe the language in this Agreement.

Waiver. The waiver of any breach of any term or condition in this Agreement shall
not be deemed a waiver of any prior or subsequent breach. Failure to object to a
breach shall not constitute a waiver.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. Each counterpart,
when executed and delivered, shall be deemed an original and all counterparts
together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. Delivery by the Subrecipient
of an originally signed counterpart of this Agreement by facsimile or PDF shall be
followed up immediately by delivery of the originally signed counterpart to the
WYDOT.

Insurance Requirements. The Subrecipient is protected by the Wyoming
Governmental Claims Act, Wyo. Stat. § 1-39-101, et seq., and certifies that it is a
member of the Wyoming Association of Risk Management (WARM) pool or the
Local Government Liability Pool (LGLP), Wyo. Stat. § 1-42-201, et seq., and shall
provide a letter verifying its participation in the WARM or LGLP to the WYDOT.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE WAS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan

County
Page 17 of 18



9. Signatures. The parties to this Agreement, either personally or through their duly
authorized representatives, have executed this Agreement on the dates set out below and
certify that they have read, understood, and agreed to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

The Effective Date of this Agreement is the date of the signature last affixed to this page.

WYOMING DEPARTMENT OF

ATTEST: TRANSPORTATION:
Caitlin Casner, Secretary Keith R. Fulton, P.E., Assistant Chief
Transportation Commission of Wyoming Engineer, Engineering and Planning
Date
SHERIDAN COUNTY:
ATTEST:
Signature Nick Siddle, Commission Chairman
Print Name, Title Date

ATTORNEY GENERAL’S OFFICE: APPROVAL AS TO FORM

WW,M Foaner (2524
adison Barber, Aé)sjs)fnt Attorney General Date

Date agreement prepared: |0 4

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Agreement between Wyoming Department of Transportation, Local Government
Coordination Office and Sheridan County Federal Project CM25409, FY?25 Dust Suppression Project in Sheridan
County
Page 18 of 18



/8
©Eaei]  BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY CHRISTI HASWELL » TOM RINGLEY - NICK SIDDLE « HOLLY JENNINGS « LONNIE WRIGHT

————

AR WYOMING ¥ =1 1888

MEMORANDUM

TO: Commissioners

FROM: Cameron Duff

DATE: December 11, 2024

SUBJECT: Little Big Horn Canyon Fuels Mitigation Project Bids
Commissioners,

The County solicited bids for work on the Little Big Horn Canyon Fuels Mitigation Project.
A total of 4 companies attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting and those same 4 companies
submitted bids.

Results:

e CTC Disaster Response - $68,613.20 (Kansas)

e DeFord Timber Services - $71,565.00 (Wyoming)
e Juan Flores - $119,698.22 (Wyoming)

e JL Sons Logging - $170,515.00 (Wyoming)

If you provide a 5% bid preference for a Wyoming based contractor, the award could go to
DeFord Timber Services out of Otto, Wyoming as their bid was within 4.3% of the lowest
bid which was from CTC Disaster Response out of Topeka, Kansas. However, DeFord
Timber Services placed a restriction on their bid that if it snows more than 14”, then they
might want to either extend the contract date or renegotiate the value of their bid. No other
restrictions have been identified from the other contractors.

All of the contractors meet the minimum requirements of the project as outlined in the bid
documents. The original contract amount from the Wyoming Forestry Division for the
project was not to exceed $267,060. Recommendation to award the contract can go either
to CTC Disaster Response in the amount of $68,613.20 or to DeFord Timber Services in the
amount of $71,565.00. Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you,

Cameron d’_%

WYOMING
294 South Main Street — Suite B1 — Sheridan, Wyoming 82801-4855 Aa
Phone: 307-674-2900 — Fax: 307-674-2909 :



INVITATION TO BID

Notice is hereby given that Sheridan County is inviting “Qualified” General Contractors to
submit a sealed bid for furnishing labor, materials and equipment required to complete a 50.9-
acre Little Big Hom Canyon Fuels Treatment Project. Project includes thinning trees below 10”
DBH, masticating, or cutting and piling understory brush, slash, and dead down woody
materials, with option to remove cut Forest Products. Project can be accessed via Little Big
Horn Canyon Road. Work is to be completed within one hundred and seventy-fifty days (150)
from December 16, 2024 through May 15, 2025. A Mandatory pre-bid meeting and mandatory
site visit will be held starting at 10:00 a.m., November 22, 2024, at the state line on Little Big
Horn Canyon Road. Little Big Horn Canyon Road is rough and rocky, it is suggested that
participants come prepared with transportation that will facilitate timely access to this unit.

Contract Documents can be picked up in the office of the Sheridan County Commissioners,
second floor, Courthouse addition, between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM. To receive contract
documents via e-mail, or mail call Cameron Duff 307-675 -2910 or email at
cduff@sheridancountywy.gov. Sealed bids marked “Little Big Hom Canyon Fuels Treatment
Project” will be accepted at County Commissioners’ Office, 224 S. Main Street, Suite B-1,
Sheridan, Wyoming 82801 until 2:00 PM December 3, 2024. At that time bids will be opened in
the Public Meeting Room, 2™ floor, Courthouse addition. Sheridan County reserves that right to
reject any and all bids and to waive any irregularities and informalities in the bid submittal and
evaluation process. The bidder will be required to comply with all applicable federal, state, and

local laws, and regulations.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
SHERIDAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
NICK SIDDLE, COMMISSION CHAIRMAN



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
AND DEFORD TIMBER SERVICES, LLC
FOR THE LITTLE BIGHORN CANYON FUELS TREATMENT PROJECT

PARTIES
The parties to this Agreement are The County of Sheridan, a political subdivision of the State of Wyoming,

(“County”) and DEFORD TIMBER SERVICES, LLC (hereinafter “Contractor”).

PURPOSE

The purpose of this Contract is to furnishing labor, materials and equipment required to complete a 50.9-acre
Little Bighorn Canyon Fuels Treatment Project. Project includes cutting, removing, masticating, chipping,
piling understory, brush, and clean-up of dead down woody materials, and cutting of trees.

TERM
This Contract is for a term of one hundred and fifty (150) consecutive days from December 18, 2024, through

May 17, 2025., unless sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions herein.

CONTRACT PRICE, PAYMENT AND DOCUMENTS
a. County agrees to pay Contractor for completion of the project a Not-To-Exceed total of seventy one

thousand five hundred sixty five dollars and zero cents ($71 ,565.00) upon receipt of Contractor Invoice.
Partial payments for completed unit or as agreed to in writing are permitted.

b. Any Forest Products harvested from the unit making up this project shall become the property of the
contractor and may be removed from the project area, except for pine firewood in units 9,10,11.

c. Contractor invoices are to be billed monthly and due on the 20" day of each month and payable upon
receipt by County at subsequent month-end warrant run. Amounts unpaid 30 days after receipt shall
bear interest from the date of receipt by County at the rate of 1% per month, or in the absence thereof, at

the legal rate prevailing in Wyoming.
d. The Contract Documents consist of the following:

i. Advertisement for Bids
ii. This Agreement
jiii. Project Maps (3), Vicinity Maps (2) (Exhibit A)
iv. Contractor’s executed Bid Form, (Exhibit B)
v. Project Unit Specifications, (Exhibit C)

vi. Insurance: The Contractor shall purchase and maintain in a company or companies lawfully
authorized to do business in the state of Wyoming with an A.M. Best Rating of A or better,
such insurance as will protect it from the claims set forth below which may arise out of or
result from Contractor's operations under the Contract Documents and for which Contractor
may be legally liable, whether such operations be by itself or by any subcontractor, supplier,
or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or by anyone for whose acts any
of them may be liable:

1. claims under workers' or workmen's compensation, disability benefit and other
similar employee benefit acts which are applicable to the Work;

2. claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease,
or death of Contractor's employees;

1



3. claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease or death of any
person other than Contractor's employees;

4. claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage which
are sustained: (1) by any person, as a result of an offense directly or indirectly
related to the employment of such person by Contractor; or (2) by another
person;

5. claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or
destruction of tangible property, including loss of use resulting therefrom,;

6. claims for damages because of bodily injury, or death of a person or property
damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of any motor vehicle;
and

7. claims involving contractual liability insurance applicable to Contractor's
indemnification obligations as set forth elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

8. The Contractor shall pay any and all premiums and other applicable payments
in order that all workers shall be afforded coverage under Wyoming Worker’s
Compensation law. The Contractor shall require all subcontractors to provide
the same coverage under the Wyoming Statutes.

9. The Contractor shall provide his own insurance for tools and equipment located
at the job site.

The Contractor's Commercial General Liability Insurance shall include premises — operations
(including explosion, collapse, and underground coverage), elevators, independent contractors,
completed operations, and blanket contractual liability on all written contracts, all including
broad form property damage coverage.

All general and automobile liability policies shall include County as an insured.

The foregoing liability insurance coverages shall be in the minimum amounts as set forth in the
Project Manual except that the commercial general liability and automobile liability coverages
shall be in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 each. By requiring the minimum insurance
coverages, County shall not be deemed in any way to limit any of the other obligations or
liability of Contractor.

All of Contractor's liability coverage shall be deemed primary insurance to any similar
insurance Owner may obtain for its own benefit, which shall be excess or secondary but not
contributing insurance.

Such insurance shall not be written for amounts less than the following by Insurance Companies
acceptable to the County.

1. Workmen’s compensation as required by all applicable Federal, State, or other
laws including Employer’s Liability with a limit of at least: $500,000

2. Comprehensive General Liability all on the occurrence basis including:
Contractors Liability, County’s and Contractors Protection, Completed
Operations (kept in force for at least two years after date of final completion),

2



Products Liability, Broad Form Property Damage, Remove XCU exclusions
(explosion, collapse, underground property, damage), Personal Injury Liability

Each Occurrence
Aggregate

Bodily Injury:
Each Person
Each Occurrence

Property Damage:
Each Accident
Aggregate

Or combined single limit of:

$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$ 500,000
$ 500,000

$1,000,000

3. Combination of underlying Comprehensive
Liability for lesser limits with remaining limits
provided by an Excess or Umbrella Liability

4. Comprehensive Automobile Liability
including non—ownership and hired car
coverage as well as owned vehicles:

Bodily Injury:

Each Person
Each Occurrence

Property Damage:

Each Occurrence

Or combined single limit of:

$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$ 500,000

$1,000,000

vii. The following may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the
Agreement and are not attached hereto:

1. Notice of Award
2. Notice to Proceed

5. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR

a. Contractor shall provide Contractual services for the project. Services shall be performed in a manner
consistent with professional skill and care (see project description and prescription (Exhibit O).

b. Contractor will adhere to the removal and clean-up of materials described in Exhibit C.

c. Reclamation — Any surface areas with deep rutting (2 inches) or significant disturbances resulting from
Contractor’s use of heavy equipment shall be reclaimed at Contractor’s expense.

6. RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNTY

a. County shall provide full information about the objectives, schedule, constraints and existing conditions
of the project, and shall establish a budget for the project. County shall employ Contractor to perform

the vegetation treatment on the project.

3



County shall obtain and pay for any necessary approvals, easements, assessments and charges.

County shall provide all inspection services, act as liaison between landowner and Contractor, and
provide all administrative services associated with this project.

TERMINATION

a.

This Agreement may be terminated:
1. by either party at any time if the other party breaches this Agreement; or
1i. upon mutual written agreement by the parties.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

AMENDMENTS. Any changes, modifications, revisions or amendments to this Contract which are
mutually agreed upon by the parties to this Contract shall be incorporated by written instrument,
executed and signed by all parties to this Contract.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA). The parties shall not discriminate against a
qualified individual with a disability and shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act P.L.
101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq., and/or any properly promulgated rules and regulations related
thereto.

APPLICABLE LAW/VENUE. The construction, interpretation and enforcement of this Contract shall
be governed by the laws of the State of Wyoming. The Courts of the State of Wyoming shall have
jurisdiction over this Contract and the parties, and the venue shall be the Fourth Judicial District,
Sheridan County, Wyoming.

ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACT NOT USED AS COLLATERAL. Neither party shall assign or otherwise
transfer any of the rights or delegate any of the duties set forth in this Contract without the prior written
consent of the other party. Contractor shall not use this Contract, or any portion thereof, for collateral
for any financial obligation, without the prior written permission of County.

NONWAIVER. Any waiver by County of any breach of any covenant herein to be kept and performed
by Contractor shall not be deemed as a continuing waiver and shall not operate to prevent County from
declaring a forfeiture for any succeeding breach, either of the same or other covenant.

ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement is not assignable without the prior written consent of the parties.

EFFECT OF TERMINATION. All covenants of this Agreement that should, by their nature, survive
the termination of this Agreement shall so survive.

MONITOR ACTIVITIES. County shall have the right to monitor all Agreement related activities of the
Contractor and the Contractor. This shall include, but not be limited to, the right to make site
inspections at any time, to bring experts and consultants on site to examine or evaluate completed work
or work in progress, and to observe all Contractor and Contractor personnel in every phase of
performance of contract related work.

NOTICES. All notices arising out of the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and given to
the parties at the addresses provided in this Agreement, either by regular mail, or delivery in person.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Contractor shall keep informed of and comply with all applicable
municipal, state, and federal ordinances, laws, rules, and regulations as they are now or as they are
enacted and shall not engage in any practice which may have the effect of discriminating against any

4




entity on the basis of disability, age, sex, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, or religion.

2 DEBARMENT. To ensure contactor is eligible for this Contract the Contractor shall submit
form AD-1048 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.
b. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Contractor shall submit form AD-1049 CERTIFICATION
REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS (GRANTS) ALTERNATIVE I - FOR
GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS to comply with regulations.

ETHICS. Contractor shall keep informed and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws
and regulations in the performance of this Agreement and any and all ethical standards governing

Contractor’s profession.

INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless County and its officers,
agents, employees, successors and assignees from any and all claims, lawsuits, losses and liability of
any nature whatsoever arising from or in connection with the negligent performance of any duties or
obligations by Contractor related in any way to this Agreement, including but not limited to any claims,
Jawsuits, losses or liability arising out of Contractor’s malpractice.

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall in any way be deemed a waiver of
any of the requirements or immunities provided by the Wyoming Governmental Claims Act.

NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY INTENDED. This Agreement is for the benefit of the parties
hereto and is not intended for the benefit of any third party.

INDEPENDENCE OF AGREEMENT. Contractor is an independent contractor and nothing herein is
intended, or should be construed as creating a relationship of partners, agency, representative, or
employee/employer for any purpose.

PARAGRAPH HEADINGS. The paragraph headings contained herein are for convenience in reference
and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Agreement.

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS. The obligations of the parties are conditioned upon the availability of
funds appropriated or allocated for use under this Agreement from any governmental source. If funds
are not allocated and available as needed for the parties to perform this Agreement, the Agreement may
be terminated at the end of the period for which funds, if any, are available. Each party shall notify the
other party at the earliest possible time if the Agreement will or may be affected by a shortage of funds.
No penalty shall accrue to either party in the event this provision is exercised, and neither party shall be
obligated or liable for any future payments due or damages as a result of termination under this section.
This provision shall not be construed to permit either party to terminate this Agreement in order to
engage in a similar agreement with another party.

FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be liable for failure to perform under this Agreement if such
failure to perform arises out of causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the
nonperforming party. Such causes may include but are not limited to acts of the public enemy, fires,
floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather. This
provision shall become effective only if the party failing to perform immediately notifies the other party
of the extent and nature of the problem, limits delay in performance to that required by the event and
takes all reasonable steps to minimize delays.

AGREEMENT CONSTRUCTION. This Agreement has been negotiated between the parties and no
preference shall be given to any party should the construction of any term of this Agreement be required

by a Court.

5



t. ATTORNEY’S FEES. In the event this Agreement is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection
or enforcement of this Agreement, Contractor shall pay County reasonable attorney’s fees for services
rendered to County in that regard.

u. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a Court of competent
jurisdiction to be unenforceable, that portion shall not affect the enforceability of the remaining
provisions of this Agreement and the parties may renegotiate the terms affected by the severance.

v. TAXES. Contractor shall pay all taxes and other such amounts required by federal, state and local law,
including, but not limited to, federal and social security taxes, workers’ compensation, unemployment
insurance and sales taxes.

w. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This 6-page document constitutes the entire agreement of the parties,
superseding all previous agreement between the parties.

SIGNATURES. By signing below, the parties agree to the above-terms. Additionally, any person signing
certifies he or she has the authority to bind his or her respective party to this Agreement.

The effective date of this Agreement is the date of the signature last affixed to this page.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, DEFORD TIMBER SERVICES, LLC
SHERIDAN COUNTY WYOMING 1415 State Highway 30
224 S. Main Street, Suite B1 Otto, Wyoming 82434

Sheridan, Wyoming 82801

BY:
Nick Siddle, Chairman Date Contractor Date
ATTEST: ATTEST:
Eda Thompson, County Clerk Date Secretary Date



BIDDING AND CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS
Little Bighom Canyon Fuels Treatment Project
Exhibit B

{. THE FOLLOWING PROPOSAL IS HEREBY MADE TO:

OWNER: County of Sheridan
ADDRESS: 224 South Main Street Suite B-1, Sheridan, WY 82801

2 The Undersigned hereby proposes and agrees to furnish all labor, materials and

equipment required to complete the 50.9-acre Little Bighorn Canyon Fuels Treatment

Project. Project includes removing, masticating or piling, and crushing, understory,
brush, and clean-up of dead down woody materials, and removal of trees. Project Unit

Prescriptions are included in Exhibit C of this solicitation.

3. In submitting this Bid the Bidder represents, as more fully set forth in the Agreement,
that Bidder has examined the site and locality where the Work is to be performed, the legal
requirements (federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations) and the
conditions affecting cost, progress or performance of the Work and has made such
independent investigations as Bidder deems necessary.

Total Bid Written In Words:

Sevaﬁ’y One T housard, Flve lundred  SiX /’y Five,
: " ‘o (or CLUTER wna(/ﬁ;b/yjr 5}@;/ camawf;fs water
’Z’? ;ﬂ ‘7/":,% n’f/w " { yonll 1reedd fo be rem‘yd{vaifcaé oY g Pcwrﬁé




Bid per unmit

1 s j).355.60
2 $ [(25/3.60
3 $ 7873.60
4 $ [.355 o
6 § 7723.00
7 S (5%¢ 60
8 $ 140,60

9 S [5099.z0
10 $ 325340
11 $  703.060
TOTAL BID $ 71,565.00

PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS

r % OF
NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR | ITEM NO. OR SUBCONTRACT | TOTAL
OR DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT BID
MAJOR SUPPLIERS WORK TO BE SUBLET (DOLLARS) | AMOUNT
“NAME OF SOBCONTRACTOR  ITEM NO. OR [ SUBCONTRACT % OF
OR | DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT TOTAL
MAJOR SUPPLIERS WORK TO BE SUBLET (DOLLARS) BID
1 AMOUNT

4. The Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, firm
or corporation and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of any group,
association, organization or corporation. Further the Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or
solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid nor has the Bidder solicited or induced any




person, firm or corporation to refrain from bidding and the Bidder has not sought by collusion to

obtain for himself any advantage over any other Bidder or the OWNER.
a. The Bidder has given the OWNER written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities or

discrepancies he has discovered in the Contract Documents.

5. The undersigned agrees to perform all the Work described in the Contract Agreement and
according to the plan drawings.

6. The undersigned understands that the OWNER reserves the right to reject any or all bids or to
waive any informality or technicality in any proposal in the interest of the OWNER.

7. The above Bid is hereby respectfully submitted by:
Company Name: Dgﬁ;f d Timber Oc vices e
By: Wﬁi N /(5/??(0/7 Dé/;f‘c‘( ~_ Date: ZZ_/_ 5& ZY

(Signature and printed name)

Title: Ouwner Phone: 307‘ 2/ 3~ 70 go

Business Address 415 /71@’}/&0’4}’ 20
cty Ot suezip WY  FZY37




DeFord Timber 5
1415 State Highway 30
Otto, Wyoming 82434
(307) 213-9090
defordtimber@gmail.com

Little Bighorn Canyon Fuels
Treatment

December 3 2024
OVERVIEW

Cost per Acre: $1,406

50.9 acre total: $71,565

Objectives

1. Treat all (1,2,3,4,6,7.8,9,10,11) units according to specifications in Exhibit C of Project plan

2. Complete project within 5 weeks from start date*

* This Bid proposal is for current conditions. Snow amounts greater than 14 inches will need

to be renegotiated, or postponed.
SPECIFICATIONS

See Exhibit C of Project plan

Work Plan

DeFord Timber Services will be working with a crew of two to four individuals working 8 to 10
hour days. We plan to complete this job in 5 weeks* from the start date. We seek minimal impact
on all projects by limiting equipment use to that which is necessary to achieve project goals. Most
Units will be treated with forestry mulcher where possible. Hand cutting and chipper will be
utilized in areas where muliching is not possible. Some hand piling may be necessary on steeper
slopes. We take the time to build piles that promote maximum consumption when burned and in
locations that minimize tree scorch. Power may need to be turned off at times in order to safely

remove trees. We will notify the agency representative prior to work in these areas.



Safety

Workplace safety is paramount in ensuring our company is able to me
purposes on every job. A safe workplace begins with safe workers who look out not only for

themselves but also anyone inside their work zone. Further, our workers should identify any other
fore they become an

et its goals and

values or risks within the work zone in order to remove Of mitigate risks be

issue.
In the interest of worker health, task appropriate PPE will be waorn at all times.

Working with or near @ running chainsaw: gloves, long sleeves, long pants, saw chaps, boots, eye
protection, ear protection, and helmet (where any overhead hazard may be present)

Equipment operation: ear protection, adherence to manufacturer recommendation

Felling is an important function of our job and comes with certain inherent risks. To ensure safest

practice, when engaged in felling operations workers will adhere 10 the previously noted
standards. Additionally the felter will ensure a clear lay and appropriately notify persons within
the immediate zone as to his intent. When necessary and prudent a spotter will he used to keep

eyes on known hazards and prevent traffic into the immediate zone.

Eire safety begins with prevention. In order to reduce fire risks all equipment must be regularly
maintained and properly cleaned. Equipment that shows signs of excessive heat or has any
damage that may cause sparking (i.e. chainsaw bar, muffler) will be fixed or replaced immediately.
In the event the issue can't be solved in the field the unit will be placed out of service until the
issue can be resolved. At minimum company Vehicles will be equipped with fire extinguishers

and shovels. Appropriaté agency authorities will be notified of any fires started.

Experience

DeFord Timber Services LLC. is a family owned and operated business started in 2022. While
being a new business we aren’t new to the industry. Prior to formation, owners Kenton and
Stephen DeFord both worked for federal, state, and local agencies garnering a combined 17
years experience in fire and fuels work. Our background affords not only the skills and training for
fuels reduction, but also an understanding of how fuels reduction affects fire suppression. We
understand what it takes to do the job and do it right. Since starting the business we have
completed 13 hand cutting contracts utilizing a combination of hand and mechanized treatments.
We seek to provide services that are low impact and contribute to responsible and sustainable

forest management.



*Project time frame may be extended due to weather/unforeseen events



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
AND CTC DISASTER RESPONSE
FOR THE LITTLE BIGHORN CANYON FUELS TREATMENT PROJECT

PARTIES
The parties to this Agreement are The County of Sheridan, a political subdivision of the State of Wyoming,

(“County”) and CTC DISASTER RESPONSE (hereinafter “Contractor”).

PURPOSE

The purpose of this Contract is to furnishing labor, materials and equipment required to complete a 50.9-acre
Little Bighomn Canyon Fuels Treatment Project. Project includes cutting, removing, masticating, chipping,
piling understory, brush, and clean-up of dead down woody materials, and cutting of trees.

TERM
This Contract is for a term of one hundred and fifty (150) consecutive days from December 18, 2024, through

May 17, 2025., unless sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions herein.

CONTRACT PRICE, PAYMENT AND DOCUMENTS
a. County agrees to pay Contractor for completion of the project a Not-To-Exceed total of sixty eight

thousand six hundred thirteen dollars and 20 cents ($68,613.20) upon receipt of Contractor Invoice.
Partial payments for completed unit or as agreed to in writing are permitted.

b. Any Forest Products harvested from the unit making up this project shall become the property of the
contractor and may be removed from the project area, except for pine firewood in units 9,10,11.

c. Contractor invoices are to be billed monthly and due on the 20% day of each month and payable upon
receipt by County at subsequent month-end warrant run. Amounts unpaid 30 days after receipt shall
bear interest from the date of receipt by County at the rate of 1% per month, or in the absence thereof, at

the legal rate prevailing in Wyoming.
d. The Contract Documents consist of the following:

i. Advertisement for Bids
ii. This Agreement
iii. Project Maps (3), Vicinity Maps (2) (Exhibit A)
iv. Contractor’s executed Bid Form, (Exhibit B)
v. Project Unit Specifications, (Exhibit C)

vi. Insurance: The Contractor shall purchase and maintain in a company or companies lawfully
authorized to do business in the state of Wyoming with an A.M. Best Rating of A or better,
such insurance as will protect it from the claims set forth below which may arise out of or
result from Contractor's operations under the Contract Documents and for which Contractor
may be legally liable, whether such operations be by itself or by any subcontractor, supplier,
or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or by anyone for whose acts any
of them may be liable:

1. claims under workers' or workmen's compensation, disability benefit and other
similar employee benefit acts which are applicable to the Work;

2. claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease,
or death of Contractor's employees;

|



3. claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease or death of any
person other than Contractor's employees;

4. claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage which
are sustained: (1) by any person, as a result of an offense directly or indirectly
related to the employment of such person by Contractor; or (2) by another
person;

5. claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or
destruction of tangible property, including loss of use resulting therefrom;

6. claims for damages because of bodily injury, or death of a person or property
damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of any motor vehicle;
and

7. claims involving contractual liability insurance applicable to Contractor's
indemnification obligations as set forth elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

8. The Contractor shall pay any and all premiums and other applicable payments
in order that all workers shall be afforded coverage under Wyoming Worker’s
Compensation law. The Contractor shall require all subcontractors to provide
the same coverage under the Wyoming Statutes.

9. The Contractor shall provide his own insurance for tools and equipment located
at the job site.

The Contractor's Commercial General Liability Insurance shall include premises — operations
(including explosion, collapse, and underground coverage), elevators, independent contractors,
completed operations, and blanket contractual liability on all written contracts, all including
broad form property damage coverage.

All general and automobile liability policies shall include County as an insured.

The foregoing liability insurance coverages shall be in the minimum amounts as set forth in the
Project Manual except that the commercial general liability and automobile liability coverages
shall be in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 each. By requiring the minimum insurance
coverages, County shall not be deemed in any way to limit any of the other obligations or
liability of Contractor.

All of Contractor's liability coverage shall be deemed primary insurance to any similar
insurance Owner may obtain for its own benefit, which shall be excess or secondary but not
contributing insurance.

Such insurance shall not be written for amounts less than the following by Insurance Companies
acceptable to the County.

1. Workmen’s compensation as required by all applicable Federal, State, or other
laws including Employer’s Liability with a limit of at least: $500,000

2. Comprehensive General Liability all on the occurrence basis including:
Contractors Liability, County’s and Contractors Protection, Completed
Operations (kept in force for at least two years after date of final completion),

2



Products Liability, Broad Form Property Damage, Remove XCU exclusions
(explosion, collapse, underground property, damage), Personal Injury Liability

Each Occurrence
Aggregate

Bodily Injury:
Each Person
Each Occurrence

Property Damage:

Each Accident
Aggregate

Or combined single limit of:

$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$ 500,000
$ 500,000

$1,000,000

3. Combination of underlying Comprehensive
Liability for lesser limits with remaining limits
provided by an Excess or Umbrella Liability

4. Comprehensive Automobile Liability
including non—ownership and hired car
coverage as well as owned vehicles:

Bodily Injury:

Each Person
Each Occurrence

Property Damage:

Each Occurrence

Or combined single limit of:

$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$ 500,000

$1,000,000

vii. The following may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the
Agreement and are not attached hereto:

1. Notice of Award

2. Notice to Proceed

5. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR

a. Contractor shall provide Contractual services for the project. Services shall be performed in a manner
consistent with professional skill and care (see project description and prescription (Exhibit O).

b. Contractor will adhere to the removal and clean-up of materials described in Exhibit C.

c. Reclamation — Any surface areas with deep rutting (2 inches) or significant disturbances resulting from
Contractor’s use of heavy equipment shall be reclaimed at Contractor’s expense.

6. RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNTY

a. County shall provide full information about the objectives, schedule, constraints and existing conditions
of the project, and shall establish a budget for the project. County shall employ Contractor to perform

the vegetation treatment on the project.

3



County shall obtain and pay for any necessary approvals, easements, assessments and charges.

County shall provide all inspection services, act as liaison between landowner and Contractor, and
provide all administrative services associated with this project.

TERMINATION

a.

This Agreement may be terminated:
. by either party at any time if the other party breaches this Agreement; or
il. upon mutual written agreement by the parties.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

AMENDMENTS. Any changes, modifications, revisions or amendments to this Contract which are
mutually agreed upon by the parties to this Contract shall be incorporated by written instrument,
executed and signed by all parties to this Contract.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA). The parties shall not discriminate against a
qualified individual with a disability and shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act P.L.
101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq., and/or any properly promulgated rules and regulations related
thereto.

APPLICABLE LAW/VENUE. The construction, interpretation and enforcement of this Contract shall
be governed by the laws of the State of Wyoming. The Courts of the State of Wyoming shall have
jurisdiction over this Contract and the parties, and the venue shall be the Fourth Judicial District,
Sheridan County, Wyoming.

ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACT NOT USED AS COLLATERAL. Neither party shall assign or otherwise
transfer any of the rights or delegate any of the duties set forth in this Contract without the prior written
consent of the other party. Contractor shall not use this Contract, or any portion thereof, for collateral
for any financial obligation, without the prior written permission of County.

NONWAIVER. Any waiver by County of any breach of any covenant herein to be kept and performed
by Contractor shall not be deemed as a continuing waiver and shall not operate to prevent County from
declaring a forfeiture for any succeeding breach, either of the same or other covenant.

ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement is not assignable without the prior written consent of the parties.

EFFECT OF TERMINATION. All covenants of this Agreement that should, by their nature, survive
the termination of this Agreement shall so survive.

MONITOR ACTIVITIES. County shall have the right to monitor all Agreement related activities of the
Contractor and the Contractor. This shall include, but not be limited to, the right to make site
inspections at any time, to bring experts and consultants on site to examine or evaluate completed work
or work in progress, and to observe all Contractor and Contractor personnel in every phase of
performance of contract related work.

NOTICES. All notices arising out of the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and given to
the parties at the addresses provided in this Agreement, either by regular mail, or delivery in person.

COMPLIANCE WITH ILAWS. Contractor shall keep informed of and comply with all applicable
municipal, state, and federal ordinances, laws, rules, and regulations as they are now or as they are
enacted and shall not engage in any practice which may have the effect of discriminating against any

4




entity on the basis of disability, age, sex, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, or religion.

a. DEBARMENT. To ensure contactor is eligible for this Contract the Contractor shall submit
form AD-1048 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.
b. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Contractor shall submit form AD-1049 CERTIFICATION
REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS (GRANTS) ALTERNATIVE I - FOR
GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS to comply with regulations.

ETHICS. Contractor shall keep informed and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws
and regulations in the performance of this Agreement and any and all ethical standards governing

Contractor’s profession.

INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless County and its officers,
agents, employees, successors and assignees from any and all claims, lawsuits, losses and liability of
any nature whatsoever arising from or in connection with the negligent performance of any duties or
obligations by Contractor related in any way to this Agreement, including but not limited to any claims,
lawsuits, losses or liability arising out of Contractor’s malpractice.

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall in any way be deemed a waiver of
any of the requirements or immunities provided by the Wyoming Governmental Claims Act.

NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY INTENDED. This Agreement is for the benefit of the parties
hereto and is not intended for the benefit of any third party.

INDEPENDENCE OF AGREEMENT. Contractor is an independent contractor and nothing herein is
intended, or should be construed as creating a relationship of partners, agency, representative, or

employee/employer for any purpose.

PARAGRAPH HEADINGS. The paragraph headings contained herein are for convenience in reference
and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Agreement.

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS. The obligations of the parties are conditioned upon the availability of
funds appropriated or allocated for use under this Agreement from any governmental source. If funds
are not allocated and available as needed for the parties to perform this Agreement, the Agreement may
be terminated at the end of the period for which funds, if any, are available. Each party shall notify the
other party at the earliest possible time if the Agreement will or may be affected by a shortage of funds.
No penalty shall accrue to either party in the event this provision is exercised, and neither party shall be
obligated or liable for any future payments due or damages as a result of termination under this section.
This provision shall not be construed to permit either party to terminate this Agreement in order to
engage in a similar agreement with another party.

FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be liable for failure to perform under this Agreement if such
failure to perform arises out of causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the
nonperforming party. Such causes may include but are not limited to acts of the public enemy, fires,
floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather. This
provision shall become effective only if the party failing to perform immediately notifies the other party
of the extent and nature of the problem, limits delay in performance to that required by the event and
takes all reasonable steps to minimize delays.

AGREEMENT CONSTRUCTION. This Agreement has been negotiated between the parties and no
preference shall be given to any party should the construction of any term of this Agreement be required
by a Court.

5



t. ATTORNEY’S FEES. In the event this Agreement is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection
or enforcement of this Agreement, Contractor shall pay County reasonable attorney’s fees for services
rendered to County in that regard.

u. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a Court of competent
jurisdiction to be unenforceable, that portion shall not affect the enforceability of the remaining
provisions of this Agreement and the parties may renegotiate the terms affected by the severance.

V. TAXES. Contractor shall pay all taxes and other such amounts required by federal, state and local law,
including, but not limited to, federal and social security taxes, workers’ compensation, unemployment
insurance and sales taxes.

w. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This 6-page document constitutes the entire agreement of the parties,
superseding all previous agreement between the parties.
SIGNATURES. By signing below, the parties agree to the above-terms. Additionally, any person signing

certifies he or she has the authority to bind his or her respective party to this Agreement.

The effective date of this Agreement is the date of the signature last affixed to this page.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, CTC DISASTER RESPONSE
SHERIDAN COUNTY WYOMING 4011 SW 29th St. #130
224 S. Main Street, Suite Bl Topeka, Kansas 66614

Sheridan, Wyoming 82801

BY:
Nick Siddle, Chairman Date Contractor Date
ATTEST: ATTEST:
Eda Thompson, County Clerk Date Secretary Date



TECHNICAL PROPOSAL for:

Little Bighorn Canyon Fuels
Treatment Project

SHERIDAN
COUNTY

B2 WYOMING § 1511888

DUE: December 3, 2024
2:00 pm

Greg Gathers, President/CEO

4011 SW 29" St. #130 Topeka, KS 66614
Office (785) 478-9805 | Fax (785) 478-4195
ggathers@clcdisaster.com | www.ctedisaster.com

Office Locations in Kansas, Alabama, Florida, Texas
(Montana coming in late 2024)




l
|
|
|
|
I
|

| DISASTER RESPONSE #

ITABLE OF CONTENTS

B E L a oL DT o) ¢ O O R S S e e PRI 3
L b1 1 i O OO P U Py S S PO L o B T TSP E T TSI 3
FIITI OVEIVIEW ..o\ttt ee e oot e h e ea e ettt o1 et e e et St eb s eamas s s e s8R e 4
RS Hh 11O S O UU PR S pp ot s Um0 O AL TR 4
Past Performance, List of Work in Progress, & List of Awarded COMUIACES s eevereesessnsscssnssensenacesseresessesssssssssssissssssamsssnsinsssssess O
Management OVEIVIEW: v veeeee oo et e e esenes s era e s s s esossan e e en e e e AT SRRSO RS e s ST SR tm R e s 1
Traifing ANA CEITIIICALIONS .......e.eitee e ite e ee oottt e et eae e et s et eee e e s soc s a8 om R 1RSSR SRR 14
RESUITIES ... ovo e e ee e s aeheeeseneeeeeeees e eraFaon CHEAT AT versen skl okl e 0 oo SR L S AR o SRS S PSS S 16
PEOJECE TCSOUITES ... +veveevessseeseeeeseseesee s oseeeeesem s em e n s eees e ee et b8 dss et et ee S abes oo e e R e oS H s £ S eh bR E e 20
SUBCONIIACHIIE PLAN. ..o it out ettt e e st 4o ae s saeem ek ses s 484k eEL £ e E S s s ma s b 20
Local and Minority Participation e e s e samenmumsE e o SRS S S N R ST o R
Owned and 1€8SEA FQUIPIIEIIT ..ov.. oottt ettt e e e e ea e ettt deeEe s e s o8 s oa eSS £o 2o E e d et e b S0 822 s S 23
Saftey Information e A T A S S T A R A TR e e AP
Safety and Quality COonIIOL PIAN ......o.i it bt s iee e s b2 e s 22 e e s 2 e e oS a o E e E e e e nse e s i dD
Forms & Additional INFOITIALION ... ...oei ot eecotie ettt ettt h s aae e ehemab e e s raa e e oas 4 e a5 b S a4 S E g e SR e 41
2T oY 11 T IR Ay O O O OO P PSSP PR TR E S ST 41
Certificates, INSUIANCE & W-0 ...........iaiveevvsr esneesereessveesssesmeseoes sl oseaeeEe GR35 RSSO R iG55 s e s VN
Affirmative Action Plan ........................................................................................... 45

Page 2 of 48




injsASTER RESPONSE 4

INTRODUCTION.
TRANSMITTAL LETTER

County of Sheridan
224 South Main Street
Suite B-1

Sheridan, WY 82801

CTC Disaster Response, Inc. (CTC), formerly known as Custom Tree Care, Inc., is pleased to submit our proposal for the
Little Bighorn Canyon Fuels Treatment Project for your consideration. CTC has been in business for over 25 years and has
completed over $200,000,000 in successful projects with combined Executive and Management team experience of over 70
years. CTC has operated as prime contractor of over 175 projects in 27 states performing Debris Removal, Hazard Fuels
Reduction, Thinning, Mastication. Tree Trimming and Removal, TDS Reduction and Management, and other specialty

types of debris removal. We meet or exceed all the requirements of this Solicitation.

CTC is registered in the Great State of Wyoming and has never failed to complete a project or defaulted on any contract.
We hold oursclves to the highest standards of quality and professionalism. Our past performance is excellent, and we will
strictly adhere to all requirements of this project. CTC has com pleted several contracts of this nature in the past for DOT's,
School Districts, Municipalities (cities and towns), counties, states, and the federal government.

CTC will employ the use of 1-2 steel and rubber track type mulching units and hand chainsaw crews to complete

this project within the specifications required.

work practices will conform to these standards.

Our staff is trained in USACE, OSHA, ANSI and FEMA standards and all
forward to the opportunity to serve your needs.

If awarded, we will provide all additional documentation required. We look

Respectfully,

¥ ey
vy {/) b N
<

Greg Gathers
President/CEO

ISA & KAA Certified Arbarist
(MW-4172A)

Page 3 of 48




[ DISASTER PESPONSE |

'FIRM OVERVIEW

SUMMARY
CTC Disaster Response, Inc. is experienced in all aspects of debris response, recovery, and management.

S
>

YV V V V Vv Vv

Y V VY V¥V

Founded in 1999

Incorporated in Kansas in 2001
FEIN: 48-1245968

DUNS: 141755772

E-Verify: 588603

Unique Entity ID: FB3KDVEX57G4
Cage Code: 30CP1

Within the last 10 years CTC has not been involved in any litigation as a defendant pertaining to debris

removal,

CTC has no license sanctions.

CTC has not ever filed for bankruptcy.

CTC is not currently, nor has ever been disbarred from dcbris removal operations.

CTC has never defaulted on a contract, been terminated, or failed to complete any work awarded.

Page 4 of 48




e — — — ot s i © . S ol * A ) e _ e ot .

PAST PERFORMANCE, LIST OF WORK IN PROGRESS, & LIST OF AWARDED CONTR

NE

KS

KS

MS

MT

OK

GA

CLIENT CONTRACT

USDA

1240LP24P0
Forest
. 092
Service
|LHSF FY24
Wildfire
lowa DNR Restoration
Tree
Clearing
Ravenwood 3
i Private
Hunting
Landowner
Preserve
B
. O Private
Nichepor
Landowner
Farms
Debris
Lee Count
ee Lounly Removal
State of Debris
Montana Removal
Hazardous
City of Tree
Tulsa Trimming/
Removal
Debris
Removal
Jasper Tree
County Removal
and
Trimming

| DISASTER RESPONSE J |

CY/

PROJECT  Tons  2ATE
Bessey
Ranger 9/31/24
District Tree
Trimming
Forest Fire
Tree 6/16/24
Clearing
Mastication 2020-2024
Mastication 712024
Tornado 143,987 9/12/23
Flood

9/4/23
Straight Line
Winds NA 8/30/23
FOHIREG 126,593  7/9/23

CONTRACT
AMOUNT

$21,700

$1,127,850

Various

$22,000

$1,871,813

$5,977,958

$3,612,164

1,054,409

Jeffrey seago@dnr.iowa.gov

ACTS

CONTACT

Curtis Landreth
324 25 St.
Ogden, UT 84401-2310
(308) 360-1211
s.rlandreth@usda.gov

Curtis.
Jeff Seago
206 Polk St.
Pishgah, IA 51564

(712) 456-2924

Ken Corbett
10147 SW 61
Topeka, KS 66610
785-256-6444
ravenhpsc(@aol.com
Alex Nichepor
17282 T Road
Ness City, KS 675630
(785) 798-7069
bandnfarms@amail.com
Lee Bowdry
P.O.Box 1785
Tupelo, MS 38802
(662) 432-2950,
Ibowdry@co.lee.ms.us

Jake Ganieany
1956 Mt.Majo Street
Fort Harrison, MT 59636
(408) 417-9234
Jake ganieany@mt.gov

Brett Waligren
175 East 2™ Street
Tulsa, OK 74103
(918) 284-9017
bwallgren@cityoftulsa.org

Mike Benton
126 West Greene Street
Monticelio, GA 31064
(706) 468-4900 x310

Page 5 of 48




X

X

FL

FL

TN

TN

Debris
R Removal
C
H'L’;tgf And Disposal,
Tree Removal
& Trimming
Board of
i 152 Trees
Commission d Sty
ers of City ""; mp
of Fart emoval
Wayne
City of Debris
Taylor Removal
Seminole Vegetative
County Debris
Public Removal
Schoals and Disposal
Initial Road
FLDOT
Push
Fload
Humphreys Related
County Debris
Removal
City of Storm Debris
Waverly Removal

Ice Storm

City Three
Quadrant
Tree and
Stump
Removal

Ice Storm

Hurricane
lan

Hurricane
lan and
Nicole
DR-4673 /
D-4630

Flood

Flood

' DISASTER RESPONSE JF |

13,692  5/11/23

NA 4/25/2023

765,717  3/25/2023

9/20/2022

9/2/2022

11/20/2022

3,334 05/11/22
Tons

ey 05/05/22
Tons

163,790

161,922

4,794,881

$2,944 410

$341,715

$296,753

$1,351,500

Richard Rodriguez

500 W. Live oak Street

Hutto, TX 78634
(512) 621-9936

richardrodriguez@hultotx.gov

Derek Veit
1900 N Clinton St.

Fort Wayne, IN 46805

(260) 427-6400

Derek.veil@cilyoffortwayne.org

Jim Gray
1424 N Main St.
Taylor, TX 76574
(512) 352-5818

Jim gray@taylorlx.gov

Chris Breeze

400 E Lake Mary Blvd.

Sanford, FL 32773
(407) 320-7453

Steven Kelly

801 N Broadway Ave.

Bartow, FL 33803
(863)519-2762

slevenkelly@dot.st fl.us

Jessie Wallace
102 Thompson St.
Waverly, TN 37185

(931) 296-7795

iwallace@humphreystn.com

Corey Burket
210 Pearson Ave.
Waverly, TN 66871

(931) 296-2101

csburkel@yahoo.com

Page 6 of 48




LA

MS

MS

OK

OK

OK

co

New
Qrleans
Park IMP.
ASSN.

Warren
County

City of
Waveland

City of
Oklahoma
City -
Public
Works

City of
Oklahoma
City -
Utilities

City of the
Village

City of
Boulder

Debris
Removal

Debris
Removal

and Disposal

Emergency

Debris
Disposal

Emergency

Street

Access Tree

& Debris
Removal

Debris
Removal

Debris
Removal

Post
Disaster
Debris
Collection

[ pSASTER RESPONSE # ff

Hurricane
Ida
DR-4611
Sever 19,777
Winter CY
Storm
Hurricane 216,689
Zeta cYy
DR-4576
Severe 13799
Winter Tons
Storm
DR-4575
Severe 56,827
Winter Tons
Storm
DR-4575
Severe 33,227
Winter Cy
Storm
DR-4575
cY
Non
declared

09/19/21

04/12124

03/20/21

02/14/121

02/13/21

12/15/20

11/25/20

$775,774

$317,047

$1,864,747

$1,220,524

$5,026,386

$262,511

$752,659

Keith Hemel
1 Palm Dr.
New Orleans, LA 70124
(504) 483-9492
khemel@nocp.org

John Elfer
913 Jackson St.
Vicksburg, MS 39183
(601) 636-1544
johne@co.warren.ms.us

Mickey Lagasse
301 Coleman Ave.
Waveland, MS 39576
(228) 467-4134
mickey.lagasse1990@oullook com

Derek Johnson
1621 S Portland Ave.
Oklahoma City, OK 73108
(405)297-1517
derek johnson@oke.qov

Don Maisch
420 W Main St.

Ste. 5
Oklahoma City, OK 73102
(405)297-3140
don.maisch@oke.gov

Bruce Stone
2304 Manchester Dr.
The Village, OK 73120
(405)529-0000,
bruce stone@lhevillageok.org

Jeff Haley
1777 Broadway
Boulder, CO 80302
(303) 413-7233
haleyj@bouldercalorada.gov

Page 7 of 48




New
Orleans
Park IMP,
ASSN.

LA

University
FL of West
Florida

City of
Bertram

City of
Madrid

Tama
County
Conservati
on Board

City of
Toledo

City of
Gladbrook

——

Debris
Removal

Disaster
Debris
Removal

Vegetative
Debris
Removal &
Disposal

Debris
Removal &
Disposal

Debris
Removal,
Reduction &
Disposal

Debris
Removal,
Reduction &
Disposal

Debris
Removal,
Reduction &
Disposal

Tropical
Storm Zeta

EM-3549

Hurricane
Sally

DR-4564

Derecho

DR-4557

Derecho

DR-4557

Derecho

DR-4557

Derecho

DR-4557

Derecho

DR-4557

[ DISASTER RESPONSE f & |
11/09/20

8'5::'5 10/26/20
20(';?9 10/20/20

! ;E;S 10/17/20
2535 10/10/20
4SCI3Y1 2 10/04/20
150‘5Y21 10/03/20

$208,768

$555,335

$222,274

$36,063

$109,804

$468,016

$185,571

Keith Hemel
1 Palm Dr.
New Orleans, LA 70124
(504) 483-9492
khemel@nocp.arg

Phillip Etheridge
11000 University Pkwy.
Pensacola, FL 32514
(850) 390-3935
petheridge@uwl.edu

Dave Hunt
(563) 920-2870
Dhunt2003@gamil.com

Tom Brawn
304 S Water St.
Madrid, |A 50156
(515) 795-3930,
mayor@madridiowa.org

Stephen Mayne
2283 Park Rd.
Toledo, 1A 52342
(641) 484-2231
tech@tamacounty.org

Brian Sokol
1007 S Prospect Dr.
Toledo, IA 52342
(641) 484-2160
mavyor@ioledoiowa.gov

319 2 st
Gladbrook, IA 50635
(641) 473-2582

Page 8 of 48




X

X

MS

MS

TN

TN

Debris
City of Removal,
Tama Reduction &
Disposal
Willacy Debris
County Removal
City of
Rayrlnyosdvn Debris
Removal
le
City of Storm Debris
. Removal &
Corinth )
Disposal
Debris
Lee C
ESIEEunty Removal
Debris
Wilson Clearance,
County Removal &
Disposal
Debris
Putnam Clearance,
County Removal &
Disposal

Derecho

DR-4557

Hurricane
Hanna

EM-3530

Hurricane
Hanna

EM-3530

Tropical
Storm Olga

Tornado

Tornado

 DISASTER RESPONSE N ff

169,608
CY

2,006
cY

42327
cY

181,461
CcY

138,770
cY

35,400
cY

76,521
cY

09/29/20

09/15/20

09/15/20

06/19/20

06/01/20

06/01/20

05/01/20

$1,447,556

$13,641

$262,831

$1,9585,762

$2,850,608

$650,971

$728,690

Alyssa Hoskey
305 Siegel St.
Tama, IA 52339
(641) 484-3822

Frank Tomes
(956) 689-5456
willems@prontonet.net

Gilbert Gonzales
142 S 71 St.
Raymondville, TX 78580
(956) 689-2443 ext 1408
mayor@raymandvilietx.us

Cilayton Mills
(662) 415-0855
cm_@belisouth.net

Lee Bowdry
P.O. Box 1785
Tupelo, MS 38802
(662) 432-2950,

|bowdiy@co.lee ms.us

Aaron Maynard
228 E Main St.
Lebanon, TN 37087
(615) 443-2630

maynarda@wilsoncountyn.qov

Randy Porter
300 E Spring St.
Cookeville, TN 38501
(931) 526-2161

randy.porler@pulnamcoyntytn.gov

Page 9 of 48




TN

TN

KS

KS

NC

NC

NC

City of
Cookeville

City of
Waverly

Douglas
County
Public
Works

City of
Shawnee,
KS

Carteret
County

Pamlico
County

Town of
Hope Mills

Debris
Clearance,
Removal &

Disposal

Debris
Removal

Tornado
Disaster
Debris
Removal

Tree
Trimming &
Emergency
Tree Debris

Removal

Vegetative &
C&D Debris
Removal

Vegetative &
C&D Debris
Removal

Vegetative &
C&D Debris
Removal

Tornado

Tropical
Storm Olga

Hurricane
Florence

DR-4393

Hurricane
Florence

DR-4393

Hurricane
Fiorence

DR-4393

45,606
cY

22,558
CcY

49,861
cY

98,278
CcYy

8,479
cY

|\ DISASTER RESPONSE i § |

05/01/20

04/03/20

09/01/19

08/01/19

03/13/19

02/25/19

02/05/19

$446,716

$200,631

$144,997

Varies

$353,340

James Mills
45 E Broad St.
Cookeville, TN 38501
(931) 520-5241
jam@cookeville-tn.gov

Corey Burket
210 Pearson Ave.
Waverly, TN 66871

(931) 296-2101

Chad Voigt
3755 E 25" Gt.
Lawrence, KS 66046
(785) 832-5293
cvoigl@douglascountyks.org

Michelle Distler / Steve Bialek
11110 Johnson Dr.
Shawnee, KS 66203
(913) 634-5883
mdistle@cityolshawnee.org

Randy Cantor
3820 Bridges St.
Ste. D
Morehead City, NC 28557
(252) 728-8545

randy.cantor@carleretcountync.goy

$847,214

$65,288

Tim Buck
302 Main St.
Bayboro, NC 28515
(252) 745-3133
tim.buck@pamlicocounty org

Don Sisko
5770 Rockfish Rd.
Hope Mills, NC 28348
(910) 429-3384
dsisko@lownofhopemills.com

Page 10 cf 48




[ DISASTER RESPONSE S

Athina Williams
Vegetative & Hurricane 63 River Rd.
Town of . .
B‘;Nri'”‘; C&D Debris  Florence 47&35 12111118 $345,365 Belville, NC 28451
Removal (910) 371-2456
DR-4393 t_o_wlﬁd_mi_nig[a_tg[@_lg_wn_o[heivi_ll_c-:._c_om
Mary C Coker
Broward Debris 600 SE Third Ave.
County Removal & 11/30/18 $1,491,665 Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301
Schools Disposal (754) 321-0505

may_y_.coker@hrf.awarcl_sgﬂqgl_ﬁ_.cp_s_1_1

Zach Steffey

Town of Vegetative & Hurricane 87 698 102 Dolphin St.

Cape C&D Debris Florence oy 11/19/18 $566,344 Cape Carteret, NC 28584
Carteret Removal (252) 393-8483
DR-4393 zstelfey@capecarleret.org

Brian Stanberry

Town of Vegetative & Hurricane 60.508 1121 N Lake Park Blvd.

Carolina C&D Debris Florence cY 11/15/18 $339,387 Carolina Beach, NC 28428
Beach Removal (910) 458-8291
DR-4393 brian.slanbery@carolinabeach.orq
Noelle Woods
Wayne Debris Hurricane 224 E Walnut St.
County Removal Florence 49 CY 11/13/18 $3,624 Goldsbaro, NC 27530
(919) 705-1714
DR-4393 noelie.wocds@waynegov.com
Mark Eakes

701 Front St.

Vegetative &  Hurricane
Town of .
© C&D Debris Florence 48470 11/05/18 $372,332 Beaufort, NG 28516
Beaufort cY '
Removal (252) 904-6477
DR-4393 m.eakes@beauforlne.org
Jayne Calhoun
Vegetative & Hurricane 427 Sherwood Ave.
Town of
ownof oD Debris  Florence  “00%7  41/01/18  $287,926 Cedar Paint, NC 28584
Cedar Paint cY
Remaval (252) 393-7898
DR-4393 jcalhoun@cedarpoinine.orq

Page 11 of 48




NC

TN

FL

FL

FL

NC

KS

Town of
Wrightsville
Beach

City of
Memphis

South
Broward
Drainage

District

Town of
Bay Harbor
Islands

City of
West Park

Wayne
County

Shawnee
County

Vegetative &
C&D Debris
Removal

Emergency
Storm Debris
Removal

Debris
Removal &
Disposal

Debris
Removal &
Disposal

Debris
Removal &
Disposal

Debris
Removal &
Disposal

Line
Clearance,
Tree
Trimming,
Stump
Removal &
Emergency
Services

[ DISASTER RESPONSE §F & |

Hurricane

9,885
Fl ! 10/
orence oy 26/18
DR-4393
06/30/18
Hurricane
1,110
Irma cy 03/15/18
DR-4337
Hurricane
Irma 7,769
oy 10/19/17
DR-4337
Hurricane
3,207
Irma cY ooMen7
DR-4337
Hurricane
Matthew 11/14/16
DR-4285
09/22/16

$121,679

$136,632

$193,442

$167,467

$30,000

$28,072

$225,439

Tim Owens
321 Causeway Dr.
Wrightsville Beach, NC 28480
(910) 239-1700
towens@lowb.org

Barry Levine
(901) 237-2805

Kevin Hart
6591 SW 160 Ave.
Southwest Ranches, FL 33331
(954) 680-3337 x208
kevin@shdd.org

Jordan Lecnard
9665 Bay Harbor Islands
Bay Harbor Islands, FL 33154
(305) 206-8487
wlmiami@yahoo.com

Dan Millien
1965 S State Rd. 7
West Park, FL 33023
(954) 964-0824
dmillien@cityofweslpark.org

Noelle Woods
224 E Walnut St.
Goldsboro, NC 27530
(919) 705-1714
noelle.woods@waynegqov.com

Tom Hammer
200 SE 7" St
Topeka, KS 66603
(785) 251-2663

Page 12 of 48




——— ——

City of
NC Goldsboro

City of
co Boulder

City of
L Quincy

Vegetative
Debris
Remaval

Emergency
Tree &
Debris

Removal

Storm
Damaged
Tree
Removal &
Trimming

Hurricane
Matthew

DR-4285

' DisAsTER PESPONSE |

08/04/16

05/31/18

10/01/15

$112,576

$420,710

$275,400

Tracy Barber
(919) 580-4393

1777 Broadway
Boulder, GO 80302
(303) 441-3230
purchasing@bouldercolorado.qov

Jon Vrandenburg
730 Maine St.
Quincy, IL 82301
(217) 257-9380

Page 13 of 48




'MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW
TRAINING AND CERTIFICATIONS

ISA Certified Arborist — Greg Gathers
FDOT Intermediate Maintenance of Traffic
OSHA 30 Hour Safety — Greg Gathers, Jeremey Br
CPR & First Aid Certified — Greg Gathers, Jeremy
Debris Management Training at NHC —
EMI Debris Management Course — Greg Gathers, J
USACE Certificate, Construction Quality
US Homeland Security TWIC Certificate — Johnny
TEEX, Disaster Preparcdness & Management, Ope
Osborne

[S-100 — Maura Gathers, Johnny Qsborne

1S-125 — Greg Gathers, Jeremy Britton,

[S-200 — Greg Gathers, Jeremy Britto

vVVYVVYVYVYYYY

1S-632 — Intro to Debris Operations — Greg Gathers,
1S-633 — Johnny Osborne

[S-634 — Intro into FEMA’s P
1S-700 — NIMS — Greg Gather
15-800 — Greg Gathers, Jeremy Britton, Maura

VVYVYVVYYVYYY

Greg Gathers
President/Chiel Executive Officer since 1999

e 25 years’ experience asa certified arborist

e 11 years’ experience in wildland and structural fire
e Supervised crews on over 100 gov
Jeremy Britton

Chief Operating Officer

°

I
|
I_
l
|
l
l

Control Certificate -- Greg
itton

Management for C

ublic Assistance — Gre
5. Jeremy Britton, Maura Gathers, Johnny Osborne
Gathers, Johnny Osborne

Gathers, Jeremey Britton

Britton, Maura Gathers, Johnny Osborne

Greg Gathers, Jeremy Britton

eremy Britton
ontractlors — Johnny Osborne
Osborne

rations and Planning for all-1lazard Lvents Cert, — Johnny

n, Maura Gathers,
1S-253 — Greg Gathers, Jeremy Britton, Maura Gathers,

Jeremy Britton, Maura Gathers, Johnny Osborne, Jack Cohagen

g Gathers, Jeremy Britton, Maura Gathers, Jack Cohagen

BS in Agriculture Technology Management, Kansas State University

fighting

ernment contracts

Supervised crews on over 100 government contracts

Page 14 of 48




Sean Kennedy, CPA

Chief Financial Officer
Certified Public Accountant

mﬁﬁﬂmﬂm’ll

Financial Statement Preparation, Compilation & Review
payroll Processing & Payroll Tax Return

Tax Return Preparation

Internal Controls

Maura Gathers

Chief Administration Officer
Public Relations
Marketing & Branding

Community Outreach and Volunteer Coordinator

10+ years’ managerial cxperience

13+ years’ cxperience in sales and client relations

Luke Fehlig

1:
|

Lead Forester

BS in Forestry and Resource Conservation, Univer

Certificate in GIS Sciences and Technologies

MT Department of Agriculture
USFS Timber Cruiser

Johuny Osborne

°

|
\
|
\ L]
\
\
l
l

Project Manager

. Certified Herbicide Applicator

15 years’ experience in the dcbris management industry

Business Administration, Univ
SC Law Enforcement Division

ersity of South Alabama
SLED Level 1,2 & 3

Directions in Organimtional [eadership Certification (Washburn University School 0

sity of Montana

£ Business)

page 15 of 48



Page 16 of 48




e ————

PROFILE

L 24 Years” experience Tree Care and
Disaster Response

- nanaged over 150 disaster events
in 27 statesasa prime contractor.

e Committed to providing debris
management sef vices following
FEMA regulations to ensure client
reimbursement 15 to the maximum
allowed.

- Knowledgeable In all aspects of
dabrls response and recovery
pperations

CONTACT

PHONE:
785-221-7550

ADDRESS:
2722 SW Spring creek Ln.
Topeka, KS 66610

EMAIL:
g;akhcrs@ctcdlaster.com

GREG

GATHERS

president/Owner

EDUCATIO ™
tture

elor of Sclence fn Agricu

Kansas State Unlversity — Bach

Intematlonal saclety of Arboriculture =

gmM1 Debrls Management certification

NIMS Certification

OSHA Certificatlon

WORK EXPERIEMECE

CTC Disaster Response, Inc. = Prasident/owner

1999-Present

Frovides strategic dir
mManage senlor staff.

Cllent liaison befors,

Oversees all company aperations.

action to the business.

Debris management planning and training

during and after disast

certified Arborist

er eve nts

GRILLS

project Manager
Skilled communicatar
Organization skills



PROFILE

e 20 Years' experience as coo
Managed over 150 disaster events
in 27 states as a prime contractor.

L] Committed to praviding debris
management services following
FEMA regulations to ensure client
relmbursement Is to the maximum
allowed.

« Knowledgeable In all aspects of
debrls response and recavery
operations

= Extensive experience In project
management with emphasis on
Temporary Debrls Site (Tos)
operatlans

CONTACT

PHONE:
256-749-4886

ADDRESS:
1880 Radlo Road
Alexander Clty, AL 35010

EMAIL:
]brlttun@ctodlaster.wm

JEREMY
BRITTON

Chief Operating Officer

EDUCATION

Central Alabama Community College — Assaciate Degree in Business
£MI Debris Management Certification
NIMS Certification

OSHA Certification

WORK EXPERIENCE

CTC Dlsaster Response, Inc. Chief Operating Officer (COo0)
2018-Present
. Responsible for day-te -day operations
. Debrls management planning and training
«  Ciient liaison before, during and after disaster events
- Manages subcontractors during disaster events.

AAA General Contractors, Inc. Qwner
1992—Present
- Oversee company operations.
. Resource management
° Quality Control

SKILLS

Project Manager

skilled Communlicator

Strong Managerlal Skllls

Heavy Equipment Operator

Licensed General Cantractor in Alabama

Page 18 of 48



PROFILE

L] 15 Years’ experlence in debrls
management & dlsaster response

e Committed to providing debrls
management services followlng
FEMA regulations to ensure cllent
relmbursement Is te the maximum
allowed.

- Knowledgeable In all aspects of
debrls response and recovery
operatlons

CONTACT

PHONE:
785-221-7550

ADDRESS:
3722 SW Spring Creek Ln.
Topeka, KS 66610

EMAIL:
Josborne@ctcdlaster.com

JOHNNY
OSBORNE

Project Manager

EDUCATION

University of South Alabama — Criminal Justice
NIMS Certification
OSHA Certification
FEMA Certification

U.S. Homeland Security TWIC

WORS EXPERIENCE

CTC Dlsaster Responsse, Inc.— Project Manager
2022-Present
- Oversees project operations.
Debris site management
Asslgns operatlonal personnel, including subcontractors

Debrls management planning and training
Client relations

Rostan Solutions, LLC. — Project Manager / Client Sarvice Manager
2019-2022
- Oversees project operatlons.
Debris site management
- Asslgns operational personnel, Including su bcontractors
L] Debrls management planning and training
. New business development

Ashbritt Inc, — Project Manager
2013-2019
» Oversees project operatlons.
. Debrls site management
. Assigns operatlonal personnel, Including subcontractars
- Debris management planning and tralning

SKILLS

Quality Control
CPR, First Ald & AED certfied

Page 19 of 48




| DISASTER RESPONSE |

'PROJECT RESOURCES

SUBCONTRACTING PLAN
INTRODUCTION:

CTC maintains an extensive database of subcontractors with specialty cquipment and varied resources which are fully
committed to CTC. Many of these subcontractors have partnered with CTC in a variety of different projects over the past
17 years. CTC prides itself on its relationship with these hardworking companies and mutual trust exists between us.

CTC is an Equal Opportunity Employer. We strive to meet or exceed all subcontracting goals identified in your Request
for Proposal.  We identify all subcontractors regarding certifications as MWBE, SBE, 8A, or Hub zone. We have
extensive databases for all areas throughout the U.S., so that we can actively identify the qualified ones for your proposal.

Additionally, CTC appreciates the input from our contracting partners on recommendations and referrals of qualified,
licensed, insured contractors with the required experience for your event. The knowledge of the area, their relationship

with your citizens is a plus to CTC and its mission.

SUBCONTRACTING PLAN AND UTILIZATION:

CTC will utilize a workforce comprised of in-house personnel and subcontractors specializing in various phases of debris
management, disposal, and recycling. As stated previously, we will identify local subcontractors already in our network as
well as hire as many contractors and laborers as available in an effort to allow members of disaster struck communities to
take part in the reconstruction process, and to assist the community financially and economically. The majority of these
subcontracts will fill positions for hauling of debris to TDS, hauling of debris to final disposal sites, hauling debris for

recycling purposcs.
Subcontractors will provide trucks and trailers that meet all USACE requirements for safety, licensing, permitting and

registrations. Subcontractors will provide copies of all licenses upon request, and will stay with their assigned areas,
completing the assigned task. These crews will work in a methodical manner until they have fulfilled their area’s cleanup

requirements.

CTC will seek local, qualified individuals for employment during the disaster cleanup and reconstruction phase, including
placing advertisements in the local newspapers and visiting the local employment office. Positions for laborers, data cutry,
flaggers, monitors, and other personnel will assist CTC in our task. Temporary employment agencies may be used to
provide manpower to complete the task, but only after the proper screening and submission of drug tests.

Unless otherwise stipulated in your contract, twenty-five percent (25%) of the total amount of work to be performed will
be by CTC personnel and equipment. CTC will operate with our specialized and trained reduction personnel. CTC has
commitment letters from contractors across all the continental United States.

SUBCONTRACTORS AGREEMENTS AND RESPONSIBILITY:

Subcontractors for CTC are committed contractually to complete their assignments as instructed, and must attend all
safety meetings, follow the chain of command, and report to the CTC COR daily to keep projects moving forward. CTC is
known for its open line of communications, and for the respect we have for our subcontractors.

Page 20 of 48




' DISASIER RESPONSE |

All subcontractors are required to aitend weekly tailgate meetings, sign CTC’s drug-free workplace statement and to

conform to all operating policies as set forth our project management team.

All CTC subcontractors are familiar with the proper use of ADMS clectronic reporting procedures, the latest technologies

in recording and monitoring procedures, and are trained in the proper documentation for the benefit of all concerned.

CTC subcontractors are aware of all charge back procedures for damages, provide daily reports to CTC site supervisors,
and act as good-will diplomats to citizens, making the cleanup efforts as stress free as possible in an emergency situation.

oposal or may be accessed by contacting the

A copy of our Subcontractor’s agrecment is either included in this pr
for various states so that they meet the contracting

corporate office. These agreements have been reviewed by attorneys
laws of the particular state in which we are working.

PROPRIETARY INFORMATION:

A list of qualified, experienced, insured, prequalified subcontractors for your area is included in this proposal (If required
in the proposal), or may be accessed at our corporate office upon request. This list is proprietary information and not to

be shared with the public.

Page 21 of 48

]




U DISASTER RESPONSE J F |

LOCAL AND MINORITY PARTICIPATION
CTC fully complies with guidelines regarding Local and Minority Participation. We have an established corporate policy
regarding minority participation, which can be referenced in our Affirmative Action and M/WBE Policy at our offices unless

otherwise requested.

One of the major strengths of CTC is our ability to recognize the importance of utilizing local, qualified contractors.
Depending on the time frame, and whether this is a standby, pre-disaster contract or an emergency situation, CTC uses
procedures necessary to ensure the use of local contractors and personnel. In a non-emergency situation, we can place ads
in the local newspapers, check with temporary services or state employment services. We also rely heavily on
recommendations from the County commissioners or City officials in all situations.

Emergency situations have prompted us to pull together with contracting agencies 1o recognize the strengths in their own
communitics. We appreciate the input provided by local officials in screening potential subcontractors and personnel. The
ability of the commissioners or other local community officials to suggest or recommend those that meet all requirements
for experience, equipment and insurance qualifications is a benefit in the successful operation and completion of projects

of any size or scope.

Based upon the availability of qualified minority personnel in the arca we strive to meet or exceed the normal requirements
for this event. As an integral part of the contract, we establish contacts with several local, 8A and minority companics. We
intend to usc the services of qualified, local personnel to fill positions as needed and upon recommendation of the contracting

agency.

All local and minority personnel will be screened to meet the requirements, including licensing and insurance requircments
of CTC, Inc. We also include listings of Certified M/WBE Contractors as are available and which provides updated

information for this project.

CTC has comunitted minority contractors who have performed on CTC contracts over the past several years. We use the
recommended channels 1o further investigate the availability, the experience, and the reputation of each local and/or
minority contractor to serve the best interest of the contracting agency.

Due to the nature of the business, CTC relies heavily on the utilization of state personnel agencies, local private placement
agencies and temporary services. We also use the services of the local Small Business Administration (SBA) office when
available and local trade organizations. Our goals as stated in our Affirmative Action Policy are traditionally greater than
those of most contract requirements. Additionally, the types of personnel required and their interest in the project varies

from location to location.

Page 22 of 48




'DrsAcTER RESPONSE N &

OWNED AND LEASED EQUIPMENT

Description " Quantity
30" Barge Flat Deck 2 )
30,000# Track Excavator 6
35,0004 Bulldozer 18
40" + Barge with Crane 4
45,000# Track Excavator 12
50,000# Bulldozer 10
55 Ft Bucket Truck 63
65,000# Track Excavator
AG Tractor with Attachment
Air Curtain Destructor
Bandit 4680 Horizontal Grinder
Beach Sand Screen
Chipper
Command Center
Debris Trailer
Dump Trucks
Fecon Mulcher
Feller Bunchers
Flatbed Trailer
GN Trailer
Grapple Attachements
Grinder
Horizontal Grinder
Jarraf Tree Trimmer
Loader Tractor
Log Skidder
Lowboy Trailer
Merlo Tree Removal Machine
Mini Skid Loader
Mixer Truck
Mulching Head
Off Road Truck
Pallet Forks
Pickup
Pumper Truck
RGN Lowboys

—
[ -]

1

|
|

_N\_o
l

\

l

—_
~f N —
w

w
—_—

|

— o=l —= | N[O

—
W

—loo| — | W= —

—
B

Page 23 of 48




iD13ASTER PESPONSE J F |

B Description Quantity
Road Grader 1
Road Tractor 40
Rollout Bucket 1
Rotary Mower 1
Self-Loading Truck 204
Semi-Truck 2
Skid Steer 36
Step Deck Trailer 3
Stump Grinder 6
Support Boat 4
Support Vehicle 37
Trailer Mount Loader with Saw Bucks 3
B Travel Trailer t
Tub Grinder 2
uTv 2
i Versa Handler 6
Walking Floor Trailer 31
Water Truck 6
Wheel Loader 19
Whole Tree Chipper 2
Wood Screw 1

Page 24 of 48




- e

'SAFTEY INFORMATION | _
SAFETY AND QUALITY CONTROL PLAN

Accident Prevention:

For the protcction and safety of all employees, CTC ha
injuries. Compliance with these rules is mandatory. D

s established the following rules designed to prevent accidents and
ocumentation will be made when the rules are distributed to new

employees.

Proper footwear and clothing will always be wort,
Do not wear loose clothing, jewelry, or keep long hair in a down position.
articles in moving machinery.

Horseplay, running, fighting or any activity that may result in injury or waste will not be tolerated.
k (s) at hand, as specified by training

There is a danger of catching such

Appropriate personal protective equipment, or PPE, will be worn for the tas

and job briefing (s).

Operate machinery with all guards in place. Tampering with safety devices is cause for immediale disciplinary
action.

Do not operate any machine you are not familiar wi
Machines must never be cleaned, adjusted, or repai
the power source (including lock-out) and a warning tag is placed at the controls.

Any defects in materials, machinery, tools, and equipment must be reported immediately to a supervisor, safety

th or have not been trained on and authorized to use.
rod until the machine is turned off, the circuit is interrupted at

personnel, or management.
Do not leave tools, materials, or other objects on the floor that might cause others to trip and fall.

Do not block exits, fire doors, aisles, fire extinguishers, gas meters, clectrical panels, or traffic lanes.

Avoid injury by attempting to lift or push excessive loads. If an object is too heavy to move without strain, ask for
help.

Observe the correct posture for lifting. Stand with your feet slightly apart, assume a squatting position with knees
bent, and tuck your chin into your chest. Tilt head forward, grasp the load with both hands, and gradually push up
with your legs, keeping your back straight and avoiding any abrupt movement.

Do not distract others while working. When approaching a coworker for any purpose, do so from the front or the
nversation is nccessary, first

side in a way that they will sec you coming and will not be startled or surprised. If co
make sure that it is safe.

Do not allow oil, water, or any other material to remain on the floor for long perio
may slip. Report any slip and fall problems to your supervisor.

When handling hazardous materials be sure to follow prescribed safety procedures and use required safety
equipment. When using secondary containers filled by others, be sure they are labeled as to their contents and
hazards. Know your Material Data Safety Sheets (MSDS) and where they are located. Review them often.

Use appropriate gloves when handling materials with sharp or jagged cdges, when handling chemicals, when
handling hot material, or to protect your hands in general.

Do not attempt to operate machinery for which you are not trained.

Unneccessary and excessive haste is the cause of many accidents. Excrcise caution always.

ds of time when you or others

Page 25 of 48




| pIsASTER RESPONSE & 4 |

e All work-related injuries and accidents, no matter how minor, must be reported immediately to your supervisor,

safety personnel, or management.
e Employees should understand and comply with all sections of the ANSI Z133.1 Standard that apply to their job

activities.

All employees must be thoroughly familiar with these basic safety rules. Failure to comply with safety rules or procedures,
or failure to wear the appropriate safety equipment, will result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Quality Control Plan:

1f required, CTC can have a Certified Arborist on site to ensure the quality of work performed by all CTC employees. All
employees have been trained in Arboriculture practices upon employment. Certifications include and are not limited to:

I.S.A. — International Society of Arboriculture
K.A.A. - Kansas Arbarists Association

T.C.ILA. — Tree Care Industry Association

Constant monitoring of all crews will be provided daily to ensure safety and the quality of work performed is attained. CTC
will meet with the client’s representative for a quality check on completed work to ensure client satisfaction. If there is an
issue that needs corrected, it will be done so in a timely manner.

Safety & Protection Plans & Submittals:

The following policies of CTC are not inflexible rules or requirements. They may be changed by the company at any time
without notice or modified as individual circumstances may require in the best interests of efficient management of the
Company. Nothing in the policies as they now exist, or may in the future be revised, is intended, or should be construed
as a contract of employment, express or implied, nor as a promise of employment for a specific period of time, nor as a
requirement that any specific procedure be followed in handling personnel issues.

Company management will provide safe and healthy working conditions. All employecs must always follow safe practices.

All employees must accept and follow all the rules of safety.

Whenever an employee finds an unsafe condition, they must report it immediately to their supervisor, safcty personnel, or
management. Any injury that occurs on the job, even a slight cut or strain, is to be reported {0 management as soon as
possible. In no circumstance except an cmergency, should an employee lcave a shift without reporting an injury that

occurred.
All employees including office personnel will be trained in safe practices. The training will be done by video or by training
from the employees’ supervisor.

If any unsafe practices are observed, the employee will receive a written violation warning. Once the employee receives
three (3) written warnings, he or she will be automatically suspended for one (1) workday without pay.

CTC will make every effort to maintain safe working conditions. However, the principal responsibility for safety falls upon

you, the employce. All employees are asked to inform their supervisor, safely committee personnel, or management of any
Page 26 of 48




'pieasTER RESPONSE # |

work hazards of which they might be aware. CTC will arrange for you to supply information anonymously if you do not
wish to be identified. No employee should fear reprisal for notifying management of any salety hazards. In fact, we
encourage all employees to inform us immediately ol any hazard, no matter how small it may seem.

All safety and health suggestions that we receive will be reviewed. We will then determine what action is necessary. All

suggestions shall receive a response.

The injured employee’s supervisor or a member of management will investigate all occupational injuries and illnesses that

arc job-related. Particular attention will be given to methods that prevent future situations that caused the injury or illness.

All employees will receive promipt and timely safety training. Safety rules and safe practices will be emphasized at these

training sessions.
to be signed and put in their file, indicating that they have been

All new employees will receive a copy of the summary,
b assignment, for which training has not previously

trained at the beginning of employment. Any employce given a new jo
been received, will be traincd in that particular job immediately.

Records will be kept of all training provided. These records will indicate the type of training given, date, the name of the

training provider and the employee’s signature.

Basic Safety Accident & Protection Plans:

All Employees of CTC will adhere to the following safety and accident protection plans while working.

Employee responsibilities for safety include the following:
e Adhere to all safety rules and regulations.
e Wear appropriate safety equipment as required.
e Maintain equipment in good condition, with all safety guards in place hewn in operation.
e Report all injuries and near misses, no matter how minor, immediately to their supervisor, safety personnel or
management.
e Encourage coworkers to work safely.
e Report unsafe acts and conditions to their supervisor, safety personnel, or management.

Safety Coordinators:

Greg Gathers (785) 221-7550
Jeremy Britton (256) 749-4886

Others TBD

One or all the Safety Coordinators listed above will be always on site and will be responsible for oversceing safety on site
throughout the duration of the contract. The numbers listed above are cell phone numbers and all employees will have cell

phones and/or two-way radios for communication.

Page 27 of 48




:DISASTER RESPONSE J F |

ANSI 7133 Standard & Employee Understanding:

As an employee of CTC, you need to review and understand the requirements of the ANST Z133.1-2000 Standard.

You need to understand that the Z133 Standard was developed by arborists, for arborists under the standards-developing
procedures created by the American National Standards Institute, creating what these industry’s safety experts fecl are the
minimum acceptable standards of practice for safety in arboriculture. It represents the collective wisdom and experience
of countless arborists.

You need to understand the difference between “Should” and “Shall” as they are used in the standard. The word Should”
indicates an advisory statement where it is feasible that the actions you take might be different from the prescribed
practice. A “Shall” indicates a mandatory requirement, where it is inconceivable that your actions would have to deviate
from the prescribed practice, expect where exceptions are noted in the Standard.

Finally, you need to understand that the 7133 Standard does not take precedence over, or take the place of; the safe work
policies of CTC.

Safety Rules — Accident Prevention:

For the protection and safety of all employees, CTC has established the following rules designed to prevent accidents and
injuries. Compliance with these rules is mandatory. Documentation will be made when the rules are distributed to new

employees.

¢ Proper footwear and clothing will be always worn.

e Do not wear loose clothing, jewelry, or keep long hair in a down position. There is a danger of catching such
articles in moving machinery.

¢ lHorseplay, running, fighting or any activity that may result in injury or waste will not be tolerated.

e Appropriate personal protective equipment, or PPE, will be worn for the task (s) at hand, as specified by training
and job briefing(s).

e While on duty, the use of or being under the influence of alcohol, narcotics, intoxicants or similar mind-altering
substances is strictly prohibited. Individuals found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to disciplinary
action up to and including possible termination of employment, even for a first offense.

e Operate machinery with all guards in place. Tampering with safety devices is cause for immediate disciplinary
action.

¢ Do not operate any machine you are not familiar with or have not been trained on and authorized to use.

e Machines must never be cleancd, adjusted, or repaired until the machine is turned off, the circuit is interrupted at
the power source (including lock-out) and a warning tag is placed at the controls.

e Any defects in materials, machinery, tools, and equipment must be reported immediately to a supervisor, safety
personnel, or management.

e Do not leave tools, materials, or other objects on the floor that might cause others to trip and fall.

e Do not block exits, fire doors, aisles, fire extinguishers, gas meters, electric\la panels or traffic lanes.

e Avoid injury by attempting to lift or push excessive loads. If an object is too heavy to move without strains, ask

for help.

Page 28 of 48




'DISASTER RESPONSE S8 |

e Observe the correct posture for lifting. Stand with your feet slightly apart, assume a squatting position with knees

bent, and tuck your chin into your chest. Tilt head forward, grasp the load with both hands, and gradually push up
with your legs, keeping your back straight and avoiding any abrupt movement.

e Do not distract others while working, When approaching a coworker for any purpose, do so from the front or the
side in a way that they will see you coming and will not be startled or surprised. IF conversation is necessary, first
make sure that it is safe.

s Do not allow oil, water, or any other material to remain on the floor for long periods of time when you or others
may slip. Report any slip and fall problems to your supervisor.

e When handling hazardous materials be sure to follow prescribed safety procedures and use the required safety
equipment. When using secondary containers filled by others, be sure they are labeled as to their contents and
hazards. Know the Material Data Safety Sheets (MSDS) and where they are located. Review them often.

o Use appropriate gloves when handling materials with sharp or jagged edges, when handling chemicals, when
handling hot material, or to protect your hands in general.

e Do not attempt to operatc machinery for which you are not trained.

e Unnecessary and excessive haste is the cause of many accidents. Exercise caution always.

e All work-related injuries and accidents, no matter how minor, must be reported immediately to your supervisor,
safety personnel, or management.

e Fmployees should understand and comply with all sections of the ANSI Z133.1 Standard that apply to their job

activities.

All employees must be thoroughly familiar with these basic safety rules. Vailure to comply with safety rules or procedures,
or failure to wear the appropriate safety equipment, will result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Personal Protective Equipment:

Hazard Assessment for Person Protective Equipment

The following table contains descriptions of the PPE required for typical tasks encountered in tree care and some of the
potential hazards associated with them. Always ensure that your PPE fits praperly as outlined m the training provided at

the time of employment at CTC.

Tasks Potential Hazards Information PPE Required
Sources
Aerial lift Conductors, Tailgate Session Hard hat, safety
operations equipment failure, #24; ANS1 Z133.1 5, glasses, hearing
falls, hydraulic leaks, | 6.2 protection, gloves,
steep/uneven slopes full body harness &
shock absorbing
lanyard or body belt
and lanyard

Page 29 of 48




[ DISASTER RESPONSE #f &

Brush removal &
chipping

Awkward
movements and
postures, flying
debris, carrying
heavy weights,
moving parts, noise,
slips, trips, and falls

Tailgate Session
#39; Tailgale
Session #18; ANSI
Z133.19.6

Hardhat, safety
glasses, face shield,
hearing protection,
gloves

Chain saw
maintenance

Hot exhausts, cuts

Tailgate Session #28

Hardhat, safety
glasses, gloves

Chain saw
Operation

Awkward postures,
hot exhausts, cuts
improper stance,
kickback, noise,
slips, trips, and falls;
vibrations

Tailgate Scssion
#29; ANSI Z133.1
7.2

Hard hat, safety
glasses, hearing
prolection, gloves,
chainsaw chaps
(when working on
the ground)

Chipper
Maintenance

Amputation, cuts,
pinch points

ANSI7133.163

Tailgate Session #60,

Hard hat, safety
glasses, hearing
protection, gloves

Climbing

Cutting climbing
line, falls,
conductors, rope
failure, tree decay,
worn equipment,
insects/animals

Tailgate Sessions
#19,20,31, 32;
ANSI 7133.a5,9.1

Hard hat, safety
glasses, hearing
protection, gloves,
fall protection

Driving

Other drivers, road
and weather
conditions

Tailgate Sessions
#41,42,43,44

Scatbelts

Hand Tool Use

Awkward postures,
conductors, cuts,
splinters

Tailgate Session
#30; ANST Z133.1 5,
8.1-8.10

Hard hat, safety
glasses, gloves

Ladder Use

Conductors, falls,
ladder failure

Tailgate Session
#22; ANSI Z133.1
8.11

Hard hat, safety
glasses

Page 30 of 48




DISASTER RESPONSE #

Limb Removal for
Take-Down

Breaking ropes
and/or crotches,
conductors, falling
and/or splitting limbs

Tailgate Session
#37, ANSI Z133.1 5,
9.4

Hard hat, safcty
glasses, gloves

Limbing and
Bucking

Awkward posture,
limbs; snapping,
slips, trips, and falls,
tree rolling

Tailgate Session
#37; ANSI Z133.1
9.7

Hard hat, safety
glasses, gloves

Use of mower,
brush cutter, string
trimmer

Hidden objects,
terrain, traffic

Hard hat, safety
glasses; hearing
protection

Pesticide Handling
&

Application/Sprayi
ng & Spill cleanup

Equipment failure,
excessive drift, poor
personal hygienc,
spills, vehicle
collision

Tailgate Session #45,
%54, ANSI Z133.1
6.4

Hard hat, goggles or
face shield, long
sleeved shirt, rubber
boots (if walking)
chemical resistant
gloves

Pruning and

Barber chairs, falling

Tailgate Session

Hard hat, safety

Trimming branches, conductors | #33; ANSI Z133.1 5, glasses
9.2
Storm Work Hidden/dislodged Tailgate Session Hard hat, safety

conductors, damaged
trees, wood under
tension, fatigue,
working at night,
working on
unfamiliar system,
unannounced re-
energized of lines

#10; ANSI Z133.1 5,
9.2

glasses, foul weather
gear

Stump Grinding

Flying debris,
moving parts, noise

Tailgate Session
#40; ANSI Z133.1
6.5

Hard hat, safety
glasscs, face shield,
hearing protection

Page 31 of 48




| DISASTER RESPONSE I ¥ |

Traffic Control

Topography, volume
and speed of traffic,
time of day, weather
conditions

Tailgate Session 3;
ANSIZ133.14.4

Hard hat, safety
glasscs, reflective
vest, flag or signs

Trailer Towing &
Setup

Hitch failure, jack
failures, vehicular
traffic

Tailgate Session #38

Hard hat, safety
glasses, traffic cones
and signs, gloves

Tree Take-Down

Barber chairs,
conductors, cuts,

Tailgate Scssion
#36; ANSI Z133.1 5,

Hard hat, safety
glasses, hearing
protection, gloves,

struck-bys 9.5
chainsaw chaps

NOTE: the hazards in bold represent Musculo-skeletal disorder (MSD) risk factors that should be minimized (duration,
frequency and/or magnitude) to the extent possible or eliminated. MSD signs are decreased range of motion, dcformity,
decreased grip strength and loss of function. MSD symptoms are numbness, burning, pain, tingling, cramping and stiffness.
Other hazards that apply to some/all the above tasks: Drug Use and/or Alcohol Abuse; Fatigue; Fire; Lyme Diseasc;
Poisonous Plants; Violent Workers/Customers; Weather.

Baclk Injury Prevention:

Causes of Back Injury

Pulling, twisting, and slipping are the most common causes of back injuries. Lifting objects improperly can also hurt the
back. Lifting with the back and not the legs, lifting from an awkward position, or trying to move material too large for one

person can lead to injury.

Even simple movements can cause back injury. Stepping from a truck, bending over for a small tool, or over-reaching can

strain back muscles.

Table 1 below ranks the most [requent causes of back injury in tree care in descending order.
Table 1-How Back Injuries Happen

Lifting...

Large objects

Irregularly shaped objects

Page 32 of 48




[DIsASTER PESPONSE N & |
Over the shoulder
Twisting...
While feeding brush into the chipper
While positioning in a bucket or a tree
While dragging brush, reaching, using long poles
From sudden slips due to poor ground conditions
On slippery equipment in snow or rain
Jumping...
Off truck bed or out of truck cab
Over fences
Off ladders
Qut of trees
Pulling...
Ropes hangers

Trees, on removals

Muscle strains and sprains-soft tissue injuries-cause most arborists’ back problems. These are temporary injuries. More
important, strains and sprains usually precede more serious, chronic, and debilitating injuries to the ligaments, dises and
verlebrae. In a sense, soft tissue injuries arc warning signals that more serious, permanent injury could oceur. Therefore,

your back-injury prevention program should focus on preventing strains and sprains.

Preventive measures

Arborists can keep their backs healthy with stretching and exercise, by knowing how the back works, and by using simple

lifting techniques.
Here are attainable objectives for your company’s back injury prevention program.:

Provide continuous training for all employees to raise their awareness of how the back can be injured.

Develop action steps employees can use to detect and eliminate conditions likely to cause back injury- see this program’s
sections on hazard reporting (16), safety committees (23), job hazard assessment (15) and job briefings (17).

Motivate employees to take responsibility for back safety at work and at home.

Page 33 of 48




| DISASTER PESPONSE #f ¥ |
The following procedures are taken rom Annex C of the ANSI 7133 Standard:

Before lifting any weight:

Be sure Lo clear the travel path available if the weight is to be carried from one place to another.
Decide exactly how the object should be grasped to avoid sharp edges, slivers, splinters, or other things that might cause
injury.

e Make a preliminary lift to be sure the load can be salely handled.

e Place fect solidly on the walking surface.

» Crouch as close to the {oad as possible with legs bent at an angle of about 90 degrees.

° ngp back as straight as possible. It may be far from vertical but should not be arched.

e Lift with the legs, not the back, keeping the weight as close to the body as possible.

e Use a second worker when necessary.

Stretching and exercises

The professional athlete must maintain a high level of production and effort {o win. The same is truc for an arborist, who

must perform at peak efTiciency.

Strains of the lower back muscles, the most common back injury, usually occur because the muscles are cold and tight. If
the athlete warms up and stretches to avoid injury, then why not the tree worker?

CTC will provide you with information on simple, quick warm-up/stretches that you can perform prior to heavy exertion.
Early Return to Work

CTC participates in an Early Return to Work Program with local providers closest to the job site for the treatment of all

work-related injuries.

If you arc injured at work, you must report the injury to your supervisor immediately. If medical treatment is necessary and
you haven’t designated a treating physician, you must go to the nearest medical facility.

You must also complete an Employee Claim for Workers® Compensation Benefits form as soon after an accident as possible.

[f you arc unable to return to the regular position due to a workplace injury, you should discuss with the doctor the possibility
of working in a light duty job until the doctor releases you for full duty. If the doctor releases you for light duty, your
supervisor will be notified the same day.

Modified jobs will be identified after obtaining your physical restrictions. “Modified” might be your regular job, modilied
by removing heavier tasks and reassigning these to other employees; a different regular job currently existing at the
workplace; or a job which is specifically designed around your restrictions. A modified job offer will be made only when
the work is available and of benefit to the company. Pari-time work will be considered as modified work, if medically
indicated. Each case will be assessed individually based on need. Modified work may not be implemented every time there
is a loss claim. Wages will not necessarily be the same as those of the regular job.

[f you take off work completely, or if light duty work is unavailable, you must report your medical condition and progress

to the supervisor at least once a week.
Page 34 of 48




g )

I'DISASTER RESPONSE - |

Disciplinary Procedures

Employees who fail to comply with safety rules will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Supervisors will follow the normal disciplinary procedures as follows:

1) Verbal counseling must be documented in the employee’s personnel file.

2) Written warning-outlining nature of offense and necessary corrective action.

3) Suspension without pay-once (1) working day without pay-the third step or a separate disciplinary action resulting
from a serious violation.

4) Termination-if an employec is to be terminated, specific and documented communication between the supervisor

and the employee must occur.
Supervisors will be subject to disciplinary action for the following reasons:

e Repeated safety rule violation by their department employees.

e Failure to provide adequate training prior to job assignment.

e Failure to report accidents and provide medical attention to employees injured at work.
e Failure to control unsafe conditions or work practices.

e Failure lo maintain good housekeeping standards and cleanliness in their departments.

Supervisors who fail to maintain high standards of safety within their departments will be demoted or terminated after three

documented warnings have been levied during any calendar year.

Accident Reporting & Investigation

dent reporting and investigation. Supervisory personnel will

It is the policy of CTC to carry outa thorough program of acci
Accidents involving fire, death, serious injury, or

be primarily responsible for investigating all accidents in their area.
extensive property damage will be investigated jointly by the supervisor and upper management.

e prevention of future accidents using knowledge derived from

‘The primary goal of the accident investigation program is th
aw as well

the investigation. Additionally, the investigation will be used to prepare reports required by Federal and State |
as the Workers Compensation insurance carrier. These reports are critical in establishing the company’s and the supervisor’s
liability under the law.

rvisor is responsible for taking emergency action to have first aid administered,

and to protect other employecs and equipment. The supervisor
1g procedures have been found to be elfective

When an employee is injured at work the supe
to obtain professional medical attention as soon as possible,
must then begin to investigate the circumstances of the accident. The followit

when investigating accidents.

Go to the scene of the accident at once.

Talk with the injured person if possible. Talk to wilnesses. Stress getting the facts-not placing blame or rcsponsibility.
Ask open-ended questions.

Listen for clues in the conversations around you.

Page 35 of 48




[ DISASTER RESPONSE J g |
Encourage people to give their ideas for preventing a similar accident.
Study possible causes-unsafe conditions, unsafe practices.
Confer with interested persons about possible solutions.
Write your accident report giving a complete accurate account of the accident.

Follow up to make sure conditions are corrected. 1f they cannot be corrected immediately, report this to your supervisor.
Publicize corrective action taken so that all may benefit from the experience.

Notify the Safety Coordinator(s) as well as the Project Officer (PO) and immediately with information regarding with
whom, how, where, when, seriousness of accident and medical treatment received of the injured person or persons
whenever an accident occurs. Accident scenes shall not be disturbed until released by investigating personnel with the

exception of emergency rescue and emergency measures.
Vehicle Accidents-What to do:

Make sure your vehicle has a [ully stocked accident kit. The kit should contain:

e Current vehicle registration

e Current proof of vehicle insurance

e Several business cards {from the owner or manager

e Pen, and or pencil

e Accident reporting form from your office and insurance company
e Trailer registration if applicable

e Several witness cards

Attend to all injured victims. Assess the situation and attend to the most seriously injured first. Do not move any victim
unless there is danger from other vehicles and traffic, or danger of fire or explosion. Do not move vehicles. The police
need to see the accident prior to moving any vehicle (s). Protect the scene of the accident by placing flares, tlags, or
rcflectors where they can be seen by approaching traffic. Physically dircct traffic around the accident scene if necessary;
do not expose yoursell to danger in traffic. If your vehicle is moved, get the name of the person or company that moved it.
If it is removed from the scene, find out where it is taken. Conduct your own investigation.

Get the names, addresses, phone numbers, driver’s license number, vehicle license numbers, and insurance companies of
all persons involved, year, make, and model of all vehicles involved. Offcr the same information about yourself and your
vehicle to others involved. Contact the office to let them know what has happencd, and whether anyone was injured and/or
taken to a hospital for emergency treatment. Do not admit fault or discuss the accident with anyone except the office of

police.

Non-Emergency Injuries

If necessary, any employee(s) requiring treatment for all non-emergency injuries, or post emergency medical treatment

that has been provided by local hospital, will be transferred to: "UBD.
Page 36 of 48




DISASIER RESPON r s |

Emergency Action Plan

The following details the organizational structure of our plan and outlincs emergency measures to be taken in the event of

firc or another emergency.

Remember, your conduct and actions during the first few minutes of any emergency may not only save your life, but the

he community as well. Each truck will have emergency numbers
ocal police. Use most effective means of communication based on
-way radio, hard line tclephone or other acceptable means.

lives of your fellow workers and other members of t
available for ambulances, physician, hospital, fire and |
your location (cellular phone — if adequate service), two

General Information

acility is to be evacuated because of a fire or disaster within the

Two important telephone calls need to. be made if the f
facility, or an external hazardous condition threatening the Facility. If either of these two situations ocecurs; notily 911

(Emergency Medical Services and Police).

a fire breaks out, call emergency numbers if you cannot

Upon order of management if you are working near a building and
e the building is acceptable, however, the occupants will

contain. Going into a building to let someone know of a fire outsid
have their own safety officer and should have already been briefed in evacuation proccdures.

Materials and supplies to be evacuated include, but may not be limited to, first aid kits, the MSDS binder and the personnel

roster.

Responsibilities
The Safety Dircctor will:

- Coordinate the Emergency Fivacuation Plan throughout the facility.
- Make cerlain the Program is familiar to all personnel and that all new employees a

- Schedule education as necessary.

re promptly oriented.

‘The Safety Director will be aided by the Supervisors who will:

- Facilitate the Emergency Evacuation Plan.

- Keep contact check on all personnel to be sure that they are completcly familiar with all phases of the Plan that they

are required to know.
- See that personnel participate in awareness training, fir
- Be certain that all personnel are familiar with fire extinguishers an

¢ classes, and other practice sessions as necessary.
d make thorough fire prevention inspections when

they are assigned to do so.
- Take the necessary steps required to correct any fire hazards discovered.

It is the duty of every employee ta:

I

Be completely familiar with the Emergency Evacuation Plan and their duties of responsibilities in the program.
Participale in all fire drills and practice sessions.
Attend all fire training classes when assigned.

Page 37 of 48




| DISASTER RESPONSE ' 4|

- Learn the location of, and how to operate all fire extinguishing equipment.
- Report any fire and/or safety hazard.

Fire Emergency Plan

Keep Calm...Report all fires and smoke.
Personnel have been assigned to:

Notify the firc department.

1) For Emergency situation call 911.
2) For non-emergency situations call the COOQ.

The person reporting the fire to the fire department will provide them with the following information.

e Custom Tree Care, Inc.

s  Address of incident

e What is burning (machines, paper, ctc.)
s [.ocation of fire (roof, plant, office, etc.)
e Type of fire (electrical, liquid, etc.)

Additional assignments have been made to attempt to extinguish fires with the use of on-premises equipment (extinguishers,
hoses, ctc.). A minimum of two people is required to fight a fire. To ensure cmployee safety, this is to be done only during
the early stages of the fire. If the fire cannot be extinguished by the timc your fire extinguisher runs out (roughly five (5)

minutes) then you must notify emergency immediately.
Working away from the involved area, personnel will be assigned to:

o Check the driveways to see that they are clear for entry of fircfighting equipment.
e  Wait at the front entrance for the arrival of firefighting equipment. Direct the firemen to the firc if necessary.

Re-entry onto the property will not be permitted until it is declared safe to do so by management, or by the local fire/law

enforcement officials.

Hazard Communication
Name of Contact Person: Greg Gathers
Title: President — CTC Disaster Response, Inc.

Hazard Evaluation

Chemical manufacturers and importers are required to review the available scientific evidence concerning the hazards of
the chemicals they produce, and then report that information to employees who purchase their product. In most cases CTC
will choose to rely on the evaluation performed by our suppliers. 1f for some reason we do not trust the evaluation of the

manufacturer, we will arrange for additional testing.
Page 38 of 48




'DIsAsTER RESPONSE S
We will consider the following chemicals used in our business to be hazardous:

e Diesel Fuel
e Gasoline

Label & Other Forms of Warning

We will make ccrtain that containers are adequately labeled to identify the hazardous chemicals they contain and will show

hazard warnings appropriate for your protection. The warnings will use a combination of words, pictures and symbols that
will communicate the hazards of the chemical (s) in the container. The labels will be legible and prominently displayed.

Our training program will include instruction on how to read and interpret label information.

Exceptions to this rule are as follows:

e We arc permitted to post signs that convey the hazard information if there are several stationary containers in each

area, which have similar contents and hazards.
e We are not required to label portable containers if the ransferred chemical is for immediate usc by the employee
who made the transfer.

e We arc not required to label pipes or piping systems.

Employee Training
ays of employment and whenever a ncw

It is the goal of CTC to provide hazard communication training during the first 30 d
g setting and will be conducted by the

chemical is introduced to a given work area. Training will be done in a meetin
Program Coordinator or another who has been properly trained.

The training program will consist of:

e How the hazard communication program is implemented, how to read and interpret information on labels and

MSDS, and how employees can obtain and use the available hazard information.

o The hazards of chemicals to which employecs are exposed in the work area.

e Measures employees can take to protect themselves from the hazards.

e Specific procedures put into effect by the company to provide protection, such as perso
mechanical guards, or protective processes.

e Methods that you can use, such as visual appearance or smel
you or your co-workers may be exposed.

e Name and/or job title of who you can go to il you have questions.

nal protective cquipment,

I, to detect presence of hazardous chemicals to which

Quality & Warranty of Work

CTC will provide a service that meets and exceeds standards of exc
to be done in a timely, professional manner with expertise in all aspects o
4 Certified Arborist will be available to go through with the project coor
exceeds his or her expectations. Letters of recommendation are available upon re
also available noting work done both as a Prime Contractor and a Sub-Contractor.

clience. The work done on all our projects is guaranteed
farboriculture. Upon completion of work assigned,
dinator to ensure the work performed meets and
quest. A listing of past performance is

Page 39 of 48




'DISASTER RESPONSE_ @ &

Quality Control
Greg Gathers — President — CTC Disaster Response, Inc. shall be responsible for overseeing all aspects of quality control

throughout the duration of the project. Greg is a Certified Arborist with the KAA and ISA and has authority to make
recommendations and implement plans of action for all tree care operations. Proof of certification including Membership
and Certification Numbers will be provided to the current Contract Administrator of this agreement.

Page 40 of 48




'FORMS & ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
BONDING LETTER

FINANCIAL SURETY UNDERWRITERS, LLC

January 3,2023

To Whom it May Concern
RE: CTC Disaster Response, Inc..

CTC Disaster Response, Inc. (CTC) has current potential bonding capaclty with surety Atlantic Specialty
Insurance Company (Atlantic Speciaity) of up to $20,000,000. Atlantic specialty strongly recommends
CTC for any project based on Its knowledge of and experience with the company. This surety is rated A+
by A.M. Best. Bonding support far all Atlantic Specialty cllents is cgnditianed on acceptable terms and
conditions of contracts and bond forms and those cllents continuing to meet annual underwriting
parameters. Any arrangement for bonding Is ultimately a matter between the Atlantic Specialty and CTC
and we assume no liability to third parties if for any reason any bonds are not executed.

Sincerely,

ALY

Mike Gardner
‘Account Executive/Licensed Agent

4956 SUGAR PIKE ROAD
\ CANTON, GA 30115
878-297-5508 FAX 878-297-0179

Page 41 of 48




CERTIFICATES, INSURANCE & W-9

"‘—" o AT (MAVODIYY
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE | A aranag

THIS CERTIFICATE (8 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPQRTANT: If lho cortificate holtor s rn ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pelley(ian) must hove ADDITIDNAL INSURED provialonn or bo ondaraac,
I SUBROGATION 15 WAIVED, subject to tha tarma and conditions af the polley, cortaln pollclos may regulra an endorgomont. A statamont an
thia contiflento doas nat confer righia (o tho curtificate holdar In llou of such andaraamnnt{s
PRODUCER
Bost Insurance Group Ine. MR . A T
P.O. Rox 67

Trusavllle Al. 35173

; 2066554005

B nAEE

IHSLRED cuhrrinkai| =
CTC Disastar Rosponza, Ino, "'wa'ﬁ‘[‘“"" T gt .
3722 Soulhwas! Spl'llaﬂ Cresk Lane | wuRER G : B SN S e
Topaokn KS 6G610-12 puncRn = =

INSURERE ; -

muunnRe:
COVERAGES CERTYIFICATE NUMBER: 105030418 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS 10 CERTEY THAT THE POLICIED OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ANOVE FOR THE POLICY PITON
ININGATRL, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONHTION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CE,I'l.‘HFiCJ\'I‘E MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY I'ERTA! THIE INMUIRANCE AFFORDED DY THE POLICIES DEGCRIBEN HEREIN 15 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

LUSHINS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICHEL, LIMITS GHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN I{CDUCHJ BY PAID CLAIMS. N
TYIE OF INNUIANGE I A oLy IMnTn a Lies
COMMERCGIAL DENERAL LIADILITY HALH OCCUHHENCE —_—
{3 LT =
Cl AIMS MADE I accuR PRt PALRIALA 'c“'oc:ﬁwrlr:mn) 1S
. R MED EXP [y ene person) 5
- PRMAGNA & AUV NN | %
_GENL AGONCAATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: _OUNECIAL ACGONEGNATD 5
PROL,
| PeLcY |_J NG Loc FRODUCTS . COMPIORAGG | § s
AT TN SN
AUTOMODILELIATOILITY L 1 AL s
1 hi ] E . SSSCM
AMY AUTE NODILY INJURY {Por yaraon) | $
| awnen " ) sehenunn "DADILY IMJURY (Par acddenl}| 5
|—{ flurai ony | AG1os DADILY INLURY (Por aceldant}| S
MON:CRNED it s
| AUTOS OMLY AUTOSE ONLY L] b -
3
UMDRELLALIAD T EACH QUGUHRENCE s
EXOENS LIAH | ciamsmaon AQRREQ N B T
BED, ﬂﬁ_g_uou 3 H

A [WonRDRs CaMPINsATIaN AVWCIKS3167022023 211212023 201202024 X e E‘Z“'

A |ANDCMIPLOYERS LIADILITY AVWCKSA157 0122028 21122020 | 20132024 | B | —=
ARG TP AN HEE O TV C.L, TACIAGIIOCNT | .
ar TIURAT NXeLuneny - e e e,
i:luklﬂllﬂf n 1 F L. DISEASE - EA 6 i Qi —

Ingf}‘.motmn or gl'm'.mnmlm Bitove | ri.omeasc.opoueviag | $1.000000

DESCRIPYIQN OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS { VEHICILEB (ACORD 101, Addillonnl Hemniks Bchioiyla, mny bo alln¢had If (noro space |a raquirad)
Olflcar/Membars excludad from Work Comp: Maura Galhern

Work Comp - Flarida, Misslssippl, Oklshama, Oregon, Kansae, Georgla, North Caralina, Toxns, Indiann,

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE RXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NQOTICE WILL. BE DELIVERED (N

ACGORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,
EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE

FOR BIDDING PURPOSES ONLY.

CTC DISASTER RESPONSE ING AVTHOHIZR I HEPHEAHN TAT IV
1 Vegn SO
® 1000-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All righits resarvad.
ACORD 25 (20190/03) Tho ACORD name and logo ara ragistered marks of ACORD

Page 42 of 48




—
ACORLDY
——

CUSTTRE-03
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSU_RANCE

DROWE
NATE (MMIDDNYYY)
21102023 |

THIS CERTIFICATE
CERTIFICATE DOES

18 (SSUED AS A MATTER QF INFORMATION ONLY AND COMNFERG NO RIGHTS UPON THE GERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS

NOT AFFIRMATIWELY QR NEGATIVELY AMEHND,
NELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES HOT
REPAESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

EXTEND ORf ALTER THE COVURAGE AFFORDED RY THE POLICIES
CONSTITUTE A GCONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISAUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED

{MPORTANT: If tha certifl
if SUDROGATION 1S WAIV

PRODUCER

Paaplos Inpurance Graup
1415 SW Toapake Olvd
Topoka, KS 86012

hiz conlflzatn Yoes not confor rights 1o the canificate lalidar In llsu of & 1 onvdersamont(s).

cote halder 1s an ADDITIONAL INSURED, tho polley(las) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo andorsed.
ED, suhjoct to 1hs terms and conditlons of tho policy, caitaln pellclus may requlire an endorsoment. A slalomenl on

fiflilo=" Dorok Rawa

b, vy (785) 271-8007 I
:;‘f"“""‘!. anlnsura.com
—— AFFRHDING HAGE ”
s Gl elalty Undervritors Ins Co

INsUNED

CTC Disastor Rosponse, inc.

G021 SW 28th St. PMB #130 MAARR DL
Topaka, KS 66614 i~
DOVNEAR: —
HUMEMF

weunenn  Cincinnatl nsurance Gompany. S /17,7 AN—
wauran ¢ Evanston Insurancoe Company.

THIS 15 TO CERTIFY THAT 1T

__REVISION NUMBER: . . -
T ANGWE FOR THE POLICY PERICD

HE POLICIES OF IMSUIANGE LISTCD DELOW IIAVE NEEN ISSUFD TO THE INSURED NAMFE

OF ANV CONTRACT (3R OTHER DOCLME

MT WITH AESPTCT 10 WHIGH THIT

INOIGATED, NOTWITHSTAMLHNG ANY HEQUIHERMENT, TEHM OR GONDITION

EEATIFIGATE MAY OF ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURAKCE AFFORUED BY T
A

HE POLICIES DESCRBED HHEIN 15 SULJEST TO ALL THE TEIIME,

RESTRIF
LIR Equigemant Covaragn - 5420,000

_CERTIFICATE HOLDER

Insurod Copy
For Inlnrmational Purpasas Only

1104 OF GEERATIONS | LOCANONY | VEHICLES {ACORD 181, Additionat Rommiks Schedule, may be

GAHCELLATION. __

SHOULD ANY OF THE ADOVE DESCRIBED MOLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFQRE

THE EXPIRATION DATE TH
ACCORDANGE WITH THE POLICY MROVISIONS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUGH POILICIES, LIMITA SHOWN MAY HAVE AEEN REDUCED BY PAID GLAIMS.
TrD G DIBHRANGE i“,m-lwq poLICY NuLDEn AN LMITE
X [ eounisacial, GRTRAL AN Y FAGH GCELINRTNEE
| eramsamnor [X] occun csU 0203789 2412023 | 211412024 | BRI
= —m MED ERS Ay e peessn)
|— PEASONAL A ADV [HIURY. _L
_GENL AGLIILUATL LIWAE ALILIES PER GENCAM ACGAICAYE L3
T e | X [ 05 roe rnoouoieecoumonam |3 2000000
- OUNER . e —
B | ayraunnsn Lianary e o
X | sy o EBA 0877479 211412023 | 2/1412024 | powa ¥ wANY iPar e | S
gﬁN n SGHCDULED
Lm:ﬁl oNLY AUtoa DU IM LT [Py 5 P
| ¥itdb asne PUGE pai _E&Q‘W“”“ 5 -
—a. e 3
B | % | umonrniavinn | X | occun | e 5 s,mfﬂ'ﬂ'
ENGESS LIAD LA MADE ENP 0677470 211412023 | 211412024 | \ocopanrs R 5,000,000
oen NEVENTIN S i |
TER OTH.
s SRS, o T8 1 TR —
ﬂwmﬁglg;ﬁﬂl”NE | ] NIA Fl.FACH ACCIUENT I W ——
ﬁ?:]. £iA NACAY - FALMMOYLL 3 =
AT R Tk s s - ﬁ;.mummr.
xcoss I ahl‘l‘fly‘-d'{.' Raaiass =1 o 'F‘s‘ﬂ‘ﬁ%ﬁim - FMAI2023 | 2Vard02a |Limit 5,000,000
c (Pollution Liabllity ]cpuuou 15136 2014/2023 | 211412024 [Limit 2,000,000

nHachad IF mara Rpaco 1o required)

EREQE, MNOTICE WILL BE DELIWERED IN

AUTHORIZEL REPREBENTATIVE

Do

y

1
ACORD 25 (2016/03)

" © 1200-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rosorved.

Tho ACORD nama and lago are reglstered morks of ACORD

Page 43 of 48




DISA
W-9 FORM
rorn W=9 Request for Taxpayer e Fatie the
Identificatlon Number and Certification reguester. Do not

lHuv Cotabar 2018)
Departmant of ha Traanu
Intornol Revenua Servics i » Go to wiww.irs.gov/FarmWD for Inatruclions and Lhe latest Information.
T Hnmn (a8 ARown DN YL INEoma 1hx Intam], Mamn 18 reauired on 108 inn; 00 Aol inawn Ihin ne Binns.

Custom Tree Care, Inc.
2 Huninagy namuwdizrogoandad anlily name, 11 dilloront 1om oo

CTC Dlsaster Response, Inc.

send to the IRS.

4 Exomplions (codaos apply anly to

‘;’; @ Chock opproprialo box tor fedoral tax classlticatlon of the peraon wliosa nama ls enlered on line 1. Ohack only one of the
o fafowinn seven boxen; certain ontllios, not Indlviduats; seo
g Inetrucilans on page 3):
8 D Individual/eole proprietor or C Corporaolion D 8 Garporatlon (] Parinership [ Trusivestate
" 2 single-member LLC Exempl payea cade (if ony)
o
; ﬁ D Limhed liablity company. Enlor lhe tax clossiflcallon (C-C corporation, 8=8 corporalion, P=Parinership) »
5 MNolto: Chack tho npprb’wlnlc m I |l\n fino pbave for tho tax elazslficallon of tho singlo owmner. Nonol chackt | Exemption from FATCA reporling
b1 LLC Il ihe LLC Ia ann LLE thal In disrogorded from tha awner unloss the ownaor of tha LIS s |0 Uf any)
‘E - nnothoer LLG il ls not :ﬂueumdod l'mln the ownar lar LS, Todnral tne purposnn. Othoredes, o singie-mambee £ L0 il
t In disregarciod from tho awnaer chould chock Iho appropriate bex for Ino tax clascilicnlion ol ila awner.
g _[:] Othor (seo Instructinns) = FAOPRE) tcx BT amnty ST ouAI e (e LA T}
BIAddrasa inumbiar, strool, and opl. or sulls no.) Seo Inatrucliona. Requoator's namo and addrons (optionnl)
£|6021 SW 28th St. PMB#130
"0 CHy; 51ate, and AIP coon =]
Topeka, KS 66614
7 LN 8) hore (optonal
IGEREN  Taxpayer identiiication Numbar (11N,
Entor your TIN In the approprinla box. Tho TIN provided must match the nama givan an line 1 to avold Socinl socurlly nimlror "
bockup withholding. Far Indlv!tﬁmla. thia lo .nnomlTy your scclal sacurty numbar (SSN). However, for a
ronidant allon, solo lad anlily, asa tha inalrucliona far Pan |, later. For athor . l
i I8 your palery k.lonll!lcntlun number (EIN). It you do not have o numbaer, ace Haw to get a
TIN, later. ar
Note: If the account Is in more than one name, see lhe instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and Employar |dantilication
Number Ta Give the Requester for guldelines on whose number to enter.
4|18| -|1|2]|4|(5]|9|6|8
Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify thal:

1. The number shown on this farm Is my corracl laxpayer Identllicallan number (or I arn walllng for 8 number to bs Issued to me); and

2, | am not sublect to backup withholding basnuas: (a) | am exempl from backup withholding, or (b) | have ot hesn nolified by the Internal Revenue
Sarvice (IRS) that | nm suliject 1o backup withholding as & result of a (ailure 1o repart all Interest or dividents, or (c) the IRS has nollfled me that 1 am
no longer sublect to backup withholding; and

3.1 am a U.S. citizen or olher U.S. persan (delined below); and

4. The FATCA coda(s) entered on thls form (if any) indlcaling that | armn exempt {rom FATCA reporling is correcl.

Contification Instructians, You must cross out ltam 2 abovs If you have boen notiliod by tha IAS that you nre cutrantly subjoct 10 bockup wilhholding becouno

you havn inllod to report oll inlarast and dividonds on your tax rotum. For raal asiato iransactionn, llem 2 conn nat opply. Far morigagao intorast paid,

ocaulsiilon or af d propaorty, tlan of dobt, caniribullona to an Individunl rotl W (IRA), ond ganerally, paymanis

alhor thon intarast ane dividentds, you ara nol requirad to aigrnihe uﬂl!‘:nlim‘ but you munt provido your corroct TN, ';an I-llﬂ inatructiona tor Part 11, lotor.

Sign I slinatice of

pats» 1/20/2023

= Form 1089-DIV (dividends, Including those from stocks or mutual

Here LS persion >

General Instructions Frnt
Section referonces are to the Internal Ravanue Code unlesa otherwlao = Form 10989-MISC (varlous lypea ol income, prizes, awerds, or gross
noted. proceeds)
Fulure developments. For ihe latost Information about devolapments » Form 1098-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certaln other
related to Form W-98 and Ita Instructlons, such as leglstation enactod transactlons by brokers)
irs. 9.
aftegihey were;publishedigalioivww:lis:gov/Eormiy « Farm 1098-S (proceeds from real estate transactlons)
Purpose of Form « Farm 1099-K (merchant card and third parly netwaork transactions)
An Individual or antily {Form W-9 requester) wha la requlred to fila an » Form 1098 {home marigage Interesl), 1098-E (student loan Inlarest),
Informalion raturn with the IRS must obtaln your correct taxpayar 1098-T (lultlon)
Idoniifiention number (TIN) which may be your soclal ascurlly numbaer » Form 1099-C (cancalad debl)
(8SN), Individuni taxpayor [dentification numboer (ITIN), adoplion « Form 10909-A (acquisitlon or abandanment of secured proparty}

¥ taxpayor idontilicallon number (ATIN), or employer ldeniificallon number
(EIN}), 1o roport an an Infarmation return the amount pald to you, or other Use Form W-9 only If you are a U.S, person (Including a resident
amount reportablo an nn Information return. Examples of (nformation allen), to pravide your corract TIN.
relurns Include, but are not limited lo, the following. it you do not return Form W-9 to tha roquester with a TiN, you might
» Farm 1099-INT {interest earned ar pald) lbo subfact to backup withhalding. Sno What in backup withhvolding,
aler.

Cat. No. 10231X rForm W=9 (Rev. 10-2010)

Page 44 of 48




—— ——— ——— — -

njcAcTER RESPONSE J 4|

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN
Policy Statement

as defined by 49 CFR Part 26, Subpart D and implemented under

It is the policy of CTC that disadvantaged businesses,
beontractors. Suppliers and other required

Rule Chapter 14-78, F.A.C., shall have the opportunity to participate as su
personnel on all contracts awarded by our Contracting Partners

all contracts entered into betwceen the contracting agency

The requirements of Rule Chapter 14-78, F.A.C., shall apply to
Subcontractors and/or suppliers to CTC, Inc. will also

and CTC, Inc. unless otherwise designated in the signed contract.
be bound by the requirements of Rule Chapter 14-78 F.A.C.

CTC, Inc., and its subcontractors shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with Chapter 14-78, F.A.C,,

to ensure that disadvantaged businesses can compete and perform work contracted.

CTC, Inc., and its subcontractors shall not discriminate based on race, color, religion, national origin, disability, sex or in

the administration of contracts.

CTC, Inc. has designated and appointed a Liaison Officer to develop, maintain and monitor the DBE Affirmative Action

Plan implementation. The Liaison Officer will be responsible for disseminating this policy statement throughout CTC,

Inc. and to disadvantaged controlled busincsses. The statement is posted on notice boards of the company.

Greg Gathers, President

CTC Disaster Response, Inc.
4011 SW 29t St. #130
Topeka, KS 66614

(785) 478-9805

Page 45 of 48




| D1SASTER PESPONSE )|

I. DESIGNATION OF LIAISON OFFICER

CTC, Inc. will aggressively recruit disadvantaged businesses as subcontractors and suppliers for all contracts with the
Florida Department of Transportation. A Liaison Officer has been appointed to develop and maintain this Affirmative Plan
in accordance with the requirements of Rule Chapter 14-78, F. A.C.

The Liaison Officer will have primary vesponsibility for developing, maintaining, and monitoring C'T'C, Inc. the Company’s
utilization of disadvantaged subcontractors in addition to the following specific duties:

}) The Liaison Officer shall aggressively solicit bids from disadvantaged business subcontractors for all

governmental contracts.
2) The Liaison Officer will submit all records, reports, and documents required by the governmental agencies, and
shall maintain such records for a period of not less than three years, or as directed by any specific contractual

requirements of the individual governmental agencies.
3) The following individual has been designated Liaison Officer with responsibility for implementing CTC, Inc.
affirmative action program in accordance with the requirements of local, state and Federal government agency

contracts.

II. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION METHODS

To lormulate a realistic Affirmative Action Plan, CTC, Inc. has first identified the following known barriers to participation

by disadvantaged subcontractors. These barriers are:

1) Lack of qualified disadvantaged subcontractors in our specific gcographical areas of work.

2) lack of certified disadvantage subcontractors who seek to perform under specified contracts.

3) Lack of interest in performing under specified contracts.

4) Lack of response when requested to bid.

5) Limited knowledge of the specified governmental contracts plans and specifications to prepare a responsible

bid.

In view of the barriers to disadvantaged businesses stated above, it shall be the policy of CTC, Inc. to provide opportunity
by utilizing the following affirmative action methods to ensure participation on the contracts with the various and individual

governmental contracts, CTC, Inc. will:

|
i 1) Provide written notice to all certified DBE subcontractors in the geographical area where the work is to be
subcontracted.
I 2) Advertise in minority focused media concerning subcontract opportunities with the Company.
] 3) Select portions of the work to be performed by DBEs in order to increase the likelihood of mecting contract
| goals (including, where appropriate, breaking down contracts into economically feasiblc units to facilitate
| DBE participation),
4) Provide adequate information about the plans, specifications, and requirements of the contract, not rejecting
|| subcontractors without sound reasons based on a thorough investigation of their capabilities.
I
|
A

Page 46 of 48




IpsasTEp RESPONSE 4 |

5) Waive requirements of performance bonds where it is practical to do so.

6) Attending pre-bid meetings held by the governmental contracting agency to apprise disadvanlaged
subcontractors of opportunities with the Company.

7) Follow up on initial solicitations of interest to DBE subcontractors to determine with certainty whether the

company is interested in the subcontract opportunity.

xhaustive and will include additional approaches

CTC, Inc. understands that this list of affirmative action methods is not e
ty and/or determined the stated

after having established familiarity with the disadvantaged subcontracting communi
approaches to be ineffective.

11I. IMPLEMENTATION

On contracts with specific DBE goals, CTC, Inc. wil
affirmative action methods. On projects with no specific goals, CTC
DBE subcontractors where work is to be subcontracted.

| make cvery effort to meet contract goals as stated by utilizing its
will, as an expression of good faith, scek to utilize

IV. REPORTING

1) CTC, Inc. shall keep and maintain such records as arc necessary to illustrate and demonstrate compliance with
its" DBE Affirmative Action Plan.

2) CTC, Inc. will design its record keeping system to indicate:

3) The number of DBE subcontractors and suppliers used, including items of work, materia
provided.

4) The efforts and progress being made in obtaining DBE subco

5) Documentation of all contracts, to include correspondence, te
obtain DBE participation on all governmental agencies’ projects.

6) CTC, Inc. shall comply with any governmental agencies’ requirements regarding payments to subcontractors
including DBEs for each month (estimate period) in which the companies have worked.

Is and services

ntractors through local and community sources.
Jephone calls, newspaper advertisements, ele., to

V.DBE DIRECTORIES

hat specilic city, state, county and/or

CTC, Inc. will utilize the DBE Directory published by each governmental agency fort
rtments of Transportation, and other

region, including agencies such as Natural Resources Conservation Service, State Depa

required agencies.

CTC, Inc. will distribute Form Number 275-030-01, Schedule A Certification Form Number 1, to potential DBE contractors

and assist in their completion.

Page 47 of 48




C

'DISASTER RESPONCE Jf §f |

Page 48 of 48




INVITATION TO BID

Notice is hereby given that Sheridan County is inviting “Qualified” General Contractors to
submit a sealed bid for furnishing labor, materials and equipment required to complete a 50.9-
acre Little Big Horn Canyon Fucls Treatment Project. Project includes thinning trees below 10”
DBH, masticating, or cutting and piling understory brush, slash, and dead down woody
materials, with option to remove cut Forest Products. Projcct can be accessed via Little Big
Horn Canyon Road. Work is to be completed within one hundred and seventy-fifty days (150)
from December 16, 2024 through May 15,2025. A Mandatory pre-bid meeting and mandatory
site visit will be held starting at 10:00 a.m., November 22, 2024, at the state line on [ittle Big
Horn Canyon Road. Little Big Horn Canyon Road is rough and rocky, it is suggested that
participants come prepared with transportation that will facilitate timely access to this unit.

Contract Documents can be picked up in the office of the Sheridan County Commissioners,
second floor, Courthouse addition, between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM. To receive contract
documents via e-mail, or mail call Cameron Duff 307-675-2910 or email at
cduffi@sheridancountywy.gov. Sealed bids marked “Little Big Horn Canyon Fuels Treatment
Project” will be accepted at County Commissioners’ Office, 224 S. Main Street, Suite B-1,
W&M until 2:00 PM December 3, 2024. At that time bids will be opened in
the Public Meeting Room, 2" floor, Courthouse addition. Sheridan County reserves that right to
reject any and all bids and to waive any irregularities and informalities in the bid submittal and
evaluation process. The bidder will be required to comply with all applicable federal, statc, and

local laws, and regulations.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
SHERIDAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
NICK SIDDLE, COMMISSION CHAIRMAN



INVITATION TO BID

Notice is hereby given that Sheridan County is inviting “Qualified” General Contractors to
submit a sealed bid for furnishing labor, materials and equipment required to complete a 50.9-
acre Little Big Horn Canyon Fuels Treatment Project. Project includes thinning trees below 10”
DBH, masticating, or cutting and piling understory brush, slash, and dead down woody
materials, with option to remove cut Forest Products. Project can be accessed via Little Big
Horn Canyon Road. Work is to be completed within one hundred and seventy-fifty days (150)
from December 16, 2024 through May 15, 2025. A Mandatory pre-bid meeting and mandatory
site visit will be held starting at 10:00 2.m., November 22, 2024, at the state line on Little Big
Horn Canyon Road. Little Big Horn Canyon Road is rough and rocky, it is suggested that
participants come prepared with transportation that will facilitate timely access to this unit.

Contract Documents can be picked up in the office of the Sheridan County Commissioners,
second floor, Courthouse addition, between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM. To receive contract
documents via e-mail, or mail call Cameron Duff 307-675-2910 or email at
cduff@sheridancountywy.gov. Sealed bids marked “Little Big Horn Canyon Fuels Treatment
Project” will be accepted at County Commissioners’ Office, 224 S. Main Street, Suite B-1,
Sheridan, Wyoming 82801 until 2:00 PM December 3, 2024. At that time bids will be opened in
the Public Meeting Room, 2™ floor, Courthouse addition. Sheridan County reserves that right to
reject any and all bids and to waive any irregularities and informalities in the bid submittal and
evaluation process. The bidder will be required to comply with all applicable federal, state, and

local laws, and regulations.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
SHERIDAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
NICK SIDDLE, COMMISSION CHAIRMAN



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
AND XXXXXXX
FOR THE LITTLE BIGHORN CANYON FUELS TREATMENT FROJECT

PARTIES
The parties to this Agreement are The County of Sheridan, a po
(“County™) and XXXXXX (hereinafter “Contractor”).

litical subdivision of the State of Wyoming,

PURPOSE
The purpose of this Contract is to furnishing labor, materials and equipment required to complete a 50.9-acre

Little Bighorn Canyon Fuels Treatment Project. Project includes cutting, removing, masticating, chipping,
piling understory, brush, and clean-up of dead down woody materials, and cutting of trees.

TERM
This Contract is for a term of one hundred and fifty (150) consecutive days from December 16, 2024, through

May 15, 2025., unless sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions herein.

CONTRACT PRICE, PAYMENT AND DOCUMENTS
a. County agrees to pay Contractor for completion of the project a Not-To-Exceed total of xxx dolla_rs
($xxx.00) upon receipt of Contractor Invoice. Partial payments for com pleted unit or as agreed to m

writing are permitted.

b. Any Forest Products harvested from the unit making up this project shall become the property of the

contractor and may be removed from the project area, except for pine firewood in units 9,10,11.

€ " Contractor invoices are to be billed monthly and due on the 20" day of each meonth and payable upon
receipt by County at subsequent month-end warrant run. Amounts unpaid 30 days after receipt shall
bear interest from the date of receipt by County at the rate of 1% per month, or in the absence thereof, at

the legal rate prevailing in Wyoming,
d. The Contract Documents consist of the following:

i. Advertisement for Bids

it. This Agreement
{ii. Project Maps (3), Vicinity Maps (2) (Exhibit A)
iv. Contractor’s executed Bid Form, (Exhibit B)

v. Project Unit Specifications, (Exhibit C)

vi. Insurance: The Contractor shall purchase and maintain in a company or companies Jaw fully
authorized to do business in the state of Wyoming with an A.M. Best Rating of A or better,
such insurance as will protect it from the claims set forth below which may arise out of or
result from Contractor's operations under the Contract Documents and for which Contractor
may be legally liable, whether such operations be by itself or by any subcontractor, supplier,
or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or by anyone for whose acts any
of them may be liable:

1. claims under workers' or workmen's compensation, disability benefit and other
similar employee benefit acts which are applicable to the Work;

2. claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease,
or death of Contractor's employees;

1



3. claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease or death of any
person ather than Contractor's employees;

4. claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage which
are sustained: (1) by any person, as a result of an offense directly or indirectly
related to the employment of such person by Contractor; or (2) by another
persor;

5. claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or
destruction of tangible property, including loss of use resulting therefrom;

6. claims for damages because of bodily injury, or death of a person or property
damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of any motor vehicle;
and

7. claims involving contractual liability insurance applicable to Contractor's
indemnification obligations as set forth elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

8. The Contractor shall pay any and all premiums and other applicable payments
in order that all workers shall be afforded coverage under Wyoming Worker’s
Compensation law. The Contractor shall require all subcontractors (o provide
the same coverage under the Wyoming Statutes.

9. The Contractor shall provide his own insurance for tools and equipment located
at the job site.

The Contractor's Commercial General Liability Insurance shall include premises — operations
(including explosion, collapse, and underground coverage), elevators, independent contractors,
completed operations, and blanket contractual liability on all written contracts, all including
broad form property damage coverage.

All general and automobile liability policies shall include County as an insured.

The foregoing liability insurance coverages shall be in the minimum amounts as set forth in the
Project Manual except that the commercial general liability and automobile liability coverages
shall be in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 each. By requiring the minimum insurance
coverages, County shall not be deemed in any way to limit any of the other obligations or
liability of Contractor.

All of Contractor's liability coverage shall be deemed primary insurance to any similar
insurance Owner may obtain for its own benefit, which shall be excess or secondary but not
contributing insurance.

Such insurance shall not be written for amounts less than the following by Insurance Companies
acceptable to the County.

|. Workmen’s compensation as required by all applicable Federal, State, or other
laws including Employer’s Liability with a limit of at least: $500,000

2. Comprehensive General Liability all on the occurrence basis including:
Contractors Liability, County’s and Contractors Protection, Completed
Operations (kept in force for at least two years after date of final completion),

2



5:

6.

Products Liability, Broad Form Property Damage, Remove XCU exclusions
(explosion, collapse, underground property, damage), Personal Injury Liability

Each Occurrence
Aggregate

Bodily Injury:
Each Person

Each Occurrence
Property Damage:
Each Accident
Apgregate

Or combined single limit of:

3. Combination of underlying

$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$ 500,000
$ 500,000
$1,000,000

Comprehensive

Liability for lesser limits with remaining limits
provided by an Excess or Umbrella Liability

4. Comprehensive Automobile Liability
including non—ownership and hired car
coverage as well as owned vehicles:

Bodily Injury:

Each Person
Each Occurrence

Property Damage:

Each Occurrence

Or combined single limit of:

vii. The following may be delivered or

$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$ 500,000
$1,000,000

issued on or after the Effective Date of the

Agreement and are not attached hereto:

1. Notice of Award
2. Notice to Proceed

RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR

a. Contractor shall provide Contractual services for the project.

Services shall be performed in a manner

consistent with professional skill and care (see project description and preseription (Exhibit C).

b. Contractor will adhere to the removal and clean-up

c. Reclamation — Any surface areas with deep ruiting

of materials described in Exhibit C.

(2 inches) or significant disturbances resulting from

Contractor’s use of heavy equipment shall be reclaimed at Contractor’s expense.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNTY
a. County shall provide full information about the obj
of the project, and shall establish a budget for the
the vegetation treatment on the project.
3

ectives, schedule, constraints and existing conditions
project. County shall employ Contractor to perform



County shall obtain and pay for any necessary approvals, easements, assessments and charges.

County shall provide all inspection services, act as liaison between landowner and Contractor, and
provide all administrative services associated with this project.

TERMINATION

a.

This Agreement may be terminated:
1. by either party at any time if the other party breaches this Agreement; or
ii. upon mutual written agreement by the parties.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

AMENDMENTS. Any changes, modifications, revisions or amendments to this Contract. which are
mutually agreed upon by the parties to this Contract shall be incorporated by written instrument,
executed and signed by all parties to this Contract.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA). The parties shall not discrimi‘n?l'c against a
qualified individual with a disability and shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act P.L.
101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq., and/or any properly promulgated rules and regulations related
thereto.

APPLICABLE LAW/VENUE. The construction, interpretation and enforcement of this _Con:ract shall
be governed by the laws of the State of Wyoming. The Courts of the State of Wyoming shall have

jurisdiction over this Contract and the parties, and the venue shall be the Fourth Judicial District,

Sheridan County, Wyoming.

ASSIGNMENT/CONTRACT NOT USED AS COLLATERAL. Neither party shall assign or otherwise
transfer any of the rights or delegate any of the duties set forth in this Contract without the prior written
consent of the other party. Contractor shall not use this Contract, or any portion thereof, for collateral
for any financial obligation, without the prior written permission of County.

NONWAIVER. Any waiver by County of any breach of any covenant herein to be kept and performed
by Contractor shall not be deemed as a continuing waiver and shall not operate to prevent County from
declaring a forfeiture for any succeeding breach, either of the same or other covenant.

ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement is not assignable without the prior written consent of the parties.

EFFECT OF TERMINATION. All covenants of this Agreement that should, by their nature, survive
the termination of this Agreement shall so survive.

3
MONITOR ACTIVITIES. County shall have the right to monitor all Agreement related activities of the
Contractor and the Contractor. This shall include, but not be limited to, the right to make site
inspections at any time, to bring experts and consultants on site to examine or evaluate completed work
or work in progress, and to observe all Contractor and Contractor personnel in every phase of
performance of contract related work.

NOTICES. All notices arising out of the provisions of this Agreement shall be in Writing and given to
the parties at the addresses provided in this Agreement, either by regular mail, or delivery in person.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Contractor shall keep informed of and comply with all applicable
municipal, state, and federal ordinances, laws, rules, and regulations as they are¢ now or as l_hcy are
enacted and shall not engage in any practice which may have the effect of discriminating against any

4




entity on the basis of disability, age, sex, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, or religion.

2 DEBARMENT. To ensure contactor is eligible for this Contract the Contractor shall submit
form AD-1048 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.
b. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Contractor shall submit form AD-1049 CERTIFICATION
REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS (GRANTS) ALTERNA TIVE [ - FOR
GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS to comply with regulations.

ETHICS. Contractor shall keep informed and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws
and regulations in the performance of this Agreement and any and all ethical standards governing

Contractor’s profession.

INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless County and its officers,
agents, employees, SuCCessors and assignees from any and all claims, lawsuits, losses and liability of
any nature whatsoever arising from or in connection with the negligent performance of any duties or
obligations by Contractor related in any way to this Agreement, including but not limited to any claims,
lawsuits, losses or liability arising out of Contractor’s malpractice.

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall in any way be deemed a waiver of
any of the requirements or immunities provided by the Wyoming Governmental Claims Act.

NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY INTENDED. This Agreement is for the benefit of the parties
hereto and is not intended for the benefit of any third party.

INDEPENDENCE OF AGREEMENT. Contractor is an independent contractor and nothing herein is
intended, or should be construed as creating a relationship of partners, agency, representative, or

employee/employer for any purpose.

PARAGRAPH HEADINGS. The paragraph headings contained herein are for convenience in reference
and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Agreement.

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS. The obligations of the parties are conditioncd upon the availability of
funds appropriated or allocated for usc under this Agreement from any governmental source. If funds
are not allocated and available as nceded for the parties to perform this Agreement, the Agreement may
be terminated at the end of the period for which funds, if any, are available. Each party shall notify the
other party at the earliest possible time if the Agreement will or may be affected by a shortage of funds.
No penalty shall accrue to either party in the event this provision is exercised, and ncither party shall be
obligated or liable for any future payments due or damages as a result of termination under this section.
This provision shall not be construed to permit either party 1o terminate this Agreement in order to

engage in a similar agreement with another party.

FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be liable for failure to perform under this Agreement if such
failure to perform arises out of causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the
nonperforming party. Such causes may include but are not limited to acts of the public enemy, fires,
floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather. This
provision shall become effective only if the party failing to perform immediately notifies the other party
of the extent and nature of the problem, limits delay in performance to that required by the cvent and

takes all reasonable steps to minimize delays.

AGREEMENT CONSTRUCTION. This Agreement has been negotiated between the parties and no
preference shall be given to any party should the construction of any term of this Agreement be required

by a Court.
5



t. ATTORNEY'S FEES. In the cvent this Agreement is placed in the hands of an altorney for colleqion
or enforcement of this Agreement, Contractor shall pay County rcasonable attorney’s fees for services

rendered to County in that regard.

u. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a Court of competent
jurisdiction to be unenforceable, that portion shall not affect the enforceability of the remaining

provisions of this Agreement and the parties may renegotiate the terms affected by the severance.

V. TAXES. Contractor shall pay all taxes and other such amounts required by federal, state and local law,
including, but not limited to, federal and social security taxes, workers’ compensation, unemployment

insurance and sales taxes.

w. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This 6-page document constitutes the entire agrcement of the parties,

superseding all previous agreement between the parties.

SIGNATURES. By signing below, the parties agree to the above-terms. Additionally, any person signing
certifies he or she has the authority to bind his or her respective party to this Agreement.

The effective date of this Agreement is the date of the signature last affixed to this page.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, XXX
SHERIDAN COUNTY WYOMING XXXX
224 S. Main Street, Suite Bl xxx, WY 828xx

Sheridan, Wyoming 82801

BY:
xxx, Chairman Date Contractor Date
ATTEST:

ATTEST:
Deputy County Clerk Date Secretary Date



BIDDING AND CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS
Little Bighorn Canyon Fuels Treatment Project
Exhibit B

|. THEFOLLOWING PROPOSALIS HEREBY MADE TO:

OWNER: County of Sheridan
ADDRESS: 224 South Main Street Suite B-1, Sheridan, WY 82801

2. The Undersigned hereby proposes and agrees to furnish all labor, materials and
_acre Little Bighorn Canyon Fuels Treatment

equipment required to complete the 50.9
Project. Project includes removing, masticating or piling, and crushing, understory,

brush, and clean-up of dead down woody materials, and removal of trees. Project Unit
Prescriptions are included in Exhibit C of this solicitation.

Bid the Bidder represcnts, as more fully set forth in the Agreement,
that Bidder has examined the site and locality where the Work is to be performed, the legal
requirements (federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations) and the
conditions affecting cost, progress or performance of the Work and has made such
independent investigations as Bidder deems necessary.

3. In submitting this

Total Bid Written In Words:

QWTY E/ERT THOBRNVD S1Y HonIRED  THIKTEEA)
B lrn S gl TLoEATT CLENTS




Bid per unit
1 2.0 |8 10,91%.YD
2 2.9 |8 1149740
> 5.k S %—5 L{Q * ?D
. .| $ 10, 919.%9D
J 5.5 |8 Z,4i7.t0
7 I.{ |S YRB. XD
8 |8 3¢, ¥O
J o7 |8 1Y, 423 .40
10 2.3 8 Bulen 4D
11 <5 |3 574 00
TOTAL BID $ j
68 613
PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS
% OF
NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR ITEM NO. OR SUBCONTRACT TOTAL
OR DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT BID
~ MAJOR SUPPLIERS | WORK TO BE SUBLET | (DOLLARS) AMOUNT _
| |
| |
“NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR | ITEM NO. OR | SUBCONTRACT | % oF
OR | DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT TOTAL
MAJOR SUPPLIERS | WORK TO BE SUBLET {DOLLARS) BID
| AMOUNT
L

4. The Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, firm

or corporation and is not submitted in conformity with any

agreement or rules of any group,

association, organization or corporation. Further the Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or
solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid nor has the Bidder solicited or induced any




person, firm or corporation to refrain from bidding and the Bidder has not sought by collusion to

obtain for himself any advantage over any other Bidder or the OWNER.
a. The Bidder has given the OWNER written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities or

discrepancies he has discovered in the Contract Documents.

5. The undersigned agrees to perform all the Work described in the Contract Agreement and

according to the plan drawings.

6. The undersigned understands that the OWNER reserves the right to reject any or all bids or to

waive any informality or technicality in any proposal in the interest of the OWNER.

7 The above Bid is hereby respectfully submitted by:

Lpet, [oATNERS Date: 71/ 26/24

2354 73-979 05

Company Name:

By:

ture and printed name)

Title: _PRESIDE Al Phone:

Business Address f/ﬂ” [i) a’u”fﬂ"« ST, #/30
City _TFPENA saezip KS B84 1 ‘/




Project Unit Specifications
Little Big Horn Canyon Fuels Treatment Project
Exhibit C

Definitions:

Bole Spacing - The horizontal distance from the trunk of one leave tree to the trunk of the next
nearest leave tree. Average spacing is calculated using leave trees per acre.

Codominant - A tree whose crown helps to form the general level of the main canopy in even-
aged stands or, in uneven-aged stands, the main canopy of the tree’s immediate neighbors,
receiving full light from above and comparatively little from the sides.

Crushing - The fuel bed shall be treated such that down woody debris and fallen boles are broken
up and in contact with the soil. Slash depth is lowered to the litter layer without visible air
spaces.

Desirable leave tree characteristics - Trees that are desirable as leave trees have the following
characteristics:

. Straight stem

«  Small branch diameter

« Good coloration

.  Well-formed crown

. Branches horizontal or slightly angled to bole.

. Free of insect or disecase damage and/or symptoms.

. Vigorous annual terminal growth (especially in last 1 to 3 years)

. Crown class of dominant or co-dominant

« Crown ratio is 40% or greater.
Characteristics of trees that are not desirable as leave trees:

. Multiple or forked tops

« Poor crown form

« Crook or sweep in bole.

. Dead or broken top

. Poor coloration

» Large branch diameter

. Presence of insect or diseases, such as but not limited to:
Bark Beetles (on pines, spruce, and firs)
Comandra Blister Rust
Western Gall Rust
White Pine Blister Rust
Mistletoe

o Wood rot

. Branches greater than 45 degrees from horizontal.

« Physical or mechanical damage

« Suppressed

« Poor annual growth

« Sucker limbs

. Large amounts of deadwood/branches within the canopy
DBH. Diameter at Breast Height The diameter of the bole of the tree measured horizontally at
4.5 feet (breast height) above the ground on the uphill side of the tree.

O 0 0 00



Dominant tree - A tree whose crown extends through the upper layer of the forest canopy and
receives full light from above and partly from all sides.
Dripline - The line extending vertically from the exterior edge of a tree’s live crown to the
ground.
Slash - Any cut vegetation or existing natural dead and down woody debris.
Activity Slash - Trunks of cut trees, limbs, and/or brush created by the contractor’s operations.
Existing Slash - Woody debris from trees and brush that are on site prior to contractor’s
operations.

A total of 50.9 acres are planned for treatment as described below.

Sunlight Unit | — Fuel Break: Designation by Description (red line on map. Unit marked with
blue flagging.) Unit size is 8.1 acres. Fuels to be treated are dominated by brush.

Boundary is flagged, but generally the North boundary is State Line Fence, East
Boundary is the toe of the slope, West Boundary is high water mark of Little Bighorn River,
South boundary is flagged.

There is a Big Horn Electric Powerline in the unit, during operations if the power needs
to be shut off coordinate with the Co ntracting Officer’s Representalive and the electric company.

1. Cottonwood and conifer trees less than 10” dbh are to be thinned to a 25-30" bole
spacing.

9. All created slash, slash created from Elk fire actions in and adjacent to units, and 80% of
existing slash and brush 12” and taller will be masticated/chipped to within 6” of the
ground per slash standards below.

3. Live and dead firewood, material 3 in diameter and larger and at least 2/3 sound and
minimum 3 feet long, will be limbed and decked by the road.

4. Material that is less than 2/3 sound may be crushed per slash standards below.

5. Remaining slash will be treated per slash clause below.

Sunlight Unit 2 —Fuel Break: Designation by Description (purple line on map. Unit marked
with blue flagging.) Unit size is 8.9 acres.

Unit boundaries are generally the toe of the slope and high water of Little Big Horn
River.

There is a Big Horn Electric Powerline in the unit, during operations if the power needs
to be shut off coordinate with the Contracting Officer’s Representative and the electric company.

1. Cottonwood and conifer trees less than 10” dbh are to be thinned to a 25-30" bole
spacing.

2 All created slash, slash created from Elk fire actions in and adjacent to units, and 80% of
existing slash and brush 127 and taller will be masticated/chipped to within 6” of the
ground per slash standards below.

3. Live and dead firewood, material 3 in diameter and larger and at least 2/3 sound and
minimum 3 feet long, will be limbed and decked by the road.

4. Material that is less than 2/3 sound may be crushed per slash standards below.

5. Remaining slash will be treated per slash clause below.

Sunlight Unit 3 — Fuel Break: Designation by Description (Blue lines on map. Marked with
blue flagging.) Unit size is 5.6 acres.



Unit boundaries are flagged with blue flagging.
There is a Big Horn Electric Powerline in the unit, during operations if the power needs
to be shut off coordinate with the Contracting Officer’s Representative and the electric company.

1. Cottonwood and conifer trees less than 10” dbh are to be thinned to a 25-30" bole
spacing.

2. All created slash, slash created from Elk fire actions in and adjacent to units, and 80% of
existing slash and brush 12” and taller will be masticated/chipped to within 6 of the
ground per slash standards below.

3. Live and dead fircwood, material 3 in diameter and larger and at least 2/3 sound and
minimum 3 feet long, will be limbed and decked by the road.

4. Material that is less than 2/3 sound may be crushed per slash standards below.

5. Remaining slash will be treated per slash clause below.

Sunlight Unit 4 —Fuel Break: Designation by Description (green line on map. Unit marked
with blue flagging.) Unit size is 8.1 acres.

There is a Big Horn Electric Powerline in the unit, during operations if the power needs
to be shut off or lines lowered coordinate with the Contracting Officer’s Representative and the
electric company.

1. Cottonwood and conifer trees less than 10” dbh are to be thinned to a 25-30° bole
spacing.

2. All created slash, slash created from Elk fire actions in and adjacent to units, and 80% of
existing slash and brush 12" and taller will be masticated/chipped to within 67 of the
ground per slash standards below.

3. Live and dead firewood, material 3 in diameter and larger and at least 2/3 sound and
minimum 3 feet long, will be limbed and decked by the road.

4. Material that is less than 2/3 sound may be crushed per slash standards below.

5. Remaining slash will be treated per slash clause below.

Sunlight Unit 6 —Fuel Break: Designation by Description (light green line on map. Unit
marked with blue flagging.) Unit size is 5.5 acres.

There is a Big Horn Electric Powerline in the unit, during operations if the power needs
to be shut off or lines lowered coordinate with the Contracting Officer’s Representative and the
electric company.

1. Cottonwood and conifer trees less than 10” dbh are to be thinned to a 25-30° bole
spacing.

2. All created slash, slash created from Elk fire actions in and adjacent to units, and 80% of
existing slash and brush 12” and taller will be masticated/chipped to within 6” of the
ground per slash standards below.

3. Live and dead firewood, material 3 in diameter and larger and at least 2/3 sound and
minimum 3 feet long, will be limbed and decked by the road.

4. Material that is less than 2/3 sound may be crushed per slash standards below.

5. Remaining slash will be treated per slash clause below.

Little Horn Canyon Subdivision Unit 7 — Fuel Break: Designation by Description (olive
green line on map. Unit marked with blue flagging.) Unit size is 1.1 acres. Fuels to be treated
are dominated by brush.




Boundary is flagged with blue flagging.
There are Big Horn Electric Powerlines in the unit, during operations if the power needs

to be shut off coordinate with the Contracting Officer’s Representative and the clectric company.

|. Cottonwood and conifer trees less than 8" dbh are to be thinned to a 20-25’ bole spacing.

7. All created slash, slash created from Elk fire actions in and adjacent to units, and 80% of
existing slash and brush 127 and taller will be masticated/chipped to within 6” of the
ground per slash standards below.

1. Live and dead firewood, material 3 in diameter and larger and at least 2/3 sound and
minimum 3 feet long, will be limbed and decked by the road.

4. Material that is less than 2/3 sound may be crushed per slash standards below.

5. Remaining slash will be treated pet slash clause below.

Little Horn Canyon Subdivision Unit 8 —Fuel Break: Designation by Description (Yellow
linc on map. Unit marked with blue flagging.) Unit size is 0.1 acres.
Boundary is flagged with blue flagging.
There is a Big Horn Electric Powerline near the unit, during operations if the power needs
to be shut off coordinate with the Contracting Officer’s Representative and the electric company.
1. Cottonwood and conifer trees less than 87 dbh are to be thinned to a 20-25’ bole spacing.
2. All created slash, slash created from Elk fire actions in and adjacent to units, and 80% of
existing slash and brush 12” and taller will be masticated/chipped to within 6" of the
ground per slash standards below.
3. Live and dead firewood, material 3 in diameter and larger and at least 2/3 sound and
minimum 3 feet long, will be limbed and decked by the road.
4. Material that is less than 2/3 sound may be crushed per slash standards below.
5. Remaining slash will be treated per slash clause below.

Little Big Horn Ranch Unit 9 — Fuel Break: Designation by Description (brown line on map.
Unit marked with blue flagging.) Unit size is 10.7 acres. Fuels to be treated are dominated by
brush.
Boundary is flagged with blue flagging; islands of no treatment are flagged with
blue/white striped flagging.
There are Big Horn Electric Powerlines in the unit, during operations if the power necds
to be shut off coordinate with the Contracting Officer’s Representative and the electric company.
1. Cottonwood and conifer trees less than 8” dbh are to be thinned to a 20-25" bole spacing.
2. All created slash, slash created from Elk fire actions in and adjacent to units, and 80% of
existing slash and brush 127 and taller will be masticated/chipped to within 6" of the
ground per slash standards below.
3. Live and dead firewood, material 3 in diameter and larger and at least 2/3 sound and
minimum 3 feet long, will be limbed and decked by the road.
4. Material that is less than 2/3 sound may be crushed per slash standards below.
5. Remaining slash will be treated per slash clause below.

Little Big Horn Ranch Unit 10 —Fuel Break: Designation by Description (orange line on map.
Unit marked with blue flagging.) Unit size is 2.3 acres.
Boundary is flagged with blue flagging; islands of no treatment are flagged with

blue/white striped flagging.



There is a Big Horn Electric Powerline in the unit, during operations if the power needs
to be shut off coordinate with the Contracting Officer’s Representative and the electric company.

1. Cottonwood and conifer trees less than 8” dbh are to be thinned to a 20-25° bole spacing.

2. All created slash, slash created from Elk fire actions in and adjacent to units, and 80% of
existing slash and brush 12” and taller will be masticated/chipped to within 6” of the
ground per slash standards below.

3. Live and dead firewood, material 3 in diameter and larger and at least 2/3 sound and
minimum 3 feet long, will be limbed and decked by the road.

4. Material that is less than 2/3 sound may be crushed per slash standards below.

S. Remaining slash will be treated per slash clause below.

Little Big Horn Ranch Unit 11 — Fuel Break: Designation by Description (pink lines on map,
Marked with blue flagging.) Unit size is 0.5 acres.
Unit boundaries are flagged with blue flagging.
1. Cottonwood and conifer trees less than 8 dbh are to be thinned to a 20-25” bole spacing.
2. All created slash, slash created from Elk fire actions in and adjacent to units, and 80% of
existing slash and brush 12” and taller will be masticated/chipped to within 6” of the
ground per slash standards below.
3. Live and dead firewood, material 3 in diameter and larger and at least 2/3 sound and
minimurmn 3 feet long, will be limbed and decked by the road.
4. Material that is less than 2/3 sound may be crushed per slash standards below.
5. Remaining slash will be treated per slash clause below.

Slash Treatment — Remove, Masticate/Chip, Crush, Pile Slash.

A. As described above, the contractor shall either 1) remove from the project, 2) masticate,
3) chip, 4) crush, 5) pile by hand or machine, or otherwisc reduce fuel loading of all
contractor generated slash within all units, and 80% of pre-existing slash. The end result
is to reduce the fuel loading in units, lower the wildland fire hazard from accumulations
of wildland fuels and protect the soil, water, and residual trees from damage.

a. Remove fuels from the area.
i. Fuel will be removed from the project area.
b. Masticate/Chip fuels in units
i.  Masticate or Chip fuel over 80% of area with chip depth no greater than
47, -
ii. Residual brush will be masicated/cut no higher than 6” above the ground.
iii. Chips will not be placed in streamcourses, ditches, culverts, roads, trails
and other improvements.

c. Crush fuels in units,
i.  TFuel that is less than 2/3 sound shall be crushed down so as to be in
contact or be incorporated with the soil over 80% of the area.

d. Pile slash.
To minimize damage to residual trees and maximize consumption when burned,

slash piles should be constructed as follows:
i. Slash skidded to landings or designated piling areas:




B. No slash or cut material shall

B

5.

All slash accumulated at landings/piling arcas shall be removed
from the project or piled.

_ Piles shall be reasonably compact and free of soil to facilitate

burning.
Piles will not be less than 10 in height.

. Piles shall be of a size and location which will not impair utility

line and road use or result in damage to residual timber or
improvements.
Gencrally, the distance from residual trees or improvment will

need {o be at least 3 times the pile height.
6. To reduce pile size, sound firewood may be decked at designated

areas.

ii. Slash piled in the units:
Piles shall be no larger than 10' wide by 10' long by 10' high.

Piles shall be no smaller than 5' wide by 5' long by 5’ high.
Generally, the distance from the pile to a residual tree or
improvement will need to be at least 3 times the pile height.

If conditions make it impractical to locate piles so that damage to
residual green trees and improvements cannot be avoided, an area
designated by the administrator will be cleared and used as a piling

1.
2.
3.

4,

area.

Material to be piled shall be cut into sections not longer than 6.

a.

C.

Limbs with foliage and fine fuels less than 1/4" diameter
shall make up at least 1/3 of the pile. Fine materials should
be placed in the lower portion of the pile with heavier fuels
on lop. '

Branches and limbs shall be piled parallel to each other and
perpendicular to the contour of the slope to prevent rolling
of material.

To maximize consumption, ends of piled slash will be
trimmed even and placed in piles.

lean against an uncut tree, stump, log or any obstacle. It

shall be secure and not able to roll down the hill.
C. All trails indentified by the administrator and open roads within or adjacent to a unit shall

be kept free of slash at all times.
D. The following improvement and developments shall be free from contractor gernerated

slash:

a. Any area adjacent to cut and fill slopes and ditches for 2 distance of 10’ measured

from the upper cut slope and the lower shoulder of the road.

b. Culverts and channels for a distance of 10°.
c. Improvements such as trails and, fence lines, and established land corners.

d. Stream courses.

Any slash comprising the 20%

above the ground.

left on site shall be lopped and scattered to no higher than 18”



General Standards

1.

2.

Felling and masticating are scheduled for leaf-off, winter operations due to powetline
use, frozen ground, recreational traffic, and poison ivy.
Maximum stump height:
a. For cut trees less than 6.0 in diameter 6.0” above ground level or 6.0” above
natural obstacles with an angle of less than 30 degrees from horizontal.
b. For cut trees greater than 6.0” in diameter 12.0” above ground level or 12.0”
above natural obstacles with an angle of less than 30 degrees from horizontal.
Operations will follow Wyoming Best Management Practices.
All cut trees shall be directionally felled away from unit boundaries, roads, utility lines,
established trails, fence lines, established land corners, and Streamcourses.
Fences may be laid down but must be put back up at end of work. There are areas where
trees may have barb wire from the past.
Protect existing improvements such as roads, trails, fences, spring developments and
pipelines.
Firewood cut under this contract may be removed by contractor at no cost until unit is
accepted.
To reduce incidence of invasive plant species:
o Off road equipment will be required to be cleaned prior to moving onto the
project.
o If monitoring shows the presence of invasive plants the Landowner can work with
Sheridan County Weed and Pest to treat those arcas.



Little Big Horn Canyon Fuels Treatment Project
N ow

Declination: 10° a

1

Vicinity Map 1 of 2

(l)’ldﬂ‘l!.\...?
5
[-] / /
Litkle {
a
2 &

n aighorn e . -
' Battlefrat ser el 8 =
zﬂﬂn.o.:: Vs gt BRI S
Mopument 58 -~ - ~= -
& -~ S
T coniis ——
e |.1-.I.f......
A
Cavd
(et
BRudr
.
... \ a
/ bt v
/ f T
/ N./. iy
. / VAR semnr
Limar s .
-~ p
’ b ]
e e B - Bigrurn
T Py Canyon
/ TN Iosgwi natioaal
Y A Retreatian
\_ - Ated
_ ./ LS
F it __w. \ —— S
_1.. _r..
/ A ——
‘...__ r Lowell
J Lu) Fuwey
J R f Niw s
/ Pt~ LTy
é N
\..\\
\ \‘ A\
// ) / \ o
Nert 5
| N ° e
& H 3 N f Hse utic
\ | - \ = Bighorn Y pr
A ! W \ - e matiordl aRAE
\MMM - \ ~ dero! Foress
o : .
\\.lfl\ln - o \\||x||I||z||s$.AWm||\.| = 2]
A - Cloud Padk -
| \ wWildelnpss L)
=) s : o \
§ ; P
N ﬁ.! N _
=N freea vy -2 e
5 J a .
W { aas
}
20m )

|
™ — !
L
Web Mavcator | EPSG: 3857

w.zi.,m..uuo
Gala Overland (feel): © Gala GPS, OpenStreetMap




& GAIAGPS

emawSE
= A-_.v
P Sy
L e
4.4.
\s.n
s S nalaa?® 7
rd
n...“«.
5 ot
e R\
\\_.
e EnE
LTS o
S
1 +
"5
..,i..‘..”..n....rud
8
Pt S5
& v,
o N
g g
%
£
ber
v}
Vo
S

" #conyon s
E2

e .

e E5

Gala Overland {feet): @ Gala GPS, OpenStra

elMap

Vicinity Map 2 of 2

Little Big Horn Canyon Fuels Treatment Project

< N

-ty

kb -
»Uwuw:um_b.._

10"

2
K Aous '
“ » ]
'\ a° A
U 3
. =
<
F
Pﬁ
.2
-.f
\.V\ .....
Brock X
Cavlee
\ -
1
4]"4 ﬁf
N
P
4 P v
\m, =a :
alaid
=2 gﬂn.’
b 5
& ei I :
Yees o &) It
i Sew Z w \..\ \
N P v
“gloek N7 '
Goidfrome Sadd ’
430 > _
T T T e
T &L £ . Q\“‘\)m
== 4 f €
& Sral? ?
W = _ﬂ\ [ 3
¢
f
7\ n
\ N n\ _
S R 9 T .h\ey -
i o W Sgltey e henrvetien P ool
._ [ m.\ To-- - eam)
B
) — \\ = L] -
f .
o _ |
_-.w N o —
™ . i
L) L ]
o vﬂ /; ! " -
3 y) T A — T
h )ﬂ.l\ kX faan .
. ‘s [ =%
h da = - £y
/ 0.9
L y 4 .,o —_—N .l.
.J -, L TR T 345
> x_
= ™ =— e el T
1 2m §

Ve hwrcalor | EPSG: D557




5
o
w
=4
X

C
=
®
w
(o]}
s
o
q
=
0
V)
=
<
(o]
=
i
c
o
n
=
1]
o]
(=
3
®
=3
-

usalb an|Q - / Wun
ugsio BN - 9N
uaalg) - ¥ Jiun




OMB APPROVAL NO. 0991-0002
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS (GRANTS)
ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS -
This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160, of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988
(Pub. L. 100-890, Title VV, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), 7 CFR Part 3017, Subpart F, Section 3017.600, Purpose. The
January 31, 1989, regulations were amended and published as Part |l of the MAY 25, 1990, Federal Register (pages 21681-
21691). Copies of the regulations may be obtained by contacting the Department of Agriculture agency offering the grant.

(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE)

Alternative |
A. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or
use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken

against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(by  Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about --

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2)  The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free werkplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4)  The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the
statement required by paragraph (a):

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment under the
grant, the employee will -

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a vialation of a criminal drug statute occurring in

the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

Notify the agency in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2) from an
employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide
natice, including position, title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the

identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(e)

1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination, consistent

with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program

approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate

agency;
(9) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free warkplace through implementation of
paragraphs (a), (b}, (c), (d), (&) and ().

[-1
Form AD-1049 (REV 5/90)
Microsoft Word 2000



B. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection wilh the specific grant:

Place of Performance (Street address, city, county, State, zip code)

Liiez Bropon) [awved fueg Tgarme s

PAen0EN) CouMT) | wpeml 3B -

Check [ i there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

. (TC DisasteR R PoasE IVC LiniE ,g,?_/éﬁmd.&_zzﬂﬁ@“ﬂ gt
Organization Name Award Number or Project Name p/‘ta\jé’(ﬂ"

GhEC, LRINENS, Ppeopgas

"~ Name and Title of Authorizéd Representative

%%ﬂi,__.___ D%.'_'_/_L_{/_?ﬁ —

Instructions for Certification

1. By signing and submitting this form, the grantee is providing the certification set out on pages 1 and 2.

representation of fact upon which rellance is placed when the agency awards the grant, (fitis
the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act, the

thorized under the Drug-Free Workplace Act.

2, The certification set out on pages 1 and 2 is a material
jater determined that the graniee knowingly rendered a false certification, or otherwise violates
agency, in addition to any other remedies available to the Federal Governmenl, may lake aclion au

et gther than individuals, need not be identified on the certification. If know, they may be identified in the grant
lication, or upen award, if there is no application, the grantee must keep
ble for Federal inspection. Failure to identify all known workplaces

3 Workplaces under grants, for grante
application. If the grantee does nat identify the workplaces at the time of app
the identity of the workplace(s) on file in its office and make the information availa
conslitutes a violation of the grantee’s drug-free workplace requirements.

r sites where work under the granl lakes place.

4. Workplace idenlifications must include the actual address of buildings (or parts of buildings) or othe )
i department while in operation, State employees in

Categorical descriptions may be used (e.g., all vehicles of a mass transit authority or State highway
each local unemployment office, performers in concert halls or radio studios).

5. If the workplace identified to the agency changes during the performance of the grant, the grantee shall inform the agency of the change(s), if it

previously identified the workplaces in question (see paragraph three),

6. Definitions of terms in the Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment common rule and Drug-Free Workplace common rule apply to this certification.

Granlees' attention is called, in particular, to the following definitions from these rules:

“Gontrolled substance" means a controlled substance in Schedules | through V of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 812) and as further

defined by regulation (21 CFR 1308.11 through 1308.15);

**Conviction” means a finding of guilt (including a plea of nolo contendere) or imposition of sentence, or both, by any judictal body charged with the

responsibility to determine violations of the Federal or State criminal drug statutes;

“Criminal drug statute" means a Federal or non-Federal criminal statute involving the manufacture, dislribution, dispensing, use, or possession of any

controlled substance;

ark under a grant, including: (i) all “"direct charge" employees,
the performance of the grant; and, (iii) temporary personnel

d who are on the grantee's payroll. This definition does not
irement: consultants or independent contraclors

“Employee” means the employee of 2 grantee direclly engaged in the performance of w
(i) all "indirect charge" employees unless their impact or involvement is insignificant to
and consullants who are directly engaged in the performance of work under the grant an
include workers not on the payroll of the grantee (e.g., volunteers, even if sued to meet a matching requ
not an the grantee’s payroll; or employees of subrecipients or subcontractors in covered workplaces).

1-2
Form AD-1049 (REV 5/90)



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility
and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 7
CFR part 3017, Section 3017.510, Participants' responsibilitics. The regulations were published as Part IV of the
January 30, 1989, Federal Register (pages 4722-4733). Copics of the regulations may be obtained by contacting the
Department of Agriculture agency with which this transaction originated.

(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE)

(D The prospective lower tier participant certifics, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor
its principals & presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.

2 Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certily to any ol the statements in Lhis
certification, such prospeclive participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

LITIE DIENIRN CanYent
CTC prrgsT R RECLCAE, /MC Festy TREqvAe~T Pnel 86T

PR/Award Number or Project Name

Organization Namc

OREG GATHERS | Ppeoipe AT

Naime(s) and Title(s) of Authorieed Representative(s)

=7 % ///L!/-"_/

Sliguetlire(s Date

Form AD-1048 (1/92)



Instructions for ification
1. By signing and submitting this form, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the cerlification set
out on the reverse side in accordance with these instructions.

2. The certification in this clause is & material representation of Tact upon which reliance was placed when this
iransdction was entered into. I it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered
an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or
agency with which this transaclion originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or

debarment.

provide immediate written notice to the person (o which this

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall
lower ticr participant learns that its certification was erroneous

proposal is submitted if at any time the prospeclive
when submilted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

4. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred." "suspended," "incligible," "lower tier covered transaction.”
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction,” "principal,” "proposal,” and "yoluntarily excluded," as used
in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage seetions of rules implementing Execulive
Order 12549, You may contact the person lo which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy ol

those regulations.
itling this form that, should the proposcd covered

lower tier covered transaction with & person who is
this covered transaction,

5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by subm
lransaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any
debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily exeluded from participation in
unless authorized by the department or agency with which Lhis transaction originated.

6. The prospective lower Lier participant further agrees by submitting this form that it will include this clausc
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Incligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covercd
Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transaction and in all solicitations for lower ticr covered

transactions.

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that is not debarred. suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covercd
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroncous. A participant may decide the method and frequency
by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Fach participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List.

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information ol'a participant
is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course ol business

dealings.

9% Except for transactions authorized under paragraph S of thesc instructions, il"a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier cavered transaction with a person who is suspended. debarred,
incligible, or voluntarily excluded (rom participation in this wransaction, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies.
including suspension and/or debarment.

2 Form AD-1048 (1/92)



78
Auld -1 Hun
abueiQ - 0} yuN
umolg - g Yun
Majj8A - g WIn
usaib sAjO - 2 wun
usa1e W - 9 N
usalio - ¢ N
an|g - £ uun
ajdind - Z yun
pay - | wun

€40 | depy
juauneal] sjang uoAuen uioH big s

— - - —— -2




Little Big Horn Canyon Fuels Treatment

Map 2 of 3

nit 1 - Red
Unit 2 - Purple

Unit 3 - Blue

Unit 9 - Brown
Unit 10 - Orange

Unit 11- Pink




A

v . 4—,.‘

ot /

b oy ..... D
" Bw.u._-m. v

depyRansusdo 'Sdo BFD G H{133j) pUNAAQ e
L3 e
-.ﬂ P

o,

J56E 'DE3 | 1o=3mry goM
I3 '
'
- — — T
T
L \Q
4
0
~ .-.._.
" et ueraw“m
Lpufpai=- Y
<,
. Nia
[P ~a
rar ,4“
L ]
o Jros
. - g
. .l °
N
. L |
.
b3 at =3
fq - - o
wien
wan X N
e 3. s Q..q
=y A
v Mg
\\J .,. y n
;- .
?ﬂ .
"
A t
anna3 <
poig #
—.vll&v
L] 4;
.x 0
5 g .
R o
= A N
\n som? ”
B 5 _: ___.\ o
e v i
4
& P e ST LN
Fa Y
,n
e .\V" - s
4

20z dey Ajupia
Sdo ViV €

Eag

}3f01d Juswiieal] sjan4 uoAue) uioH sig 3|




f

]
]
]

2565 1953 | Jojeunn tav

—wk_

g
2241
anam

<01 sUojEUN38q

!

StsulapiM
veag PFOL)

M —
hl\llnllh ’.r.lrl!
o

. . \\ i Juawnvow

o - % - wontie? oy 1oty
i 1 Adsos pisigaates o
v .__. - usoybi e
) apn o
]
\ "

Bl

Z 10 T dein ANunIA
paloid wawieall sjang uoAue) uIoH g1g aynn

dewieensuadp 'sdo eR0 & +{332)) puepaAQ BfeD

Sasadiang,

\
Al
ﬂJ
l.\l‘
1.__..:. |.Ill.lll S
;uou
: 1y Apnig
!’ e W) ] ._4
g SRR k u,.,
Y Lipb] .
/ uhropein 3 \
- !
.;/J .\J(Afﬁ... .._.\
) /
. J g
, {
f o -
|
oz \
wreiey . N /
::.w:nz L /
- ue i
;F_h_uo u .:um ./ \...v.l/ll..lllda..
'\ / Aoy
N/ f

T

sEupjle ==,

)

<
ﬂ N SdOVIVO @

b




/9.

RESOLUTION 13-12-040
RED GRADE ROAD
WINTER TRAVEL MANAGEMENT

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sheridan County, Wyoming observes a need to
promote safety for citizens and visitors, and prevent conflicts between users of wheeled motorized

vehicles and non-wheeled motorized vehicles on Red Grade Road (County Road 26) bordering the

Bighorn National Forest; and

WHEREAS, on October 21, 1980 and February 16, 1988 the Board of County Commissioners of Sheridan
County approved resolutions closing Red Grad Road (County Road 26) for safety reasons during winter
travel months restricting the use of snow track and certain all-Terrain vehicles; and

WHEREAS, on November 20, 2008, the Board of County Commissioners of Sheridan County enrolled Red
Grade Road (County Road 26) into the Wyoming State Trails Program administered by the Wyoming
Department of State Parks and Cultural Resources by Resolution 08-11-042; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of Sheridan County that wheeled motorized

vehicles are prohibited from December 15 through April 1 on Red Grade Road (County Road 26) except
as temporarily changed by action of the Board of County Commissioners.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution supersedes resolutions approved on October 21, 1980 and
February 16, 1988 and December 17, 2013; and shall remain in effect until amended or rescinded.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Resolution 08-11-042 shall remain in effect until amended or rescinded.

Adopted the seventeenth day of December, 2613 2024.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ATTEST:
Sheridan County, Wyoming

Nick Siddle, Chairman Eda Schunk Thompson, County Clerk



0.

RESOLUTION 24-12-027

NOTICE OF INTENT TO VACATE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY KNOWN AS MAPLE
AVE, FROM 17" STREET TO 16" STREET AND 16" STREET FROM MAPLE AVE
TO BIRCH AVE OF DOWNERS ADDITION TO THE CITY OF SHERIDAN, WY.

WHEREAS, pursuant to W.S. §§ 24-3-101 et seq. and 34-12-107, 2 Petition to Vacate public
rights-of-way for Maple Avenue from 17 Street to 16" Street and 16" Street from Maple Ave to
Birch Ave, of Downers Addition to the City of Sheridan, was filed with the County Clerk for
Sheridan County, Wyoming;

WHEREAS, the Petition was signed by five (5) or more electors of the county residing within
twenty-five (25) miles of the subject right-of-way).

WHEREAS, a deposit in the amount of $500 was received by the County Clerk from the
Petitioners;

WHEREAS, the point of commencement, course, and termination point of the subject right-of-
way is described on the attached Exhibit A and is recorded in the Office of County Clerk and
Recorder Downers Addition Plat D-3. The City of Sheridan’s GIS Viewer indicates an 8-inch
PVC sanitary sewer main that crosses 16Y Street on the attached Exhibit B.

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2024, the Bouard appointed Ken Muller to act as the Viewer and,
after taking his Oath of Viewer, he filed a written report with the Board recommending that the
subject right-of-way be vacated;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD HEREBY RESOLVES THAT:

1. Maple Avenue from 17" Street to 16™ Street and 16™ Street from Maple Ave to Birch
Ave of Downers Addition should be vacated;

2. Notice of the proposed vacation of the subject rights-of-way shall be published for two
consecutive weeks in the Sheridan Press and shall be posted on Sheridan County’s

Official Website (http://www.sheridancounty.com/index2.php).

3. Upon execution of this Resolution, the following shall be notified of the Board’s intent to
vacate the subject rights-of-way by mailing a copy of the Notice of Intent via certified
mail with return receipt:

a. the City of Sheridan, Council Members and Mayor:

City of Sheridan Council Members & Mayor
¢/o Sheridan City Clerk

P.O. Box 848

Sheridan, Wyoming 82801

b. Those persons owning or having an interest in any land over which the subject rights-
of-way crosses.

4. All interested persons must submit written objections or claims for damages to the
County Clerk, at 224 S. Main Street, Suite B-2, Sheridan, Wyoming 82801, no later than
12:00 p.m. on January 17, 2025, or said rights-of-way will be vacated without reference
to such objections or claims for damages.

5. This proposed vacation shall be considered by the Board on January 21, 2025, at 9:00
a.m. in the Commissioners Board Room on the second floor of the County Courthouse,
Sheridan, Wyoming.

ADOPTED: .20

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ATTEST: Sheridan County, Wyoming
County Clerk Chairman

Resolution 24-12-027



G

Cameron Duff - Administrative Director
224 S Main St #B1
Sheridan, WY 82801

Dear Cameron,

On behalf of the Sheridan Public Arts Committee, we propose an exciting addition to the new
green space walkway by the county courthouse. As part of our ongoing efforts to enrich
Sheridan's artistic landscape, we request your consideration in acquiring three remarkable
statues, Cultural Pedestrians, created by Sue Quinlan. These pieces will offer a distinctive
touch to this new and growing public area, enhancing the visual experience for both residents

and visitors.

The price for acquiring these three sculptures is $5,625. To ensure the best possible display, we
recommend placing the statues on professionally designed pedestals to complement the
artwork and the green space. The total cost for the pedestals is $6,704. These pedestals will
elevate the sculptures, giving them the prominence they deserve and ensuring their durability

for years to come.

In addition to this immediate proposal, we would like to introduce a vision for the future of the
green space walkway. The three existing spaces for sculptures offer a unique opportunity to
engage our local art community in new and dynamic ways. We propose to feature rotating
sculptures created by three key groups within Sheridan:

- A high school student sculpture

- A Sheridan College sculpture

- Afocal artist's sculpture

By rotating these sculptures, we not only showcase the immense talent within our community
but also foster a sense of ownership and pride among our students and local artists. These
displays would further the Public Arts Committee's mission of making art accessible to all and
ensure that the green space remains a lively, engaging area for creative expression.

We are confident that Cultural Pedestrians will be an outstanding addition to this project and
that our vision for future rotating sculptures will continue to enrich the aesthetic and cultural
value of the green space. We look forward to discussing these proposals with you and exploring
how we can work together to bring more public art to the heart of our community.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,
Jill Benson Greg Luhman
Executive Director Committee Chair

Sheridan Public Arts Committee Sheridan Public Arts Committee



	12-17-2024 Regular Meeting Packet.pdf (p.1-44)
	2240_045.pdf (p.45-73)
	2240_074.pdf (p.74-104)
	2240_105.pdf (p.105-126)
	2240_127.pdf (p.127-162)
	2240_163.pdf (p.163-197)
	2240_198.pdf (p.198-227)
	2240_228.pdf (p.228-229)

